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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS
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We create new technology, products, services, systems, or
solutions. It is a process supported greatly by science that can
generate new discoveries and knowledge to ultimately improve
our lives. Our R&D programs have impacted diverse sectors like
research, biodiversity, transfer of technology, health, cultural
heritage, agriculture, among others. Each program pushes
to expand its field providing funding mechanisms, resources,
mentorship, or other means to drive innovation.

8 PATENTS UNDER MANAGEMENT
by Technology Transfer Office™

S14m
$43
+*28K

CENTER FORTROPICAL
HIODIVERSTTY

NEW PATENT APPLICATIONS
by Technology Transfer Office™

GRANTS AWARDED

by Research Grants Program

M RETURN ON INVESTMENT

(ROI) for grants awarded by
Research Grants Program

in Research Institute biorepository
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SBIR/STTR
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Entrepreneurship is essential for economic deve-
lopment. It fuels innovation and creates new jobs,
industries, and markets. It also has the potential to
improve lives, communities, and countries. Our en-
trepreneurship programs provide a blueprint for how
to support businesses in all their stages, stimulate

their growth and build economic development.

GRANTS DISTRIBUTED
for Parallel18’s Generation X

S1
40+
2.9k

WOMEN FOUNDERS
23 companies at Prel8 Gen 5

ENTREPRENEURS

served by Colmena66
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started Fasel Lab
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Public health attempts to promote and protect the wellbeing
of people and their environment. This work is achieved
by promoting healthy lifestyles, researching disease and
prevention, environmental hazards and attending epidemics
of infectious diseases. Our public health programs operate
based on evidence to make systematic improvements in the
health of the population, increase access to health resources,
and reduce inequalities in local communities.

NEW FUNDING
for PR Vector Control Unit

$19
35

ACTIVE CLINICAL STUDIES

for PR Consortium for
Clinical Investigation

2 K EMERGENCY PLANS DISTRIBUTED
for Puerto Rico Public Health Trust

$29

NEW FUNDING

for Puerto Rico Public
Health Trust
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Science City

Innovation is a global force that demands continued
adaptation and multisectoral engagement. Through
our base programs, we have the capacity to support all
strategic areas: research and development, entrepre-
neurship, and public health. These programs converge
in different sectors and ecosystems to build capacity
and propel innovation.

6 ACRES OF LAND

in Science City
$6 O\ CONTRACT AMOUNT
= for Forward Center Construction

190 PERSONS CERTIFIED IN
IT, HUMAN SERVICES,
AND MANUFACTURING

FUNDAMENTALS
by Puerto Rico Ready
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LETTERTO STAKEHOLDERS

By Luz A. Crespo, Chief Executive Officer

With immense pride, | present the Puerto Rico Science
Technology & Research Trust’s Annual Report for fiscal year
2022-2023. This year’s report emphasizes our dedication to
advancing Puerto Rico’s innovation agenda, a vital component
of the island’s socioeconomic development. | am very proud of
our organization’s resiliency and the contributions that each
one of the Trust’s employees made to our four strategic pillars:
Research and Development, Entrepreneurship, Public Health,
and STEM Education & Workforce Development. These contri-
butions are essential to continue delivering our mission to the
Trust’s targeted audiences and communities. We are maintaining
our strategic focus, improving our innovation capabilities, and
restlessly pursuing excellence in our operational execution.

Tobegintheannualreport, lwant to highlight the expansion of our
physical, scientific, and technological infrastructure. On August
17, 2023, the Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical Investigation
(PRCCI) inaugurated a modern clinical research center that will
complement the Puerto Rico clinical research ecosystem and
the centers of the consortium network. The new center seeks
to position Puerto Rico as a market of excellence not only for
pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies, but
also for clinical research organizations in the United States
and globally so they can carry out their clinical research on
the island. The PRCCI Clinical Research Center will also have a

THE TRUST
IS CREATING

A BETTER
FUTURE
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. “This year’s report
underscoresourdedication
to advancing Puerto Rico’s
innovation agenda, a vital
component of the island’s
socioeconomic
development.”

Luz A. Crespo
Chief Executive Officer

training and innovation program for Clinical Coordinators and
offer certifications for other healthcare professionals. With the
support of the Economic Development Administration (EDA),
the Trust completed the construction of the Forward Center. This
30,000-square-foot STEM facility will house up to 60 high-tech
startups focusing on science, technology, and manufacturing. It
will provide space for research and development in these critical
industries in a disaster-resistant building. The Clinical Research
Center was designed to serve small businesses, entrepreneurs,
and non-governmental organizations, providing incubation and
acceleration space in several key sectors, including information
technology, the aerospace industry, and the development of
medical devices, which has experienced recent expansion on the
island. The third facility added to Science City this year is the
Research Institute Core Laboratories.

These results represent the strategic guidance of our Board of
Trustees, the result-driven orientation of our management, and
the synergistic work of our associates, partners, and collabora-
tors across the innovation ecosystem in Puerto Rico. This year,
we signed over 250 Memorandum of Understanding (MOUs) for
the year.

The Communications and Marketing team has displayed re-
markable expertise in communications, marketing, customer
relationship management (CRM), and event coordination.
Their endeavors have yielded substantial accomplishments,
significantly enhancing the organization’s brand presence and
customer engagement. This year, the Trust enjoyed $3.5 M in
non-paid publicity with over 180M prints and 453 media appea-
rances. In social media, the Trust and its programs have about
150K followers and close to 96K Mailchimp recipients.
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RESEARCH PILLAR PROGRAMS

The Research and Development Pillar has achieved significant
milestones from July 2022 to June 2023. The programs within
the pillar continue to make remarkable contributions to the
scientific community through its support for research endea-
vors, collaboration initiatives, and capacity-building efforts.

During this year, the Research Grants Program impacted a total
of 43 undergraduate and 20 graduate students benefited from
it. The grantees have secured external funding, amassing over
$3.45 million in new funding this year. Furthermore, grantees
have contributed to the scientific community by publishing
their findings in peer-reviewed journals, totaling eight recent
publications in diverse fields. The Catalyzer Research Grant
Recognition Event showcased a diverse cohort of 10 projects,
with 80% of researchers being women. In response to Hurricane
Fiona, and through a rigorous evaluation process, 158 indi-
vidual grants of $500 each were awarded, aiding students in
continuing their academic pursuits despite the challenges. The
Forward Research Symposium in Nov 2022 gathered leading
experts, including Michelle “Shelli” Brunswick, to discuss ad-
vancements in various fields. The event facilitated knowledge
sharing and networking and recognized outstanding poster
presentations, promoting innovation and collaboration. In
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the program initiated
the Accelerating COVID-19 Treatment and Drug Development
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Grant (PRACTD) to support innovative research in combating
the virus. Additionally, the Advanced Research Grants call
received diverse Letters of Intent, reflecting a strong interest in
research and development across various sectors.

The Technology Transfer Office (TTO) has been a significant
force in facilitating technology transfer since its establishment
in 2017 under the Trust’s enabling act 214-2004. Operating as
a “regional” technology transfer office, the TTO has evaluated
around 150 promising discoveries from its partner institutions
and maintained a dynamic portfolio of 96 active technologies
this year. Notably, 42% of the inventors (76 out of 179) are fe-
male, an exceptional diversity achievement compared to the US
average of 13% women inventor-patentees. Key metrics reflect
an increasing trend in high-quality disclosures, engagements
with new inventors, global marketing expansion, and corpo-
rate interest. The TTO’s collaborations with universities have
become more fruitful and productive, and the overall managed
portfolio continues to grow.

This year, some of the most notable achievements include:

Evaluating 27 invention disclosures.

Managing a portfolio of 96 active technologies.
Submitting 20 new patent applications.

Maintaining a total of 84 patents under management.
Establishing the EnTRUST and XLerator Network initiatives
Winning a $1 million NSF Engine Development Award.
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This year, the Center for Tropical Biodiversity (CTB) continued
advancing ongoing initiatives while embarking on new projects
and collaborations. The CTB focused on science communication,
spotlighting the fragile state of Caribbean coral reefs and the
sea urchin die-off phenomenon. Collaborating with Ms. Lupe
Vazquez's Communications Office, the CTB raised awareness
about the significance of sea urchins as reefs. Some noteworthy
achievements included:

m Identifying antifungal compounds in Coqur Llanero habitat.

m Developinghigh-end methodsforfungalsporeidentification.

m Exploring Arracacia xanthorrhiza's potential for anti-
inflammatory compounds.

m Launching NatPORT for Caribbean natural product data.

m Resubmitting a proposal to DTRA for proteomic-scale
screening.

m Presenting CTB’s capabilities at the American Society of
Pharmacognosy Meeting.

In conclusion, the CTB'’s impactful research, collaboration, and
science communication efforts have furthered biodiversity
preservation and scientific discovery, positioning it as a vital
contributor to the field.

The Research Institute (RI) is a vibrant center for innovative
research. Located in the thriving Science City of San Juan, Puerto
Rico, the Rl is dedicated to advancing groundbreaking basic and
applied research on diseases that disproportionately affect the
local population. Guided by a philosophy rooted in diversity and
collaboration, the Rl seeks to accelerate biomedical research and
improve human health by fostering a community with varied
backgrounds, perspectives, and identities. Some of the RI's
notable achievements include:

We are establishing a genomic surveillance initiative in
collaboration with the Puerto Rico Department of Health,
contributing significantly to the sequencing efforts in Puerto
Rico, sequencing over 10,000 SARS-CoV-2 genomes, shedding
light on virus evolution. We are expanding COVID-19 diagnostic
testing through community engagement in underserved
communities, enhancing testing reach and effectiveness. We are
participating in the SARS-CoV-2 Serological Sciences (SeroNet)
project to study correlates of protection in a Latino-origin
population.

The Caribbean Center for Rising Seas (CCRS) is advancing the
mission to help prepare Puerto Rico and the Caribbean to adapt
and thrive in the new era of increasing flood risk from storms,
tides, and sea level rise. In 2022, CCRS secured a NASA grant to
study environmental justice in a Puerto Rican coastal community
affected by Hurricane Fiona. This project spans three phases,
involving stakeholder interviews, community collaboration to

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

develop adaptation pathways, and empowering the community
with actionable outcomes. CCRS's educational task is to redefine
professional knowledge about floods and sea-level rise. For
FY 2022-23, the team engaged with over 270 professionals,
including designers, regulators, financiers, and over 450 general
public participants through 11 presentations. CCRS hosted
events and developed materials, including posters and lesson
plans, to raise awareness and promote understanding. CCRS
achieved an excellent media presence, including newspaper
columns and social media sharing. They also produced videos to
disseminate knowledge. During the year, they supported four (&)
municipalities with specific reports about potential sea level im-
pact in their communities to influence their recovery plans. CCRS
delivered three policy papers with recommendations, influenced
legislation, and provided input to regulations. The center ad-
vocates for science-based policies related to sea-level rise. In
summary, CCRS’s multifaceted approach encompasses research,
education, outreach, funding, policy influence, and practical
initiatives to address environmental challenges like sea-level rise
and flooding, promoting resilience and sustainability in Puerto
Rico.
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The entrepreneurship pillar keeps adapting and acting quickly
to drive innovation, foster economic growth, and strengthen
Puerto Rico’s position as an international hub for startups and
entrepreneurship in a global landscape. The essence of our
entrepreneurial ecosystem is our people and the culture and
collaboration that allows them to interact successfully. The
Trust’s entrepreneurship pillar provides a fast flow of talent,
information, and resources to help entrepreneurs find what

they need at each growth stage. The pillar also serves the Mentalidag eng
Ocada

underrepresented entrepreneurs in their goal of creating high- Aprendizaje

impact businesses. Toma de riesgos
 Oportunidades
! Colaboracién y mentoria

This year, Colmena66 achieved significant milestones in its
mission to support Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurial community,
fostering economic growth and inclusivity. Serving 2,933
entrepreneurs, the organization facilitated 3,630 referrals to
its Resource Network, delivered 472 counseling hours, and
activated essential initiatives. Colmena66’s dedication to
innovation-driven startups was evident through the launch
of Xpand, a program aiding expansion-ready startups with
over three years in operation and $250K+ annual revenues,
along with co-launching Pulso, which supported entrepreneurs
in the northern region. The fifth edition of BEFest (Boricua
Entrepreneur Fest) 2023 highlighted Colmena66’s commitment,
attracting over 1,350+ participants, 120+ expert speakers,
and 10+ laboratories. The SourceLink Summit 2023 showcased
Colmenab6b as an affiliate network host and contributed
to securing Puerto Rico as the host for the 2024 Global
Entrepreneurship Congress. This year, Colmena66 was awarded
the SBA Growth Accelerator Fund Competition 2023. The Status
Report of the Entrepreneurial Community in Puerto Rico 2022
reflected the organization’s dedication to data-driven decision-
making, revealing demographic insights, top challenges, and
access-to-capital trends among entrepreneurs. Through dynamic
initiatives, impactful events, and commitment to data-driven
insights, Colmenab6 Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurial ecosystem
is moving forward, empowering entrepreneurs and catalyzing
growth across industries and regions.

Fasel’s journey over the past two years has been remarkable,
marked by significant achievements and meaningful
contributions to the entrepreneurial ecosystem. Our vision of
fostering innovation and driving startup success has materialized
into tangible results, reinforcing our commitment to catalyzing
economic growth and nurturing original business ideas. The
successful completion of our inaugural cohort with a flawless
100% retention rate underscores the potency of Fasel’'s model
and its potential to shape a thriving ecosystem. Our community
has flourished, embracing Fasel’s offerings with unwavering

#WEARETHETRUST 12




enthusiasm. Our community expanded by 65%, culminating in
over 1,300 individuals aligning themselves with our program’s
ethos. Fasel Lab, our online academy, has been instrumental in
this growth. With over 300 enrollments and 365 participants
completing the first three modules, our commitment to
accessible education has borne fruit. Significantly, we have
extended our outreach through the Fasel Tour, engaging with
550 individuals in 18 events spanning 11 municipalities. This
approach has enabled us to reach new demographics, further
solidifying our commitment to inclusivity and outreach. Fasel
Intensive, our 12-week incubator, witnessed the graduation of
all 50 selected startups, validating their market viability and
propelling them on their entrepreneurial odyssey. The Fasel
Demo Day showcased exemplary pitches and awarded $10,000
prizes across multiple categories. This event encapsulated the
culmination of our first cohort and its transformational journey.

Parallel18 continues to make significant strides in supporting
the growth and development of innovative businesses through
its various programs - prel8, P18, Xpand, GiveBack, Talent, and
Parallel18 Ventures. Over the years, Parallel18 has nurtured
startups from Puerto Rico and around the world, fostering en-
trepreneurship, generating economic impact, and contributing
to the expansion of the startup ecosystem.

With five generations spanning five years, prel8 has received
1,300 applications and selected 53 companies for participation.
Over 160 startups have graduated from the program, creating
scalable solutions across aggrotech, fintech, and health tech
industries. In its fifth cohort, Gen. 5, 23 startups joined the
program. These startups hailed from various Puerto Rican

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

towns, with 40% of founders identifying as women. The cohort
developed and launched technological solutions, leading to a
cumulative valuation of $40,055,000. The revenue generated
during the program was $321,000, totaling $749,584 for the
year.

Over ten generations, P18 has received 9,000 applications from
70 countries, with 256 startups graduating. Of these, 112 had
Puerto Rican founders, contributing to 44% local representation.
Eight startups from Gen. X completed the program, accumula-
ting a valuation of $42.1 million. The global revenue generated
was $317,000, while local revenue reached USD 110,500.
The cohort raised $961,000 globally and USD 245,000 locally
during the program.

In fiscal year 2023, the Federal Funds Small Business Innovation
Research (SBIR&STTR) Program actively engaged with potential
candidates through outreach efforts, resulting in collaboration
with Colmena66, Parallel 18, and SBTDC. The outcomes of these
efforts for this fiscal year translated into four awarded SBIR
contracts, maintaining a streak of non-zero awards for multiple
years. These awards contributed a total of $3,155,995 to
Puerto Rico’s economy. Through matching funds of $600,000
provided by the Trust, the total economic contribution reached
$3,755,995. The awards included a first-time Phase | awardee
and three entities that have received multiple awards. Among
these, two companies secured Phase Il awards, including a Fast
Track NIH award and a direct-to-Phase Il award from NASA. The
success in securing these competitive award types reflects the
high quality of research and proposals from Puerto Rico.
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PUBLICHEALTH PILLAR PROGRAMS:

All the initiatives and projects presented in our next section
demonstrate the Trust’s commitment to engaging communities,
addressing social determinants of health, and contributing to
building a resilient public health infrastructure. The Trust’s work
in the Public Health pillar is instrumental in promoting health
equity and improving the well-being of Puerto Rico’s residents.

In the past year, our Public Health Institute (PRPHT) has under-
gone a remarkable transformation in response to the evolving
needs of our community. It secured $2.97 million in funding,
initiated six new projects, and expanded our team with 35 dedi-
cated professionals. Our commitment to public health remained
unwavering, beginning with continued support for COVID-19
efforts, including distributing 23,000 at-home tests. After the
devastating Hurricane Fiona, we sprang into action, collabora-
ting with the Puerto Rico Department of Health (PRDoH) and
community-based organizations to provide essential supplies,
educational materials, and medical services to 31 communities
in PR.

Through our Community Health Workers (CHWs) capacity-buil-
ding projects, we trained 55 CHWs, reached over 25,000 indivi-
duals, and facilitated 1,479 referrals, ensuring our communities
received the support they needed. An emergency preparedness
plan catering to individuals with chronic diseases and disabilities,
addressing the unique needs of underserved communities, was
developed and deployed this year. PRPHT telemedicine initiati-
ves expanded access to healthcare through the distribution of
equipment, training, and technical assistance to nursing homes
and community clinics. We trained 464 individuals, provided
42 training tools, and conducted four ECHO Series, reaching
294 participants, enhancing healthcare in rural and vulnerable
communities. In response to growing awareness, a Social
Epidemiology Division focusing on equity and social determi-
nants of health was established this year. They have already made
strides, developing educational modules and questionnaires,
organizing seminars, and training over 250 health professionals.

The Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit (PRVCU), a vital component
of the Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust,
has demonstrated exceptional flexibility and agility in its vector
management endeavors. PRVCU achieved remarkable success
this year, securing $20 million in grant funding and earning na-
tional and international recognition. PRVCU was designated as a
Tropical Island National Training Center for Vector Management,
positioned to elevate vector management capabilities across US
territories. Initiating a groundbreaking dengue management pro-
ject in El Salvador, utilizing non-US-approved techniques, exem-
plifies the unit’s commitment to global vector control expertise.

#WEARETHETRUST 14



PRVCU'’s initiative-taking stance in preparing for a potential
dengue outbreak in Puerto Rico underscores its dedication to
training vector managers and ensuring adequate resources.
Preventing a dengue-3 outbreakin Puerto Rico through strategic
interventions highlights PRVCU'’s effectiveness in safeguarding
public health. As an emerging international leader in dengue out-
break control, PRVCU sets a precedent for vector management
programs worldwide. Its success positions PRVCU as a model to
emulate, and its continued impact is greatly anticipated.

The Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical Investigation (PRCCI)
remains steadfast in its mission to enhance clinical research in
Puerto Rico and beyond. PRCCI has achieved significant miles-
tones in the past year and made noteworthy progress in various
key areas, including the new Clinical Trial Center facilities at
Science City. In the clinical research operations, it maintained an
average of 35 active studies in diverse therapeutic areas for the
year, demonstrating their commitment to advancing healthcare.
It participated in 8 scientific events locally and 3 US events that
enabled PRCCI to connect with stakeholders and promote clini-
cal research. It certified 41 Clinical Research Coordinators who

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

play a crucial role in executing trials, and PRCCI’s investment in
certification demonstrates its commitment to excellence. It
experienced a 66.7% Webinar Increase for the year, enabling
PRCCI to engage with a broader audience and educate on clinical
research. It performed five patient advocacy activities and
deployed the “For Patients” webpage, fostering understanding,
education, and collaboration with patient groups. PRCCI secured
a significant All of Us Research Program grant this year, unders-
coring PRCCI’s dedication to innovative research. PRCCI offered
a High School Summer Seminar to inspire the next generation of
scientists with its educational outreach.

Insummary, PRCCI’s dedication to enhancing clinical research, ex-
panding its global presence, deploying a state-of-the-art Clinical
Trial Center, engaging with patient advocacy groups, educating
healthcare professionals, and leveraging digital platforms have
collectively positioned it as a driving force in advancing clinical
research locally and internationally. With unwavering commit-
ment, PRCCl is poised to continue its remarkable journey toward
bringing innovation to the field of clinical research in Puerto Rico.

Clinical Trial Center facilities at Science City
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FOUNDATION PROGRAM:

The STEM Education and Workforce Development Program’s
fifth-year program reflected significant growth and develop-
ment in our initiatives, advancing the vision to drive Puerto
Rico’s economic development through science, technology,
research, and innovation, solidifying its role as a catalyst for
progress. We welcomed new participants to our programs
throughout the year, kindled interest in emergent technolo-
gies and innovation, and promoted participants to consider
future careers. Throughout this year, the program expanded
its reach, inspiring many participants to explore emerging
technologies, fostering innovation, and encouraging them to
consider future careers in STEM.

A significant milestone was completing the Community
Development Block Grant-Disaster Relief (CDBG-DR) funded
Puerto Rico Ready program, where 190 credentials were
awarded to low- and mid-income individuals. The program’s
adaptability, including a return to in-person activities and
improved hybrid and distance learning options, ensured the
continuous delivery of high-quality services to the public.

STEM educationinitiatives, such as STEM Boxed Kit, Exploring
Computer Science, STEM en la Montana, and Tech Summer
Experience, continued to ignite curiosity and empower the
next generation of scientists and engineers. The workforce
development program, Puerto Rico Ready, expanded its
mission to enhance lives through technology training and
education. The program’s commitment to sustainable farming
practices and education, as demonstrated by Academia del
Cacao, Agroecologia para el Futuro, and EcoGather, reflects
its dedication to agricultural sustainability and local farmer
support.

The Puerto Rico Research and Innovation Meetups Program,
completing its eighth year, has excelled in fostering outreach
and dialogue among a diverse audience, including scientists,
researchers, educators, students, business leaders, and pu-
blic servants. This engagement spans emerging ecosystems
critical for advancing scientific, business, and civic activities,
promoting citizen well-being and economic development.
The program’s unwavering commitment to enhancing social
capital, shared leadership, collaboration, and innovative
business practices within Puerto Rico’s emerging ecosystems
has yielded excellent results. This year, the program hosted
8 Meetup Events, with 581 Attendees and the collaboration
and participation of over 62 Subject Matter Experts. Notably,
the program'’s efforts have supported Puerto Rico’s progress
in several critical areas: Bio-Economy, Space Economy,
Science Communications, Transformational Technologies, and

#WEARETHETRUST
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B Corps in Formation. With the Innovation Meetup program, the
Trust is committed to addressing critical challenges and fostering
collaboration within Puerto Rico’s emerging ecosystems.

By staying at the forefront of global trends and supporting the
sustainable development of Puerto Rico’s research, science, and
technology sectors, the Puerto Rico Research and Innovation
Meetups Program continues to catalyze positive change and
innovation in the region.

In conclusion, our annual report reflects a year of remarkable
achievements and resilience in the face of challenges. The de-
dication of our team and the strength of our partnerships have
been instrumental in advancing Puerto Rico’s innovation agen-
da. We remain committed to fostering innovation, research, and
technology to drive Puerto Rico’s continued growth and success.
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Our Council of Trustees is composed of distinguished professionals who support and oversee our work
and provide guidance to ensure that the Trust is managed within its mission and vision

Daniel Colén Ramos

Dr. Coldon Ramos is the president of the Scientific Coalition of Puerto Rico. He also serves as an Associate
Professor of Cellular Neuroscience at Yale University and is the co-founder of Ciencia Puerto Rico, a non-profit
organization that promotes local scientific research and education. His lab at Yale studies the development
and function of the nervous system, and their work has been recognized by several awards, including the Sloan
Fellowship for “outstanding promise”, an award given to recognize the best researchers of the United States
and Canada.

Dara Schuster

Shuster is a healthcare executive with extensive clinical and pharmaceutical industry and leadership experience.
She is an MD specialized in endocrinology, diabetes & metabolism. She has dedicated her career to improving
healthcare delivery, educating medical professionals, execute clinical research and been a senior leader in medi-
cal affairs in diabetes for a major pharmaceutical company and research organizations.

Alfredo Casta

Alfredo Casta is the Founder and Chairman of Cascades Technologies, Inc (CTi), which is recognized as one of
Inc. 5000 magazine’s fastest growing companies for eight years. Mr. Casta combined his technical expertise,
management skills and an unrelenting mission focus to accomplish results in the service of the American public.
Under the tenants of Think - Build - Measure, CTi delivers IT Governance services, Technical Solutions, Data
Management, Agile Development, and IT Organization Analysis including Cyber Security expertise to key cabi-
net agencies such as NIH, CDC, Labor, GSA, US Army, DHS, Justice, and Financial Regulatory Agencies.

Esther M. Alegria

Alegria has nearly 30 years of biopharmaceutical industry experience. She serves as a Senior Executive
Biopharmaceutical Advisor at Catalyst Excel & Advance (EA) lending her expertise to establish and start-up
pharmaceutical & biopharmaceutical companies. Prior to this, she held multiple executive roles leading to the
success of biopharmaceutical large-scale drug substances, medical devices assembly, finished goods and small
molecule manufacturing operations. In 2009, she was named Woman Extraordinaire of the Year by Business NC
Magazine for her impact in economic success and forward-thinking strategies. Esther holds a Ph.D. in Chemistry
from the University of Hawaii and an Executive Business Management certification from Harvard Business
School. She has also served as mentor, advocate and educator throughout her career.

Gualberto Medina

Mr. Medina, an attorney, CPA, and real estate broker, was New Jersey’s former Secretary of Commerce. He
also served as the co-founder, president, or general counsel for many technology and biotechnology startups.
Because of his successful career in government and business sectors, Mr. Medina was named one of Hispanic
Business Magazine's 100 Most Influential Hispanics. He has ample experience serving as a Trustee for the Trust.
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F N Edith A. Pérez

Perez is an internationally recognized translational researcher and cancer specialist, Chief Medical Officer of
Bolt Therapeutics, Inc., Professor of Medicine at Mayo Clinic, and Director of the Mayo Clinic Breast Cancer
Translational Genomics Program. Dr. Perez is known for her strategic vision in designing innovative clinical trials,
her passion for patient care, and her strong team leadership. Her experience includes leadership in academic and
biopharmaceutical environments, as well as focused philanthropic endeavors.

Ubaldo Cérdova

Cérdovais a professor in UPRM of chemical engineering, a researcher and the institution’s former vice president
for Academic Affairs and Research. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of
Puerto Rico (UPRM) and a MS and PhD from California Institute of Technology. His research experience includes
the authoring of peer-reviewed articles in Physics Review Letters, Soft Matter, Journal of Fluid Mechanics,
Advanced Functional Materials, and Nature Chemistry. In 2011, he was awarded the prestigious NSF CAREER
award, and in 2013 as Distinguished Professor in Chemical Engineering.

Frances Santiago-Schwarz

Santiago-Schwarz is Professor of Molecular Medicine at the Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine
at Hofstra/Northwell and Professor, Elmezzi Graduate School, Northwell Health. She has contributed to the
advancement of human immunology, and as an educator and biomedical scientist, Dr. Santiago-Schwarz has
been actively engaged in a variety of mentoring, diversity, and global humanitarian initiatives. Current activity
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic includes acquiring insight into the immunopathology of COVID-19,
unraveling novel therapeutic opportunities and development of COVID-19 medical-educational alliances with
the community.

Manuel Cidre

Cidreis the founder of Los Cidrines, amarket leader in the sale, distribution and manufacturing of bakery products
in Puerto Rico. He is a graduate of the Pontifical Catholic University of PR, with a bachelor’s degree in manage-
ment, major in finance and marketing. He has held several leadership roles, such as president of the PR Products
Association, presidentof the PRManufacturing Association, founderandpresidentof the Alliance forPuertoRico’s
Development, among other community and philanthropic organizations. Cidre ran for Governor during the Puerto
Rican general election, 2016 as anindependent candidate. His commitment to Puerto Rico and work has been re-
cognized by multiple communities and professional organizations. His motiveinlifeis returning to God all the bles-
sings he has received by devoting much of his time to organizations seeking to make Puerto Rico a better country.

Enrigue A. Volckers Nin

Vélckers Nin has a degree in Computer Programming from the University of Puerto Rico Mayagiiez Campus,
and in Business Administration and Marketing from the University of Puerto Rico Rio Piedras Campus. He has
dedicated a large part of his career to the development of new businesses, focused on emerging and massive
technologies. He was appointed by Governor Pedro Pierluisi as the Chief Innovation & Information Executive
of the Government of Puerto Rico and Executive Director of the Puerto Rico Innovation & Technology Service.
He is an Executive Member of the Trust for Science, Technology and Research of Puerto Rico, Commissioner
of the Gaming Commission of the Government of Puerto Rico, Executive Member of the MS-ISAC Center for
Internet Security, and is the Governor’s representative to the National Governors Association on Technology
and Broadband issues.
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Eng. Luz A. Crespo Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Crespo has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust
since 2015, leading the organization to outstanding achievements and building the innovation capacity
of the country. She was previously appointed as General Manager of Hewlett-Packard Puerto Rico, where
she served for 31 years. During her tenure, she successfully leading the HP Computing & Printing and
Personal Systems business units. She was also the first woman to become president of the Puerto Rico
Manufacturers Association.

Lucy is a key figure in the tech and science industry of Puerto Rico due to her ample experience and con-
tributions to these sectors. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering from the University
of Puerto Rico (Mayagtiez Campus), is a graduate from the Kellogg’s Graduate School of Management of
Northwestern University for Executive Development and is a member of the Alpha Pi Mu, the Industrial
Engineering Honor Society. She has also served in several advisory roles and received multiple recognitions
for her leadership.

Gilberto Mdrquez Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

In February 2012, Gilberto Marquez joined the Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust as
Advisor and promoted as Chief Financial Officer (CFO)in 2018. Mr. Marquez has over 14 years of experience
involved in initiatives related to technology commercialization. Prior to joining the Trust, Mr. Mdrquez was
Director of the Center for Innovation and Technology, a specialty service center of the Puerto Rico Small
Business and Technology Development Center hosted by the Inter American University of Puerto Rico.
Mr. Marquez has participated as proposal reviewer panelist for the National Science Foundation’s Small
Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Phase Il program. Since March 2009, is a Certified Public Account and
holds a master’s degree in biotechnology management (MBM) from |E Business School in Madrid, Spain.

Doira Diaz, Esq. General Counsel and Administrator

Since 2018, Doira Diaz advises the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Trustees and the Trust program
directors and managers on applicable regulations, processes and procedures related to the administration,
human resources, and general services of the Trust. She is also the Vice President of the Board of Trustees
of the Puerto Rico Green Energy Trust, a position she holds ad honorem. Prior to joining the Trust, Doira
held various positions at top law firms, covering matters in the areas of real estate, environment, land
use and telecommunications with emphasis in real estate development, permitting matters and related
disputes at the administrative and judicial levels; she also served as Deputy Advisor to the Governor of
Puerto Rico for Energy, Environment, and Infrastructure. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of Pennsylvania and a Juris Doctor degree from Fordham University and is also a notary public
and a certified mediator.

Inés Alvarez De La Campa Human Resources Director

Alvarez has a track record of analyzing companies and organization needs and executing plans to improve
their competitiveness and overall employees’ satisfaction. She has dedicated her career to the management of
human resources, talent acquisition and administration in companies like Bristol Mayers Squibb and Johnson &
Johnson. Alvarez holds a bachelor’s in Accounting and a master’s degree in Business Administration. She is also
certified as a Personnel Administrator and Yellow Belt Certified (BMS OpEx).
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Lupe Vdzquez Chief Communications & Marketing Officer

Vdzquez has served as the organization’s Chief Communications Officer since 2015. Prior to that, she served
as editor and reporter for more than 30 years at the local newspaper El Nuevo Dia. As a journalist, she led
the direction of writers, designers and freelancers for the creation of reports on diverse topics such as news,
lifestyle, business, education, among many others. Her experience also includes the redesign to improve the
reach of print and digital platforms, the conceptualization of new editorial products, brand management,
integration of sales strategies and the execution of initiatives to improve revenue and readership models.
Lupe holds a Bachelor’s degree in Liberal Arts and a Master’s degree in Translation from the University of
Puerto Rico (Rio Piedras Campus). In 2012 she was recognized with the WAN-IFRA award for her leadership
in the digital transition of Logon, a newspaper designed for teenagers at El Nuevo Dia.

César Piovanetti Chief Information Officer (CIO)

Piovanetti has over 15 years of experience in the geographic information sciences (GIS) field, as GIS and
technology consultant in various locations in the United States and Puerto Rico. Throughout his career, he
has held various roles in the technology sector integrating cloud software solutions for the public, private
and NGO sector. Experienced in designing and deployment of platforms and solutions as a service in the
Microsoft Azure Cloud, Office 365 integrations at the enterprise level as well as logistic operations using
geolocation technologies. During the last couple of years, as part of the Puerto Rico Science Trust technology
team, Mr. Piovanetti has led implementations for federal, local and NGO funded geospatial projects.

Eng. Jerry Meléndez Chief Facilities Management Officer

Meléndez has a bachelor’s degree in Civil/Environmental Engineering from the Polytechnic University of Puerto
Rico. He completed a master’s degree in Project Management from the University of Barcelona, Spain. He has
23 years in the field of planning, projects, operation, and construction management. Eng. Meléndez has 10
years in the Trust managing all the facilities and developing all the projects in City of Science City. In Science
City he has worked on the planning, development and construction of the Puerto Rico Environmental Research
Laboratory, Laboratory Road, Innovation Center Building and Forward Center Building.

|
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EDUCATION AND CAPACITY BUILDING

Our Education and Capacity Building initiatives aim to provide
participants instruction, mentorship, and other development
opportunities in strategic sectors of science, technology, and
entrepreneurship. We strive to give Puerto Ricans the tools they
need to be more competitive in science and technology fields
or to pursue entrepreneurial initiatives. The Trust supports and
funds various events, conferences, educational activities and
summits in partnership with several stakeholders who promote
entrepreneurship, research, and investment opportunities, to
further economic development on the island. Also, through our
Sponsorship Policy, we have powered events and activities of
R&D, entrepreneurship, and innovation.

MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING
SIGNED AND CONCEPTUALIZED ON
2022-2023

The Trust establishes alliances with a diverse range of organi-
zations, educational, private, and non-profit, and the result is
a bigger map of stakeholders to reinforce the Trust’s mission
& vision. These are the more 250 organizations with which the
PRSTRT and its programs has officialized alliances during this
fiscal year.

m Organizaciones de servicio comunitario

m Corporacion de Servicios de Salud Primaria
y Desarrollo Socioecondmico El Otora
Corporacion (COSSAQ)

m (CasaJuana Colon Apoyo y Orientacion ala

Mujer

Surcando la Historia, Inc.

Migrant Health Center Western Region, Inc.

Unidos por Arenas Inc.

Puestos pa’ lo Bueno, Inc.

Fundacion Bucarabdn, Inc.

Comité Comunal de Corcovada, Inc.

Villa Communitaria Crozier, Corp.

Fe que Transforma, Inc.

#WEARETHETRUST

Municipio Autéonomo de Coamo

Municipio Auténomo de Aibonito
Acueducto Comunidad de Buenos Aires
Incorporado

Naguabo Somos Todos

Telemedicina +200 hogares de cuidado de
personas discapacitadas y envejecientes

El Departamento de Salud de Puerto Rico
Recinto de Ciencias Médicas de la Universidad
de Puerto Rico

Universidad Central del Caribe, Inc. (UCC)
Ciencia Puerto Rico, Inc.

Abartys Health

Ministerio de Salud de El Salvador (MINSAL)
World Mosquito Program (WMP)

National Center for Emerging and Zoonotic
Infectious Diseases, Division of Vector-Borne
Diseases (DVBD)

Centros para el Control y la Prevencion de
Enfermedades (CDC)

El Departamento de Salud de Puerto Rico
Ponce Health Sciences Univeristy
Pathstone

Puerto Rico Minority Business Development
Agency Business Center

AARP

Puerto Rico Blockchain Trade Association
Banco Popular de Puerto Rico

Puerto Rico ICON Institute

Departamento de Desarrollo Econdmico y
Comercio (DDEC)

Universidad de Puerto Rico

Universidad Central del Caribe

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
XLerate Health LLC

Universidad de Querétaro, México



Who We Sponsored

The Trust invested $247,632.23 in science, technology,
research & entrepreneurship training initiatives, including
the following 22 organizations:

Sistema Universitario Ana G. Méndez
Code Puerto Rico LLC

PR Information Technology Cluster
Colegio de Arquitectos y Arquitectos
Paisajistas de Puerto Rico

Puerto Rico Section of the American
Chemistry Association

Convention Sports & Entertainment Group

Next Level Innovation LLC

Enactus Puerto Rico

Transforma Corportion

Women Business Inc.

INDUNIV Industry University Research
Center

Universidad Central del Caribe
Puerto Rico Blockchain Association
Ecoexploratorio, Inc
Borinkengineers

SME (Asoc.Ejecutivos de Ventas y
Mercadeo)

Fundacion Sila M. Calderon, INC.

m
m Universidad del Sagrado Corazon
m National Women'’s Collaborative
m Trivium Studios LLC

m Puerto Rico Creativo LLC

m Corporacion de P.R. para la Difusion Publica

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

Who Are Our Sponsors

On the contrary, the following organizations are allies of
our organization with sponsorships and support for various
events and programs within our strategic pillars. Partnerships
are part of our growth and strengthen the relationships of
the ecosystems we facilitate. These 25 organizations have
sponsored some of our events:

AP&G Company
Clarke International
Central Live Sciences
Superior Angran
Candace Royals
Triple S

Grupo Ferré Rangel
Master Card

Banco Popular
American Chemical
Oriental Bank
Sistema Universitario Ana G. Méndez
Municipio de Coamo
Ferraiuoli LLC

NUC University
AeroNet

T-Mobile

Rones de Puerto Rico
Bacardi

Ferraiuoli

Strain App

GoPanza

Plaza Provision
Co.co.Haus

Don Rifa
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Who We Sponsored

UNIVERSIDAD
B ANA G. MENDEZ

UAGM

s

m Next Level
|+ Innovation

"enactus.

Puerto Rico

Transforma
Corporation

WomEN IN BUSINESS

o :&i;
ﬁ?&&\ ACS Local Sectio
v Puerto Rico E

INDUN'V

INDUSTRY UNIVERSTY RESEARCH CENTER. INC.

CONVENTION
SPORTS & ENTERTAINMENT
FACILITIES CONFERENCE
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SAGRADO

Universidad del Sagrado Corazén

(g PRBTA

Puerto Rico Blockehaln
Trade Association

b 4 iy & ‘

AATHINAL WOMENS COLLABOHATIVE

" ECOEX/"

Borinkengineers

Corroracion DE PuerTo Rico
PARA LA DIFUsION PuBLICA

centro

PARA PUERTO RICO

Fundacian Sila M_Caldesdn
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Who Are Our Sponsors
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WHAT WE DO

As part of the Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust, the Re-
search Grants Program is a structured, systematic, open, and competitive
funding mechanism to support the development of science and technology
research projects in Puerto Rico. The mission of the Research Grants Program
is to provide proof-of-concept funding and incentives to advance locally deve-
loped R&D projects to become more competitive for federal and private fun-
ding and/or commercialization.

Puerto Rico

The Research Grants Program represents a critical source of competitive fi-
nancial support for fundamental research and commercialization activities
that build the knowledge economy, fuel innovation, and empowers Puerto
Rican scientists and entrepreneurs.

HOWWEDOIT

Our approach is characterized by competitive mechanisms and rigorous peer
review. Through this process, proposals are evaluated by subject matter
experts to assess their quality, feasibility, and potential impact. By employing
such a system, we ensure that resources are allocated to projects with the
highest scientific merit, fostering transparency and encouraging excellence
and innovation. Additionally, we are committed to fostering initiatives that
promote collaboration within the scientific ecosystem of Puerto Rico. By
creating platforms, networks, and opportunities for researchers, we aim to
enhance knowledge sharing, interdisciplinary collaborations, and the overall
advancement of scientific research in Puerto Rico.

WHO WE CONNECT WITH

The Research Grants Program takes a “Researchers First” approach, striving
to create an environment that empowers and supports researchers in Puerto
Rico in their scientific endeavors. In addition, we engage subject matter
experts from around the world who play a vital role in evaluating their
proposals and providing valuable insights. By harnessing their expertise, we
ensure a rigorous and comprehensive assessment process. The program also
extends its support to research administrators, acknowledging their vital role
in facilitating the smooth management of scientific projects. By assisting
them, we contribute to advancing the overall landscape of scientific research,
enabling impactful discoveries, and fostering innovation.
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PROGRAM IMPACT NUMBERS RESEARCH GRRAANTI\%
134 471 144
Grantees to Date Students Peer-reviewed
\ ) | Impacted | | publications |
$14,659,087 39 60
Grants Awarded Patents Patent
\ Applications J

| |STRATEGIC SECTORS:

$43 330,319

Return of Investment

‘ Biotechnology and Natural Sciences

8 i i 3 ‘ CIean Technologies and/or

Founded Abstracts & Renewable Energy
Companies Presentaions ‘ Electronics

Clinical Trials

Enviromental Sciences

447 Medical Devices

BEACON Users Conservations Sciences
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CURRENT GRANTEES (ALL) EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

From July 2022 until June 2023, the grantees reported the

following achievements: o
The funding initiatives of the Research Grants Program were

developed to directly support basic research, applied research
- N and product development through both competitive and
non-competitive mechanisms. Our funding mechanisms include:

The Research Grants Program has awarded
more than 134 research grants through its
)
competitive initiatives for a total investment of ADVANCED RESEARCH (@’ ADVANCED RESEARCH
o . . GRANTS (ARG) t GRANTS PROGRAM

$14.7 million with a return of investment
of over $43.3 million. Solicited proposal mechanism that provides funding to advance
locally developed science and technology projects to a point

where these will be able to be further developed through
alternate sources of funding and/or commercialized. Up to

Platform BEACON, which provides a better $150K
understanding of Puerto Rico’s research
ecosystem, has garnered a user base of CATALYZER RESEARCH ‘}é R
447 individuals from GRANTS (CRG) VoW CRANTERROGRAN

31 distinct institutions. Enhances the competitiveness of local researchers by providing

L ) critical bridge funding to help them (1) obtain reproducible and
robust preliminary results, (2) address any recommendations
from previous grant reviewers to improve their R&D proposals

and (3) secure reagents, laboratory materials, collaborations, or
1 5 8 2 6 5 additional technical training necessary for the proposed goals.
Up to $70K

Students Supported Attendees to our
with our Boost Forward Research 1-TO-1 MATCHING FUNDS é SBIR/STTR
Research Initiative Symposium FORPHASE | & Il SBIR/STTR @ Federal Grants
) oo ” PROPOSALS

Promotes and increase commercialization of research. Match up
to $100,000 for Phase | and up to $200,00 for Phase

Puerto Rico y Espana

Allows the selection and financing of R&D projects in effective
collaboration between a Puerto Rican entity (Research Center,
University or Company) and a Spanish company. Awards up to
$75,000/year.
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Presently there are no other peer-reviewed funding mechanisms
available to researchers in Puerto Rico that encompasses
opportunities for junior, mid-level and senior researchers
representing a broad range of disciplines. The Research Grants
Program has awarded more than 134 research grants through
its competitive initiatives for a total investment of $14.7 million
with a return of investment of over $43.3 million.

BY LEVERAGING OUR RESOURCES,

.@ ANNUAL REPORT FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

In November 2022, we organized the Forward Research
Symposium. The event brought together over 265 attendees,
including students and researchers. The symposium was held
in-person for the first time in two years and served as a platform
to highlight the success of our grantees’ projects.

EXPERTISE, AND COLLABORATIVE

SPIRIT, WE STRIVE TO CREATE AN ENVIRONMENT THAT NURTURES
EXCELLENCE, FOSTERS COLLABORATION, AND ACCELERATES
PROGRESS IN THE SCIENTIFIC COMMUNITY.

In September 2022, we recognized the new grantees of
the Catalyzer Research Grant. For the first time 80% in this
cohort were women scientists. This milestone underscores
our commitment to promoting diversity and inclusion in the
scientific community, as we believe that diverse perspectives
drive innovation and excellence.

Following Hurricane Fiona in September 2022, we offered
support to affected students in partnership with Ciencia PR, the
American Association for the Advancement of Science-Caribbean
Division and the American Chemical Society-Puerto Rico Chapter.
Through our Boost Research Initiative, we were able to provide
aid to 158 students, representing a total of $79,000.

Recognizing the importance of efficient research administration,
we provided several training and networking opportunities under
our initiative AGILE, which offers resources to help nonprofit
organizations and institutions of higher education maximize
funding opportunities and execute compliance requirements.
Also, our centralized platform BEACON, which provides a better
understanding of Puerto Rico’s research ecosystem, has garnered
a user base of 447 individuals from 31 distinct institutions.

In May 2023, we launched a call for the Advanced Research
Grants program. Currently, we are in the process of evaluating
the received Letters of Intent. This rigorous evaluation ensures
that we allocate our resources to projects that hold the greatest
promise for scientific advancement.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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THIS YEAR ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE RESEARCH

CURRENT GRANTEES

From July 2022 until June 2023, the grantees reported the

following achievements:

=
STUDENTS IMPACTED ] EXTERNALFUNDING  [LOJ
23 undergraduate students U&&& Since July 2022, the total amount of external funding secured

that the active grantees reported is $3,456,219 for a total of
$12,458,108 (since funds were awarded). It is important to note
20 graduate students that obtaining preliminary data and securing additional funding
is a lengthy process. Several grantees are awaiting responses
from federal agencies to which they have submitted proposals.

THESIS AND PUBLICATIONS 1]
DISSERTATIONS Since July 2022, our active grantees were successful in

publishing their findings in peer reviewed journals:

(for a total of 152 since funds were awarded)

(for a total of 119 since funds were awarded)

As a result of the funding provided by the Research Grants
Program, three (3) undergraduate thesis, four (5) MS thesis,
and five (5) PhD dissertations were completed. Also, one (1) MS
thesis, and three (2) PhD dissertations are in progress.

ARG - 4 new peer-reviewed publications
(for a total of 40 publications since funds were awarded)

CRG - 4 new peer-reviewed
(for a total of 25 publications since funds were awarded)

J

é
"‘ CATALYZER RESEARCH

o GRANTS PROGRAM
1\ ¢

CATALYZER GRANTS CALL
PEER REVIEW PROCESS

On September 2, 2022, we presented a new cohort of grantees
during our Catalyzer Research Grant Recognition Event. In the
previous report, we detailed the selection process undertaken
for this year’s group of grantees. These 10 projects received a
total award of 700k. The recognition event became an inspiring
platform where the grantees took center stage presenting their
funded projects.

It is important to point out, that 80% of the researchers in this
cohort were women.
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BOOST RESEARCH INITIATIVE

Following Hurricane Fiona in September 2022, we joined forces
with the Caribbean Division of the American Association for the
Advancement of Science (AAAS Caribbean Division), the Puerto
Rico Chapter of the American Chemical Society (ACS Puerto
Rico), the Society for the Advancement of Chicano/Hispanic
and Native Americans in Science (SACNAS), and Ciencia Puerto
Rico to launch the Post-Fiona: Relief Fund for Science Students.

The call was open until November 1, 2022, and college stu-
dents in Puerto Rico affected by Hurricane Fiona’s passage had
the opportunity to apply for help to receive individual grants of
$500.

During the call, 232 applications were received.
Through a committee of more than twenty evaluators,
158 individual grants of $500 were awarded

for $79K. These funds were awarded to STEM graduate
and undergraduate students.

The students who benefited shared testimonials about how
they used the funds obtained:

‘" The funds helped me greatly with college and other
expenses. | was able to cover the rest of what was due from
this past semester, cover expenses when traveling from town
to town, and cover part of the university expenses for the
coming semester. Eternally grateful

Undergraduate student,
Pontificia Universidad Catdlica de Puerto Rico, Ponce.

O
A

‘ These funds have been used to recover the investment in some
purchases that | kept in the refrigerator and that were damaged due
to lack of electricity, | also bought some portable batteries for phone
and tablet, since the place where | live suffers from power outage,
| hired an Internet service from my phone (Hotspot) to solve the fall
of the wired network in the area, | bought some lamps, | also plan to
invest in some repairs that my room suffered because of the strong

. . . . n
winds, especially the screens in the windows.

Graduate student,
University of Puerto Rico, Rio Piedras campus

O
A
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FORWARD RESEARCH
SYMPOSIUM

With the mission of promoting innovation in science and
technology, on November 3rd, 2022, the Forward Research
Symposium was held at the Fairmont San Juan Hotel. For the
first time in two years, it was held in-person. This is one of our
most important events as it is where we present the work and
progress of our grantees as well as the impact of the Research
Grants Program.

The symposium featured discussions with leading speakers,
including Michelle “Shelli” Brunswick, Chief Operating Officer
of the Space Foundation, a leader in the global space ecosystem,
and congressional liaison for the U.S. Air Force. Brunswick was
joined by more than 25 renowned speakers and panelists, some
from prominent institutions such as Columbia University and
Howard Hughes Medical Institute, and grantees of the Research
Grants Program. The group of local and international speakers
shared their knowledge in life sciences, technology, health,
agriculture, aerospace, entrepreneurship, and many more.

265 | 25 || 90

Attendees Speakers Posters

The event, in addition to providing opportunities to connect
with resources and network with peers, also provided space
for local scientists and students to present their advances and
discoveries through a poster session, which showcased an
impressive array of 90 projects presented by talented students
and researchers. We awarded the top three posters in distinct
categories: Scientific and Technical Merit, Global Impact, and
Local Impact, each receiving a cash prize of $1,000. Mitel
also sponsored a special prize, further encouraging innovative
research.



AGILE- ACCESSTO

THE GRANTSMANSHIP
INVESTMENT LEADINGTO
EXCELLENCE

This initiative provides tools and resources to help nonprofit
organizations and institutions of higher education maximize
funding opportunities and execute compliance requirements.
These initiatives are expected to increase the agility of the
application process, improve project execution, and strengthen
the capacity to secure future funding.

CANDID-FOUNDATION DIRECTORY ONLINE

AGILE's goal, through Candid, is to provide nonprofit
organizations, higher education institutions, grant managers,
research administrators, and other members of the community
the access and assistance needed to effectively navigate the
Foundation Directory Online (FDO) database of financial, contact
and grant information, among others. As part of the FDO's
Funding Information Network, the Research Grants Program’s
AGILE Initiative will provide access to Candid resources to the
community:

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST
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Access to the Grantsmanship Investment
Leading to Excellence

Access from the Trust

The Trust will be providing at least (24) hours per week of public
access to Candid resources by appointment and during office
hours. The platform can have up to (80) simultaneous users
when they log in with the access provided. The use is restricted
to the Trust facilities.

Access outside the Trust

Limited access (demos) can be provided for training outside the
Trust facilities to support organizations that need and request
it.

WORKSHOPS: ““THE 8 STEPS TO SUCCESSFUL FUNDRAISING"” &
‘“DATABASE WORKSHOP: FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES”

On August 31, 2022, AGILE offered a presentation to Mentes
Puertorriquenas en Accidn (MPA) focused on providing training
a group of 14 interns who are part of the program “Programa de
Apoderamiento y Retencion de Agentes de Cambio (PARACa)".
The workshop provided statistics on the donor ecosystem in the
United States and discussed the most common situations and
strategies in the development and implementation of a capital
raising plan for a nonprofit organization. Finally, strategies for
presentation, persuasion and donor cultivation in the short, me-
dium and long term were discussed.
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On January 27, 2023, AGILE welcomed back the participants
of the PARAca Internship. The event served as the launching
of the “Candid” services of the Foundation Directory Online
with two workshopss: “Database: Funding Opportunities” and
“Introduction to Foundation Directory Online”. The first works-
hop presented an overview of all the funding sources available
to eligible organizations in Puerto Rico. The second workshop
served to explain in detail the tools and how to navigate the
platform to research and identify organization profiles from the
Candid Foundation Directory Online.
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COFFEE & GRANTS: FIRST
GRANT MANAGERS AND
RESEARCH ADMINISTRATORS
NETWORKING

EVENT 2022

On November 17, 2022, the Research Grants Program held
its first “Coffee & Grants” event. It served as a meeting
and networking point for grant managers and research
administrators. The event sought to provide a space for repre-
sentatives and experts from different sectors within nonprofit
organizations, government and higher education institutions,
who work daily facing the challenges of grants management, to
share ideas and alternatives on the current situation in Puerto
Rico in relation to these challenges, alternatives to create
alliances and best practices to replicate in the country. Among
the speakers were Dr. Gloria Bonilla-Santiago from the Center for
Community Leadership at Rutgers University, Mr. Roger Iglesias,
Director of the Office of Federal Funds, attached to the Office
of Management and Budget of Puerto Rico (OMB), Mr. Eric
Morales, MBA representing the National Council of University
Research Administrators, Dr. Adi Martinez from the University
of Puerto Rico’s Law Resiliency Center, and Dr. Marcos Lépez
from the PRSTRT Research Institute.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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AGILE & ALLGRANTS:
IMPROVING YOUR GRANT
MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE
SKILLS: COMMON ERRORS
AND CASE STUDIES

On March 30, 2023, the AGILE initiative held the workshop
“Improving your grant management compliance skills: common
errors and case studies” provided by the grant development
and compliance firm “AllGrants”. The training focused on
improving the grant management compliance skills of teams
from participating organizations and presenting them with
relevant case studies to discuss experiences and alternatives.
Ten organizations were selected and two team members from
each participated, for a total of 20 grantees to the training. Each
selected team consisted of the fiscal or financial agent and its
grant manager.

As part of the grant provided, up to 3 hours of technical
assistance was offered by AllGrants to the teams and at least
one hour was encouraged to be paired by the participating
organization to encourage their commitment to the initiative.

BEACON

BEACON s acentralized platform that better understands Puerto
Rico’s research ecosystem. It allows researchers to create and
update their profiles and allows potential collaborators and the
public to search for them. Every day, BEACON searches online
bibliographic databases automatically to find new publications
and output data for each researcher and allows automatic
claiming to reduce the number of times users’ need to confirm
them.

Our goal through this platform is to increase collaborations
between public and private Academic Institutions, researchers,
companies, and/or potential investors. Currently, the platform
has 447 users from 31 institutions in Puerto Rico.

In January 2023, we launched a pilot with the University of
Puerto Rico at Mayaguez to integrate their researchers’ profiles
(221) into BEACON. Our outreach efforts will focus on profile
completeness, starting with this group.
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PR-ACTD

The rapid spread of the Covid-19 pandemic has presented an
urgent need for effective treatments and drug development
to combat this global health crisis. The Accelerating Covid-19
Treatment and Drug Development Grant (PRACTD) was initiated
in response to this pressing challenge. The program is adminis-
tered by the Coronavirus Relief Fund Disbursement Oversight
Committee (Committee) in conjunction with the Puerto Rico
Department of Economic Development and Commerce (PR-
DEDC), and the Puerto Rico Fiscal Agency and Financial Advisory
Authority (AAFAF).

The Research Grant Program is the project manager of this grant
proposal cycle. On March 31, 2023, an informative session
was conducted to introduce the PRACTD project, outlining its
objectives and requirements. Following this, the Request for
Proposals (RFP) was officially opened the same day as the info
session, inviting researchers and institutions to submit their
proposals. The deadline for the full proposal submission was May
3rd and we coordinated the review of the submitted proposals.

Award recommendations were made based on the advice of an
External Peer Review Committee (EPRC). Final grant funding
approval, however, is bestowed upon the PR-DEDC.

ADVANCED GRANTS CALL PEER REVIEW PROCESS

The mission of the Puerto Rico Science Technology and Research
Trust (the Trust) is to invest, facilitate and build capacity to
continually advance Puerto Rico’s economy and its citizens’
well-being through innovation-driven enterprises, science and
technology and its industrial base. According to this mission,
the Trust launched in May 2023 a Requests for Proposals (RFP)
for the Advanced Research Grants. The goal of peer review
is to assess the scientific merit of Trust grant applications in a
fair, independent, expert-driven, and free from inappropriate
influences, so the Trust can fund the most promising research or
development work.

The Research Grants Program received 44 Letters of Intent
for the Advanced Research Grant. Of the LOls received, 36
were from Academic Institutions, 6 from For Profit
Organizations and 2 from Non-Profits.

Institutions

University of Puerto Rico-Rio Piedras Campus 22.7%
University of Puerto - Medical Sciences Campus
University of Puerto Rico - Mayagiiez Campus
For Profit

Universidad Central del Caribe

Ponce Health Sciences University
Non-profic | <

Ana G. Méndez University - Cupey Campus - 2.3%
University of Puerto Rico - Cayey Campus - 2.3%
University of Puerto Rico - Ponce Campus - 2.3%
0 25 5 75 10

Strategic Sector
25 52.2%
20
15
10
15.2%
5
6.5% 6.5%
43% 43% 43% 4.3% 22%
, | [T =
o S 3 o & 3
& &S Qe"@ & & @"@\ &
O A T Y &0 ¥
N4 & o & & @ &
S ,\\\0 'D&o Q&Q I < A
(}oé & s és‘*\ & S
& & & 8
& & NG
G o (\’b
$F R
N &
& &
& &
There is a great diversity of
g y Type of Research

applications as can be seen in
the Strategic Sectors. Also,
30% of the LOIs received are for
projects related to Technology
& Product Development for
Commercialization.

Technology/Product
Development for
Commercialization

29.5%

Basic/Translational
Reserach

70.5%
*This call is currently in the
Letter of Intent (LOI) Review
Phase and results will be sha-
red in the next report.
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OTHERINITIATIVES

The Research Grants Program also assists other Trust programs
and initiatives with their Request for Proposals (RFPs) by
creating their application and review portals through Zengine, a
managing platform from the WizeHive company. This platform
allows us to manage the grants cycle in a centralized way. It is a
robust tool that gives access to a customizable dashboard that
shows research trends, demographics, and reports.

ENTRUST: DE-RISKING EARLY-
STAGE TECHNOLOGIES

EnTRUST was established in 2021 as a Life Science “Lab to
Market” bootcamp offered by the Trust’s Technology Transfer
Office in conjunction with Columbia University's Irving Institute
for Clinical and Translational Research. Each year a 12-week
course exposes academic researchers to key aspects of drug
development, design, and commercialization. In cooperation
with the Trust’s Research Grants Program, research teams
compete for pilot funding awards to de-risk their technologies.
In 2023, EnTRUST supported seven research teams, consisting
of twelve researchers, from four universities. External experts
reviewed final proposals and team pitches which resulted in five
teams receiving awards of $75k each, totaling $375k.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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ACT 60

The Research Grants Program oversees processing and
evaluating the applications of the Act 60 tax incentives.
The purpose is to foster research and development activity
conducted at local universities in Puerto Rico, allowing qualified
Principal Investigators or a Co-Principal Investigator to seek
tax exemptions for salaries earned from eligible R&D research
grants. The main objective of this incentive is to attract and
retain competitive researchers to strengthen Puerto Rico’s
performance in science and technology and the Island’s position
in the knowledge economy.

At the time of this report, for fiscal year 2022, a total of 95
incentive applications have been received. If approved, this will
represent over 3.5 million in tax incentives for researchers. For
fiscal year 2022, 48.4% of the Act 60 tax incentive applicants
are female researchers and 51.6% male.

ACT 60 ACT 60 Incentive
institution applications requested
AGMU - Carolina 3 $51,580.00
AGMU - Cupey 3 $30,547.90
PHSU - PRI 13 $552,518.93
ucc 2 $18,982.89
UPR-M 39 $851,261.00
UPR - MSC 22 $674,247.46
UPR - CCC 13 $1,361,447.00
Total 95 $3,540,585.18



WHAT’S NEXT

EMPOWERING THE SCIENTIFIC COMMUNITY: CUTTING-EDGE RESEARCH GRANTS
PROGRAM SPARKS INNOVATION AND FUELS BREAKTHROUGH DISCOVERIES

In its unwavering commitment to advancing the frontiers of
science, the program envisions a future built upon relentless
support for the scientific community. A pivotal event on
the horizon is the eagerly anticipated Forward Research and
Innovation Summit: Space Edition, slated to take place on
November 30th, 2023. This extraordinary gathering aims
to bring together visionary minds from across the globe,
fostering collaborative efforts and sparking groundbreaking
ideas that propel space exploration to new heights.

Embracing the spirit of AGILE, the program vows to continuously
cater to the needs of grants managers and administrators,
empowering them through cutting-edge trainings that equip
them with the latest tools and knowledge to streamline processes
so that they can continue to support the non-profit institutions
and universities in which they work.

Also, the program is determined to elevate its renowned BEACON
platform to even greater heights, providing scientists with an
intuitive and resourceful hub to foster seamless cooperation and
information sharing.

In recognition of the mounting demands on its endeavors, the
program intends to fortify its workforce by enlisting a dedicated
resource, enabling greater efficacy and impact across all projects
undertaken.

In a momentous stride towards innovation, the program is
poised to introduce the coveted Advanced Research Grants -
Space Edition, dedicated to catalyzing groundbreaking research
in the unique environment of microgravity, fueling ingenuity and
expanding the boundaries of human knowledge.

Ever mindful of its responsibility to perpetuate its initiatives, the
program remains resolute in its mission to identify new funding
sources, securing the long-term sustenance of its transformative
endeavors. Through these ambitious and strategic future
plans, the program remains steadfast in its pursuit of scientific
excellence and endeavors to leave an indelible mark on the
scientific landscape for generations to come.

DIRECTOR POV

Andreica Maldonado

Research Grants Program Director

As the Research Grants Program head, | take immense pride
in leading the sole peer review mechanism that empowers
groundbreaking science and technology research projects. Our
mission is clear: to foster a robust knowledge economy on our
island and make alasting impact on the local scientific community.
Despite running with a lean team, we excel in managing multiple
projects, ensuring each receives the attention it deserves. By
meticulously selecting and funding innovative ventures, we
ignite the creativity sparks that drive progress. As we continue to
support visionary researchers, our program becomes a catalyst
for transformative discoveries, fueling the engine of knowledge
and advancement.
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Grace M. Rendon Febles

Research Grants Program Specialist
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TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER OFFICE™

WHAT WE DO

The TTO's mission is to identify, evaluate, protect, market, and
transfer the most promising research discoveries from Puerto
Rico’s universities, institutions, and research institutes to the
private sector for commercialization and to benefit the public.
Our vision is to implement shared risk/shared reward partner-
ships that deliver best-in-class technology transfer services
in order to identify and increase innovation opportunities for
Puerto Rico’s scientists and researchers, thereby improving
Puerto Rico’s overall innovation ranking.

HOWWEDOIT

The process begins with the TTO Inventor Portal and
identification (“disclosure”) by the inventor(s) which includes
the stage of development, public disclosures, grants that
supported the invention, plans to publish/present, and any
companies that might have interest. Evaluation (“screening”)
includes technical review, development stage, patentability

analysis, and market potential. Then TTO provides
recommendations to the inventor(s) and university partner.
In many cases, TTO files a patent application (“protect”) using
law firms with expertise in the invention’s scientific field.
TTO's digital marketing platform, IN-PART, connects our
technologies to over 6,000 global R&D companies. Finally,
TTO uses best practices to negotiate with potential partners
and model agreements used by technology transfer offices
around the world.

PROTECT

I—EE. Intellectual Q;D
i Property T

Patents &
EVALUATE ~ [fatents® MARKET
Analytics Resources & o0
5 & Insights Partners S .é.'w
Inventions Technologies 'w
IDENTIFY

Research
Discoveries

Inventor Portal

Technology

TRANSFER

Options &
Licenses

Start-ups
Existing Companies

Transfer Office™
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WHO WE CONNECT WITH

The TTO connects science to business by delivering technology
transfer services to five university partners, representing
17 campuses, including four medical schools. These are
the University of Puerto Rico campuses, Ana G. Mendez
University campuses, Ponce Health Sciences University/Ponce
Research Institute, San Juan Bautista School of Medicine, and
Universidad Central del Caribe. Among these there are about
450 PIs/Co-PlIs conducting sponsored research and the most
recent official report (FY2021) showed $123 million in R&D
expenditures. Our portfolio of active technologies consists
of inventions and intellectual property from our university
partners and mirrors the R&D activities of their scientists and
researchers.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The TTO was formally established in 2017 by amendment to
the Trust’s foundational law 214-2004, and as a “regional”
technology transfer office. Since then, the TTO has formally
evaluated about 150 promising discoveries from its partner
institutions of higher education and researchers. This year, the
TTO maintained a current active portfolio of 96 technologies,
evaluated 27 new invention disclosures and delivered 22
Screening Reports. Diversity in inventorship is exceptional,
42% of our inventors (76 of 179 total) are female, compared
to the U.S. average of 13% of women inventor-patentees.
Our performance metrics show a continued increase in quality
disclosures, engagements with new inventors, increased global
marketing penetration, and interest from companies. Each year
our overall managed portfolio grows, and our partnerships
with universities becomes more productive.

Research discoveries are typically early-stage, require de-
risking resources, investment in quality intellectual property
protection, targeted marketing in a global economy, regulatory
support, and best-of-class agreements. The TTO’s standard
operating processes are designed to identify, evaluate, protect,
market, and license technologies to existing companies and/or
new start-ups created to develop the technology. De-risking
technology is challenging. It requires inventors willing to
spend time learning about accelerating their research towards
the market as well as targeted resources and investment.
To that end we continued our EnTRUST program for a third
year, through our partnership with Columbia University, to
accelerate life science discoveries. In addition, our XLerator
Network entered a fifth year, with new funding to develop and

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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PORTFOLIO BY FIELD

7% Engineering
21% Physical Sciences
72% Life Sciences

\. J

deliver entrepreneurial learning opportunities for biomedical
researchers, early-stage de-risking funding, and mentorship
networks.

This year we also led an effort to respond to the National
Science Foundation’s new NSF Engines program which
intends to support long term strategies to boost innovation,
support ecosystem development, and invest in important
areas of national interest. We were successful in winning a $1
million award for “Advancing Biopharmaceutical Technologies
and Manufacturing Practices”, which spans the ecosystem
from discovery-to-product, and we believe will provide
new opportunities to engage with Puerto Rico’s biopharma
manufacturing companies and their innovation challenges.

CONNECTING

Science to Business

IMPACT METRICS

27
96
20
84
9

15

New Invention Disclosures
Active Technologies

New Patent Applications
Patents Under Management
New Agreements

Active Licenses
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Active Portfolio Status: 96 Technologies ‘ ( Patent Portfolio Under Management ‘
9%  PoC/validation 18% Foreign

23% P Protection 21% pcT

19% Screening and Assessment 31% Provisional

13% Licenced 30% Non-Provisional

36% Marketing Total Patent Portfolio Under Management: 84

Patent Expenditures since FY17
Inventor Gender

: 017 $22,282.07

i 12009
| J | s $125,901.90
Inventor Profiles: 179 total 5020 $2081“7'45

( \ 2021 $67,451.78

New Invention Disclosures by Field
20/ 2022 $184,837.18
o  Environmental Technology
o 2023 $295,352.58
&% Energy \
30% Healthcare/Medical Device Expenditures (USD) per fiscal year
59% Therapeutic/Drug Delivery
New Invention Disclosures: 27
. . XLERATOR NETWORK: ACCELERATING
New Patent Applications LIFE SCIENCE DISCOVERIES
40% PCT The Southeast XLerator Network (“XLerator Network”) was
established in 2018 with a $3.5 million grant from the NIH
35% Provisional and consists of a consortium of over 25 universities across
Py the Southeast IDeA region. The Trust, through the TTO serves
25 /o Non-provisional as the Lead for Puerto Rico. Each year it offers resources
L ) for biomedical researchers interested in bringing promising

technologies from the lab to the marketplace. These include
SBIRreadiness and coaching, proof-of-concept funding, subject
matter experts, and Executives-On-Roster®. In 2023, the NIH

New Patent Applications: 20
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provided an additional $3.25 million over a two-year period
for I-RED (IDeA Regional Entrepreneurship Development)
to offer a suite of experience-based entrepreneurship
educational products and tools to build university based
biomedical researchers’ and students’ entrepreneurial skills
needed to translate scientific discoveries and innovative
technologies into commercial products and shorten the
time it takes to get these technologies from bench to
market.

ENTRUST: DE-RISKING EARLY-STAGE
TECHNOLOGIES

EnTRUST was established in 2021 as a Life Science “Lab
to Market” bootcamp offered in conjunction with Columbia
University’s Irving Institute for Clinical and Translational
Research. Each year a 12-week course exposes academic
researchers to key aspects of drug development, design,
and commercialization. In cooperation with the Trust’s
Grant Program, research teams compete for pilot funding
awards to de-risk their technologies. In 2023, EnTRUST
supported seven research teams, consisting of twelve
researchers, from four universities. External experts
reviewed final proposals and team pitches which resulted in
five teams receiving awards of $75k each, totaling $375k.

e A

B projects awarded $375k
9 teams
17 researchers

& universities

NSF Engine
Development Award:

$1 million
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NSF ENGINE DEVELOPMENT AWARD:
BIOPHARMA ECOSYSTEM BUILDING

The National Science Foundation (NSF) granted the Trust
a $1 million award (NSF Award Number 2305699) for a
Type-1 two-year effort “Advancing Biopharmaceutical
Technologies and Manufacturing Practices”.  TTQO's
Executive Director serves as the Pl. The program aims to
boost the U.S. innovation capacity by investing in promising
areas of national interest across the country. The effort
intends to leverage and cultivate emerging technologies to
tackle large-scale societal and economic challenges. A major
challenge currently facing the U.S. is currently the supply
chain ecosystem needed to deliver essential medicines and
new products to address seasonal and unforeseen health
crises. Discovery and scaling must progress together to
meet these challenges. Puerto Rico has building blocks and
key collaborators to quickly revamp the global supply chain
for medicines to make it more stable, reliable and demand
based as part of a sustainable National Security strategy.

WHAT’'S NEXT

INCREASE PORTFOLIO AND MANAGE
GROWTH

TTO'’s technology management platform provides a secure
Inventor Portal for invention disclosures. In FY2024, this
will be modified to allow key partner contacts to submit
disclosures on behalf of their inventors, thereby increasing
on-campus engagements with researchers as well as
quantity and quality of new disclosures. Each year the TTO
provides paid internships to train science and engineering
students/graduates in the invention evaluation process.
In FY2024, the TTO will support up to three new interns
to receive training and mentoring to assist in the growing
portfolio. Technology transfer requires a variety of skills
including an understanding of scientific fields, intellectual
property, de-risking early-stage technology, marketing,
licensing, and managing technology portfolios throughout
their lifecycle. InFY2024, TTO will add capability to manage
more complex operations and TTO programs, EnTRUST
and XLerator Network, to promote participation and
engagement with new resources and to mentor our funded
project teams as they de-risk early-stage discoveries.
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MEET OURTEAM DIRECTOR’S POV

Research discoveries drive technology transfer and the
types of research are critical to our efforts. Puerto Rico’s
universities have continued to advance their research
program, with the last official figure of $123 million in
David L. Gulley, PhD, RTTP, CLP research expenditures (FY2021) of which $85.5 million
(70%) was from federal sources and $76.7 million
(62.2%) was in the life sciences. As federal agencies
increase funding levels, new programs are emerging that
support translational research, and life sciences present
the challenges of de-risking, long-term investment, and
regulatory requirements. Our XLerator Network and
EnTRUST programs are critical in ensuring we can move
promising life science discoveries from the lab to the market.

Executive Director

Carlos Baez, PhD, MBA, RTTP, CLP

Senior Technology Manager

Josiah Hernandez, MS

Technology Manager

Alba L. Marrero, MS, Candidate RTTP
Analyst

Kiara Rosario, BS

Intern
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CARIBBEAN CENTER FOR RISING SEAS

WHAT WE DO

We help prepare Puerto Rico and the Caribbean to adapt and
thrive in the new era of increasing flood risk from storms, tides,
and sea level rise. This program will further establish Puerto
Rico’s leadership and stature as a center of excellence and
innovation. The comparable safety and wellbeing afforded by
Puerto Rico’s topographic elevation and geologic attributes
will become a reference point for other small island nations. The
CCRS will become a research and education instrument through
which capacity might be developed, thereby facilitating and
unlocking competitiveness for coastal regions in the coming
decades.

HOWWEDOIT

The Caribbean Center for Rising Seas (“CCRS”) works to
develop the knowledge and best practices so that buildings and
infrastructure are designed and constructed to be resilient to
traditional hurricanes, as well as accelerating sea-level rise this
century resulting from climate change. While myriad efforts
address many of the important challenges of climate change,
the center focuses on the critical issue of sea level rise, an
unstoppable effect of this crisis. This is anissue that will have a
historically unprecedented impact generations into the future.
The planis for Puerto Rico to become a model for an adaptation
approach in the Caribbean region and elsewhere.

WHO WE CONNECT WITH

The center works closely with professionals tasked with the
stewardship, administration, or design of the natural and
built environment such as engineers, architects, planners,
and attorneys. They are key stakeholders in the decision-
making process aimed at achieving sustainable practices
within a legal framework of building codes and regulations’
compliance. Other stakeholders we reach out to include
community leaders, elected officials, business leaders,
educators, and scientists. To this end, we have a diverse
set of leaders in our advisory committee which includes a
chair each for the Architects’ and the Engineers’ Guilds.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

We face a great challenge. Science observations and findings
need to be applied urgently in shore-based human settlements,
infrastructure, and economicassets suchas farmland and tourist
destinations if we are to prepare with sufficient anticipation
to sea level rise. Public investments need to be channeled
according to science-based criteria that adequately address
the future needs of society. We need to convey the sense of
urgency since, once these changes start making themselves
more evident, we will have less space and time to maneuver,
and adaptation will be more expensive. The challenge is to make
Puerto Rico and the Caribbean as future ready as possible and
make them a model of resilience and adaptation for the world.

We need to close the gap between research and knowledge
application in the built environment. In order to do this, we
need to establish meaningful conversations around topics
such as margins of safety, structural redundance, building
envelope performance, shoreline settlement functionality...
that respond to the reality of a warming planet with a
changing climate and ultimately, rising seas. We need to give
professionals tools and guidelines that will enable better
discernment at the moments key design decisions are made.
There are agencies, enterprises, and professionals dealing with
flooding that have not thought through Sea Level Rise and too
many of the current solutions to flooding will come up short.

One of those conversations we have embarked on is with a
flood-threatened community in southern Puerto Rico. We
secured a grant in collaboration with the Global Resilience
Institute at Northeastern University and have been gathering
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insightful data about the challenges faced by residents. The
project, titled Leveraging Earth Observation Data to Support

Environmental Justice: A Puerto Rico Coastal Community Case 3 Newspaper Columns
Study, is slated to finish in October of 2023.

In keeping with our engagement with key actors involved with g
the design, management, or stewardship of the natural and I
built environment, numerous meetings have been conducted

with representatives of the architects’, engineers’, and 1 1 . .

surveyors’ guilds. In November, we led an event togdiscuss flood Presentations Delivered

maps with the engineers and surveyors and in June, the CCRS | )
team prepared and delivered a refresher presentation at the ) Ry

Annual Convention of the Colegio de Arquitectos y Arquitectos
Paisajistas de Puerto Rico.

We have also provided the general public with presentations in 47 9 Attendees at Presentations

a variety of forums to connect the dots between mainstream

knowledge and culture and the most recent scientificknowledge. g
We are committed to keeping the interested populationupdated )
and aware of relevant aspects to foster a culture of climate
literacy. These presentations are being complemented with 2 30 .
educational material in a variety of formats like posters, videos, Professmnals Reached
and short messages on social media. L )
As part of our responsibility to support Puerto Rico’s policy - N
for Research and Development, we have actively written or L
made contributions via position papers, advocating through Municipalities have sought
our relationships with the Coastal Flood Resilience Project, the information from us
Rising Seas Institute, and the Global Resilience Institute. At

|\ J

the request of the Puerto Rico’s legislature, we have provided
insight for amendments to existing legislation, and currentand )
anticipated bills. We hope some of these proposals find their

way to key stakeholders tasked with updating building codes, 3 . .y
zoning, and land use regulations. P°||cy Position Papers

This year closed with a wonderous trip to Greenland. At the U J
invitation of the Rising Seas Institute, we had the opportunity
to witness first hand the melting glaciers, the calving of the
ice sheets, and the resulting icebergs slowly drifting away and Ratio of Grants Obtained
contributing to sea level rise in real time. This is the landscape of 1 to Grants Pursued

the 21st century and the reason we must prepare for the future.
We need to rethink where we live and adapt.

LEt’S bui’d together 1 Expedition to Iceland & Greenland

a safer future today. :
1 J 960 Social Media Interactions
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ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2022-23

RESEARCH AGENDA

Our program is focused within the Research Pillar of the
Trust. As such, we frame our activities considering research
and development leading to innovation. We are researching
how to implement policy and finding ways to connect with
decision makers to change priorities. While we conduct specific
studies, each of our other agendas is imbued with real world
considerations.

A project with a Coastal Community

In July of 2022, we received notice of a grant proposal’s
acceptance. We had submitted for NASAROSES 2021 A.49 with
the Global Resilience Institute at Northeastern University titled
Leveraging Earth Observation Data to Support Environmental
Justice: APuerto Rico Coastal Community Case Study 21-EEJ21-
0043 in March. Hurricane Fiona's impact caused a delay and
the project officially started in January of 2023. It consists of
three phases: 1: Interviews with local adaptation stakeholders
to better understand the environmental justice landscape of
the community and their experience with NASA data. We have
focused on finding out how NASA Earth Observation (EO) data
could aid communities to address their environmental justice
challenges. 2: A collaborative session to engage in co-learning
with the community to develop adaptation pathways, identify
barriers to adaptation, and to establish a method in which
community members prefer to be engaged by outside agencies/
organizations while investigating what the community feels are
its most pressing EJ concerns. And 3: Reporting and project
wrap-up that gives the community agency over the outcomes.
This will inform actionable steps that both the community
and NASA can take to leverage NASA EO data to address
environmental justice concerns and to articulate the process
through which a typical community would like to be engaged.

EDUCATIONAL AGENDA

Our key educational task is redefining professional knowledge
and understanding about the different kinds of floods, their
hazards, and sea level rise. To do this, we engage with key actors
involved with the design, management, or stewardship of the
natural and built environment, in three major groups: Designers
and Builders, Regulators, and Financiers. We have devised
three levels of engagement to build awareness, understand
different aspects of the challenge and start co-developing
pathways to adaptation. A full cycle has been completed with
local architects. We also maintain parallel efforts to educate
stakeholders in the general public such as teachers, community
leaders, and business leaders.
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Educational Events

Una mirada al calentamiento global
desde los mapas de inundaciones

Mice womve

In November, we led
an event to discuss
flood maps with

the engineers’ and
surveyors’ guild titled

R Ovector tecutvo, Lemtio Conbeno de Aumento dec v dei v © %

Fracrente Rising S bt d

Una mirada hacia el
calentamiento global La efoctividad de fos mapas de inundacidn st o
Cambio Climético y of Aumento del Nivel del Mar
desde los mapas R
. . Ingenero, Modeadors
de inundaciones.
(A glance at global

warming from the
point of view of flood
maps.) Guest panelists

2 HORAS CONTACTO TECNICAS % \\
PARA INGENIEROS Y AGRIMENSORES N

included Hydraulic $60 Mo Colegiado
. y , $30 Colegiado -.,,.,‘
Engineer José $15 Estudiante B

Rodriguez, Surveyor
Ruth Trujillo, Planner
Félix Aponte, and
Environmental Engineer Hanna Rodriguez. It was attended

by 67 professionals and received press coverage in four main
media outlets. In June, the CCRS team prepared and delivered
a refresher presentation\ at the Annual Convention of the
Colegio de Arquitectos y Arquitectos Paisajistas de Puerto
Rico. We took these opportunities to refine our message

and provide continuity to our past efforts such as last year’s
Annual Architects’ and Landscape Architects’ Convention. We
have also provided general presentations, especially in regional
shopping centers at the invitation of EcoExploratorio to
connect the dots between mainstream knowledge and culture
and the most recent scientific knowledge.

Educational Materials

A series of posters have been planned to deliver our message.
The first of these is about to go to print. It describes the five
flood factors and the five most relevant consequences of sea
level rise. Together with other materials in development, these
will stand alone or provide a basis for lesson plans that will ease
curricular development on this topic.

OUTREACH AGENDA

Throughout the year we have been building alliances
and relationships. Among these we expect to sign two
memorandums of understanding. We have also attended
various key events and networked with participants to synergize
and collaborate, such as the Puerto Rico Climate Change

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



Council Summit, the Microsoft Sustainability Roundtable, the
Summit for a Fair Recovery, Mega Civil Friday, the Puerto Rico
Engineers’ and Surveyors' Expo Convencion, the Offshore
Aquaculture and Wave Energy in Puerto Rico Workshop,
the DnA Design+Architecture AIA Hawaii Creating Spaces to
Belong Conference, the STAR-TIDES 16th Annual Capability
Demonstration at George Mason University, the Puerto Rico
Planning Week, the Puerto Rico Heritage Month, and the
FEMA and Puerto Rico Planning Board meetings to discuss
flood insurance rate maps, and various design juries.

We have also provided support and leveraged various
initiatives at the Trust sharing our expertise about Global
Warming and Climate Change. Specifically, we have made
contributions to the Science Communications Meetup, the
PRCCI 2023 Summer Seminar, and the hosting of visitors with
research, education, and policy agendas.

We wrote and published three mainstream media newspaper
columns. The first, on the intersection between Sea Level Rise
and Erosion was titled E/ Baile Milenario entre la Costa y el
Nivel del Mar. The second was titled 44 municipios costeros
que cambiardn para siempre to encourage smart urban
planning, occupying safe areas while flood maps are revised
in the long term. The third was titled Celebremos el Dia
de la Tierra hablando del agua on occasion of Earth Day to
encourage long-term thinking to adapt to sea level rise.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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We have also shared on social media key articles and events
concerning sea level rise, especially our learnings from the
melting glaciers in Greenland as part of the Fact-Finding
Expedition organized by the Rising Seas Institute. A series of
videos and other audiovisual material were created and are
being shared on various outlets.

FUNDING AGENDA

While funding for the program is fundamentally provided
by the Trust, we are actively seeking additional sources
via grants, collaborative agreements, and donations. As a
nonprofit organization; we understand the challenges of
securing funding to both increase our staff and carry out
projects. We are interested in considering collaborations that
can derive mutual benefit, we are excited about facilitating
initiatives that benefit from some support on our part such
as research projects, but also, we are eager to invest in pilot,
demonstrative projects that can generate excitement and
opportunities to advance our knowledge about how to build
greater resilience and adaptation to current and future flood
threats.

Grant funding inroads

This past year we have successfully supplemented our budget
with a grant from NASA that covers the equivalent of 10% of
our expenses and initiatives and the entirety of the related
project. At present; we are exploring opportunities, based
on lessons learned, to reiterate this kind of supplement. We
have learned much from our proposals delivered to the Ports
Authority, the Puerto Rico Sea Grant College Program, NASA,
NSF, and NOAA.

While we strive to secure significant funding for long term
program sustainability, we are also looking for ways to amplify
and leverage our available resources and efforts. To this
end, we have submitted letters of support for the Puerto
Rico Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
(BRIC) Readiness Initiative pursued by the Central Office for
Recovery, Reconstruction, and Reslience (COR 3), a NASA
scientist's research on Application of Commercial Smallsat
Data to Enhance Flood Resilience in Support of Underserved
Communities in Puerto Rico, and Fordham University’s
application for the Flourishing in Community grant.

POLICY AND LEGISLATION AGENDA

A key challenge is taking science from academic forums to
practical, decision-making instances like new or updated
legislation/codes/regulations. We see in our work at the CCRS



PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

SABADO
6 do agosto de 2022

El baile milenario entre la costa y el nivel del mar

n estos dias se ha colado repetidamente

entre los titulares de noticias el tema de la

erosion. La erosion no es otra cosa que el

desgaste de la superficie terrestre por

agentes externos, como el agua o el viento y es algo

que siempre ha ocurrido y siempre ocurrird. Sin

embargo, el cambio climético y el aumento del nivel

del mar agravan e inhensiﬂmn sus efectos. Cuando

la ion tiene y visibles

en espacios en donde viven personas, como es el

caso de Ocean Park, entonces movemos nuestra

ion y nuestra p pacion a este tipo de
fenémeno.

No podemos ignorar que la costa es un espacio
dindmico en donde ocurre la erosion rutinaria-
mente, con o sin tormentas, marejadas o aumento
en el nivel del mar. Mientras contintie derritién-
dose el hielo de los glaciares y de las capas de hielo
sobre tierra, la linea de la costa inevitablemente
avanzard tierra adentro. Esto tiene efectos como la
mundaclén de dreas baJas que han s:do ya, de por
si, por la

Por milenios ¢l nivel del mar ha fluctuado. Sin
embargo, esta dindmica ne ha sido experimentada
por la humanidad al grado de impacto de hu-

marejadas, i i y hasta tsuna-
mis. Estos acontecimientos namrales e historicos

A
inur

PUNTO

DE VISTA

Fernando E. Pabén Rico
Amuitecta y Gerente del Centro Caribena de Aumento del Nivel del
Mar, Fideicomisa para Clencia, Tecnologla e investigacidn

Bt Py P A4

1 COmo Opor
que nos inspiran y obligan a tomar decisiones pen-
sando en el futuro, pero baséndonos en experien-
daspasadxs.Aunquehamahorasusefectoshn-
yan sido précti ite imp ibles, en térml-

satisfactorios y atin peor, a nuevas y mayores deu-
das con obras que solo perderén valor con el tiem-
po {si logran sostenerse). Es hora de construir so-
luciones a largo plazo, con esfuerzos e inversiones
que puedan tener largas vidas y se sost: ante
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Rico en afiliacion al Rising Seas Institute. Somos un
centro de investigacion y referencia sobre el au-
mento en el nivel del mar que busca poner en
didlogo la ciencia con la formulacién de politica

iblica y los bi Iturales y climéticos a

retos como los que hemos tenido hasta ahora y los
que sabemos que vendréan.

Los cientificos y profesionales del disefio y la
construceion saben hace mucho que las herra-
mientas disponibles como las, muros, ga-
viones y espigones suelen causar més problemas y
agravar los riesgos de erosion existentes. La in-
fraat.mcmm verde y las combinaciones con la

uctura construida solo atrasar
por un tiempo lo inevitable. No hay una solucién
senclﬂa para el problema natural y rutinario de la

nos pricticos, el nivel del mar viene
hace décadas, esta acelerando y cada vez se hard
sentir mas. M do el pés va la 10
Esta es nuestra oportunidad para construir un
mejor futuro, verdaderamente resiliente, Es un
gran momento para emprender un didlogo que nos
permita tomar decisiones inteligentes para el fu-
turo, Si algo hemos aprendido, no repitamos de-
cisiones desi No podemos limitarnos a
mitigar los retos temporeros que Esto

Sabiendo que la erosién y los factores que
la agravan estin empeorando, ;como construire-
mos para mayor seguridad, tranquilidad y soste-
nibilidad? La invitacién directa es al didlogo. No
debemos pmplcmr la hlstena colectiva, sino la con-

yel lectivo del tema.

Discutamos ahemauvas realistas, oportunidades y
proximos pasos eficaces.

Entre otras cosas, para eso se ha establecido

organizacion creada por el Fideicomiso

solo nos lleva a diluir esfuerzos, a resultados in-

para Ciencia, Tecnologia e Investigacion de Puerto

corto, mediano y largo plazos. Buscamos facilitar
conversaciones alrededor de la economia, la so-

ciedad, la regl. ion y el medicambi que
Iten en la inteligenci ria para tomar
decisiones sabias.
:Qué t primero? R las amena-
zas binadas de ion continua, ex-

tremos y aumento en el nivel del mar y aceptar que
los edificios y la infraestructura deben construirse,
como minimo, en lugares mds altos y tierra aden-
tro. Esto seria un paso firme para la preservaciéon
de las inversiones que tanto valor (econdémico,
emocional..) tienen para usuarios, propietanoa
dios, entes fi i yla

mejor, constr
mis elevados, construyamos un futuro seguro hoy.
Tengamos la ﬁexlblhdad v lavisién para anticipar los
retos, y oportunis andonos de que lo que
construyamos hoy sea factible y viable manana.

A esta columna contribuyeron ideas Giuliana Gon-
zdlez, Paulina Seguinot, Gilberto Guevara, Lupe
Vazquez y John Englander.

MIERCOLES
23 de noviembre de 2022

44 municipios costeros que cambiaran para siempre

uestros  centros  urbanos  historicos

ofrecen ventajas insuperables y deci-

sivas ante el futuro. No es casualidad ni

capricho que se establecieron alli. Uno
de los [actores decisivos suele haber sido la se-
guridad que provee cada lugar ante las amenazas
de las inundaciones por su elevacion sobre el en-
torno. Sus suelos firmes y con buen drenaje ga-
rantizan su funcionamiento a pesar de las incle-
mencias del tiempo y hay dia, el sumento del nivel
del mar. Tamhién proveen otras ventsjas: hay de
todo y todo esté cerea, incluidas las oportunidades
lahorales. Viabilizan la formacién de una masa
critica de pobladores, esencial para todo lo op-
cional. Son el cspacio organizador de la vida co
lectiva, de las iniciativas empresariales, y reanen
los simbolos de nuestras aspiraciones, Dan forma
al punto de encuentro entre minimizar los riesgos
y maximizar los suefios.

Esa forma urbana es la consecuencia de politica
publica establecida por nuestros ancestros hace
mas de cinco siglos. En aquel tiempo no tenian
mapas de inundaciones, métodos efectivos para
prondsticos meteorologicos y mucho menos tec-
mlomasoﬁsmadadeavmsymeﬁmspsnwghr
y doc €l paso de fend 100S.
Tampoco habia seg contra inund:

Fernando E. Pabén Rico
Arquiitactn y Gererte del Dentro Cardefio de Aumento def Nivel
del Mar, Fideicomiso para Clencia, Tecnologia o investigacion

era fundamental ser eficientes y no exceder la ca-
pacidad de la poblacion, la geografia y la naturaleza
de proveer para las necesidades de la comunidad.
No habia espacio para el desperdicio ni el riesgo.
Entonces, heredamos 78 centros urbanos que
generalmente no son inundables, aungue se for-
men algunos charcos luego de llover. Si algan drea
se inunda suele ubicar en ¢l borde, resultar de
algin desagie obstruido o ser el producto de haber
edificado sobre el curso y entorno de alguna que-
brada o humedal. En general, y fortaleciendo aque-
lios expuestos a inundaciones temporeras, los cen-
tras urbanos son los espacios en que podremas
confiar ante el aumento del nivel del mar para

que
compensaran sus pérdidas. Empleaban el sentido
comuin, las experiencias del pasado y 1a ohservacion

devida y patrimonio, impulsar
Ia sostenibilidsd, revitalizar I economis y relo
calizar actividades, viviendas y empresas fuera de

cuidadosa del paisaje antes de tomar dect

lugares vulnerables. Esa experiencia ya la vivimaos.
Aprendamos de las notoriss y maltiples mudanzas

de San Germén y la de Caparra a San Juan, que
entre muchos otros centros urbanos, tienen la dis-
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gias e i i futurss a proy en fu-
gures Segurvs que no queden permanentemente

lados con el sumento en el nivel del mar.

tincion de haber estado entre los proy piloto
que se desarrollaron antes de proclamarse en con-
junto las Leyes de Indias. Muchas lecciones apren-
didas en Puerto Rico se implementaron en las
futuras fundaciones de innumerables pueblos més
en las Aménicas.

Recientemente, hemos olvidado aquellos prin-
cipios rectores de seguridad e incrementado nues-
tm vulnembilidad innecesariamente mediante ol
desparrame suburbano. A la vez, hemos desaten-
dido los centros urhanas, los espacios de los que
mayor beneficlo podemas mateméticamente ob-
tener. La crisis que vive Pucrto Rico no es sor
prendente. Tampoco deberd sorprendernas el fu-
turo. Las fluvias tierra adentro cada vez provocan
mayores volimenes de agua cuenca abajo que con
el aumento en el nivel del mar anummnptm
espacio para drenar. Esto se traducind en inun-
daciones para aress [lanas costeras, experiencias
que principalmente podran evitarse por mayor
tiempo en los 44 centros urbanos de los muni-
cipios costeros. Debemos encauzar nuestras es-

de inundacion a largo plazo”

Rehabilitar y repoblar los centros urbanos tradicionales
es un buen punto de partida hacia el futuro que demostrarfa
planificacion inteligente mientras se revisan los mapas

Pur lo tanto, rehabilitar y repoblar los centros
urbanos tradicionales es un buen punto de partida
hacia el futuro que demostraria planificacion in-
teligente mientras se revisan los mapas de inun-
dacion a largo plazo. Con los fondos de recupe-
racion otorgados a Puerto Rico existe la posibilidad
de encaminar la seguridad y prosperidad tan an
siada por nuestm gente. Hay una oportunidad pam
verdademmente desarrollar la economin y salva-
guardar el hienestar social, asi como &l medioam-
biente, adapténdonos y construyendo la resiliencia
que exigen ¢l calentamiento global y el aumento en
el nivel del mar. Esta es la mision del Centro Ca-
ribefio de Aumento del Nivel del Mar. Puerto Rico
puede volver a ser un lider y punto de referencia
global sobre 1a forma urbana ideal con el resultado
de una vida en solidaridad con los demds.

A esla columna contribuyeron ideas Maria Mén-
dez, Gilberto Cuevara, Lupe Vimquez y John En-
glander. Puede encontrar més informacién sobre su
municipio en hitpsy//coastnoaagouystyy
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erca del 1% del planeta Tierra esta cu-

bierto de agua. Al igual que pensamos en

nuestros cuerpos cuando nos enferma-

mos, pensamos en el planeta cuando
tenemos sintomas de que algo anda mal. Solemos
preocuparnos por el cambio climatico y el sumento
del nivel del mar solo en temporada de huracanes
y marejadas, Coneentrarnos en atender lo urgente
quita de nuestms radares lo importante. Priorizar
la vision a largo plazo para prepararnos para las
inundaciones permanentes que traerd el calen-
tamiento global es la diferencia entre el éxito y
firacaso,

El Informe de Riesgos Globales 20a3 del Foro
Econdmico Mundial indica que en 10 afos ten-
dremos aln menoes opeiones para adaptarnos a los
retos del ealentamiento plobal y mitigarlos. Ten-
dremos los mismos problemas de hay, pero con
menes tiempo ¥ probabilidades de construir con-
diciones que nos penmitan funcionar como so-
cledad. Si ya lenemos estos sintomas y este dis
nastico, podemos cambiar la prognosis.

Fernando E. Pabon Rico
Dérector Centro Caribenic de Aumanto del Nivel del Mar

La mayoria de nuestro paisgje construido se rea-
lizd en apenas 30 afos. Esto coincidio con un
erecimiento econdmico nunea antes experimen-
tado, por lo que la mayoria de nuestros edificios e
infraestructura no cumplen con los eddigos de
construecion actuales mucho menos con exigen-
cias futuras). No podemos tomar decisiones per-
manentes basadas en situaciones temporeras co-
M0 1 168 a emergencias ¥ entradas de fondos
federales. Tomemos decisiones sostenibles.

Neeesitamos transformar radicalmente ¢l paisa

je. Tracemos un plan para trasladar paulatinamen-
te comunidades y actividades econdmicas a silios
mis altes v tierra adentro para que puedan so-
brevivir al aumento del nivel del mar. Necesitamos
crear ¥ desarmollar comunidades resistentes a
inundaciones pensando en mas de 100 afios a fu-
Lo,

Para alcanzar metas como contar con 100% de
energia renovable, resiliencia ante fendmenos na-
turales, sepuridad alimentaria v una poblacién sa
ludable, capacitada, empoderada y sin necesidades,
es impreseindible redistribuir los recursos hacia
prieridades colectivas de gran escals. Nuestra prio-
ridad no pueden ser solo los puertorriquenios del
presente, sino los del manana. Puerto Rieo tiene
gue estar listo para recibir de vuelta a la difspora,
de estados como la Florida, y que tendrs que reu-
bicarse por el aumento en el nivel del mar.

La construccion serd la herramienta catalitica
a reestablecer la economia. Necesitamos: una
fuerza trabajadora capacitads, un entramada ju-
ridico robusto de eddigos de construceidn y re

Celebremos el Dia de la Tierra hablando del agua

glamentos de zonificacion que no requieran cam-
bios significativos en 30 anos, incentivos claros
para desmantelar infraestructuras que serdn ob-
soletas por su proximidad al mar, invertir en re-
nowar el sector industrial pars reutilizar y recielar
eseombros producidos, ¥ revitalizar centros ur-
banos alejacdos del peligro de inundaciones. Ha-
gamos espacio para humedales v ecosisternas cos-
teros que apoyen la bindiversidad. El gobierno fa-
cilitara mediante provectos de vivienda, comereio,
industria e infraestruetura pre-aprobados para es-
to. Solo asi lograremos estar plenamente coor-
dinados eon la planificacion a larpo plazo.

Muestros cuerpos, el pais ¥ el planeta se ma-
nifiestan a través de sintomas y sefales. Para tener
un futuro eomo &l que sonamos, atendamos los
prondsticos de lo que cientificamente esta por pa-
sar. Tomemos decisiones sostenibles para que el
future no solo sea posible, sino viable.

A et columna contribigeron ideas: Marfa Mén-
dez, Gilberto Guevara, Lupe Vazquez y John En-
glander,
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an opportunity to catalyze innovation in public policy as a side
effect of our advocacy for adapting legislation to consider
and incorporate planning and budgeting for sea level rise. In
other words, we see the CCRS/PRSTRT engagement in policy
work as research and a vehicle to advance social, educational,
governance/security/scientific innovation and wellbeing. It just
so happens that we are focused on sea level rise, the question
of how to get people to adapt, and believe adaptation to it
might only happen if the incentives/necessary conditions exist
in the legal/policy framework.

Coastal Law Forum

In November, we delivered a set of recommendations to
the Chamber of Representatives as part of the Coastal Law
Forum mainly encouraging long-term thinking be taken into
consideration.

Senate Infrastructure Bill 665

Our efforts to explain the relevance of considering sea level rise
in proposed policies have had surprising twists. While this bill
was vetoed by the Governor, key provisions found theirway toan
emergency declaration about coastal erosion and vulnerability
that he signed shortly afterwards. These mention the need to
“...develop a plan to locate new infrastructure projects, which
are not dependent on or for the enjoyment of the sea, outside
the coastal zone... Additionally... for existing infrastructure
projects, not dependent on or for the enjoyment of the sea,
deteriorated, and requiring replacement or reconstruction,
the feasibility of the planned and orderly relocation of these
outside the coastal zone must be evaluated.”
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Joint Regulation

In January, we prepared and delivered our input to the Planning
Board on the new proposed Joint Regulation for the Evaluation
and Award of Permits Related to Development, Land Use, and
Business Operations, collaborating along the way with the
Colegio de Arquitectos y Arquitectos Paisajistas de Puerto Rico
with commentary focused on adaptation measures for sea level
rise.

PRACTICAL AGENDA

To start seeing changes in urban development practices, we
submit that updates to building codes, zoning, and land use
regulations must happen. Therefore, we have met with diverse
stakeholders presenting our case about building resiliency and
catalyzing adaptation, receiving their input, and discussing
our common points of view. We take these opportunities to
deliver our message: Future flooding from coastal storms,
heavy rainfall, extreme tides, and accelerating sea level rise,
require that we plan and build for better resiliency. These
stakeholders range from municipal officers, leaders of other
non-profit organizations, academics, and the private business
sector. Hence, we are seeing requests to collaborate and leave
our imprint in various forums and efforts.

A dashboard

A great amount of information already exists and is publicly
available, but it has not been subject to analysis and display.
By collaborating with the PRSTRT information technology
department we have developed a dashboard to better
understand the impacts of various stages of sea level rise in
Puerto Rico, including land area to be flooded, structures to
be affected, and the variety of these circumstances around the
archipelago.

A case study

We requested proposals and selected to commission a study
specializing in economic impacts of flooding and sea level rise
for all 44 coastal municipalities of Puerto Rico: A first phase
Risk / Vulnerability Assessment and a second phase Mitigation
Assessment Pilot. This is directly aligned with our strategic goal
of publishing a cost-benefit analysis of potential pilot projects
for safer housing during our second year.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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Requests for information

Various municipalities, including Arecibo, Toa Alta, Toa Baja,
and Vega Baja, have requested information from the Trust
in order to better craft their Municipal Recovery Plans. To
do this, we have relied on the dashboard to generate useful
information that informs these reports. We have seized on
this opportunity to help inform their local regulations and
encourage adaptation to sea level rise.

WHAT’S NEXT?

Building resiliency and advancing adaptation.

m Advance Key Performance Indicators, specifically
outreach to target professionals and stakeholders
through talks and symposia.

m Celebrate an innovative building design competition.
m Create and distribute educational materials.

m Continue and finish research project in Salinas with the
Global Resilience Institute.

m Insert rising sea levels as key criterion in existing and
proposed land use and building regulations.

m Obtain additional funding to Increase our Staff to
advance each strategic agenda.

DIRECTOR’S POV

Leading this program involves a
mixture of urgency and patience, keeping a big-picture,
long-term view, and crafting a vision for a major cultural
and mindset shift. Staff members need about 2 or 3
months after joining our team to acclimatize to some of the
profound implications of the little understood challenge of
adapting to sea level rise. After personally visiting Greenland,
nonetheless, the stark reality of the scale and sublimeness
of the melting glaciers, constantly producing countless
icebergs and therefore rising sea levels as a product of global
warming, has refocused the relevance of our mission. Let’s
build together a safer future today.
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MEET OURTEAM

John Englander Fernando Pabon Rico, AIA, CAAPPR

Executive Advisor Program Director

Gilberto Guevara Velazquez, MBA Maria Méndez Guijarro

Strategic Advisor & Senior Manager Urban & Regional Planning Specialist

Carlos Gomez Borges Francisco V. Aquino Serrano, Esq.

Engineering Specialist Policy & Legislation Manager
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CENTER FORTROPICAL BIODIVERSITY

WHAT WE DO

The Center for Tropical Biodiversity (CTB) was established in
2015 to guide the efforts of conservation and exploration
of Puerto Rico’s unique geography for benefits that can be
scientific, societal or economic. Within the purview of the
Center are the development of searchable collections
of biological specimens, the comservation of biodiversity
resources and the commercialization of biodiversity-derived
products.

Over the last century, Puerto Rico has enjoyed arich tradition of
scientific research centered on its unique natural environment.
There have been numerous projects aimed at observing and
cataloging Puerto Rico’s rich biodiversity with the goal of
understanding how organisms interact with their surroundings.
Lacking through the years has been a local policy to guide
and coordinate these efforts, which were often driven by the
curiosity of individual researchers in our many universities

HOWWEDOIT

The CTB has become an important facilitator for high-impact
research in the areas of biodiversity and natural products.
We make contact with the appropriate stakeholders to (i)
enable their biodiversity research by ensuring access to high-
end equipment, (ii) communicate important issues related to
the preservation of critical ecosystems for biodiversity , (iii)
facilitate the public availability of data pertaining to biodiversity
and natural products and (iij promote that biodiversity
researchers fully benefit from other PRSTRT programs, such as
PRCCl and the TTO.

WHO WE CONNECT WITH

Biodiversity research involves stakeholders at many
levels: community organizations, environmental protection
groups, scientific researchers, universities, commercial
partners, government agencies and the media. The CTB has
successfully connected several of these stakeholders for
fruitful collaborations: (a) we have engaged with university
researchers and placed them in contact with entrepreneurs
and innovators, (b) we have engaged the media for the
communicationofimportantissues concerning the conservation
of biodiversity, (c) we have established links with the business
development sector to ensure that Puerto Rico is promoted as
a potential source of biodiversity-derived products.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

During the previous year, the Center for Tropical Biodiversity
continued developing a number of on-going initiatives, while
also starting some new exciting projects and collaborations.

On the science communication front, we have been actively
involved in raising awareness about the delicate conditions
of the coral reefs in the Caribbean. For the past decades,
coral reefs have registered a substantial loss of biomass and
biodiversity. Some of the bleaching that is observed is partly
due to an overabundance of algae and marine protists, whose
populations have been kept in check by sea urchins and other
marine invertebrates. In early 2022, there were reports of a
massive sea urchin die-off in the Caribbean, which could have
major implications for efforts to restore the coral reef. The CTB
has been involved in the communication of this phenomenon,
as well as raising awareness about the importance of sea
urchins as the cleaners of the reef, and we have done this in
collaboration with the Trust Communication Officer. We also
participated in the Festival del Apio festivities together with the
research group from Interamerican University in Barranquitas,
to share the results from a collaborative project involving the
apio plant itself and its traditional uses. We also participated in
a symposium on science communication held at Universidad del
Sagrado Corazon for students of journalism.

This past year also saw the continuation of on-going research
initiatives. For instance, we have followed up on the story of
the Coqui Llanero and have further developed the project in
collaboration with Dr. Rafael Maldonado of UPR Ponce.
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During the last funding period, there have been significant
discovery on the presence of antifungal compound violacein
in the samples collected from Toa Baja, Puerto Rico. A
proposal has been submitted by Dr. Maldonado to the NSF
($500,000 total budget) to further enable the discovery of
antifungal compounds in these wetland samples. Another
project that we have followed up on is the microbes
associated with the mangrove termite in collaboration with
Dr. Matias Cafaro of UPR Mayagliez, we have re-analyzed
the samples and subjected them to a state-of-the-art Social
Molecular Networking platform, resulting in the discovery of
new compounds.

Some of the new research projects and collaborations include
the analysis of the Puerto Rican apio tuber, whose leaves
have been used traditionally for the relief of inflammation
and malaise. This work is in collaboration with Dr. Alok
Arun of Interamerican University in Barranquitas, who has
sequenced the complete transcriptome of the apio plant
and detected an overexpression of genes linked to the
production of antioxidants in the leaves of apio. We have
extracted the compounds from the leaves and subjected the
extract to molecular networking resulting in the discovery of
15 chemical compounds in the leaves linked with protective
activities. We have also begun a new collaboration with
Dr. Benjamin Bolafios, an expert in the detection of fungal
spores and their role in respiratory ailments. We have begun
work to develop the MALDI-ToF mass spectrometry platform
for the identification of spores, in order to detect the
presence of toxic spores in closed spaces and air conditioning
systems. The CTB has also established a collaboration with
agrotech start-up Scientia Naturam LLC for the development
of cultivation methods for a number of medicinal plants
capable of producing compounds that have been historically
and traditionally used for the treatment and prevention of
certain types of cancer. Our involvement with the company
relates to the benchmarking of new analytical methods for
the detection of active ingredients in live plant tissue.

Another area that CTB has developed is the availability of
biodiversity data on public and searchable databases. Toward
this end we have created and released the Natural Product
Online Repository (NatPORT), in collaboration with the
Office of Chief Technology Officer of the PRSTRT, Mr. César
Piovanetti. NatPORT has been made available to specific
research groups in Jamaica, Dominican Republic, Puerto Rico
and Panama for the submission of unique chemical structures
and a total of 118 fully characterized compounds have been
deposited in the databases.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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Finally, a pre-proposal was submitted to the Defense
Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA) for the development of
a proteomic-scale screening platform for locally sourced
natural product extracts. The main objective is to identify
the human protein targets for toxic and deleterious natural
products. The total budget of the proposal is $2,991,860
based on a three-year initial commitment with an additional
two-year extension.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
NUMBERS

15

New chemical compounds found
in the Puerto Rican apio leaves

118

Chemical structures deposited in
NatPORT database

38 billion

Number of individual sea urchins
that have died since massive
die-offs have been documented
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seems to be immune by an unknown mechanism of tolerance.
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2022-23 One hypothesis is that microorganisms that coexist with
the Coqui Llanero, produce potent anti-fungal compounds,

As the CTB strives to bridge biological diversity with economic . . .
generating a protective environment.

development, we report several areas of impact during the
past year: To test this hypothesis, the CTB has been analyzing samples

collected from the efforts of herpetologist Neftali Rios,
microbiologist lleana Rodriguez, and biochemist Rafael
Maldonado to try to detect the production of anti-fungals.
A research proposal was recently submitted to the NSF
by Dr. Rafael Maldonado of UPR Ponce in collaboration with
Dr. Luis Prieto of the CTB, for the identification of compounds
with antifungal activity using the state-of-the-art molecular
networking platform, a Big Data solution for the large-scale
comparison and search of mass spectrometry data. We are
awaiting the results from the evaluation of this proposal.

1) A new NSF proposal for the discovery of antifungals
from the habitat of Eleutherodactylus juanariveroi
(Coqui Llanero). Previous work from the CTB centered on
the habitat of autochthonous amphibian Eleutherodactylus
juanariveroi or the Coqui Llanero. The CTB has been following
up on the microbial populations associated with this species,
because there has been good evidence that some biologically
active compounds may result from these microbes. We have
now shifted our work to the search of novel anti-fungal
compounds in this species, and the reason is that fungal
infections in humans have increased both in frequency,

i 3 T T UL I 2 s -
St LG e LN M 0 S S

virulence and severity, highlighting the need to discover new ot it 2%
. L] R R i L TR, iy g g L
anti-fungals. e
S R s fele R T A TN T T T e, T T, S I W e TeRel L 2 aee
. . . . i
The Coqui Llanero and and its habitat are a great location for —

the discovery of antifungals since the species has been in i
contact with a killer fungus Batrachochytrium dendrobatidis,

_.
1

b ST 4

or Bd, which has killed off an incredible number of frogs in - _'.: é ' .{i‘\l; e
Australia, Europe, and the Americas. Scientists have warned g | i = ]

of an |mpend!ng mass extmctpn of amph|b|?ns and.a recent!y R O RAa i v B b SRR
published article in The Atlantic states that “the arrival of this mass spectrometry analysis followed by molecular networking
chytrid fungus can herald nothing short of catastrophe”. algorithms to determine whether the violacein compounds

found in Toa Baja are known or previously unknown.

2) Development of high-end methods for the
identification of fungal spores.

Puerto Rico has the highest lifetime prevalence of asthma
in all of the US and its territories. Asthma disproportionately
affects Puerto Rican children, especially those living below
the poverty level. As a tropical location, Puerto Rico residents
are very much exposed to outdoor aeroallergens like fungal
spores and pollen, both established asthma triggers.

Multiple expeditions to the Toa Baja wetlands have yielded several

isolates of the bacteria Chromobacterium violaceum, the natural [T P S
we

producer of potent anti-fungal violacein. The CTB facilities have cultivated MALDI-ToF Is the most advanced and accurate method for the identification of microorganisms. Shown here

these bacteria with the purpose of completely characterizing compounds s the Shimadzu 7080 instrument that was recently purchased by MSRC and used by CT8 for the identification

of spores of the toxic fungus Aspergillus flovus. This work is in collaboration with Br. Benjamin Bolafios, one

related to violacein, which is named after its bright purple or violet color. o i wrords. a1 celiRtonishils betsiaon Jugal spores v iesplratiry conditlons.

Use the QR code to access the “Coqui Llanero” video produced by PRSTRT.

The Bd “killer fungus” has been detected in the Toa Baja Local microbiologist Dr. Benjamin Bolafios of UPR Medical
wetlands, where the Coqui Llanero lives but the Coqui Llanero Sciences is a known and recognized expert in the field of
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environmental microbiology, especially on the role of fungal
spores in respiratory conditions. The CTB has engaged with
Dr. Bolanos for the use of MALDI-ToF mass spectrometry for
the unequivocal identification of fungal spores from an
ongoing study on the presence of filamentous fungi in low-
income communities.

Today, the gold standard for the rapid identification of
microscopic fungi and molds, is a technique known as Matrix-
Assisted Laser Desorption lonization (MALDI) coupled with
time-of-flight detection (ToF). This is the most advanced and
accurate platform for the exact identification of fungi down
to species, sub-species and strains. The method relies on the
exact mass of well-defined protein markers that are unique
to each fungal species. Its use has proven highly valuable for
the identification of fungal and bacterial pathogens in clinical
settings.

The long-term goal of this effort is to establish a facility for
the identification of either environmental microbes or hospital-
acquired pathogens. The implementation of MALDI-ToF will
mean very quick identification turn-around at a fraction of
the cost of traditional DNA sequencing, resulting in a faster,
cheaper discovery of species likely to produce antibiotics. or
antifungals.

3) The innovation potential of “apio criollo” or Arracacia
xanthorrhiza.

The Puerto Rican apie (Arrececia Xanthorrhiza) is knewn for its
use in traditional remedies against inflammation and mallaise.
A eollabaration with | iean L ity in Barranquitas
has uncovered some of the chemical details behind the benefits
of consuming apio greens. Molecular networking analysis
reveals the presence of potent antioxidants.

Arracacia xanthorrhiza, known as “apio” in Puerto Rico, is a
tuberous plant that is original to the Andean region of South
America. The tuber is consumed for its very high nutrient and
starch content. In addition to the well-known apio root, the
green aerial portion of apio has been used in traditional medicine
due to its calming effects and anti-inflammatory properties. A
CTB project is currently underway in collaboration with Dr. Alok
Arun of the Interamerican University Barranquitas Campus. So
far, the work of Arun has found genes in the apio leave that
encode the production of polyphenols, a family of compounds
with documented health benefits that are also found in green
tea and red wine. The CTB has complemented Dr. Arun’s work,
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with a state-of-the-art chemical characterization using mass
spectrometry and molecular network. A total of 15 compounds
with anti-oxidant properties were found in the leaves of apio,
potentially correlating with their anti-inflammatory properties.

This year we also joined the group of Dr. Arun in this year's
edition of the Festival del Apio in Barranquitas, PR.

4) A massive sea urchin die-off in the Caribbean.

In early 2022, a different type of pandemic hit the Caribbean.
But not one that affects humans. A strange, and as of yet
unidentified, marine disease is currently causing a massive
die-of f of long spine sea urchins of the species Diadema
antillarum. This species of sea urchin is widely distributed in
the western Atlantic Ocean, including the Caribbean Sea. The
Diadema sea urchin serves as a filter that feeds on micro and
macro algae, thus cleaning the reef to allow the growth of
coral. It can be safely said that without sea urchins, it is almost
impossible for coral to grow along the reef, thus hampering
current human efforts to regrow and propagate corals.

Efforts to reintroduce sea urchin populations are being led by Dr.
Stacey Williams of the UPR Marine Sciences Department. Please
access to QR code for videos explaining the importance of sea
urchins to the coral reef.

The CTB has engaged with a team of researchers assembled
by Sociedad Ambiente Marino, the University of Puerto Rico
and the Department of Natural and Environmental Resources
aiming to (i) identify any potential disease that is responsible
for the large mortality and (i) re-introduce sea urchins that
have been grown in vitro.
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In collaboration with Lupe Vazquez, Chief Communications Officer, we wrote published a newspaper article to EI Nuevo Dia to raise
awareness of the current situation of the sea urchin and its vital role for the maintenance of the coral reef. We also generated some
YouTube videos describing the efforts to re-populate the reef with laboratory grown sea urchins.

5) The Natural Product Online Repository (NatPORT) goes live.

During this past year, the CTB, in collaboration with the Office of Chief Technology Officer of the PRSTRT, rolled out the first database
for natural products sourced from the Caribbean. The Natural Product Online Repository (NatPORT) has been made available to
specific research groups in Jamaica, Dominican Republic, Puerto Rico and Panama for the submission of unique chemical structures.
We have received positive responses from all of them along with the commitment to populate this valuable resource. The following
investigators have been engaged for this initial roll-out.

Investigator Institution Web Info

Dr. Simone Badal McCreath University of West Indies - https://g.co/kgs/DZaQuCXC
Jamaica

Dr. Alberto Nufez Sellés Universidad Nacional Pedro https://investigacion.unphu.edu.do/investigadores
Henriquez Urefa - Dominican
Republic

Dr. Claudia Ospina Interamerican University - https://inbre.hpcf.upr.edu/index.php/dr-claudia-ospina
Bayamon

Dr. Marcelino Gutiérrez Instituto de Investigaciones https://indicasat.org.pa/dr-marcelino-gutierrez
Cientificas
y Servicios de Alta Tecnologia
de Panama

database, but also an opportunity as the CTB could be well
positioned to collaborate with many of the countries in the
region.

6) Re-submission of a proposal to DTRA.

doeabreaeirogd R o Last year we reported on our intention to submit a pre-
e e i e [ i proposal to the Department of Defense's Defense Threat
oo v dhirs debatij o =5 Reduction Agency (DTRA). On November 2021, we submitted

a pre-proposal to Department of Defense’s Defense Threat

[W] 4[] e NatpoRT database of Caribbean natural products Reduction Agency (DTRA) titled: Proteomic-scale strategies
continues to grow, as it features an online collection of Py e . . . .
sl for the rapid identification of function in natural extracts with
and other countries in the Caribbean region. Please scan a total budget of $2 ,991,860 over 5 years.

E the QR code to access the repository.

A total of 118 fully characterized compounds have been
deposited in the database. It must be said that we expected
a larger number of structures coming out of our Caribbean
partners. However, something that we have learned is that
natural products research in most of the Caribbean region
takes place using crude and semi-purified extracts, with little
or no detailed characterization of the chemical compounds
themselves. This presents a challenge for the growth of our

The US Department of Defense is interested in natural
products because some of the most toxic and incapacitating
compounds known to mankind are natural products: Ricin is a
lectin produced in the seeds of the castor oil plant, conotoxins
are potent neurotoxins made by marine cone snails and
batrachotoxins are powerful neurotoxic alkaloids made by
some species of beetles and frogs - not to mention that the
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most carcinogenic compound known to man, aflatoxin, is
also a natural product made by some fungi.

The results from the original application were inconclusive.
However, this year we were invited to re-submit the pre-
proposal, which we did in May 2023 and are awaiting the
results from the evaluation.

7) The CTB visits the Meeting of the American Society
of Pharmacognosy in Rockville, Maryland.

Last year we attended the Annual Meeting of the American
Society of Pharmacognosy, which was held on July 23-28in
South Carolina. During the meeting, our Scientific Director,
Dr. Luis Prieto Costas, presented the capabilities of the CTB
in a poster session. He also presented the capabilities of
NatPORT, which users found to be an important resource
to catalogue natural products in the Caribbean.

ASP+20

2
ROCKVILLL, MARYEAND

- @E)q:lorlnﬂ Natural preducts from Puerto Rico: Initial studies
of i i and A i
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routine laboratory tests, there are rare but sustained cases
of pathogens that are difficult to identify and could cause
severe disease or even death.

The MALDI-ToF instrumentation available at the CTB for
the identification of environmental samples could be
easily re-focused for the identification of hospital-borne
pathogens. Discussions are underway with ASEM and DoH
personnel about how to best approach the development
of methodologies that could be made available for the
identification of difficult and potentially deadly pathogens,
so as to accelerate the treatment options for patients.

2) Providing assistance to Scientia Naturam LLC in
anew SBIR re-submission. As mentioned before, the
agrotech company Scientia Naturam LLC made an attempt
to secure SBIR funding through the USDA but was
ultimately unsuccessful. This year, the CTB will dedicate
efforts to help this company put together a competitive
package for a new attempt at a Phase | SBIR application.

3) Further engaging with natural products researchers
in the Caribbean and Latin America. During the course
of promoting the use of NatPORT in other countries in the

CTR Scientific Dire Dr. . . . .
Ry Caribbean region, we have come to find out that there is
Annyal Meeting of the a need in the region for high-end instrumentation for the
American Society of ) ) . i
Pharmacognosy (ASP). characterization of compounds. Initial efforts will center

Shown here is the poster

L _prassaked iy Briote: on making fruitful contacts in the Dominican Republic,

where there is a rich natural product scene and great need
in terms of availability of cutting edge methodologies.

This year, the CTB will present its science during this year’s
edition of the ASP Meeting to be held in July in Rockville,
Maryland. This year’s presentation includes the successful
implementation of the Social Molecular Networks for the
identification of new compounds.

MEET THE TEAM

Abel Baerga, PhD.

Program Director

WHAT’S NEXT

1) Develop the MIALDI-ToF platform for the
identification of novel human pathogens. Biodiversity
is not a property exclusive to natural environments. There
is substantial biodiversity in man-made and urban
spaces and understanding this biodiversity could be key
to understanding the spread of some microbial diseases.
During the course of conversations with key personnel at
the Department of Health and at the PR Medical Center
(ASEM) Clinical Laboratory, there is an unmet need for the
rapid identification of bacteria in clinical and laboratory
settings. While most pathogens are easily identified by

Luis Prieto, PhD.

Scientitic Director

Grecia Torres

Student Volunteer
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DIRECTOR’S POV

Leading the Center for Tropical Biodiversity has been
an enormous privilege with societal impacts beyond
the initial vision of the program. Researchers in
the biodiversity field are in need for sophisticated
methodologies for describing their environments, and
we have provided access to high-end instrumentation
for chemical analysis of field samples. The CTB's
involvement in these project has raised the
competitiveness of proposals coming out of Puerto
Rico-based institutions. The CTB has also helped
start-up companies increase the competitiveness
of their SBIR proposals by incorporating high-end
methodologies and a truly scientific and research-
based outlook. But the most rewarding aspect of the
work that we do has been communicating science
to general audiences, either in podcasts, YouTube
videos or newspaper articles. We have had a chance
to collaborate with the best biodiversity researchers
and helped them to bring important messages on the
importance of conservation and on the beauty of our
rich ecosystems.

Video Series: A Massive sea urchin die-off in the Caribbean.
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RESEARCH INSTITUTE

WHAT WE DO

The Research Institute (RI), under the auspices of the Puerto Rico
Science, Technology, and Research Trust (PRSTRT), is committed
to fostering a collaborative and diverse research community. Our
mission is to support innovative basic and applied research into
the fundamental biological mechanisms underlying diseases
that disproportionately impact our population. We focus on
developing potential therapies and interventions that can
significantly reduce or eliminate health disparities across our
archipelago. We encourage investigations into a wide range of
diseases associated with significant morbidity and mortality in
Puerto Rico, believing that accelerating biomedical research and
improving human health requires a diverse community in terms
of education, training, background, perspectives, interests, and
identity.

Vision:
Our vision at the Research Institute is to serve as a beacon of

health innovation and research excellence in Puerto Rico and
beyond.

HOWWEDOIT

We aim to ensure that the benefits of all research outcomes
are translated to our people, reaching all the way to the
patient’s bedside. We strive to create a tangible difference in
the health and well-being of our community, transforming lives
through the power of scientific discovery and its application.
We envision a future where health disparities are significantly
reduced, and every individual has access to the best possible
healthcare solutions informed by cutting-edge research.

WHO WE CONNECT WITH

The Research Institute primarily connects with educational
institutions, both public and private, that are involved in
scientific and medical research. Our program is designed for
researchers, healthcare professionals, and students in Puerto
Rico and beyond who are committed to advancing biomedical
research and improving health outcomes. We also engage with
the healthcare and biotechnology sectors, including hospitals,
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biopharmaceutical and biomanufacturing companies, and
biotech startups. We collaborate with a variety of stakeholders,
including government agencies, non-profit organizations,
and private sector companies, to facilitate research, drive
innovation, and translate scientific discoveries into practical
healthcare solutions. Our partnerships span local, national, and
international levels, fostering a diverse and dynamic research
ecosystem.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Research Institute, a research organization under the
Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust, serves as
a dynamic hub for innovative research. Situated in the bustling
Science City of San Juan, Puerto Rico, the Rl was founded in
2022 with the mission of supporting pioneering basic and
applied research into diseases that disproportionately affect
our population.

Our philosophy is grounded in the belief that the acceleration
of biomedical research and the enhancement of human health
necessitates a diverse community in terms of education,
training, background, perspectives, interests, and identity. We
advocate for investigations into a broad spectrum of diseases
associated with significant morbidity and mortality in Puerto
Rico. Our commitment is to ensure that the benefits of all
research outcomes are translated to our people, extending all the
way to the patient’s bedside. Our focus is on the development
of potential therapies and interventions that can significantly
reduce or eliminate health disparities across our archipelago.

Our aspiration is to serve as a beacon of basic and applied
biomedical innovation and research excellence, not only in
Puerto Rico but also beyond. We strive to make a tangible
impact on the health and well-being of our community,
transforming lives through the power of scientific discovery and
its application.

The RI engages with a diverse array of stakeholders, including
educational institutions, the healthcare sector, biotechnology
industries, and government agencies. Our program is designed
for researchers, healthcare professionals, and students
both within Puerto Rico and globally who are committed to
advancing biomedical research and improving health outcomes.
We foster a diverse and dynamic research ecosystem through
our collaborations at local, national, and international levels,
driving innovation and translating scientific breakthroughs into
practical healthcare solutions.
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Since its inception, the Rl has been dedicated to addressing

challenges that affect our population. By establishing a state-of- EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
the-art multimillion-dollar genomic surveillance facility, we have

shed light on the path of SARS-CoV-2 evolution in Puerto Rico, NUM BERS

using systematic, unbiased approaches to identify circulating N
variants, thereby supporting the COVID-19 epidemiological

u u
surveillance programs safeguarding our community in +20 mllllﬂn

collaboration with the Puerto Rico Department of Health. apge =

| More than +20 million in grants
Furthermore, we are probing the roots of COVID-19 f NIH d ARPA
immunology, revealing profound biological and immunological rom an
insights into how the disease develops in our population via the

National Institutes of Health SeroNet and RadXup Initiatives.
This knowledge leads to new ways to monitor, diagnose, and

treat patients more precisely. By collaborating, innovating, and + 1 1 K
empowering, we aim to build an inclusive research community

that maximizes the potential of our affiliates and supports +11K SARS'COV‘Z
institutions and programs. We have established strategic genomes completed

collaborations with Yale University, the University of Puerto
Rico Medical Sciences Campus, the Caribbean Primate Research L )
Center, and the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey, Center for N\

Interdisciplinary Studies. 6 500

This year, we have continued to work with various internal + ) )

programs from the PRSTRT. We are actively collaborating SARS'COV'Z mutations of
with the Research and Development pillar members, primarily -

with the Research Grants Program, the Technology Transfer Interest detGCted by ddPCR
Office, and the SBIR Program. We collaborate broadly with the

Puerto Rico Public Health Trust to prevent and educate about
the pandemic, dispel rumors about the virus, and promote

vaccination. We also actively collaborate with the Puerto Rico + 28'000

Consortium for Clinical Investigation on various initiatives. We

are exploring new opportunities with other programs like the +28000 SARS'COV‘Z samples

Pygrto Rico Vector Control Unit, the Caribbean Center for the in our b|0rep05|t°ry
Rising Seas, and Parallel 18.

As we evolve, the insertion of programs, grants, and new  \ 4
initiatives has enabled us to increase and maintain our staff to )
twelve people. The Rl Core Labs are being developed on the first Z

floor of the Innovation Building. We will hire new investigators

and establish our affiliate program to bring people together NlH Grants funded as Pl

to advance the understanding and treatment of disease. or CO'PI

Our research ecosystem aims to translate basic and applied
biomedical discoveries into profound biological knowledge of
the roots of common and rare human diseases affecting our
population and to use those insights to develop new diagnostic
and therapeutic strategies for patients. +4

Sub-awards facilitated with
other higher-ed institutions
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B Total NIH active funding per state
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NIH active projects and expenditures in some representative IDEA states and Puerto Rico. A) active NIH projects per IDEA states, not including
subprojects, B) total NIH active funding per state, C) active investigator-initiated RO1 grants per state, and D) total RO1 grants per state. (Data

NIH Reporter accessed 07/17/2023)

Based on active biomedical research expenditures from the NIH,
Puerto Rico is among the U.S. states and territories included
in the NSF's (formerly Experimental) Program to Stimulate
Competitive Research (EPSCoR) and the NIH's Institutional
Development Award (IDeA) program. These programs were
established decades ago to enhance the competitiveness for
research funding of institutions in states with historically
low funding levels and low aggregate success rates for grant
applications to the NIH. Puerto Rico has been a part of these
programs since their inception. As illustrated in Figure 1, we
can compare the NIH active projects and expenditures in some
IDeA states and Puerto Rico. Currently, Puerto Rico has 100
active projects, representing an expenditure of 66 million
dollars (Fig. 1B). However, as Figures 1Cand D show, the total
investigator-initiated grants, such as RO1, in Puerto Rico are
only 7, representing a mere 3 million dollars in expenditures.
This means that RO1 grants account for only 4.5% of the total
funding. This is in stark contrast to a state like West Virginia,
where 37% of its NIH funding comes from RO1 grants.
projects and expenditures in some IDEA states and Puerto
Rico. As shown in Figure 1A, Puerto Rico currently has 100
that represent an expenditure of 66 million (Fig. 1B). However,
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as shown in Figures 1C and D, the total investigator-initiated
grants as RO1 in Puerto Rico are only 7, representing only 3
million dollars in expenditures. This means that RO1 represents
only 4.5% of the total funding. This contrasts with a state
like West Virginia, where 37% of its NIH funding is from RO1
grants.

Puerto Rico presents a unique environment for basic and
applied biomedical sciences, offering an opportunity to
advance research and development in health disparities. Our
universities, primarily the University of Puerto Rico, have
investigators with the education and experience necessary
to secure funding. The question then arises: why isn't
this happening in Puerto Rico now? While the answer is
multifaceted, a primary reason is that the universities in the
Puerto Rico lack the necessary ecosystem to provide all the
required tools to their researchers.

This presents an opportunity to emulate the successful
practices of researchinstitutes at universities like Yale, Harvard,
and MIT. First and foremost, the pre-and post-award process
needs to be flawless. Moreover, the research enterprise of the
institute must work to facilitate the process for investigators,
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filling any gaps with well-coordinated collaborative efforts.
Herein lies the golden opportunity for the Research Institute to
address, for the first time, the health disparities and challenges
affecting our population by advancing basic and applied
biomedical research.

ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2022-23

Puerto Rico COVID-19 Variant Surveillance Initiative
(PRCVSI, ARPA PRDOH- 2022-DS-0299)

Twoyearsago, the Research Institute wasawardeda$16 M grant
to establish the COVID-19 genomic surveillance program for the
Puerto Rico Department of Health(PRDOH). This contribution
comprises tracing the spread of SARS-CoV-2 geographically
over time and confirming that mutations that could influence
pathogenicity, transmission, or countermeasures (such as
vaccines, therapeutics, and diagnostics) are identified and
evaluated promptly.

The PRSTRT was awarded the resources to create and establish
the PRCVSI in August 2021. The execution of this proposal
started after funds disbursement IN the beginning of September
2021. The process included hiring specialized personnel and
substantial investment in staff, equipment, reagents, and
bioinformatic infrastructure laboratory capacity. In addition,
the initiative required effective collaboration between the

100%
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reference laboratories in Puerto Rico and the Department of
Epidemiology of the PRDOH to ensure that generated data are
of good quality and are used meaningfully to save lives.

Since the proposal was awarded and after the minimum
capacity was in place for starting the genomic surveillance
program locally, we have sequenced +10,400 samples (+100
reports have been submitted), and +6000 samples have been
analyzed for mutation analyses by ddPCR (+50 reports have
been submitted). Our biorepository currently stores +28,000
COVID-19 samples. The numbers grow daily. Currently, we
have the most important whole genome sequencing capacity
in Puerto Rico. The PRCVSI has increased Pueto Rico capacity
from an average of 8.5 sequences/month in 2020 to an
expandable-capable +384 sequences/week. Local sequencing
control dramatically optimized TATs from 3.5 to 1.5 weeks
(57% reduction). Sequencing failures dropped from 25% to <
5%.

Figure 2 summarizes the relative percentages of lineages
reported by the PRCVSI since its inception. This figure
summarizes the results from more than 10,000 SARS-CoV-2
sequences from positive samples from Puerto Rico. The
program will continue for another year ending on June 30th,
2024. This collaboration is expected to be expanded to account
for other infectious disease surveillance like dengue, influenza,
zika, and chikungunya in human and wastewater samples with
the PRDOH.
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Figure 2 - Relative percentages of SARS-CoV-2 lineages reported by the PRCVSI from November 2021 until June 2023.
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The Puerto Rico COVID-19 Variant Surveillance Initiative is
currently the fourth jurisdiction in the US and territories,
submitting the highest number of COVID-19 sequences in
the country. Our efforts, which consistently contribute more
than 384 sequences per week, have been highlighted by the
SPHERES initiative of the CDC as one of the labs driving the
genomic surveillance efforts in the US. We are producing local
COVID-19 sequences at a rate similar to nationwide genomic
surveillance efforts from Gingko Bioworks and Helix. Both of
these labs have been contracted directly by the CDC to perform
nationwide sample genomic surveillance. Samples from the
PRCVSI are only coming from our locally established efforts.

Community-Engaged Research on COVID-19 Testing in
the US Territories (NIMHD U54MVID010711)

The COVID-19 pandemic underscored the deeply accentuated
structural inequalities in the United States. Structural factors
such as inadequate access to health care, entrenched racism,
and historic prejudice led to an unequal illness and mortality rate
among marginalized and underserved communities, especially
in the Hispanic and African American populations. While these
issues are not novel and have been consistently overlooked in
the States, the United States Caribbean territories (Puerto Rico
and the United States Virgin Islands) have also been victims of
similar structural inequities. However, their unique geographic
location and economic conditions further amplify the impact of
these inequalities. The inadequate healthcare infrastructure,
isolation from mainland resources, and pre-existing socio-
economic disparities have put these territories at a higher risk,
impacting not just testing capabilities but overall COVID-19
management. Despite facing a higher risk of SARS-CoV-2
infection and death, these vulnerable communities are less
often screened for the virus. Current testing strategies have
been designed and employed mainly for populations with ample
resources. However, the low testing frequencies in certain
groups are typically unique to those communities and call for
a customized strategy. Understanding these testing barriers is
crucial, but converting this understanding into practical action
is the key to eliminating these obstacles. Innovative strategies
that actively involve the community hold the promise of
addressing COVID-19 disparities among these diverse groups.

Recently, The National Institutes of Health (NIH) established
a landmark funding initiative, the Rapid Acceleration of
Diagnostics-Underserved Populations (RADx-UP) program, to
understand the testing barriers in underserved communities and
facilitate and increase access and uptake of SARS-CoV-2 testing.
Building from the experiences and lessons from the Eastern
Caribbean Health Outcomes Research Network (ECHORN),
which is the first intergenerational cohort in the region

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST
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Figure 3 - The PRCVSI (in red) is the fourth jurisdiction
in the US and its territories, submitting most of the
COVID-19 sequences to GSAID. We are producing
sequences at a similar rate to CDC-contracted
laboratories like Gingko Bioworks and Helix.

focused on chronic disease outcomes, to establish community-
based research to increase access and uptake of testing
among underserved populations in Puerto Rico (PR) and the
US Virgin Islands (USVI). While in the USVI, we established
a strategy to provide access to testing facilitated by several
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC); in PR, with roughly
a population 30-times higher than in the USVI, access to
testing was provided by an FQHC and directly to underserved
communities in the municipality of Loiza.

In partnership with Yale University and the Community-
engagement Division of the Puerto Rico Public Health Trust,
this RADxUP-funded initiative has successfully expanded and
improved COVID-19 diagnostic testing in the underserved
and underrepresented community of Parcelas Suarez in Loiza,
Puerto Rico. This has been achieved by leveraging community-
based resources.
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Figure 4 - COVID-19 Related Challenges in Loiza. Participants were asked
about pandemic-related challenges they faced and medical conditions at
baseline and follow-up surveys.
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In this longitudinal study, we have worked closely with
community stakeholders to increase COVID-19 testing and
provide support for quarantine and isolation. This enhanced
diagnostic testing approach has significantly improved testing
reach, access, uptake, and effectiveness within this vulnerable
beach-front community. Figure & shows the challenges faced
by the community participants from the study.

Our recruitment strategy involved engaging with community
schools and nursing homes and conducting regular health and
educational fairs. As a result, thousands of molecular tests have
been made available to study participants, greatly enhancing
our ability to monitor and respond to the pandemic within this
community. This project, ending on August 2023, has been
presented in the RADxUP meeting of NIH and the American
Public Health Association.

SARS-CoV-2 correlates of protection in a Latino-origin
population (NCI U01CA260541)

This initiative is part of the SARS-CoV-2 Serological Sciences, or
SeroNet, project. The rapid spread and circulation of this virus
have significantly strained healthcare systems and disrupted
society at large. We are implementing this SeroNet project
within a population of Latino-African descent to determine the
actual seroprevalence of SARS-CoV-2 in Puerto Rico.

The HLA system is a part of the immune system that helps the
body recognize and respond to foreign substances. It is highly
variable, meaning different individuals can have different
HLA types. This variability can influence how effectively an
individual's immune system can respond to a viral infection.
Also, the HLA system can exert selective pressure on viruses,
leading to viral evolution and immune evasion. The variability
in KIR genes can also influence the immune response to
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SARS-CoV-2. Some KIR-HLA combinations might lead to a
more robust immune response, while others might lead to a
weaker response. In contrast, the SARS-CoV-2 virus has shown
the ability to produce variants with significant changes in
transmissibility, disease severity, and virulence.

To understand the complexity of the interaction between
the HLA system and KIR genes, the resulting immune
response, vaccination, the SARS-CoV-2 variants, and the
resulting disease severity, we devised a strategy to establish
a local private clinical laboratory network to collect and store
sequential samples from infected patients from Puerto Rico.
The leading private reference clinical laboratories entered the
study. Samples from infected individuals have been collected
since November 2022, consolidating the Infectious Diseases
Repository Biobank (IDRB) of the Research Institute of the
Trust. Thousands of samples have been sequenced in a genomic
surveillance initiative in collaboration with the PRDOH.

Figure 5 shows the epidemiological curve of the COVID-19
pandemic in Puerto Rico to the date of this report
(06/12/2023), the positivity rate is 25.2% (calculated with
positive RT-PCR tests) with a seven-day average of cases of
~1000 cases per day. The COVID-19 epidemiology in Puerto
Rico has resulted from five big waves of cases from five different
variants. As outlined in Figure 6, the Omicron BA.2/5.x variant
wave of cases has been the one with more accumulated cases
(238,463). The Alpha variant wave of cases that impacted
Puerto Rico by mid-March 2021 accumulated 32,064 cases.
To this date, COVID-19 has been responsible for almost the
almost 6,000 deaths that the PRDOH has reported. 82.7%
of those deaths are only of people with 60 or more years.
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Figure 5 - The five waves of COVID-19 cases in Puerto Rico. These waves were caused by the Alpha, Delta, and the three waves of the Omicron
variant lineages BA.1.x, BA.2/5.x, and now XBB.1.x. (Data obtained from https://rconnect.dfci.harvard.edu/covidpr/)
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In collaboration with the PRDOH, we established a capacity to establish the Puerto 250,000
Rico COVID-19 Variant Surveillance Initiative, the Puerto Rico genomic surveillance

program. Thanks to this collaboration, we were able to consolidate the Infectious 200,000
Diseases Repository Biobank (IDRB) of the Research Institute of the Puerto Rico 2,
Science, Technology, and Research Trust. Longitudinal analyses are underway to gmo.ooo
establish the interaction between the HLA system and KIR genes, the resulting @
immune response, vaccination, SARS-CoV-2 variants, and disease severity. The IDRB 5100 000
started operations in November 2021. A regular daily collection of samples was @ '
established in April 2022. To the date of this report, we have collected 27,699 COVID- =
19-positive samples. é o
The genomic surveillance epidemiology programin Puerto Rico has collaborated with the 0

US Center for Disease Control Prevention (CDC), the PRDOH, the Ponce Health Sciences o> .‘p.
University, and the Research Institute of the Trust. To date, in Puerto Rico, according to F‘g 0?’\'
GISAD, 23,631 sequences have been reported. Our capacity has been responsible for

~44% of the sequences. The impact of our capacity went from an average sequencing wove in Puerto Rico. As shown. the
rate of about eight sequences per month in 2020 to more than 200 per week in 2022. number of cases per variant that
Currently, we have sequenced almost 100% of the samples of 2023. Figure 7 panel A had affected the Island has been
shows the total sequencing activity per day performed on the Island since September devastating. The Omicron variant
2020. Our process started on November 30th, 2021. The clinical laboratory samples wave has been the one with more
collection initiative began in April 2022. To date, our initiative has sequenced almost accumulated cases, cases per day,
10,000 samples. Panel B shows the proportion of the SARS-CoV-2 variant clades over deaths, and evolution time.

time. The most devastating variant has been the Omicron variant represented by clades 21K, 21L, 22A, 22B, 22C, 22E, 22F, and
23A.
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Figure 6 - Cases per COVID-19 variant
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Figure 7 - Genomic surveillance in Puerto Rico. A) establishes the number of sequences per day performed on the Island since September 2020.
Our process started on November 30th, 2021. The clinical laboratory samples collection initiative started in April 2022. To date, our initiative
has sequenced almost 10,000 samples. B) established the proportion of the SARS-CoV-2 variant clades over time. The most devastating va-
riant has been the Omicron variant represented by clades 21K, 21L, 22A, 22B, 22C, 22E, 22f, and 23A.
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All the personnel working on this project participate in
weekly meetings in which all the data, current COVID-19
epidemiology, and results are analyzed and discussed. Three
post-doctoral fellows, a biorepository manager, laboratory
techs, epidemiologists, bioinformaticians, and data managers
participate in this group meeting. In addition, we have biweekly
meetings with the Department of Epidemiology of the DOH.
Every other week post-docs and other key collaborators have a
one-on-one meeting with Dr. Marcos Lépez, Pl of the project.
In addition, this fall, two undergraduate students from the
University of Puerto Rico at Humacao, U-RISE program, are
joining the research groups. These students will learn hands-
on experience in high-throughput next-gen sequencing for
COVID-19.

WHAT’S NEXT

Research Institute

This year will be very important for the Rl as we will establish
the concept of our program. In the following months, we will
develop the Strategic Plan for the RI. This plan will establish
and provide the environment and priorities.

We will aim to serve as a collaborative ecosystem, bringing
together a diverse community of researchers from various
disciplines and affiliated institutions. In addition, the Rl
will support innovative basic and applied research into the
fundamental biological mechanisms underlying diseases that
disproportionately impact our population. Furthermore, it
focuses on therapies or interventions that can significantly
reduce or eliminate health disparities across our Archipelago.

The Research Institute encourages investigations into various
diseases associated with significant morbidity and mortality in
Puerto Rico. Accelerating biomedical research and improving
human health requires a diverse community regarding
education, training, background, perspectives, interests, and
identity. Such diversity fuels our creativity in problem-solving
and solution-finding.

At the Research Institute, our goal is to ensure that the
benefits of all research outcomes are translated to our people,
reaching all the way to the patient's bedside. We strive to
make a tangible difference in the health and well-being of our
community.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
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The Research Institute's Core Laboratories: A Hub for
Advanced Biomedical Research in Puerto Rico

The Research Institute has established the Core Laboratories,
a testament to its dedication to nurturing a diverse and
collaborative research environment. These laboratories are not
just about advanced technology; they serve as pivotal force
amplifiers for the Research Institute, fulfilling various roles
that align with the missions of both the Institute and the Trust.
One of the primary objectives of these labs is to bolster the
Research and Development pillar of the Trust.

Designed with a clear vision, the Core Laboratories are in
sync with the Research Institute's goals and, by extension,
the overarching mission of the PRSTRT. They play a vital role
in several areas: attracting and onboarding new researchers
and trainees to the Institute, ensuring the retention of skilled
investigators, spearheading the acquisition and upkeep of
avant-garde research platforms, and facilitating interactions
and partnerships both within the Institute and with other
PRSTRT programs. This collaborative spirit also extends
to affiliated researchers from both Puerto Rico and the
international community.

Spanning an impressive 3,000 square feet, the Core
Laboratories are situated on the ground floor of the PRSTRT's
Innovation Center in Rio Piedras. This expansive facility has the
potential to create 15 to 20 specialized job opportunities in the
realm of biomedical research. One of its standout features is
its commitment to advancing genomic sequencing in Puerto
Rico, integrating both lllumina and Nanopore sequencers. The
facility will also introduce the island to its first spectral flow
cytometry core, equipped with cutting-edge Cytek systems.
Furthermore, the laboratories will house a top-tier molecular
biology core dedicated to cell culture studies and infectious
diseaseresearch. Asignificant addition to the Core Laboratories
is the Biosafety Level 3 (BSL3) facility, which is geared towards
in-depth research on infectious agents' biology, pathogenesis
studies in living organisms, and pioneering vaccines and
antiviral treatments in a preclinical setting.

In addition, we will conceive a Scientific Advisory Board
that will help us set the path of the RI. As we grow, we will
establish a leadership team. The leadership team will bring
together a wealth of knowledge from scientific, academic,
and administrative fields. This team guides the partnership
in alignment with RI's mission and values. Our distinctive
collaborative framework will foster an environment where
scientists and administrators can jointly explore innovative
concepts. This is key to encouraging collective leadership in
potentially transformative initiatives inspired by these ideas.

Rl Scientists
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The RI will recruit scientists from the scientific ecosystem
aligned with the mission and vision of the institute.
Professional scientists at ourinstitution should hold a pivotal
role in driving our scientific endeavors and institutional
growth. They are the catalysts for fostering scientific
connections within the Research Institute ecosystem and - :
extending beyond it. By bridging various disciplines and ~ § » B ;
research areas, they facilitate the exchange of ideas and R B ) !

promote collaborative research efforts. g :

LR
These scientists will play a significant role in shaping the e - '

scientific priorities of the institution. They should actively A e | >

participate in key institutional issues and decisions, \ S /< S

ensuring t.hat our scientific endeallvor.s align wi.th. 0LI|rmission . The Puerto Rico COVID-19 i

and contribute to our overall objectives. Their insights and PR \ariont Surveillance Initiative

expertise are invaluable in steering our research direction
and making strategic decisions impacting our institution's
future. Moreover, they should be committed to nurturing
the next generation of scientists. Through recruitment,
mentoring, and support, they help young scientists to grow
and thrive in their respective fields. They will be instrumental
in fostering an environment of continual learning and

innovation, ensuring the RI ecosystem's ongoing renewal
and evolution.

Lastly, these professional scientists will fulfill the essential
citizenship and service roles that strengthen the RI
ecosystem. They will contribute their time and expertise
to various committees and initiatives, helping to build a
vibrant, inclusive, and collaborative research environment.
Their commitment to service enhances the sense of the
ecosystem within the Rl and contributes to our collective
success.

RI Affiliated Members

Affiliated members of the Rl are faculty members or
industry scientists from public or private higher education
institutions, and health care institutions in Puerto Rico and
abroad.

Collaborations with other PRSTRT Programs

The Research Institute and its scientists and affiliated
members will establish a unique scientific ecosystem that
will benefit our programs and Puerto Rico. As we have been
doing since day one, we will continue collaborating. with
other programs from our institution to help advance the
Trust’s mission and vision.
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DIRECTOR’S POV

In my tenure as Director of the Puerto Rico Science,
Technology, and Research Trust's Research Institute,
this transformative year stands out. Amidst a global
pandemic, our team showcased unparalleled resilience and
innovation, upholding our mission fervently. The Puerto
Rico COVID-19 Variant Surveillance Initiative, a pivotal
achievement, symbolizes our unwavering commitment

o . e . . The Puerto Rico COVID-19
to our community's safety. Securing over $20 million in Vartant Survesliance Infative

grants, completing 11,000+ SARS-CoV-2 genomes, and
identifying 6,500+ critical mutations, our accomplishments
transcend mere statistics, reflecting our ceaseless drive for
excellence. Our strategic collaborations with renowned
institutions have amplified our research prowess and
broadened our horizons. Our endeavors to address health
disparities have culminated in tangible benefits for the
people of Puerto Rico. This year epitomizes the strength of
unity, collaboration, and tenacity. Reflecting on this journey,
my heart swells with pride for our team's dedication and our
community's unwavering trust. United, we forge ahead,
crafting a brighter, healthier tomorrow.
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COLMENAG66

Colmena66 facilitates entrepreneurship by connecting
and building the entrepreneurial community. Our vision is
that everyone in Puerto Rico can start and grow a successful
business. We are an entrepreneurial ecosystem builder
and integrator. Colmena66 is the one-stop shop to help
entrepreneurs navigate community resources, fostering
connections to enable entrepreneurs to reach their goals. We
identify and analyze gaps in the entrepreneurial ecosystem
and work hand in hand with the Entrepreneurial Resource
Network to build the invisible infrastructure that supports
entrepreneurs.

As the main resource hub for entrepreneurs, we provide
guidance through our call center, interactive resource
directory, action plans, event calendar and educational
resources. \We help find answers to any business question and
connect entrepreneurs with the right resource at the right time
so that they can start or grow a successful business.

Colmena66 convenes and builds community among Entre-
preneurship Support Organizations (ESOs) in the Resource
Network. They can leverage our events, communication
channels, and data to amplify their reach and better serve
entrepreneurs. ESOs benefit from opportunities to network,
educate their staff, and join ecosystem-wide efforts such as
the Resource Network Meetups, the Boricua Emprende Fest,
Tu Camino Empresarial regional events, the Status Report of
the Entrepreneurial Community in Puerto Rico and Levanta tu
Negocio crisis recovery platform.

To fulfill our role of entrepreneurial ecosystem builder and
integrator, we work with entrepreneurs and connect them
with the right ESOs to address their needs. We are the only
organization in Puerto Rico that works with all types of
businesses, at any stage. The ESOs that make up our Resource
Network include non-profit organizations, service providers,
academia, government agencies, and others. With this
network we have been able to develop system-wide initiatives
related to public policy, innovation and R&D, capacity building,
disaster recovery, and much more.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



o

In the last year, Colmena66 reached 10,515 searches on its
Resource Navigator, delivered 472 counseling hours, and
facilitated 3,630 referrals to the Resource Network, serving
2,933 entrepreneurs. Colmena6b6 continues to rank among
the top affiliates in the SourceLink® network, comprised of
80+ members, on key performance indicators, such as network
access and counseling hours. Colmena66 also led the launch of
Xpand, a program developed in partnership with Parallel18 and
funded by Banco Popular, to support innovation-driven startups
with over three years in operations, annual revenues of $250K
or more, and the basic infrastructure to begin their expansion
process. Colmena6b6 co-launched Pulso, a program led by
Foundation for Puerto Rico and funded by the SBA Community
Navigator Pilot Program that supports entrepreneurs in the
northern region of the island. With the impact of Hurricane
Fiona in September, Levanta Tu Negocio PR was reactivated
and Colmenab6 was able to quickly participate in regional
business support brigades to gather disaster data and share its
insights with the ecosystem, helping deploy limited resources.
Colmenab6 also hosted hosted the first in-person edition of
the Boricua Entrepreneur Fest (BE Fest) since the start of the
pandemic. The BE Fest is Puerto Rico’s largest entrepreneurship
education event, gathering over 1,200 participants with
over 100 speakers and mentors, 50+ educational sessions,
networking, 70+ Resource Expo, and more.

To provide entrepreneurs with better tools and easier navigation
to access entrepreneurial opportunities, we redesigned and
updated our website with the help of SourceLink®. We also
hosted the SourceLink Summit 2023 in Puerto Rico, gathering
over 50 ecosystem builders from across the national network
to share best practices, tools and identify common challenges.
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Tu Camino
Empresaria

| De Camino al Boricua Em,

We held the first regional event after three years: Tu Camino
Empresarial Tour Oeste in Mayagliez on June 29th, sponsored
by Oriental Bank. Almost 200 entrepreneurs participated and
connected with 38 resource partners serving the region at the
El Panal Expo.

Continuing our effort to share actionable data with stakeholders
and decision-makers in our community, we deployed our 2022
Annual Entrepreneurship Survey and Resource Partner Survey.
Compared to 2021, the Annual Entrepreneurship Survey
participationincreased by 47% and the Resource Partner Survey
increased by 27%. By analyzing this data, we provide deeper
insight into the topics covered in the 2021 Status Report of
Puerto Rico’s Entrepreneurial Community and highlight the
collective impact the community has had.

We expect to continue highlighting the stories and challenges
our community faces and how we have all been working
together to drive equitable and inclusive entrepreneur-led
economic development.
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“Working together to drive equitable
and inclusive entrepreneur-led
economic development.”

Entrepreneurs Referrals Counseling hours
served provided
Responses to Participants at Responses to
LTN Disaster BE Fest 2022 Annual Survey

Recovery Survey
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Trust and action are at the center of successful entrepreneurial
ecosystems. We organize periodic meetups with the Resource
Network to foster open dialogue, collaboration, and collective
action. We held 2 meetups to share resources among partners
and continue strengthening relationships within the ecosystem.
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REPORTE DEIMPALTO 2021

In August 2022, we published the Status Report of Puerto
Rico’s Entrepreneurial Community 2021 and unveiled it at our
Resource Network Meetup. This effort helped share actionable
entrepreneurial ecosystem data with the network. We also
had two reaction panels, one comprised of entrepreneurs, and
the other of ESO directors and Local and Federal Government
officials.

In January 2023, we held a Resource Network Meetup in
the Northern Region. We fostered connections between
participating ESOs, had a training session related to existing
government incentives for small businesses, and discussed
initiatives for 2023 (including Levanta Tu Negocio PR and
Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2023).
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In May 2023, we held a Resource Network Meetup together
with AARP to discuss opportunities and challenges for Adults
50+ years old.

Satisfaction

Network Participants ;
Rating

SAN JUAN&

Understanding entrepreneurs’ need for connection, especially
after the isolation period brought on by the pandemic, we colla-
borated with the City of San Juan’s Office for Economic Deve-
lopment and Tourism to design this educational series based on
our entrepreneurship data, comprising capacity building works-
hops and networking.

In August 2022, we held the second Lunch & Learn event titled
“Access to Capital Opportunities” where entrepreneurs learned
of existing funding alternatives and the success stories of other
entrepreneurs as they navigate the access to capital continuum.

Boricua Emprende Fest

In December 2022, the Lunch & Learn was held at the Bori-
cua Entrepreneur Fest plenary session, with a top-notch panel
discussing Emerging Technologies, featuring innovative star-
tups and industry experts.

Would participate in

Of participants
future events

learned of new
ecosystem resources
at these events

Satisfaction rating

Deploying a Hub and Spoke model, Foundation for Puerto
Rico partnered with Colmena66, Centro para Emprendedores,
INprende, Brands of Americas, and the Latino Economic De-
velopment Center to provide small businesses in the northern
region of the island that are part of the visitor economy the
tools and resources to rebuild, grow and expand through a mul-
ti-stage business development path. Together we help busines-
ses identify needs and ecosystem resources, learn about and
comply with regulatory requirements, develop or improve their
business plan, strengthen their marketing and social media
strategies, and prepare them for the access to capital process.
This includes workshops, capacity building, mentoring and te-
chnical assistance throughout the different stages.
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In January, we convened our Resource Network within the nor-
thern region to share initiatives for 2023 and collaboration
opportunities. The Pulso SBA-CNPP Cohort 3 call for applica-
tions was announced and we covered topics such as disaster
“precovery” and ecosystem data gathering.

In February we developed the mentoring and workshop event
Dale Un Pulso A Tu Negocio for entrepreneurs in the northern
region. Thanks to our outreach efforts, the event garnered over
200 registrations and 63 in-person participants. Participants
had access to 31 expert mentors and learned about the Pulso
SBA-CNPP program and other business topics such as tax plan-
ning, marketing, e-commerce and business planning.

These are the preliminary collective results of the
Pulso program:

Unique participants Training hours Individual
trained provided counseling hours

provided

{

|

Requested in loan Approved in
and grant loans and grants
applications

Funded through a grant with the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA).
All opinions, conclusions, and/or recommendations expressed herein are
those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the SBA.

Entrepreneurial ecosystem building, supported by the Kauff-
man Foundation through the EBLP operated by InBIA, is shaping
the future of this field. Denisse Rodriguez and Samuel Merced,
part of the Collaborative Advisory Group, joined a working ses-
sion in September 2022 in Indianapolis, fostering connections
with ecosystem builders nationwide and exchanging insights on
Puerto Rico’s ecosystem development.

xpand

Xpand is a novel program powered by Parallel18 and Colme-
na66, funded by Banco Popular, to support innovative se-
cond-stage startups with more than three years in operation,
generating over $250,000 annual revenue, and with the basic
infrastructure to begin their expansion process and sustain
their growth.

Program Objectives

m Increase participant knowledge in access to capital through in-
vestment management, bank financing alternatives and com-
mercial connections.

m Increase participant knowledge in exports through market re-
search resources.

m  Provide specialized mentoring and develop a support community.

Startups Woman-owned Actively exporting
Average annual . Solicited
revenue investment
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HURACAN FIONA

LEVANTA TU NEGOCIO PR:

During the emergency caused by Hurricane Fiona in
September 2022, we reactivated Puerto Rico’s tech platform
for small business disaster recovery, Levanta Tu Negocio
PR. This multisector collaborative platform is a tool for data
gathering and analysis of challenges entrepreneurs faced
in the aftermath. Entrepreneurship support organizations,
local and federal government, philanthropy, media, academia,
and others are able to make data-based decisions to deploy
limited resources such as cash grants, disaster loans, technical
assistance and other support. We launched two surveys: one
for entrepreneurs and and one for support organizations. We
created a recovery guide to compile available relief resources
for entrepreneurs in one place.

In just 6 weeks, we received 660 responses from individuals in
76 of 78 municipalities to our entrepreneur survey. With this
information ,we built two online dashboards updated real-time
and shared disaster data in a timely manner with partners de-
ploying relief resources.

m  We published 2 dashboards, in English and Spanish, to highlight
entrepreneur needs and ecosystem resources.

m  We published and constantly updated the Disaster Recovery Gui-
de covering incentives, loans, co-working spaces, technical assis-
tance, among others.

m  We participated in 5 Regional Entrepreneurial Support Brigades
organized by PR-SBTDC, SBA, and Foundation for Puerto Rico to
bring resources to entrepreneurs in affected areas.

m  We opened a co-working space in Ponce together with P11 (The
City’s Office of Economic Development), helping over 40 entre-
preneurs.

m  We included the BE READY Lab in our Boricua Emprende Fest
2022 agenda for December, adding topics to help businesses be
prepared for future crises.
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BORICUA ENTREPRENEUR FEST 2022

The Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2022 was celebrated on Decem-
ber 6th, 2022. This is Puerto Rico’s largest, most inclusive, and
accessible annual business education and celebration event. The
design and agenda cater to all types of entrepreneurs at every
business stage and from all backgrounds within the entrepre-
neurial community to provide a unique experience focused on
connection, community, and growth. Thanks to the efforts of
our team, partners and sponsors, the event was of low cost to
participants and proved to be a huge success, gathering 1,200
entrepreneurs. Feedback from the community was excellent,
with over 90% of participants giving a very positive rating.

The event agenda included:

s ) ( N 1\
120+ 59 70+
Expert speakers Education Resources in the
sessions El Panal Expo
\ J \ J \ J




Our audience:

Participants Had an established

business

Were women

Were 25-44 Were first time Participants would
years old participants recommend
attending a future

BE Fest event

Expressed bein
better prepare
and educated in

entrepreneurship
after the event

Tu enlace a los recursos
que necesitas para desarrrollar
tu negocio.

In April 2023, we launched our new and improved website. Af-
ter analyzing our platform, we wanted to redesign the website
to enhance the user interface and overall user experience, ma-
king it easier for entrepreneurs to navigate on desktop and mo-
bile as they access the resources they need. Furthermore, the
migration and update of content have ensured that our website
remains up-to-date and relevant. With these improvements, we
anticipate a substantial increase in website traffic and decrease
in bounce rate, resulting in a higher number of entrepreneurs
benefiting from our support services and resources. We are
confident that these enhancements will greatly facilitate the
journey of aspiring and experienced entrepreneurs in finding
the assistance and guidance they require to thrive.
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In April 2023, Colmena66 and the Puerto Rico Science,
Technology & Research Trust served as the host for the national
SourceLink Summit in San Juan. Sourcelink is an affiliate
network of over 80 ecosystem building organizations across the
United States. This summit focused on sharing best practices,
identifying common challenges, networking, and capacity
building. Over 50 ecosystem builders were able to meet and
learn from veteran ecosystem builders from around the country,
including Nathan Ohle (CEO of the International Development
Council, Maria Meyers (Assoc. Vice Chancellor and Executive
Director of the UMKC Innovation Center), Andy Stoll (Senior
Program Officer of Ecosystem Development at the Kauffman
Foundation), Melea McRae (Founder and CEO of Crux KC), and
Jonathan Ortmans (Founder and President of the Global Entre-
preneurship Network). This was a valuable opportunity to learn
about national trends and initiatives from leaders in the industry,
build relationships with SourceLink affiliate colleagues and
solve common problems across the network. We collaborated
with Echar Pa’ Lante to invite Jonathan Ortmans to the Summit
while also leveraging the opportunity to showcase Puerto Rico
as a potential host destination of the Global Entrepreneurship
Congress (GEC). We are excited to announce that this effort was
successful, and Puerto Rico will host the GEC in July 2024, a
huge win and opportunity for our entrepreneurship ecosystem.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



The U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) offers prize
awards for impactful and inclusive approaches to foster thri-
ving, collaborative national innovation support ecosystems
to advance research and development (R&D) from ideas to
impact. By fostering connections between entrepreneurs, advi-
sors, mentors, partners, philanthropy, corporations, investors,
and other shared resources, the 2023 Growth Accelerator Fund
Competition (GAFC) catalyzes strategic ecosystem partners-
hips to build community and organizational capacity for the
successful launch, growth, and scale of STEM (Science, Techno-
logy, Engineering, and Mathematics)-based entrepreneurs and
startups.

Colmenab6 and the Puerto Rico Science, Technology & Re-
search Trust were selected as one of 40 winners for Stage One
submissions out of 355 applications from across the nation.
Our initiative will focus on serving Underserved Hispanic, La-
tino, Afro-Caribbean, women and Spanish-speaking STEM and
R&D researchers and small business communities in Puerto
Rico. With the experience we have implementing ecosystem
building strategies and the lessons learned through the “Acer-
cate al Grant (AAG)" (Get Closer to the Grant) Phase O pilot pro-
gram funded with previous GAFC prize funding, we envision a
multi-stage program to address challenges we have collectively
identified these underserved communities face.
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Tu Camino
Empresarial

De Camino al Boricua Emprende Fest

Tour

Oeste

TCE Tour are regional events organized as part of the Tu Ca-
mino Empresarial initiative by Colmena66, presented by the
Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust. After a
3-year hiatus due to the pandemic, this event has been reacti-
vated in June 29, 2023, thanks to a sponsorship from Oriental
Bank and the Department of Economic Development and Com-
merce. The event’s purpose was to connect entrepreneurs in
the West region of Puerto Rico with the resources they need
on their entrepreneurial journey. Whether starting a new bu-
siness or looking to grow an existing one, TCE Tour Oeste offe-
red a unique opportunity to discover and engage with a diverse
range of support organizations at the El Panal Expo to address
different needs and business stages. The event featured a com-
prehensive agenda of educational sessions, co-designed with
our Resource Partners who are key leaders in the region. We
covered topics such as access to capital, emerging trends, mar-
keting, e-commerce, and business incentives.

loce el Ecosistema Empresarial del Oeste
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190+

Participants

38

Resource Partners
at El Panal Expo

&.9/s

Satisfaction rating

Connections participants made during the event:

m  Onaverage, each participant connected with 5 new entrepreneu-
rial support organizations (ESOs)

m  On average, each participant connected with 4 other entrepre-
neurs

The impact of our Resource Network:

m Theimpact of our Resource Network

m  Onaverage, each ESO served 29 participants during the event.

m  On average, each ESO connected with 7 other ESOs during the
event.

m  9.8/10 participants would recommend other entrepreneurs par-
ticipate in future events
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STATUS REPORT OF THE
ENTREPRENEURIAL COMMUNITY
IN PUERTO RICO 2022

Access to data continues to be a pressing need in Puerto Rico
and a priority for Colmena66. We developed and continue to
improve our Annual Entrepreneurship Survey to help inform the
entrepreneurial community about who is starting businesses,
what types of businesses are being formed, the impact these
businesses have, and what gaps need to be addressed. In 2022,
we broadened our survey sample, reaching 693 responses, of
which 555 met our requirement of being an entrepreneur with
an established business or actively developing a business idea.
This represents an increase in qualified responses of 47% when
compared to 2021 (378 responses). This sample was collected
between December 2022 and January 2023 through a compre-
hensive multi-channel campaign through social media, email
and text message. Our strategies were also supported by part-
ners that shared the survey with their audiences through news-
letters, social media, and other channels.

MOLCAJETE
FOODS Li.c

& g
health design

Learningbp

C‘ upri+c m

In this most recent report, you will learn about gaps in the
ecosystem, the stories of the entrepreneurs behind Aguas
Frescas PR, Learningbp, Insu Health Design and Molcajete
Foods, and the collective impact of the Resource Network. You
can also learn about the impact and vision of ecosystem ESOs
such as UPR i+c, CDVCA’s Unlock Capital, and Echar Pa’lante.
Read the report at https://www.colmena66.com/nuestro-im-

pacto/.

33% 31%

ki 2021 72022
22% 509
11%
6% 6% 8%
© 0%

18 -24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64

Gender Education

Jmen
a

Main motivations for entrepreneurship

educatlon level
high school

Desire to create something of my own
(follow a passion, seize an opportunity,
innovate in the market, as a challenge)

Generate a higher personal income
(financial independence, improved
lifestyle, supplement income)

Desire to provide for my family
(financial stability, quality time, legacy)

Interest in being my own boss
(autonomy, freedom, leadership)

Desire to contribute to my community
and make a difference

Desire for more flexibility (more free
time, better work-life balance)

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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Stages of business development

2021 2022
39%

25%

18%

13%
10%

3% 1% 1%

dea Existence / Infancy Early Growth Expansion Maturity Decline

Industries with the highest representation in our

sample

34937%

2021 2022
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Reach of businesses currently generating sales

2021 2022
21%
Local, Community or Municipality 20%
21%
Regional, Municipality or Nearby Towns 26%
_ 2L%
All of Puerto Rico exclusively 21%
_ _ 24%
Puerto Rico & United States exclusively
25%
o)
United States exclusively L%
1%
Federal Government 0%
0%
International 10%

7%

The top 5 reported challenges in 2022

Seed capital availability 54%

Changes in operational costs 52%
Access to other types of private financing 47%
Government Regulations 46%

Access to lines of credit
44%

Access to Capital

86%

of surveyed individuals are using
their Bersonal savings to finance
their businesses.

Our services are higlhy recommended

entrepreneurs recommend Colmena66 to anyone wishing
to start or grow a business
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DIRECTOR’S P.O.V. MEET THETEAM

During the last year, Colmena66
made significant strides in suppor-
ting the entrepreneurial community.
We served 2,933 entrepreneurs and
developed or co-developed key initia-
tives such as Xpand, Pulso, Boricua
Entrepreneur Fest 2022, SourceLink
Summit, Tu Camino Empresarial Tour
in the western region, and more to
continue addressing important gaps.
Through our work with entrepreneu-
rs and entrepreneur support orga-
nizations since 2016, we have been
able to build trust and significant
relationships with the community to
leverage resources for our continued  Denisse Rodriguez
growth. Starting in 2021, we struc- Executive Director
tured our efforts to focus on increasing our impact on the
community and the results are evident.

FUTURE PLANS

What's next?
Empowering entrepreneurs and transforming
communities for a thriving Puerto Rico.

At Colmenab6, we remain steadfast in our mission to drive
equitable and inclusive economic development, fostering a
thriving entrepreneurial ecosystem in Puerto Rico.

Our upcoming initiatives include a bigger and better Boricua
Entrepreneur Fest 2023, gathering industry experts, mentors,
aspiring entrepreneurs and diaspora for networking and
knowledge sharing.

We plan to improve the “Tu Camino Empresarial” map by
developing a digital tool to enhance user experience and easy
access. We plan to host more TCE Tour regional events to
connect entrepreneurs with resource partners in their area.
Closing out the year we will launch our 2023 Annual Entre-
preneurship and Resource Partner Surveys to further our
understanding of the ecosystem.

With the lessons learned during Hurricane Fiona, we are taking a
more proactive approach to crises and focusing on “precovery”.
Levanta Tu Negocio will shift a collectively design our crises
preparedness and disaster recovery efforts.

Denisse Rodriguez
Executive Director

Samuel Merced

Program Manager

Natalia Alicea

Senior Marketing Strategist

Gian Ortiz

Business Development Specialist

Nadya Sold
Entrepreneurship Strategist

Nackira Castro

Lead Creative Designer

Paola Maldonado
Entrepreneurship Strategist

Noriana Meléndez

Community and Content Specialist

Bridgette Padilla
Entrepreneurship Strategist

Ibanaliz Santoni

Entrepreneurship Strategist
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FASE 1

Fasel is our incubation program designed specifically for entre-
preneurs in the idea/concept stage. It has two primary objecti-
ves: firstly, to offer accessible education in key concepts, tools,
and methodologies of entrepreneurship, and secondly, to guide
individuals in successfully transforming their ideas into thriving
startups. The name ‘Fasel’ represents our commitment to pro-
viding new entrepreneurs and those with innovative ideas the
fundamental knowledge and a structured approach for idea ge-
neration, validation, and product development. Fasel serves as
the starting point for any local aspiring to be part of the Puerto
Rico business community, enabling them to gradually turn their
creative ideas into tangible startups, one step at a time.

Fasel is divided into two steps, Fasel Lab and Fasel Intensive

p—
Fase Fase

1 1

Lab Intensive

Fasel Lab is the foundation of our program, offering a
comprehensive online academy. It features training modules
covering various entrepreneurial topics that are based on current
trends and industry needs. Each module consists of a compilation
of short videos that include discussions on technical concepts
and real-life experiences from “boristartups”. This simple yet
resourceful educational tool aims to provide new and upcoming
entrepreneurs with the knowledge and skills they need to
succeed.

Participants who have completed at least the first three modules
of Fasel Lab can apply for Fasel Intensive. This 12-week
incubator program focuses on guiding 50 new ideas each year.
It provides a structured and guided curriculum, drawing on both
internal and external resources. The main objective of Fasel
Intensive is to enhance the capabilities of new founders and
increase the success rate of their business endeavors.

To accommodate participants who may have other commitments,
such as full-time employment or studies, and to ensure
. accessibility for those from different parts of the island, Fasel
H punto - Intensive is primarily conducted on Saturdays. Our hybrid format
tida! 1 allows for both virtual and in-person participation, providing
amosparaque |18 flexibility for individuals to choose the mode that best suits their
uideaenuna || needs. Fasel Intensive is laser-focused on developing minimum
Zalliees viable products and meeting the requirements of prel8.
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Fasel was tailor-designed for new and upcoming boricuas
emprendedores. That is why both, Fasel Lab and Fasel Intensive,
are 100% in native-Spanish, for cultural and language accessibility.
However, it is made available to everyone in Puerto Rico who wants to
generate and develop new innovative ideas with a business mindset and
vision.

We welcome new ideas from all sectors, genders, beliefs, and
backgrounds. Our incubator seeks to ease the way people connect with
and integrate into our unique and seasoned ecosystem of startups,
mentors, and resources to contribute to a sustainable economic
recovery and to the much-needed reconstruction of our island.

Fasel is also part of the Small Business Incubators & Accelerators
program in collaboration with the Puerto Rico Department of Housing
under the Community Development Block Grant for Disaster Recovery
(CDBG-DR) funding initiative.

[

What an exciting year! In the 2021 business year, Fasel
experienced significant growth and success. We launched our
incubation program with confidence, but it was only through
executing a complete incubation cycle that we truly understood
its potential. We are proud to report that we have successfully
completed our first cohort with a 100% retention rate, validating
the effectiveness of our program.

Over the past year, Fasel has achieved a series of milestones that
highlight our progress and impact. \We have seen a 65% increase
in enrollment, with over 1,300 individuals signing up for the
program. In addition, more than 300 new enrollments were seen
in Fasel Lab, our online academy, with 365 individuals completing
the first three modules. These achievements demonstrate the
growing interest and engagement in our program, as well as the
value we are providing to the community of startups.
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However, the true measure of our impact lies in the success
of our Fasel Intensive incubator program. Through this 12-
week program, we have supported 50 selected ideas and
startups, guiding them towards market viability and prototype
development. The highlight of this journey was the Fasel
Demo Day, where our startups showcased their pitches and
were awarded $10,000 in prizes in various categories. This
event served as the perfect closing of our first cohort. We were
thrilled to support these new entrepreneurs in their initial phase
of development and witnessed their transformation throughout
a three-month period. Many special moments, success stories,
and incredible connections and collaborations came out of
our first generation of Fasel Intensive. Many of them became
established businesses or continued their development through
other programs. After Fasel Intensive, some of our startups
were ready and determined to apply to prel8. Another solid
success and validation came with the selection of 8 Fasel
graduates for the pre18 Gen.5, representing 31% of the cohort.

Gen. 1
graduates

Grads selected
for prel8 Gen.5

Fasel Intensive
Gen.1 Retention

Keeping up with our program cycle, in February, we opened
our second call for applications for Fasel Intensive Gen.2,
receiving 140 new applications. This time, we decided to
expand our outreach campaign to reach new regions on the
island and communities to make entrepreneurship available to
more people. This year, we started the Fasel Tour, hosting and
participating in 18 events, mostly in-person, and visited 11
municipalities. This approach was very effective in promoting
the program benefits and engaging new people while
strengthening our relationships with existing partners and new
organizations. The Fasel Tour also helped us connect with low-
and moderate-income communities as part of our commitment
under the Small Business Incubators and Accelerators (SBIA)
program and required by the Community Development Block
Grant for Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funding. Additionally,
our continued involvement and participation in major
industry events like the BE Fest and startup competitions
have helped position Fasel as a distinguished and accessible
incubator. | also had the opportunity to join the International
Business Innovation Association (InBIA) and complete the



Entrepreneurship Management Certificate to further strengthen
our program performance and network.

None of Fasel’s achievements would have been possible without
the incredible support and collaboration from our partners, both
within and outside of our organization. A special shoutout goes
to the Colmena66 and Parallel18 teams, who have been essential
allies in helping us fill the gaps and respond to the ecosystem’s
needs through our services.

Reflecting on our metrics and achievements, | am incredibly
proud of the Fasel team, who have worked diligently and
inspired many new entrepreneurs to start up their ideas. | look
forward to continuing to lead this incredible team and working
on new projects to enable even more new and original startups
for a better and stronger economy.

20 140 1.3K+

Startups Applications Engaged in our
established Recieved for Gen. 2 Community

365 7

Started Fasel Lab | Entrepreneurship
Modules

\ J

$10K

Prize Awards

‘“Fasel has exceeded and
continues to exceed my
expectations. Every time
we finish a session, | leave
super motivated and full
of extremely valuable
information.”

— Fasel Intensive Gen.1 graduate (Alexandra Castrillo, Bukea)
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THIS YEAR ACHIEVEMENTS FOR FASE1

Fasel Lab
Online Academy

Our Fasel community has been consistently growing, as we
currently have more than 1,300 people in our community.
During our second year, our efforts to offer accessible education
to entrepreneurs and incubate new ideas have generated
progressive results towards our goals. This past year, 513
people showed interest in the program and registered in Fasel
tojoin our network of new entrepreneurs. This represents a65%
increase from 2022 to 2023 fiscal year, being a direct result
of the team’s engagement, a coordinated outreach strategy
and a continuous program assessment to be able to respond
to people’s needs and trends quickly. Our goal to impact rural
areas and underrepresented segments can be reflected with
the following metrics: Fasel has reached seventy-five (75)
cities and forty-six percent (46%), less than half were from the
metropolitan area. In addition, seventy percent (70%) of the
registered participants are women.

As part of our community engagement strategy, anyone who
is enrolled and active in Fasel Lab can benefit from the one-
on-one assistance offered by our Startup Executive team,
participate in training challenges, and get access to events
where entrepreneurs can network with peers and other resource
organizations, as an interactive way to learn. We also keep a
dynamic communication to provide supporting educational
materials, event notices, and other opportunities for them.
During the last year, our team produced three (3) new modules:
Developing Your Website & E-commerce, and Marketing Basics
| & Il (the last one will be posted soon), totaling seven (7)
educational modules in our online academy. We are thrilled to
see so many people enjoying our modules. Since last year, 365
have started Fasel Lab modules for a total of 828, and 45% of
them (374) have completed the first three (3) modules.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



Fase

1

Intensive

Fasel Intensive
Incubator

With a 100% retention rate of our first cohort, we successfully
incubated 50 ideas and celebrated Fasel Intensive’s first Demo
Day in September 2022. A selective group of five (5) judges,
represented by Microsoft Puerto Rico, Parallel18, our Board
of Trustees and other collaborators, rated the startups pitches
and selected the winners of the five (5) award categories who
received different amount of cash grants totaling $10,000,
sponsored by the Trust. Also, the judges ranking defined the
best 30 startups that were referred to the prel8’s evaluation
committee based on their pitches and innovative ideas for
consideration for the next generation selection. A total of eight
(8) Fasel Intensive Gen. 1 startups were selected to prel8
Gen.5, giving them access to a pre-acceleration program and
seed funding.

As we all know, mentoring is an essential part of the
entrepreneurial journey and being part of an enriched network
of partners and startups that has been built by the Trust and
our sister programs have permitted us to reach out to a unique
and diverse pool of mentors. We engaged over 50 local and
international mentors to provide more than 70 mentoring
sessions with the Intensive Gen.1 participants. We are forever
grateful to the amazing mentors who have guided, taught, and
inspired our group of new entrepreneurs with their passionate
work.

Following our program cycle, we launched a second call for our
second generation in February 2023 where we received 140
applications. After a thorough multi-step evaluation process
that involved an external committee, Fasel selected fifty (50)
new ideas to begin our Intensive incubation program on June
17th.
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The Gen.2 participants represent twenty-three (23)

municipalities, forty-six percent (46%) are women, and fifty-
two percent (52%) are considered low-and-moderate income
persons, as defined by the US Housing and Urban Development
department (HUD).



Fasel believes that entrepreneurship should be available to
anyone. This is why we have created an outstanding outreach
effort throughout all main regions of Puerto Rico to promote our
second call for applications and accessibility to entrepreneurial
education. The goal was to present the opportunities and
benefits to all demographics while expanding on educational
mechanisms about idea generation, validation and marketing,
all essential parts of any early-stage business development. In
all our Tour visits, our presentations included a more detailed
content on entrepreneurial tools and methodologies, and the
participation of boristartups from our 1st generation for more
interactive sessions. In only 2.5 months Fasel was able to hold
or participate in 18 events and visit 11 municipalities covering
main regions of the island: Adjuntas, Mayagliez, Naranjito,
Utuado, Vega Baja, Barceloneta, Ponce, Bayamon, San Juan,
Caguas, Ceiba. Our targets were low-and-moderate-income
persons, high school and college students, women, and anyone
interested in entrepreneurship. Throughout our tour we reached
more than 550 people in different regions and communities.

The Fasel Tour was a successful outreach strategy to connect
with existing and new collaborators, reach new people through
education, increase awareness of our program, and ultimately
make entrepreneurship opportunities available to more people.

Building and maintaining strong collaborations is like the
invisible thread that connects us all and makes everything
possible. Being a collaborator is part of our organization’s
culture and values, and in Fasel we are active practitioners of
it. We have continued working in collaboration with numerous
entities, programs, and academia to create an impact in
the entrepreneurial ecosystem. Engaging in many outreach
activities has given us an opportunity to present and expand the
benefits and opportunities offered by our program.

This year we dedicated special attention to universities and
students to target the young community of new entrepreneurs.
Some key players and engagements in this sector include the
University of Puerto Rico, Polytechnic University, Holberton
School, Interamerican University and their InterEmprende
initiative, and Ana G. Méndez University that has been an ally
in many efforts. In addition, the Fasel team participated in
different competition events as judges and mentors to give back
to the entrepreneurial ecosystem such as the Enactus World Cup
and InterEmprende.

Fasel also led a series of events to promote the numerous
opportunities offered by our program and Puerto Rico’s
entrepreneurial ecosystem. Just to mention a few, Continuando
tu Trayecto Empresarial, an event to help new startups and other
programs and organizations to connect. Some of them included
Fidecoop, Lendreams, Grupo Guayacan, Startup Popular, Causa
Local, Carbono3, among others. Also, Fasel designed and led
the Coffee Talks at the 2022 Boricua Emprende Fest. The Coffee
Talks was a hit, presenting a 10-session track where we had
experts on trending topics for engaging conversations where the
audience took part in them. We hosted some renowned invitees
like Borilicious, Bianca Gralau, and experts in many topics such
as Chelsea Serrano, Dr. Moraima de Hoyos, among many others.

Ferraiuoli.

Loaking
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WHAT’S NEXT

Keeping up with the entrepreneurial community.

Moving into our third year of performance, we see many
opportunities to continue nurturing our incubation program
and enabling more innovative ideas. We will continue to
respond to people’s interests and needs to help fill the gaps in
the entrepreneurial ecosystem. Therefore, we will develop more
content to be added to Fasel Lab based on internal and external
data to maintain our commitment to making entrepreneurship
education relevant and available to everyone. We will focus our
outreach efforts by further expanding beyond the metropolitan
area to reach new people in new communities and increase
program participation from a more diverse audience. We will
develop new educational initiatives and seek out new resources i |
to continue spreading the word about entrepreneurship, making ‘u\

it understandable and accessible. Our active involvement and |
participation in different industry events, conferences, and i
conversations will certainly be essential to continue growing k -

and expanding our program.

Supporting and building internal capabilities is important for
our continued growth. We will identify opportunities to expand
and strengthen our team’s performance, knowledge, and
connections within the immense and diverse startup ecosystem.

Also, we will continue working in accordance with the CDBG-DR
funding requirements to comply and guarantee the best program
outcomes, making the best out of the program funds allocation

to positively impact a sustainable economic development for DIRECTOR'S POV

Puerto Rico.

Fasel achievements are a result of
a coordinated team effort, not only
internally, but also with our external
partners and collaborators. Like in
entrepreneurship, we wouldn’t be able to
accomplish our goals by working alone.
First, | am superbly proud of the Fasel
team that have worked every day with
dedication and passion to continuously provide our participants
with what they need in remarkable ways, making Fasel stand out
in the entrepreneurship incubation sector. Second, working and
counting on so many talented people from incredible startups,
sister programs, organizations and academia have made this past
year not only successful but enjoyable.
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Mariela J. Maldonado Martinez Bianca M. Corujo Agosto Bdrbara |. Rivera Chinea ‘ Amanda Laguerra

Startup Executive Operations Manager Program Director Startup Executive

‘“"We are a team of four passionate women looking
to create impactful results in the entrepreneurial
arena for a better Puerto Rico.”

— Barbara I. Rivera Chinea, Fasel Program Director
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PARALLEL 18

Parallell8 is a top-level, performance-driven international
innovation hub focused on providing funding, mentorship,
business connections, and investment to underrepresented
founders around the globe.

The program is part of the Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and
Research Trust, a private non-profit organization created with the
goal of maximizing Puerto Rico’s participation and creation of
jobs in the global knowledge economy by promoting investment
and financing of science, technology, research and development.
The organization manages and hosts over a dozen initiatives
that range from grants and technical support to meetups and
educational resources for researchers, entrepreneurs, farmers,
investors, and other groups.

We are changing the narrative of Puerto Rico’s economy by
promoting a diverse business community. We believe in
creating opportunities for entrepreneurs of underrepresented
groups in the innovation ecosystem and support their dreams of
building a high-impact business with a global reach. Our mission
is to support founders’ entrepreneurial journey while working to
position Puerto Rico as a unique hub for innovative businesses
and technological advancement.

We nurture globally-minded startups with strong roots in
their local communities and encourage the development of
solutions to problems with a global outlook, providing access
to exceptional resources tailored to streamline the way to their
utmost potential.

We leverage Puerto Rico’s advantages as a multinational
business hub that offers the structures and protections of U.S.
legal frameworks with cultural connections to Latin America and
the Caribbean and a bilingual highly-trained workforce.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



WE PROVIDE:

m Top-line Training and specialized mentorship (prel18
for 12 weeks ; P18 for 20 weeks).

m A guide to track growth and structure the company

for scalability.

m Grant Funding & Investments:
-pre18 $25K USD equity-free grant per startup
-P18 $60K USD total funding per startup

m Connections with potential customers and

partnerships with top companies around the world.

m Access to capital through +600 private allocators,
institutions, investment funds and other investors in

our network.

m Streamlined access to specialized talent both local

and international.

m More than $210K USD in value through our perks
program.

m Additional support through the Puerto Rico
Science, Technology and Research Trust in areas
such as intellectual property; technical assistance to
access funding for research, development, and

commercialization; matchmaking with top research

talent and organizations, among other expert resources
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IMPACT METRICS

Our local pre-acceleration program,
prel8is focused on helping innovative and
18 early-stage Puerto Rican startups who are
Ere close to launching their businesses or have
recently launched, that have the potential

to upscale into global markets.

For prel8, during its five years (5) and five (5) generations, we
have received more than one thousand three hundred (1,300)
applications from Puerto Rican entrepreneurs with developed
concepts or prototypes ready to go-to market. These efforts
(from Gen.1 to Gen. 5) led to fifty (53) Puerto Rican companies
being selected for P18, demonstrating the quality and caliber
of the prel8 pipeline that competed to join our international
accelerator. At the moment, one hundred sixty one (161)
startups have completed the program.

s A

1,300 +

applications from Puerto Rican entrepreneurs

\ J

1 6 1 companies from PR
graduated startups selected for P18

The pre-acceleration program celebrated its fifth cohort
(Gen. 5) from January through April 2023. Twenty three (23)
startups completed the program in industries such as: agtech,
insuretech, fintech, edtech, e-commerce, healthtech, regtech,
among others.

Gen. 5 received 223 applications, and for the first time in
5 years, the startups accepted in the program received a
$25,000 USD grant, along with entrepreneurial education and
mentorship opportunities during 12 weeks. This equates to a
25% increase in equity-free funding compared to our previous
generations.



PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

Gen. $40,055,000 USD

Cumulative valuation of pre18 Gen. 5 companies
The Puerto Rico-based companies who participated on this fifth L )

cohort were from the towns of Moca, Luquillo, Ponce, Humacao,

Mayagtez, Juana Diaz, Bayamon, Guayama, Morovis, Ponce, %
Coamo, and San Juan, with 40% of the founders identifying as Of

women and 2% as non-binary. The startups who partook of Gen. women founders companies

5 developed and launched during the program technological )

solutions for their different industries. 2 5
The startups that completed the program were: Urbital, Mikokos, $7 3 7 IOOO USD .
Quibble, Tuto Edu, Quote Correct, Inmigracién Virtual, Berrify, investment raised by Gen. 5 hires by

Caribe Drones, UpShip, Jaltea, Meliora Centrum, Health 4 Pets, prel8’s Gen.5

Zheimer Puzzles, Construye tu Libro, School Management
System, dBloks, Oteogo, OneGig, ShopperFix, Prep App,
PonFlow, Guarike, and Pop Insured.

Six companies from pre18 Gen. 5 (Caribe Drones, Jaltea, Meliora
Centrum, Oteogo, Prep, and PonFlow) previously participated
in Fasel Intensive incubator, our sister program, under the
entrepreneurship pillar at the Puerto Rico Science, Technology
and Research Trust.

The survey data collected shows that the cumulative valuation
of these companies was forty million fifty five thousand
thousand dollars ($40,055,000 USD) as reported, while the
revenue generated by these local startups during the program
was three hundred twenty one thousand dollars ($321,000),
which totals a current revenue of seven hundred forty nine
thousand and five hundred eighty four dollars ($749,584 USD)
for the year. As companies in prel8 are not yet in the market,
these numbers show the results of going through the program
as it led entrepreneurs to enter the market and generate scalable
sales while positioning them in a path of growth.

In terms of investment, the 23 companies that participated in
prel8 Gen. 5 raised seven hundred thirty seven thousand dollars
($737,000 USD) locally during the program. Understanding that
these companies are at a very-early stage of their business, we
recognize the amazing feat of achieving such a high capital raise
very early in their businesses.

Nonetheless, animportant accomplishment to highlight in terms
of Gen. 5 is that these companies had 25 hires (full-time and
part-time) during the program, further increasing and impacting
economic development in Puerto Rico through job creation.
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The parallel18 program structure pursues the mission of
positioning Puerto Rico as an international hub for innovation
and entrepreneurship, while providing local and international
startups a global mindset and opportunities to go to market and
export internationally.

After seven (7) years, ten (10) completed generations, and one
(1) currently in progress of the P18 international acceleration
program, parallel18 has received more than nine thousands
(9,000) applications from over seventy (70) countries, with two
hundred fifty six (256) individual companies having graduated
from the program with a very competitive acceptance rate of
seven percent (7%). Among these, one hundred twelve (112)
have Puerto Rican founders, and one hundred forty four (144)
are foreign, yielding a local representation of forty-two percent
(44%) from the overall companies that have participated.

GEN.X

Last year, from June through November 2022, we celebrated a
special edition of our international acceleration programwith our
Gen. X. This cohort consisted of 10 startups that received an
equity-free grant of $125,000 USD for their businesses, along
with an additional investment of $25,000 USD. The program
began on June 28th, 2022. In the previous nine generations,
a maximum of 40 startups were selected to receive an equity-
free grant of $40,000 USD. Grants distributed for Gen. X were
increased by 275% compared to previous generations.

$1M ||$125K

grants distributed for each company

$25,000
of investment via SAFE

ENTREPRENEURSHIP
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Our mission is to keep adapting to any challenge of the industry
as fast and as effectively as we possibly can to be able to
continue providing the most amazing opportunities for our
alumni.

Eight (8) companies successfully finished the program:
Abacrop (Puerto Rico), Channel (Puerto Rico), eSponsor (Chile),
Figuro (Colombia), Lank (Argentina), Red Atlas (Puerto Rico),
RunFalcon (Colombia) and Wihom (Colombia).

The latest survey data informs that the cumulative valuation
of these companies as reported was forty-two million one
hundred thousand dollars ($42.1M USD). On the other hand,
the global revenue generated during the program by P18 Gen.
X companies was three hundred seventeen thousand dollars
($317,000 USD), while the local cumulative revenue was one
hundred ten thousand five hundred dollars ($110,500 USD).

Also, these eight (8) startups raised nine hundred sixty one
thousand dollars ($961,000 USD) globally and two hundred
forty five thousand dollars ($245,000 USD) locally during the
program.

In terms of cumulative results for P18 from Gen. 1 through Gen.
X, our reports show that parallel18 have distributed ten million
nine hundred thousand dollars ($10.9M USD) in grants and
there is a cumulative valuation of one hundred forty four million
eight hundred thousand dollars ($144.8M USD)*. Parallel18’s
reports show that 74.7%™* of the companies are still active.

*(Based on Impact Report Survey).



T2 Xpand

In our mission to continue supporting the business ecosystem
of Puerto Rico, parallel18 led all the initiatives for the second
generation of the post-acceleration program for local and
innovative companies, Xpand Puerto Rico.

Xpand is funded by Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and supports
growth-stage businesses to access valuable resources, beyond
those provided in the incubation and acceleration phase,
furthering its growth and expansion into new markets. From
being a business support community its first year, the program
transformed into a post-acceleration curriculum that tackles
specific needs of Puerto Rican entrepreneurs.

The program seeks to close the gap in available resources during
the growth-stage for innovative Puerto Rican startups that are
successfully scaling, but face some particular challenges when
establishing into new markets and raising capital that can boost
their growth.

The Xpand curriculum focuses on raising capital, business
networking opportunities, and growth into new markets. The
participating startups must be operating for more than 3 years
and generate around $250,000 (USD) in annual gross income.
Different from our other programs, Xpand focuses on providing
technical assistance rather than an education-led curriculum.
Understanding that participating businesses are already well-
established, the program seeks to fill the gap in terms of access
to highly specialized services and niche business challenges.

The second cohort of Xpand graduated nine (9) companies:
FDI Clinical Research, Toy Doggie, b.world, Cafe La Finca, YCS,
Abartys Health, Don Rifa, Beauty 911, and RedAtlas. All these
companies received business education and increased their
knowledge in raising capital, investing and alternative financing.

Overall, the nine participating companies of Xpand Gen. 2
generated 39 connections during the program with business
mentors, alumni, investors, prospective clients, among others.

Two of the participating companies are actively raising capital for
a Series A round and one company is raising for a pre-seed round
for a cumulative amount of more than $3.5 M USD. (RedAtlas,
Abartys and Beauty 911).
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Also, the 9 participating companies were actively involved
in the educational aspects of exporting, including marketing
strategies, export consulting, among others. YCS Corp is in the
process of establishing collaboration to export to Colombia and
expand to Mexico. Also, Toy Doggie, launched its e-commerce
and started exporting its product to the United States. On the
other hand Don Rifa launched its operation in the Dominican
Republicin June.

Xpand offered more than 20 hours of mentorship with more
than 16 mentor sessions during its 16-week program for the
second generation.

9

companies

39

connections
during Xpand G2

GiveBack

To foster the interest for innovating in Puerto Rico and to
inspire more local entrepreneurs, parallel18 has continued
executing its GiveBack Program. With this initiative, parallel18
entrepreneurs, who have significant startup experience and
knowledge of different industries and skills, support the local
education and startup community during their time in our
program. They must offer workshops to students on technology
and entrepreneurial development, and provide mentorship
support to emerging entrepreneurs at events of the Puerto
Rico startup community, as mechanisms of empowerment.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



Last fiscal year, both, P18 Gen. X and prel8 Gen. 5 invested
ninety four (94) cumulative hoursin Giveback hours and impacted
2,911 college students and individuals from local organizations
and universities in Puerto Rico.

Among the universities who participated in the program were
Interamerican University Ponce and Metro campus, University of
Puerto Rico, Polytechnic University of Puerto Rico, Sacred Heart
University, Holberton School, Zion Leadership Group, and the
non-profit organization Causa Local.

In terms of cumulative results, the GiveBack program has
impacted 35,815 individuals in the ten generations of P18 and
5 generations of prel8.

TALENT

— OO A ) —

Moreover, last year we revamped and launched our Talent
Program and we have great news to share. Our Talent database
accepts highly motivated undergrad students, as well as recent
graduates and freelancers from all disciplines who seek to
contribute their talent to the island’s ecosystem. This Talent App
is available to all the parallel18 alumni (350+ companies and
more than 549 entrepreneurs).

With the fresh look, more organized structure and giving the
ability to contact candidates directly through the app, now
we are able to accommodate the companies’ hiring needs by
providing a friendly, easy-to-use talent pool with interested
candidates. Last fiscal year we received more than seventy one
(71) new profiles to the database. Furthermore, four (4) startups
from both programs P18 Gen. X and pre18 Gen. 5 have used the
app and thirteen candidates were assessed.

OUR SUB PROGRAMS

parallel”

VENTURES

Parallel18 Ventures continues to strengthen its investment
portfolio by investing in promising companies committed to
Puerto Rico, constantly supporting our portfolio companies in
their growth, and solidifying our resources in regards of ventures
to our cohorts and alumni companies.

ENTREPRENEURSHIP
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Our program has invested $3.2M USD in sixty three (63)
companies of which four (4) companies have been acquired
(Listopro, Booksloth, Husky, and Transparent); three (3)
companies have raised a Series A (Boxpower, Outsite, and
Wisboo); three (3) companies have continued to raise capital
(Vozy, Live Green Co, and Agtools); and 81% of the companies
we have invested in are still active.

With the commitment to our portfolio, we deployed follow-on
investments in portfolio companies Vozy and Quiena Wealth
Management, and through our Matching Fund Gen.9, invested
$175K USD in Pryze, Rum Ratings, and Deaftwalk.

Furthermore, last year all P18 Gen. X startups received a
$25,000 USD investment (Abacrop, Channel, eSponsor,
Figuro, Lank, Red Atlas, Wihom), plus Puerto Rico’s startup Red
Atlas received a matching fund investment of $125,000 USD.

$3.2M n 63

invested companies

($125K\ $25K

Matching Fund invested in investment received by

Gen. X startups

Puerto Rican startup Red Atlas
. J -

Additionally, for Gen. X we changed our curriculum to a more
immersive experience. This began with one-on-one meetings
with all P18 companies at the beginning of the program to define
their fundraising strategy and was coupled with weekly venture
classes, bi-weekly investor reverse pitches, and the availability
of open office hours to discuss all things related to ventures.

All these efforts were finalized with our successful Demo
Day with investors visiting the event in person from the
United States and a strong presence of local investors and
collaborators. Doubling down on this opportunity of visiting
investors, we hosted a Venture Summit showcasing parallel18
alumni companies raising capital. This summit, sponsored by
Endeavor PR, included eighteen (18) companies pitching and
the attendance of thirty (30) companies, twenty (20) investors
in person, and twenty three (23) virtually. This event was a great
success and resulted in an investment by Rise of the Rest in a
local company and parallel18 alumni, Raincoat.



With this same momentum, Ventures added a strong presence
in our prel8 cohort by attending all introduction meetings,
offering open office hours every week, and hosting an investor
mixer with the support of the Puerto Rico Impact Network
and Endeavor PR. These efforts were not in vain with four (4)
companies from the cohort being in the process of raising capital
and one of our introductions leading to a $300k USD investment
in prel8 startup, Quibble. Similarly, pre18 Gen. 5 startups Cuvro
(previously Pop Insured) was invited to Lowenstein Sandler
event Venture Crush FGX to pitch their business.

Nonetheless, we identified that we could lever further our
impact in our startup community this year. For this reason, we
increased our efforts to engage our current network and expand
our reach in the local community.

For our investor network, we hosted two (2) How To Invest in
Startups virtual sessions with Angel Investor Orlando Saez and
local ecosystem leaders Evy Collazo from Grupo Guayacan,
Alejandra Jiménez from Unlock Capital, and Bettina Maestre
from Endeavor PR.

We also collaborated with CDVCA's Unlock Capital program
for their event series (7 events in total) supporting ecosystem
participants with speaker resources and investor/startup
attendance.

We alsolaunched our pilot Investor Education Program, a 6-week
curriculum covering nine (9) topics and two (2) investor events:
Gen. X Demo Day and a Venture Summit. Twenty-eight (28)
individuals participated in the program which showcased eleven
(11) speakers and discussed the following topics: Investing
101, PR Ecosystem Landscape, Investor Thesis, Due diligence,
Transaction Economics. Online Resources, Term Sheets, Cap
Tables and Exit Strategies.

Lastly, we launched our Ventures App which debuted during
our Ventures App which debutede during our Venture Summit
showcasing 24 open deals of parallel18 alumni companies
raising capital.

“J entures App
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The Live Green Co.

A Chilean food-tech startup that uses technology to address
the burning issues of FOOD SECURITY, HEALTH and CLIMATE
CHANGE. The Live Green Co. closed a $7 million USD Pre-Series
A round to advance its vision of easily developing clean-label
foods that do not contain additives, are produced sustainably,
are healthily formulated, and can be widely available.

Live Green Co. also partnered up with the multinational food
company Sigma, a food-tech startup created to offer alternative
food recipe solutions for third parties. Through the new
collaboration, the two startups will develop replacements for
common food additives.

Raincoat

Raincoat, a Puerto Rico-based startup that develops scalable
weather insurance solutions that enable the processing of
instant individual claims raised a $4.5 million seed round, led by
insurance technology investor Anthemis and investment group
SoftBank.

With this investment, Raincoat seeks to expand its services
worldwide, providing a solution for the more than three billion
people and 120 million businesses at risk of being affected by
natural disasters.

UXCAM

Uxcam is the single source of truth for mobile app users
providing session recordings to help companies understand
customer behavior on their mobile apps. Uxcam raised a $5
million USD Seed round led by Headline, the backer of analytics
giants Segment and SEMrush. Participants in the round include
Adjacent VC, Blinkist co-founder Tobias Balling & Sebastian
Schleicher, Staffbase co-founder Martin Bohringe, ex-CMO of
Contentful Chris Schangen, CEO at OwnBackup Sam Gutman,
co-founder/CEQ of Podimo Morten Strunge.

With this investment, Uxcam is one step closer to making every
app experience in the world a positive and effortless experience.
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RedAtlas

RED Atlas, a Puerto Rico-based startup, is Latin America’s
leader in Real Estate data, news, and insight. Using the power
of technology, Red Atlas connects real estate professionals
to accurate information on properties and property markets
helping them to make faster and smarter decisions.

Red Atlas, acquired Finco in addition to closing $1.2 million in
its seed round. Finco is a Colombian platform that appraises
real estate online, valuing square footage by area or price
appreciation over time, with an analytics algorithm developed
by its own team. The merger will consolidate Finco’s technology
allowing clientsin Puerto Rico and the United States to have more
accurate property valuations and enrich general information.

Agtools

Agtools, a Puerto Rico-based startup, is a worldwide SaaS
platform that gathers real-time government and institutional
data for over 500 specialty crops and commodities. A platform
built for agribusiness operators, this startup helps operators
make faster, more informed decisions that help them increase
profits and reduce food waste in their supply chain.

In 2022, Agtools successfully secured funding through a
Convertible Note, which began in December 2021 and concluded
inMay 2022, totaling $900,000 . Agtools was also one of Orange
Silicon Valley’s top 5 finalists on the Decarbonization Challenge!
The agrotech solution competed with 100 startups and made
it to the top! The Challenge builds on Orange’s commitment to
reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions on three scopes to reach
its goal of Net Zero Carbon by 2040. The challenge accelerates
the matchmaking process between startups, the Orange Group,
and the broader ecosystem of corporations and investors.

Leadsales

Leadsales, a Mexico-based startups and CRM for WhatsApp and
Social Networks that allows clients to manage all the leads in
funnels. Leadsales raised a $400,000 pre- Seed round led by Ulu
Ventures, one of the leading investment firms in Silicon Valley.

With the investment, Leadsales will strengthen the integrations
with WhatsApp, Facebook and Instagram as well as growing to
2,000 users facing the next round of seed surveys, planned for
2023. Leadsales offers solutions to their clients in 20 countries
of LATAM. Europe and Asia with an average monthly growth of
15%.

ENTREPRENEURSHIP
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Husky

Husky, astartup specializing ininternational transfers to facilitate
payments for Brazilians working abroad was acquired by Nomad,
a Fintech company that focuses on simplifying Brazilians’ access
to a global financial lifestyle. Apart from generating additional
revenue, Nomad'’s acquisition of Husky aims to enhance the
brand’s value proposition by expanding its business in terms of
payments and transfers from any country worldwide.

Husky is currently enjoying a favorable market trend due to the
rising demand for Brazilian professionals being hired by foreign
companies. Since its establishment in 2016, the company has
successfully facilitated international payments totaling R$2.7
billion.

Furthermore, it is on track to reach the RS3 billion milestone
within this year, representing a remarkable 300% growth
compared to the total volume processed by the remittance
facilitator thus far.



Sales Layer

Sales Layer, a startup specialized in digital Product Information
Management (PIM) solutions through its cloud-based catalog
management system, successfully closed a Series B funding
round worth €24 million. PeakSpan Capital, a US-based firm
with headquarters in New York and San Mateo, California, joined
as the lead investor in Sales Layer, providing a significant boost
to the company’s expansion in the Anglo-Saxon market and,
particularly, in the United States.

In recent years, Sales Layer has established itself as a market
leader in over 25 countries, ranking number one among users on
platforms like G2. It has also achieved partnerships with Google
Manufacturer, Amazon Vendor, BigCommerce, and Mercado
Libre.

parallel”

CONNECT

As a program, we aim for the growth of our startups, and
a highly effective approach to achieve this is by facilitating
connections with prominent local and international corporations
through our subprogram parallel18 Connect. By linking all the
parallel18 alumni with these companies, we provide them with
valuable business opportunities that allow them to establish a
strong presence on the island and expand their operations both
domestically and internationally. Collaborating with established
companies not only enhances the visibility and credibility of
our startups but also opens doors to potential partnerships,
investments, and market expansion.

Through these connections, startups can leverage the expertise,
resources, and market access of these larger enterprises to
accelerate their growth trajectory. It also focuses on providing
business connections to our startups while at the same helping
Puerto Rico’s corporate ecosystem innovate.

Parallel18 Connect has two (2) main objectives: match our
high impact startups with big local companies and provide our
Corporate Partners with the tools to spark innovative practices
into their DNA. Our mission is to foster true interactions between
corporations and startups. Through series of meetings and
events with decision-makers in top companies in Puerto Rico,
startups from our programs are introduced to possible business
opportunities to begin --or continue-- their journey to scale
outside their original markets.
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During 2022, parallel18 Connect, launched its “Industry
Meetups”, the first parallel1l8 Connect networking event
with the purpose of reactivating networking efforts between
students, alumni, mentors, corporate partners, investors and
the business ecosystem in general.

Parallel18 Industry Meetups, aims to foster meaningful
relationships and facilitate mutually beneficial collaborations.
These events also serve as platforms where startups can
showcase their innovative products, services, or ideas to
potential corporate partners who possess the resources,
expertise, and market reach to support their growth and success.

One hundred seventy two (172) people participated in these
events and 66% of the attendees reported new connections.
On the other hand, 100% of the attendees reported they made
between one to four connections. Furthermore, 58% of the
participants said the networking dynamic facilitates making new
connections.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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During P18 Gen. X, there were one hundred ten (110) unique
interactions, twenty six (26) meetings and three (3) deals were
closed. Among these connections we want to highlight the
following:

RedAtlas and Banco Popular:

Parallel18 Connect continues to support the startup Red Atlas
from P18 Gen. X in mediating an agreement with Banco Popular
de Puerto Rico to enhance the development of their platform.

Also, with prel8 Gen. 5, we accomplished seventy three (73)
business connections with startups and our corporate partners.
We are overseeing and following up on these new relations and
meetings and hopefully we will have agreements in the near
future.

Among these connections we want to stand out the following:

ShopperFix and MIDA (Camara de Mercadeo Industria y
Distribucion de Alimentos):

Parallel18 Connect primed conversations between ShopperFix
and MIDA, the leading association for food distributors in Puerto
Rico to integrate their end-to-end solutions to their members,
mostly supermarkets.

DIRECTOR’S POV

As | reflect on the parallel18
team’s tremendous efforts,
| take immense pride in the
achievements of this year's
results.  Parallel18’s  growth
as an innovation hub has been
remarkable, as it continues
surpassing previous estimates
and goals. We now look forward
to our future plans as we write
the chapter of our international
expansion, ensuring parallel18’s
impact both establishes
Puerto Rico as a center point
of innovation globally, while ensuring the impact travels with
no boundaries. Together, we will continue to drive innovation,
impact, and empower entrepreneurs, from Puerto Rico to the
world.

ENTREPRENEURSHIP

PARALLEL18 IN THE NEWS

The exposure in local and international media is very important to
us since this outreach helps us spread the word on our calls and
important announcements and also help us position parallel18 as
a top-level, performance-driven international innovation hub that
provides support to founders all over the globe.

Last year parallell8 reached a non-paid publicity value of
$581,415.65 with a total of 978,844 impressions in local and
international media.

Entrepreneur

EN ESPANOL
Parallel18, el programa que esta
formando startups resilientes para
afrontar las adversidades

Tras un 2022 dificil y retador, el ecosisterna de emprendimiento stinoamericano cuenta con
varias ofganizaciones que apuestan por continuar desarroliando e potencial de la region,
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Empresas egresadas de Parallel18 han
reportado $212.5 millones en ingresos

Este es uno de los resultados informados ayer por la aceleradara, al divulgar su mas reciente informe de impacto
para el afio 2021
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In June 2023 we welcomed Gen. 11!

In May 2023, parallel18 opened calls for the P18 Gen. 11.
Nineteen (19) startups were selected from over 275 applications
through a rigorous selection process made up of judges and a
selection committee of men and women of various nationalities.
On this occasion, the companies will receive an economic
contribution of $60,000 which will be divided into two parts.
The first part will be a $40,000 equity-free grant and the second
part will be a $20,000 investment through a Simple Agreement
for Future Equity (SAFE).

Ten (10) countries are represented in this cohort. Three (3) of the
selected companies are from Puerto Rico and past generations
of parallell8's pre-acceleration program, prel8, which
demonstrates the maturity and preparation of the companies
with a more competitive and aggressive mindset for the market.
The program also selected companies from the United States
(4), México (5), Colombia (1), Argentina (2), Chile (1), Dominican
Republic (1), Brazil (1), Uruguay (1), and Perti (1).

The selected companies offer innovative solutions in industries
such as education, FinTech, health and medical devices,
e-commerce, real estate and construction, Insurtech, consumer
goods, energy and cleantech, productivity software, and
enterprise SaaS (software as a service).

The program will begin June 26 and will be in-person.
International startups must move to the island for 20 weeks and
demonstrate their commitment to the economic development
of Puerto Rico.

Parallel18 has established two principal programs (prel8 and
P18), with the expectations of continually increasing the quality
and impact of the entrepreneurial ecosystem in Puerto Rico. Our
focus is to add more depth, to an already globally recognized
program, in our offerings to our participants, alumni, and
community stakeholders.

Our team keeps adapting and acting quickly to offer more
resources, connections and mentors to all startup founders
to help them continue to develop and grow. The parallel18
team is still adjusting to the times and finding ways to impact
underrepresented entrepreneurs in their goal of creating high-
impact businesses.
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As the goal is to continue positioning parallel18 and Puerto
Rico as a hub for global collaboration and innovation, our value
proposition continues to evolve to attract, foster and accelerate
startups in Puerto Rico and internationally in a complex
panorama. For that matter, we look forward to expanding
our efforts in unattended gaps in the ecosystem, developing
tools to assist our alumni, provide on-time connections and
resources to our community, and deliver a world-class program
to parallel18 founders.

We are excited to announce that for the next generation of
Xpand, the Puerto Rico Science Technology and Research Trust
will provide a $100,000 seed capital investment to outstanding
companies participating in the program. This investment will be
distributed among up to three participating companies. The
third generation of Xpand is expected to start in August 2023.

The parallel18 Ventures team continues to scale these new
initiatives and add partner organization to strengthen our
resources for our founders. We will continue evolving parallel18
Ventures based on the capital needs of our entrepreneurs, while
positioning venture capital as an accessible and validated asset
class for potential investors in Puerto Rico.

Parallel18 Ventures is looking forward to being an ecosystem
collaborator in both bringing international access to capital for
our founders and also having an international presence.

Last, butnotleast, parallel18willbe
launching parallel18: El Podcast,
a podcast to inspire, educate and
accelerate entrepreneurial minds.
The objective is to give a voice to
the entrepreneurial ecosystem in
Puerto Rico. Stay tuned for the
episodes!

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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SBIR/STTR
Federal Grants
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SBIR | STTR FEDERAL
GRANTS

To support scientific excellence and technological innovation
through the investment of Federal research funds in critical
American priorities to build a strong national economy.

Making the Trust’s SBIR program an economic engine in the
economy of Puerto Rico while becoming a model in the USA
by creating and enhancing small businesses while creating
high-paying jobs in the technology sector. The retention of
locally educated talent.

We support small businesses/researchers/individuals with the
development of competitive proposals and contribute to the
Puerto Rico economy.

To support scientific excellence, technological innovation,
research and development, and the commercialization of their
outcomes the SBIR program provides technical and commer-
cialization expert advice while collaborating with potential
candidates for them to better understand the program, the
Trust’s support, and how to develop a competitive proposal.
The competitive proposal development emphasizes, besides
putting their innovation in the best light, the education of
applying teams on the commercial viability risks associated
with new technologies. Participants are also assisted in the
submission of competitive proposals to the SBIR program in all
agencies

The SBIR program is a founding member of the Puerto Rico SBIR
Coordinating Committee with members from organizations
across Puerto Rico. The SBIR program and several Trust
programs (P18, Colmena66, Research Grants Program, Fase
1, TTO) encourage Puerto Rico small businesses, the academic
sector professors, researchers, and students to overcome a
lack of awareness and trepidation about the SBIR program.
Other supporting organizations are SBTDC, SBA, incubators,
and DDEC, to name a few.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



SUMMARY

In FY23, the SBIR/STTR Program, hereinafter SBIR engaged with
candidates it connected with through the program'’s email address (sbir@
prsciencetrust.org), presentations, and the SBIR course on the Trust
webpage. The following Trust organizations have provided referrals
from their work with their communities: Parallel18, Colmena66, Grants
Program, and TTO. The outreach activities were webinars, virtual and
in person, by the Program Director, as well as members of the other
collaborating organizations. The team is committed to responding to all
inquiries within 48 hours.

These activities and collaboration generated 93 potential candidates.
The results from these FY23 activities produced four (4) awards, Table 1,
shows these awards contributed a total of $3,155,995 to the Puerto Rico
economy. The Trust provided matching funds totaling $600,000, increa-
sing the total contribution to the Puerto Rico economy to $3,755,995.

PR-BASED

AWARD MATCHING SBIR/STTR TOTAL

SBIR/STTR AGENCY PHASE

AWARDEES DATE FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
LifeGene NIH 7/15/2022 $200,000 $2,000,000 2 $2,200,000
SIL Techno- NIH 8/23/2022 $100,000 $150,000 1 $250,000
logies
InsuHealth NSF 9/20/2022 $100,000 $256,000 1 $356,000
Ensemble NSF 9/21/2022 $200,000 $749,995 2 $949,995
Consultants

NUMBER OF 4 $600,000 $3,155,995 $3,755,995

AWARDS

Table 1. Of the four awards, one was a first-time Phase | awardee, while
the other three have received at least three awards. Of the two companies
winning Phase Il awards, one was Fast Track, one NIH and the other NASA,
and the other a direct to-Phase Il award. These two award types are very
competitive with low success rates showing the quality of the research
conducted and the quality of the proposals submitted from Puerto Rico.

The major program achievement is the number of awards, four (4), and
continuing at least one award every fiscal year since the Trust assumed
leadership of the SBIR program in Puerto Rico. The goal for FY24 is to
increase the number of SBIR/STTR awards from four (&) to at least six (6).

P mawaros  sszeawaros NS O ECOMONY
FY16 1 $150,000 $300,000 $450,001
FY17 3 $673,000 $400,000 $1,073,003
FY18 4 $895,549 $400,000 $1,295,553
FY19 5 $2,113,241 $800,000 $2,913,246
FY20 6 $3,466,362 $149,998 $3,616,366
FY21 2 $274,998 $400,000 $675,000
FY22 4 $1,580,165 $200,000 $1,780,169
FY23 4 $3,612,495 $500,000 $4,112,499

29 $12,765,810 $3,149,998 $15,915,837
AVERAGE 3.6 $1,989,480 $393,750 $1,989,480
ENTREPRENEURSHIP 114
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NEW SUPPORT
ORGANIZATIONS

e X+ V‘HFENHWEH

In our efforts to have more access to agency programs
and Program Directors, we have added two support or-
ganizations, ICFNEXT and DEFENSEWERX

ICEFNEXT has contracts with several SBIR-supporting
federal agencies. It provides access to Program Direc-
tors at NIH-NCI, USDA, and DOD.

DEFENSEWERX is a 501 (c)(3) organization
headquartered in Niceville, FL that enables agile
innovation for their government partners through
innovation hubs across the country. It provides support
in developing requests to the DOD for SBIR and projects
in the millions of dollars. They cultivate ecosystems
that enable the acceleration of innovative solutions to
benefit the warfighter and the nation. Their vision is to
be a valued partner that creates innovative solutions to
provide our nation with a competitive advantage.

WE ACTIVELY PARTICIPATE IN
WEBINARS AND EVENTS IN PUERTO
RICO AND THE MAINLAND

m SBIR-SBA Office of Innovation and Technology
Leadership presentations and webinars, Wyoming
SBDC's program, the University of Montana, and
others.

m Our SBIR Coordinating Committee led by the Trust
meets every three months with members from
SBIR participating and interested organizations in
Puerto Rico.

THE COMMITTEE WILL CONSIDER:

m  Membership for STEM/Business graduate and
undergraduate students to support the recruiting of
academic candidates.

m Creation of an Advisory Board to help with outreach,
partnerships, and program improvements.

m Increase SBIR Puerto Rico awareness through newspaper
articles and interviews.

m Reach out to the diaspora to search for innovative
technologies and support.

m  Work with organizations in the mainland and Latin
America to bring their innovations to Puerto Rico.

m Follow up on those that are companies/individuals
considered Dormant.




DIRECTOR’S P.O.V.

The Trust’s programs are a key element
in what we have accomplished this and
in previous years with their support in
sharing information and providing re-
ferrals. This collaboration shows the
SBIR program as one of the key con-
tributors to the Puerto Rico economy
and its well-being.

Developing an SBIR/STTR proposal
is a long process of frequent
communications, concept refinements,
and proposal edits. After contact is
made, we start working on the innovations and project
concepts, but the time between the initial contact and the
last contact can go from a few weeks to several months,
sometimes years. This occurs due to issues such as not
having a clear enough understanding of the technology
innovation, late submissions, and/or missed deadlines. In
addition, competitive proposal development for experienced
SBIR proposal writers could take up to a couple of weeks
while first and second submissions teams could take a month
or two depending on the time to respond to the proposal
development team edits and suggestions. A reason for the
long time between first contact is their time availability while
they are conducting company business. Lastly, they conclude
SBIR is not a good funding avenue for their company.

Juan Figueroa
Program Director

Toincrease the number of SBIR awards the team will enhance
working relationships with universities, professional and
technology associations, and small businesses to have access
to submissions candidates. When possible, we will enter
memoranda of understanding (MOU) to provide formality to
the relationships.

The first such formalization of relationships towards
increasing the number of awards SBIR with the targeted
organizations is an MOU signed with the Autonomous
University of Queretaro in Mexico. The goal is to bring
innovations, companies, and entrepreneurs to Puerto Rico
for the main purpose of opening companies in Puerto Rico
and applying for SBIRs.
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ABOUT THE UNIVERSITY OF
QUERETARO

The Autonomous University of Querétaro is a Mexican
public university based in the city of Santiago de Querétaro,
Querétaro, with campuses around the state. It is the largest
and most important university in both the state and the city of
Querétaro.

Mexico’s Querétaro state has become the new data center
hotspot in Latin America and is on the way to becoming the hub
for Industry 4.0 in the region. The state harbors the Mexican
operations of, among others, Bombardier, VUHL, GE Aviation,
and Continental, as wellas IBM, Ericsson, Huawei, and Samsung.
In a report last year, KPMG named Querétaro the top state for
foreign investment in Mexico, whereas S&P Global made it the
first state in the country to obtain an investment grade rating.
The second MOU of FY23 was with the Larta Institute (Larta).

ABOUT LARTA

Larta’s mission is to foster science & technology innovation for
a sustainable planet. It is a non-profit organization accelerating
entrepreneurship & innovation. Since 1993, they have helped
over 6,875 startups translate their ideas into sustainable enter-
prises — our alumni have raised over $7 billion in funds.

Larta Institute provides access to the Technical and Business
Assistance (TABA) program. TABA provides SBIR/STTR Phase
| and Phase Il applicants additional funding within their appli-
cations for technical and business assistance which includes
services like intellectual property support, customer discovery,
market assessment, and development of business strategies
and manufacturing plans. Phase | awardees will receive $6.5K
while Phase Il awardees will receive $8.5K to cover this service.

Larta and the Trust will conduct a TABA webinar before the end
of the CY24 for our community in Puerto Rico on the ways this
program will help with the development of commercialization
plans and how to take a concept to market. The most significant
goal is to hopefully take away the fear of commercialization for
those for whom this is an impediment.

PROGRAM TEAM

Juan Figueroa, Ph D

Program Director

Valentina Pirazzi

Project Manager

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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) Puerto Rico
Public Health Trust

PROGRAM INTRODUCTION

The Puerto Rico Public Health Trust (PRPHT), a Public Health
Institute, has been in service since 2019. Since then, PRPHT
has launched over 20 projects and initiatives in public health to
promote evidence-based public health practices, increase access
to health programs, promote developments that impact health
outcomes and reduce inequalities in the communities of Puerto
Rico.

Our Mission

To serve as a trusted ally working with public and
private partners to identify and execute communi-
ty led, evidence-based solutions.

Our Vision

To achieve sustainable health in Puerto Rican com-
munities and improve their quality of life through
innovation, collaboration and community partici-
pation.
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HOW WEDO IT

At the PRPHT, our values of collaboration, equity, excellence,
inclusion, innovation, integrity, respect and social justice drive
our work. These values guide our efforts to ensure we maintain
and establish strategic alliances and partnerships to achieve our
objectives. We use knowledge, research, technology and data to
drive innovative initiatives. Through a strong network of com-
munity leaders, we center the needs of our communities to in-
crease health promotion and preparedness. We provide training
and education for health professionals and community members
and leaders to build capacity in chronic disease management,
emergency and climate change preparedness, telehealth, com-
munity organizing, behavioral health and social determinants of
health.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



The public health institute was created in collaboration with go-
vernment agencies, communities, local and international health
institutions and academia. We, have developed and implemen-
ted comprehensive projects and initiatives with the Puerto Rico
Department of Health (PRDoH), non-governmental organiza-
tions, federally qualified health centers and community-based

't_
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organizations. We also provide internships to students from the
public health academic institutions in Puerto Rico and the United
States. Since 2019, we are a recognized member of the Natio-
nal Network of Public Health Institutes, providing opportunities
to collaborate with other sister institutes across the nation. Our
main connection is with our communities and their leaders, to
identify their resources and needs, and provide the necessary
support to increase the health and well-being of Puerto Rico




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This past year marked a clear transition from a life full of
restrictive safety measures and physical distance, to what
we could call “a new normal.” As a public health institute, we
also transitioned and evolved to address the new needs of a
population recovering from the hardest public health emergency
of our generation. We continued to grow, securing $2.97 million
in additional funding, developing six (6) new projects and hiring
35 new full-time positions and contractors.

In the beginning of this fiscal year, we continued supporting
COVID-19 efforts, including the distribution of 23,000
COVID-19 homes tests. After hurricane Fiona, our team
responded immediately by distributing educational material,
COVID-19 tests, face masks, food, among other necessities,
in collaboration with the Puerto Rico Department of Health
(PRDoH) and community-based organizations. Our Community
Health Workers (CHWs) were vital in the response by connecting
people in need to social and medical services. Through our
CHW capacity building projects, we have trained 55 CHWs,
reached over 25,000 individuals and completed 1,479
referrals to connect community members to social and health
services. Furthermore, we developed an inclusive emergency
preparedness plan for people living with chronic diseases and
disabilities. This project provided the experience of creating
tools taking into consideration the needs of diverse communities
in our archipelago that are often forgotten.

Our Telemedicine projects have provided telemedicine and tele-
conferencing equipment, capacity building trainings and technical
assistance, through 377 in-person visits, to 192 nursing homes
and 37 community clinics. The team trained 464 individuals and
developed 42 training tools to enhance telemedicine and tele-
mentoring for improved health outcomes. We also implemented
four ECHO Series using the “all teach all learn” approach and have
reached over 294 participants in our rural spoke sites to provide
specialized training in the management of chronic diseases,
diabetes, use of telemedicine and substance abuse disorders to
improve care in rural and vulnerable communities.

This year we created a new division on Social Epidemiology to
increase awareness and build capacity on equity and social
determinants of health. During its first year, the team has already
developed one educational module, questionnaires focus on
Hispanics health, and have coordinated multiple trainings and
seminars reaching over 250 health professionals. They also
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coordinated a 15-hour virtual course: “Building Power for Health
Equity in our Communities” for public health professionals and
students as part of a systemic effort to address inequities.

As we end the emergency and recover from the mental and
emotional challenges left by the pandemic and multiple natural
disasters, we are now moving forward stronger and with a better
sense of community. Our plans for this new yearinclude continued
support for CHWs initiatives, with a focus on the CHWs coalition
to increase recognition of this group of people that continuously
care for their communities. We also started a new project that will
support public health workforce development and infrastructure
in Puerto Rico and the US Virgin Islands. Lastly, we will increase
our focus on environmental health and climate change as part
of two new projects. One will develop strategies for resilience
against drought for 12 community owned and operated small
water systems and the second will focus on building resilience
against climate change effects on health.

We thank all our collaborators and employees for their support
and trust during this year. Particularly, we acknowledge the
support of Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC),
Medtronic Foundation, US Department of Agriculture (USDA),
Human Resources and Services Agency (HRSA), Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA), National Network for Public Health
Institutes (NNPHI), Fundacion Angel Ramos, Fundacion RIMAS,
Public Health Management Corporation (PHMC), Puerto Rico
Fiscal Agency and Financial Advisory Authority (PRFAFAA),
and PRDoH for their economic support and commitment to the
people of Puerto Rico and their public health.

““We are committed to
improving the quality of life
of Puerto Ricans by
increasing access to
health services, education,
innovative technology, and
knowledge of what drives
health in our communities.”

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
NUMBERS
$2.97M 35 | 102
New Funding New Employees Resources

and Contractors Developed

832 | . :
Outreach and
Educational Activities 2 O 2 ) 000

_ | Posters and Oral | |Emergency Plans
1,479

Presentations Distributed
Social and Health Referrals

| 1,47
2 3 ,000 Educationagl

COVID-19 Tests Distributed Materials Distributed
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REPO RT COVID-19 and Hurricane Fiona

In August and September of 2022, the community engage-

TH IS YEAR'S ACH I EVEM ENTS ment group and CHWs distributed over 23,000 COVID-19

at home tests to communities not previously reached by
id iden’s at h initiative. Th
FOR THE PUERTO RICO orovided by the PRDoH and menitored using our nternl
PU B LI c H E B LTH TRU ST dashboards to geolocalized the communities reached.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT DIVISION After hurricane Fiona, the community engagement team

_ o _ _ B moved across the affected communities to bring assis-
The Community Engagement Division plays a crucial role in facilita-  +5nce to 31 communities among 11 municipalities. This

ting communication, collaboration, and active involvement of the - | ded the distribution of over 400 solar lamps donated

community in public health initiatives. Our work aims to build strong by LuminAID and 100 insulin storage kits from the PRDoH
relationships, trust and collaboration between the Public Health  pijpetes Prevention Program, 2,700 COVID-19 home

Trust and the communities we serve by actively engaging community
leaders and members. This collaborative approach strengthens public itk the Trust’s IT team. the Community engagement

health initiatives, promotes health equity, creates a sense of owners- 1.0 created a dashboard of the community needs. See

hip, and actively empowers communities to improve their health and our newsletter for more details: https://bit.ly/3URWOSX.
well-being.

tests, among other first necessity items. In collaboration

Fig. 1. Dashboard of the Hurricane Fiona community needs assessment.
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RADx-UP with Yale University

In 2021, in partnership with Yale University, we locally lead the
Rapid Acceleration of Diagnostics - Underserved Populations
(RADx-UP) project. This entailed a study involving periodic
COVID-19 testing, initiatives to increase testing capacity, and a
community census in Parcelas Sudrez. Throughout the study, we
were able to closely examine the COVID-19 effects of various
factors on these communities and provide valuable insight into
their social determinants of health.

The research concluded on May 31, 2023 and mostly focused on
three specific communities in Loiza: La 23, Parcelas Suarez y El
Ceiba. Other communities also reached were Mifi Mini, Jardines
de Loiza, and Loiza Gardens Apartments. At the end of the study,
we had 221 enrolled participants.

Our participants benefited from constant monitoring of the
impacts of COVID-19 during the study. COVID- 19 safety
guides (translated into Spanish) and health educational material
(newsletters) on chronic health conditions and COVID-19 were
provided throughout the communities. The project also provided
economic incentives that were instrumental for maintaining
participation and retention throughout the study.

A compelling 15-minute documentary titled “Overcoming the
COVID-19 Testing Social and Ethical Challenges in Underserved
Communities in Loiza, Puerto Rico: a RADxUP Initiative” was
produced. The documentary features the dedicated staff of
the PRPHT, discussing the significance of the study, as well as
community leaders who shared their personal stories about the
social and ethical challenges surrounding COVID-19 testing.
The film was submitted to APHA Public Health Film Festival to
showcase the remarkable community engagement and outreach
efforts in Public Health during this project.

PUBLIC HEALTH
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jPonte al dia! funded by PRDoH

In January, we received a grant from the Health Equity Program
of the PRDoH to create the jPonte al dia! Project. This project
uses an intergenerational approach that seeks to increase health
literacy and digital literacy among older adults in Naguabo. With
this purpose, we recruited young community health promoters
(PSCJ, by its Spanish acronym) to support the project. To train
the PSCJ, we developed two curricula: 1) Digital Literacy in Older
Adults and 2) Health Literacy in the Older Adult Population. We
conducted 12 training sessions between April and May.

To promote the project and encourage the recruitment of older
adults, we participated in healthfairs, workshops, and communi-
ty meetings in various communities of Naguabo (Figure 2). For
the recruitment process, four data collection and three consent
and authorization instruments were created.

Lo i

Figure 2. Project team promoting the project among participants in
community events in Naguabo.
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Health Promotion: Literacy on COVID-19

Vaccination and Behavioral Health

This project was created through a grant from PRFAFAA
to work with COVID-19 and behavioral health issues in the
municipality of Loiza. The project consists of three components:
1) Rumor Tracker project and development of Community Health

PR PN,

L

Fideicomiso de Salud
Piiblica de Puerto Rico

Figure 3. Some of the stickers used for our mental health campaign in
social media.
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Ambassadors (CHAs), 2) Project ECHO for teachers and school
personnel, 3) complex trauma books for children.

Six CHAs were recruited to collect rumors related to COVID-19
in their communities in Loiza. They also conducted various
educational activities, including talks, art activities, and handing
out educational materials.

We conducted interactive learning sessions, also referred to as
ECHO educational series, for school personnel: Let’s talk about
COVID-19 and mental healthin schools. Experts discussed issues
related to self-care, misinformation, long COVID-19, educational
strategies after the COVID-19 pandemic, and emotional
education, among other relevant topics. We conducted four
90-minute sessions.

We also launched a behavioral health campaign on PRPHT’s social
media platforms. The campaign revolves around eight sticker
designs with mental health phrases developed by the project
team (Figure 3). We printed 3,040 stickers to be distributed
by the CHAs as part of the project. In collaboration with “Japi
Clinic,” we recorded short capsules explaining the importance of
these phrases and/or the steps to achieve what is expressed on
each sticker.

Ln programa del

©
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Fundacion Rimas

In May, supported by Fundacién Rimas, a project to establish
youth groups in vulnerable communities was launched in the
community of Playita, San Juan, where the Foundation holds its
sports clinics. This project seeks to involve youth in communi-
ty leadership through workshops on participation, photovoice,
community data collection, and leadership, integrating sports
and arts. We were able to successfully involve and retain the par-
ticipation of 30 children and adolescents in the project. Their ac-
tive participation has been instrumental in shaping the activities
and providing valuable insights into their needs and aspirations.

From May to June, we organized a series of nine community in-
terventions with the participants. These workshops included to-
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pics on community roles, decision-making, managing emotions,
Photo-Voice, and photography. Through these community role
workshops, we aimed to empower the children and adolescents
of the community and enable them to explore their own poten-
tial while developing vital life skills.

One of the highlights of the project was the voice photogra-
phy workshop. This activity allowed the participants to ex-
press their perspectives and capture their community through
their lens. The photos taken by the children were presented
in a community photographic exhibition with reflective narra-
tives that sought out solutions for the overall health of their
community (Figure 4).

Figure 4: Collaboration with Funda-
cion Rimas in a baseball clinic (right)
and the exhibition “Playita a través
de mi ojos” featuring the photos
taken by the Playita children (left).
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Community Health Workers Capacity Building

In 2019, we were funded by the Medtronic Foundation
to strengthen the capacity of Community Health Workers
(CHWSs) in six municipalities of Puerto Rico. The main objec-
tive is to improve health and resiliency of the elderly and in-
dividuals with chronic diseases by connecting them to opti-
mal health care and community services. In partnership with
four Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) (NeoMed,
COSSMA, MedCentro and HealthProMed) and one communi-
ty-based organization (Taller Salud), 19 CHWs in the six tar-
get municipalities (Catafo, Humacao, Juncos, Loiza, Ponce &
Villalba) were recruited and trained. They facilitate patients’
access and connection with their healthcare teams or social
services coordinators at the participating health clinics. Since
its inception, the project has reached over 20,000 commu-
nity members and continuously supported 1,241 patients in
the management of their health conditions.

On April 28th, 2023, we launched the Emergency Preparedness
Plan (EPP) for people living with chronic conditions to serve as
a guide to complete their personal and family emergency plan
in detail. This is a unique plan developed to be interactive and
inclusive for everyone, particularly for those with functional di-
versity and medically vulnerable. It was created in collaboration
with organizations such as “Movimiento para el Alcance de Vida
Independiente” (MAVI) and Advancement in Sign Language Edu-
cation & Services (ASLES) to ensure access to individuals with
disabilities. The plan is adapted to five (5) formats that include:
digital, printed, accessible digital document for the benefit of
blind people, audio and audiovisual; comprising sign language,
English subtitles, and descriptive audio. In addition, an online
tool was developed to help CHWs, patients, and the general
community to locate the shelter and health center closest to
their home (https://saludcomunitaria.prpht.org).

The EPP also has a community and educational component as it
is being distributed/presented to participating community mem-
bers by our CHWs. They were trained in the use and completion
of the plan and received 2,000 emergency plans and backpacks
to be distributed in their communities.

A short film was developed for the APHA Public Health Film Fes-
tival Short Films and submitted on May 31, 2023. The film is
titled: “Visibilizing community health workers in clinical health
centers and community organizations: The Puerto Rico experien-
ce”. This features how CHWSs accompanied community members
to help them adhere to their treatments, connect them with so-
cial services, and develop their emergency preparedness plans.
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Community Health Worker Project

- funded by CDC

Building on the CHW project, funded by Medtronic Foundation,
CDC provided resources to continue building capacity for CHWs,
particularly after the events of the COVID-19 pandemic. The objec-
tive of this project is to provide training and increase participation
of CHWs in our communities and reach additional municipalities
across the archipelago. In turn, the CHWs provide and strengthen
the first line of response to COVID-19, and other future public heal-
th emergencies, and contribute to prevent chronic diseases. During
this year, we recruited and trained 18 CHWs in 14 municipalities of
Puerto Rico (Figure 5).

Figure 5: Map of the municipalities where CHWs have been deployed.
Most municipalities have one CHW while the ones with the number two
in the black circle represent those with two CHWs.

As part of the efforts to integrate CHWs into health and social
services organizations, four contractual agreements were signed
with the following entities: Centro Dotal of the University of
Puerto Rico-Medical Science Campus (Loiza), Acueducto Buenos
Aires (Caguas), Migrant Health, Western Region, and the munici-
palities of Aibonito and Coamo. We are in the process of signing
contracts with four FQHCs that will host CHWs within their faci-
lities. Through these contracts, we expect to hire 12 additional
CHWs in the clinical setting. We also signed an agreement with
the PRDoH to deploy eight CHWs in their Centers for Diagnosis
and Treatment (CDT).

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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This project also has a goal of contributing to the public policy
related to CHWs certification and recognition in Puerto Rico. For
that reason, we created the CHW Coalition. This year we hosted
three (3) meetings with over 40 participants in each that inclu-
ded representation from chronic disease associations, FQHCs,
academia, PRDoH, CHWs, among others (Figure 6).
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Figure 6. Participants in the 3rd CHW Coalition Meeting

Despite the low rate of COVID-19 vaccinations throughout the
archipelago, during this reporting period, we have coordinated
or supported 11 vaccination drives that have resulted in 141
people being vaccinated with the Bivalent.

As part of our efforts to link our communities with health servi-
ces and address the social determinants of health, our staff has
processed 647 referrals. These referrals were mainly related to
primary health care and food services. A total of 132 activities
were carried out by the CHWs under this project in the last few
months. Most of these activities were the distribution of edu-
cational materials, workshops, and oral presentations/confe-
rences. Reports show that a total of 3,735 people were reached
through these activities (Table 4).
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Activities Carried Out by
CDC-CHWs and Reach

Activities Total

Presentations and conferences 25
Distribution of Educational Materials | 30
Distribution of food 4
Interview/Surveys

Health Fairs 3
Educational venues 17
Workshops 28
House to house visits 7
Others 10
Total Activities 132
Persons reached 3,735

In May, we had the opportunity to award the Community Health
Workers Certification to the first group, composed of 18 parti-
cipants in collaboration with PR Ready. This certification culmi-
nated on May 17, 2023. As a result of the certification, most
participants presented posters about the projects they wanted
to implement in their communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION

The Environmental Health Division aims to provide environmen-
tal research, resources, education, evidence-based training and
technical assistance. The purpose is to improve health, develop
strategies and help communities to prepare for health impacts
from climate change and for the impact of emergencies and di-
sasters in rural and underserved communities.

Telemedicine for Nursing Homes

This initiative aims to provide telemedicine equipment and tra-
ining to facilitate access to medical services in homes for the
elderly to improve their quality and access to healthcare during
times of emergencies, disasters, or pandemics. The telemedici-
ne equipment will facilitate communication with the doctor, as
well as provide equivalent services and physical examinations
that are provided in a face-to-face visit. The project utilizes the
TytoCare™ equipment designed to perform a complete medical
physical exam in a safe and cost-effective manner which inclu-
des TytoCare device, stethoscope adapter, otoscope and tongue
depressor, reusable accessories, iPad and stand, headphones,
blood pressure equipment and pulse oximeter. This equipment
is provided free of charge to homes for the elderly and includes
training and technical assistance for staff and doctors on the
use of the equipment. We have achieved 192 (Figure 6) of the
200-goal telemedicine equipment to deliver to Nursing Homes
around Puerto Rico and provide training in the use and operation
of the equipment to the home staff (Figure 7). In the past year
we have visited 262 nursing homes to provide “over the shoul-
der” technical support and training. We use an ARC GIS dash-
board to track the location of the equipment and the quality of
the training visit. Staff conducting the visit record the purpose
of the visit, whether the purpose was achieved, staff trained,
photos, and nursing homes staff who attended the visit can fill  Figure 8. Delivery visit of telemedicine equipment and training on its use
out a satisfaction survey and provide comments. and operation at Nursing Homes and organizations that care for the el-
derly and rural clinics.

Figure 7: Map indicating the location of the 192-telemedicine equip- |
ment provided to nursing homes.
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USDA Telemedicine Distance
Learning Grants (TDL)

This project aims to increase access to health services by provi-
ding telemedicine equipment and tele-conferencing equipment
to rural clinics in Puerto Rico. Supported by a USDA grant we
have distributed 37 telemedicine units to rural community cli-
nics around the archipelago (Figure 8) and have provided trai-
ning on the use of the equipment to health professionals at each
participating clinic (Figure 9). This year we identified the need
for additional training and resources for the clinics to maximi-
ze the use of the equipment. A needs assessment was conduc-
ted to determine training needs and four training modules were
developed: 1) Data integration for clinics using the Global Med
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telemedicine platform, 2) Management of Chronic Diseases with
Telemedicine, 3) Telemedicine in Rural Areas and 4) Telemedicine
and Mental Health.

Figure 9: Map showing the location of the 37-telemedicine equipment
provided to rural clinics.

Telemedicine Technology
Enabled Learning Project

This tele-mentoring initiative is funded by the Human Resources
and Services Administration (HRSA) to provide training and build
capacity among primary care physicians on chronic diseases and
other key conditions. The project uses the ECHO methodology
that includes short lectures and discussion of cases to promote
an interactive learning experience where “all teach, all learn”.
This year the team coordinated and offered four ECHO series:
(1) Opioids Addition (five sessions), (2) Management of Chronic
Conditions at the Primary Level (11 sessions), (3) Adapting
Telemedicine to the Needs of Nursing Homes for the Elderly
(six sessions) and (4) Diabetes Mellitus (10 sessions of 20).
The first two series were offered in collaboration with Central
Caribbean University, the one on telemedicine was developed by
our internal team of telemedicine staff and the last one is being
offered by Dr. Angel Comulada of ProHealth Clinical Services
of Bayamdn. A total of 294 participants have attended these
sessions to improve community health outcomes.

Tipos de
examenes

!

Figure 10. Educational Series: Adapting Telemedicine to the needs of
Nursing Home.
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In addition to the ECHO series, a webinar on telemedicine billing
was offered in collaboration with the Centers for Medicare
& Medicaid Services (CMS) and First Coast Service Option.
This event had a participation of 81 physicians and medical
administrators.

The team also developed or identified 92 supporting materials
to promote evidence-based practice for the ECHO Sessions, on
how to use the telemedicine equipment including user guides
for nursing homes, clinic staff, and physicians on the use of the
TytoCloud telemedicine platform (Figure 10). We also developed
a directory of providers of telemedicine services and already
have 110 physicians registered.

Fideicamisa de Saluwd
Publica de Puerto Riko
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Proyecta de Telemedicina
para Adultos Mayores

GUIA DE USUARIO:
Plataforma de
telemedicina para
médicos en hogares
de adultos mayores
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Certificate in Community
Leadership in Telemedicine

In collaboration with PR Ready (a project of the STEM and
Workforce Development Program), we developed the Certificate
in Community Leadership in Telemedicine. The main goal was
to develop skills and knowledge in the use and management
of emerging technologies in telehealth and telemedicine. The
instructional design covered 9 general thematic areas, which
included the development of 21 specific courses where the
presentation of theoretical concepts was balanced with case
presentations, exercises, and group dynamics within the real
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applied context of telehealth and telemedicine according to the
personal and professionalinterests expressed by the participants.
The individual final project was the conceptualization of a
business model which included the elaboration of a CANVAS
model. Each participant had the opportunity to elaborate a
unique idea for a social and/or commercial entrepreneurship
to apply within their own communities using telehealth and
telemedicine technologies. In the end, the participants had
the experience of being at an in-person event to help train the
nursing homes in the use of the equipment, and some had the
opportunity to visit nursing homes and clinics.

Community- based research on drinking
water aqueducts in Puerto Rico

This year we received a grant from the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) to conduct community-based participatory
research on healthimpacts on water security from climate change
in twelve rural non-prasa communities of Puerto Rico. Leslie
Maas Cortés is Principal Investigator, with co-Investigators Dr.
Graciela Ramirez (Inter Americana University-IAUPR), Dr. Jared
Bowden and Dr. Jay Levine (North Carolina State University).

ANon-PRASA aqueductlist was obtained from EPA database, and
it was narrowed down from 233 to 80 aqueducts, including just
the superficial aqueducts. For each aqueduct, the temperature
and precipitation data were collected from the National Oceanic
and Atmospheric (NOAA). Of the 80 aqueduct’s, 47 leaders
have been contacted to get information about the water intake
distance and their organization status. This information was
organized and verified for quality assurance and then added to
a GIS map to visualize the specific locations and the elevation
for each aqueduct (Figure 11). This data is expected to be used
during the selection process of the 12 participating communities.
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As part of the community engagement activities, our team
has participated in community visits and educational events
and (Figure 12) related to the community aqueducts including
the event “Didlogos Femeninos del Agua,” to discuss with the
challenges of community aqueducts female leaders and another
event on aqueducts preparation for the hurricane season.

Figure 12. GIS map of the 80 surface aqueducts in Puerto Rico. The
ecozone, elevation, precipitation and temperature data are available for
each aqueduct.

Figure 13. Visits to aqueducts in Naranjito and Adjuntas with IAUPR sta-
ff (Drs. Melitza Crespo and Graciela Ramirez, and laboratory technician
Jaera Davila) and Dr. Omar Pérez, community engagement consultant.
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SOCIAL EPIDEMIOLOGY DIVISION

The purpose of the Social Epidemiology Division is to learn,
understand and improve the social conditions in which people
are born, grow, work, live and age, which influences public health
outcomes. We aim to achieve health equity among the residents
of Puerto Rico through education, research, and public policy.
The social determinants of health (SDOH, Figure 13), health
disparities, and health equity are priorities of the division.

Social determinants of health and social epidemiology
interest group

In collaboration with the Community Engagement Division, we
planned and designed “Las comunidades y el emprendimiento: la
férmula para el desarrollo econédmico”, a health session that was
presented at the BE Fest 2022. Also, a guide on how to address
social determinants of health in the workplace was created and
presented at the event.

The division developed and conducted a survey to understand
the perceptions of the SDOH among the employees of the
PRPHT. A total of 87 employees completed the survey and a final
report was developed to provide insight on how the topic should
be addressed within our organization and will serve as a resource
for other organizations interested in creating awareness about
the topic.

In collaboration with the NY Federal Reserve Bank, we held a
conference on January 12th on “Investing in Health: A New tool
to Improve Health Outcomes in Puerto Rico”.

The social determinants of health and social epidemiology
interest group was designed and established by the division
in collaboration with the Community Engagement Division.
Considering the importance of the SDOH, and recognizing it
as a priority of the PRPHT, we plan to develop initiatives and
strategies that aim to understand and address the social and
health impacts of vulnerable communities in Puerto Rico at a
systemic level.

PUBLIC HEALTH
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Figure 14: Social Determinants of Health circle showing its five catego-
ries.

Addressing Social Determinants of Health among the
Hispanic Populations

This project, supported by a contract with the NNPHI, aims
to provide technical assistance to PRDoH on topics related to
health equity. For this purpose, we developed several tools to
increase capacity in health equity and SDOH.

One of the main accomplishments was the creation of two SDOH
screening tools (questionnaires). We created the Questionnaire
to address Social Determinants of Health in Hispanic patients
(CADESS-P, for its acronym in Spanish). CADESS-P objective is
to help health professionals to identify the social determinants
of health in a primary healthcare environment. In addition, we
created a guide titled: Guide to Address Social Determinants of
Health in Hispanic Patients (Figure 14). The guide’s objective is
to provide information to health professionals on how to provide
the questionnaire, why it is important to make SDOH questions,
and how to address the SDOH using a nonclinical approach. Also,
we created the Questionnaire to Address Social Determinants of
Health in Hispanic employees (CADESS, in Spanish). CADESS,
objective is to help employers to identify the social determinants
of health in their employees.
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The social media campaign consists of 10 educational materials.
Six have been created and published at the time of the report,
on topics related to minority health, the categories of SDOH and
definitions, health equity and the steps to achieve it, and health
disparities (Figure 16).
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Figure 15. Questionnaire to Address Social Determinants of Health in
Hispanic Patients (CADESS-P)

The project also included an educational component on equity
and SDOH that included: (1) a webinar, (2) an asynchronous
educational module, (3) a short course and (4) a social media
campaign. The webinar titled “Healthy Homes, Employment,
and Mental Health”, focused on how employment and housing
can influence mental health. The webinar recording is on
the PRPHT YouTube channel: https://www.youtube.com/
watch?v=7ziXQ dXp4c&t=960s. The educational module titled:

QY

22 Me gusta

“Los determinantes sociales de la salud en la poblaciéon de T
hispanos: Construyendo equidad en salud” has seven chapters, :mg;gz::';
in Spanish, and includes captions and audio (Figure 15). Lastly, e GO

2otnkli HESIE

we offered the 15-hour virtual course: Building Power for Health
Equity in our Communities, in collaboration with Dr. Jonathan
Heller, a Senior Health Equity Fellow at the Population Health
Institute at the University of Wisconsin. There was a total of 23
participants that included students from the main public health
programs in Puerto Rico and staff from PRDoH and the PRPHT.

Figure 16. Public Health Educator, Jerry Vélez recording Chapter 1 of ~ Figure 17: Some of the social media posts published as part of the
the SDOH asynchronous module. SDOH and equity campaign.
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COVID 19 Patient Registry

The purpose of the registry is to consolidate information from
individuals who were infected from SARS-CoV-2 virus into a
database. It will be utilized to understand the epidemiology
and the impact on equity in the health and the well-being of
the population after a SARSCoV-2 infection and Post-Acute
COVID-19 Syndrome (PACS) in Puerto Rico. In October 2022,
CHWs received training about the Registry, and how to facilitate
the questionnaire among people in their communities who do
not have Internet access or have low Internet and technology
literacy.

José Torrado, a student intern at the Social Epidemiology
Division, created promotional materials for the Puerto Rico
COVID-19 Registry, including a video, and identified 19
events in which we can promote the registry. In collaboration
with the Community Engagement Division, we created a plan
toincrease participationin the Registry. The planincludes: (1)
Long COVID-19 ECHO series during August; (2) Presentation
about Long COVID-19 in health fairs, communities, and
universities; (3) Promotion of the registry through social
media boost; (4) Train the Trainers on Long COVID-19 and
how to participate in the Registry.

10-year Healthy Ageing Plan

The Healthy Ageing Plan from the Puerto Rico Department of
Health (PRDoH) builds on and responds to global commitments
and calls for action. It is based on the global strategy and
action plan on aging and health. The Healthy Ageing Program
of the PRDoH led efforts to design, create and write the 10-
year Healthy Ageing Plan. As part of the effort, they created
subcommittees, one of them was the Analysis Subcommittee.
Dr. Mariela Alvarado, lead of the division was invited to be part
of this committee and she participated in nine meetings of the
analysis and one meeting of the writing committees. During the
meetings, Dr. Alvarado provided expertise in the interpretation
of data presented by the leader of the subcommittee. She also
participated as a reviewer of the plan. The plan will be available
on August 31, 2023.
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Public Health Infrastructure Technical Assistance

Westartedanew collaborationwithPHMContechnical assistance
and training requests by sharing resources and expertise, and
providing outreach to state and local states departments (Puerto
Rico and US Virgin Islands). From April to June 2023, we had five
virtual meetings and one in person meeting at the NNPHI Annual
Conference. Two meetings were with the PRDoH and US Virgin
Islands Department of Health. We are coordinating site visits
to both departments during August 2023. Also, we expect to
recruit a Project Coordinator and a Training Coordinator.
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Marianyoly Ortiz Ortiz, PhD
Executive Director

DIRECTOR’S POV

This year | became the Executive Director of the Puerto Rico
Public Health Trust which signifies an important milestone in
my professional life. After five years as associate director of
the Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit, | learned the importance

of promoting health and having the community as the center of our
interventions. Now, as leader of the PRPHT, | feel very fortunate to
be part of a team that shares that passion for improving the health
and quality of life of fellow Puerto Ricans. Our commitment to
developing community-centered, evidence-based strategies and
initiatives will contribute to putting Puerto Rico at the forefront
of public health.
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FUTURE PLANS
WHAT’S NEXT?

Looking forward to a healthier and more
equitable Puerto Rico.

During the new fiscal year, we will continue developing strate-
gies to achieve sustainable health equity for our communities.
Our goals for this year will be focused on (1) strengthening our
collaboration with the Puerto Rico and US Virgin Islands depart-
ments of health to support the infrastructure and workforce
capacity of our regional health systems, (2) further developing
our data and evaluation infrastructure to obtain, collect, and
use data to drive our work and create initiatives, (3) increase our
reach through social media and develop creative, inclusive and
accessible educational materials and campaigns that can over-
come the pandemic fatigue and encourage people to continue
protecting themselves to reach the better health possible,

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

(4) increase the recognition and certification of CHWs through
the recently created CHWs Coalition and (5) develop new initiati-
ves on climate change to better understand its impacts on health
and be better prepared for the future.

This year we are also very excited to host the Health and Research
Congress. This event integrates for the first time the three pro-
grams of the Health Pillar of the PRSTRT (PRPHT, Puerto Rico
Vector Control Unit and the Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical
Research). Our focus during the event will be on mental health
as we recover from past emergencies and natural disasters, with
an emphasis on understanding current challenges and opportu-
nities in the field.
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‘W‘ Unidad de Control de
'(“0\“ Vectores de Puerto Rico

Integrated Vector Management

Vector
Control
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Surveillance

Community
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& Activation

Representation of the three core pillars established by the Unit to
implement an Integrated Vector Management model for Puerto
Rico.of the three core pillars established by the Unit to implement
an Integrated Vector Management model for Puerto Rico.
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PUERTO RICO VECTOR
CONTROL UNIT

WHAT WE DO

The Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit (PRVCU) was established in
September 2016 as part of a cooperative agreement between
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the Puerto
Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust. The PRVCU aims
to leverage Puerto Rico’s capacity to control the Aedes aegyp-
ti mosquito, the vector for the diseases Zika, chikungunya, and
dengue.

MISSION:

Protect the people of Puerto Rico from the Ae. aegypti
mosquito, while educating and empowering everyone to reduce
mosquito populations across Puerto Rico dramatically and
sustainably.

VISION:

Has a modern and dynamic territory-wide integrated vector
management program that serves as a local and regional
research, evaluation, and training center.

HOWWEDOIT

The unit’s non-profit organizational structure makes it unique
among vector management programs, all of which are associated
with a state or local government. The PRVCU thus has flexibility,
independence, and nimbleness that other programs lack. We
use these advantages in working with municipalities, health
regions, and PR Department of Health to implement those
management practices most locally appropriate. We are also
active in competing for grants and awards at all levels and, as
our reputation and recognition has grown, so has our award
success grown. Finally, we strongly emphasize the evaluation
and adoption of new technology for vector management.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG




WHO WE
CONNECT WITH
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Since 2021, the PRVCU has built a strong vector

management program that has been built in
Puerto Rico and regionally. Its operations include
working with municipalities on Integrated
Vector Management (IVM), either individually
or through the PRVCU-founded Puerto Rico
Vector Management Association which now has
participation from most municipalities and well

over 200 individual members.

The activities of the PRVCU have been endorsed by
the principal mayoral organizations in Puerto Rico
which will give the PRVCU additional credibility

and political leverage.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The PRVCU is one unit within the larger Puerto Rico Science,
Technology, and Research Trust, a non-profit organization.
Because of this organizational structure, the Unit has flexibility
and nimbleness that other vector management programs
lack. It is able to work with any level of government, local,
territorial, federal in any project that it deems will help improve
the management of human pathogens transmitted by insect
vectors.

The Unit has had an extremely successful yearin grant
funding, awards, and recognition, and in expanding
its impact and operations.

Over the past year, it has secured nearly $20 million in grant
funds, half of its staff have received significant awards from
national or international organizations, it operates throughout
Puerto Rico, the US Virgin Islands, Central America and as far
west as the island of Palau, near the Philippines.

One of its major achievements this year was being named
as a site for a Tropical Island National Training Center for
Vector Management. This Center will assist in training vector
management staff in the US territories on all aspects of vector
management and bringing their skills up to professional levels.
Another important achievement was initiating a project in
El Salvador using a dengue management technique not yet
approved for use in the US but currently in wide use outside
the U.S. The project will help reduce dengue in El Salvador and
provide significant improvement in their technical abilities. It
will also gather data needed for federal approval to use the
technique in Puerto Rico.

The Unit also received a $10 million grant to prepare for the likely
upcoming dengue outbreak in Puerto Rico. It will help us train
vector managers and provide equipment and supplies to them.
These managers will, in turn, become the core cadre of vector
management for Puerto Rico. One of the biggest successes
for the Unit this year has been the prevention of a dengue-3
outbreak in Puerto Rico. Dengue has & serotypes and each
one is independent of the other. Dengue-3 had not circulated
in Puerto Rico for many years and a large outbreak began in
2022 in Cuba. That outbreak caused many travel-related cases
in Miami and other areas of the US. Our concern was that,
because it had been so long since it circulated in Puerto Rico,
it would cause a very large outbreak here with symptoms more
serious than usual.
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The first cases of dengue-3 appeared in Rio Grande, followed by
Canovanas then Carolina and finally Juncos. At each location,
the PRVCU made a maximum effort with insecticides, traps,
community engagement, house-to-house inspections, and bre-
eding site destruction, etc. One by one, the dengue-3 clusters
died out. As of this writing (July 21, 2023), there have been no
human cases since the beginning of March. This success has
undoubtedly avoided many thousands of cases and saved many
lives.

The PRVCU is an emerging international leader in the control
and management of dengue outbreaks. Vector management
programs throughout the world will soon look to us as a model
to be followed.

IMPACTNUMBERS  (§19 184,363.40

New funding
876 +5,300
Surveillance traps deployed Control traps deployed

20,167 69

. Total pool itive f
Total pools tested for arbovirus otal pools positive for dengue

+125 110

WALS applications Outreach and education activities
+21,300 212
Educational and prevention materials distributed Members of the PRVMA
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STRONG CAPACITY BUILDING AND

INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION NEW FUNDING

During this period, the Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit (PRVCU) received five (5) new awards from Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and the American Mosquito Control Association
(AMCA) for a total of $19,184,363.40. Table 1 shows the details of these awards. However, more detail and progress will be

presented in the following sections.

Agency or
Organization

CDC

Award Project Title

Enhancing Global Health
Security: Strengthening
Public Health Surveillance
Systems and Preparedness
Globally

Enhancing Regional Capa-
city for Vector Surveillance
and Control in the US terri-
tories in the Caribbean

CDC

Lead and Healthy Homes ~ HUD
Technical Studies (LHHTS)

Grant Program

American Mosquito Con- ~ AMCA
trol AssociationResearch

Fund

Strengthening Training, CDC
Evaluation, and Partners-

hips in the Prevention and
Control of Vector-Borne

Diseases

Total of awards during this period

PUBLIC HEALTH

Period of
Performance

September 30, 2021 -
September 29, 2026

September 30, 2022 -
September 29, 2026

December 1, 2022-
December 1, 2025

January 15, 2023 -
December 31, 2023

July1,2023 -
June 30, 2028
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Description Award

Establish and evaluate the $5,754,654.00
use of Wolbachia in the Aedes
aegypti population throughout

the urban areas of El Salvador.

Develop a dengue hotspot $11,704,710.00
response protocol, Advanced

Molecular Detection (AMD)

applications, professional

networks, among others.

Evaluate how effective are the  $925,000
screens in doors and windows

to

prevent virus borne diseases by

Aedes aegypti in Ponce, Puerto

Rico.

Determine the barriers to $49,999.40
people’s behavior change by

comparing different communi-

ty and educational approaches

regarding the prevention and

control of Aedes aegypti in

Puerto Rico.

Develop the Tropical Island $750,000.00
Training Center (TITC) for

vector-borne disease to pro-

vide training, evaluation, and

partnerships in the prevention

and control of vector-borne

diseases in the US territories

and freely associated states.

$19,184,363.40
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COLLABORATION WITH THE
PUERTO RICO DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH

In December 2022, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
was established between Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and
Research Trust and Puerto Rico Department of Health (PRDoH)
with the interest in engaging in a collaborative relationship to
research most effective alternative methods of controlling
the mosquito population in Puerto Rico. This MOU served
to evaluate and implement vector control and surveillance
activities in the archipelago that includes entomological
surveillance system; implementation of pesticide application
to control the Ae. aegypti mosquito in different municipalities
in areas recommended by the PRDoH; personnel training,
community engagement activities; among others. Moreover,
this MOU provided the recommendation of PRVCU personnel to
obtain the Category 9 license to perform pesticides application.
From April to June 2023, the PRVCU personnel received the
required training courses through the University of Puerto Rico
and the Category 9, license for application of restricted-use
pesticides in public health programs, issued by the Department
of Agriculture.

Pictures of the employees that approved and received
the Category 9 licenses.

RECOGNITIONS AND
PRESENTATIONS

PRVCU staff had the opportunity to represent us at different
conferences as speakers, panelists, awardees, among others.
PRVCU participated as authors in an article in the Wing Beats
- Special Latin America Issue, journal of the AMCA. The article
can be found in the following link: https://shorturl.at/BFNO6.
Moreover, PRVCU received a grant from the Entomological
Society of America (ESA) - Chrysalis Fund Award 2022 to
conduct the educational project titled “Promoting citizen
science through monitoring of the Ae. aegypti by high school
students”. In addition, Raiza Alvarado, Vector Management
Technician, and Cristhian Sanchez, Quality Assurance Specialist,
participated in the Mosquito BEACONS Workshop in Atlanta.

The purpose of this project is supporting the implementation of

an Integrated Vector Management approach for the monitoring

and control of invasive mosquito species in the South Region of Raiza Alvar_ado and Cristhian Sanchez during the Mosquito BEACONS
. Workshop in Atlanta.

the United States.
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From November 13 to 16, 2022, Dr. Grayson Brown, PRVCU
Executive Director, participated in the Annual Convention
of the ESA in Canada (Figure 3) and Dr. Julieanne Miran-
da-Bermutdez, PRVCU Program Manager, conducted a virtual
presentation titled “Aedes aegypti life cycle”. From November
14t0 17,2022, Noemi Martinez-Tull, Community Outreach and
Education Representative, participated in the Annual Meeting
of the Florida Mosquito Control Association (FMCA) sponsored
by Clarke and Central Life Sciences.

PRVCU staff that participated in the FMCA 2023 Dodd Short Courses in Gaines-
ville, Florida.

In February - March 2023, PRVCU participated in the AMCA
Annual Meeting in Reno, Nevada. During this conference, a
booth of the Puerto Rico Vector Management Association
was established, our team presented two posters, three oral
presentations and moderated panels in the Latin American
Symposium. Moreover, Joanelis Medina-Quintana and Nicole
Marrero-Vazquez won the AMCA 2023 Young Professionals
Industry Shadowing Program, and Cristhian Sanchez and Noemi
Martinez were awarded with the 2023 Boyd-Ariaz Grassroots
Award by the AMCA. This award recognizes the excellent
performance and dedication of field staff in mosquito control.

2 31C .-
| SFERENCE

Dr. Grayson Brown and Dr. Jessica L. Ware, president of the ESA.

In December 2022, Jania Garcia-Zeno, Community Mobilization
Supervisor, and Nexilianne Borrero-Segarra, Vector Management
Supervisor, participated in a training in Washington, DC, as part
of the project funded by HUD.

From January 30 - February 2, 2023, Nicole M. Marrero,
Community Outreach and Education Representative, Mark
Concepcién, Luis Doel Santiago, and Samuel Lacén, Vector
Management Technicians, were sponsored by the Southeastern
Center of Excellence in Vector - Borne Diseases to participate
in the FMCA 2023 Dodd Short Courses educational program in
Gainesville, Florida.

PRVCU staff that participated in the AMCA Annual Meeting in Reno, Nevada.
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In March 2023, Verdnica Rodriguez, Community Outreach and
Education Representative, had the opportunity to present a
poster titled “Facebook: A tool to promote a campaign against
the bite of the Ae. aegypti mosquito during the COVID-19
pandemic” in the 43rd Annual Forum of Research and Education
of the University of Puerto Rico, Medical Sciences Campus.

Verodnica Rodriguez during the poster presentation in the 43rd Annual Forum
of Research and Education of the University of Puerto Rico, Medical Sciences
Campus.

From April 8 to 11, 2023, Dr. Julieanne Miranda-Bermtdez and
Nexilianne Borrero Segarra participated in the 2023 National
Home Performance Conference of the Building Performance
Association in Seattle. In this conference they could learn and
share experiences in the Program Manager School with other
entities that receive funds from the US Department of Housing
and Urban Development.

Dr. Julieanne Miranda-Bermudez and Nexilianne Borrero during
the Program Manager School with HUD personnel.
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From May 15to 17, 2023, Dr. Julieanne Miranda-Bermtdez and
Joanelis Medina-Quintana received an award from Central Life
Sciences and the AMCA to participate in the AMCA Annual Con-
ference in Washington, DC.

Dr. Julieanne Miranda-Bermudez and Joanelis Medina-Quintana during AMCA An-
nual Conference in Washington, DC.

Other recognitions of our staff included the selection of
Dr. Julieanne Miranda-Bermudez as part of the exhibition
“Borinquenas en STEM” and as a mentor for “L’Oréal for Girls
in Science- Puerto Rico” program in partnership with CienciaPR,
and Joanelis Medina-Quintana as ESA Science Policy Fellow.
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PRVCU STUDENT PROGRAM

During the summer 2023, the PRVCU had the opportunity to
have six (6) interns from the University of Puerto Rico - Medical
Sciences Campus. The interns had the opportunity to participate
in each area of the PRVCU and provide support for the imple-
mentation of the project sponsored by AMCA in Toa Baja muni-
cipality.

Interns from the University of Puerto Rico, Medical Science Campus during their applied practice in PRVCU.

VECTOR SURVEILLANCE
AE. AEGYPTI SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM

Laboratory capacity has been established in San Juan and Ponce
and working at full capacity since 2018 and 2019, respectively,
to support surveillance activities as well as testing for
alternate control technologies. As part of the PRVCU mosquito
surveillance, female Ae. aegypti are collected, identified, and
submitted for arbovirus testing weekly. This surveillance system
has been expanded to include samples from all our main projects,
including samples from Bayamdn, Caguas, Carolina, Catafio,
Culebra, Dorado, Guaynabo, Hatillo, Juncos, Ponce, San Juan, Toa
Baja and Trujillo Alto. However, some of these are not currently
part of the surveillance

Municipality

Bayamdn
Caguas
Carolina
Catano
Culebra
Guaynabo
Juncos
Ponce

San Juan

Toa Baja

Number of
AGO traps

171
240
9
10
37
21
30
150
58

150

Project or purpose

Many positive cases
DoD Project
Dengue Hotspot
Dengue Hotspot
Rotary Club Project
Dengue Hotspot
Dengue Hotspot
HUD Project

Many positive cases
and some Hotspots

AMCA Project

Table 2. Number of active AGO traps as part of the surveillance system until June 2023.
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The PRVCU laboratory uses the Trioplex assay developed by
the CDC-Dengue Branch. This is a multi-target molecular assay
intended for the qualitative detection and differentiation of
RNA from dengue, chikungunya and Zika viruses in mosquito
samples. If dengue is detected, the DENV1-4 assay is then
used to determine the dengue serotype (DENV-1, 2, 3, 4).
From January 2018 through June 2023, 217,086 capture
chambers have been processed, with 2,354,137 Ae. aegypti
females captured. Table 3 shows a summary of the mosquitoes
processed and the number of pools tested for arboviruses. We
also provide mosquito testing to Pacific islands as a service.

Description August 2022-June2023 To date (January 2018-June 2023)
AGO captured chamber processed 22,233 223,133
Total Ae. aegypti female captured 220,424 2,417,454
Total pools tested for arbovirus 20,167 127,882
69 165

Total pools positive for dengue

Table 3. Summary of mosquito samples processed in the PRVCU laboratory for this period.

Since July 2021, PRVCU agreed to start deploying AGO traps
in municipalities around the Island considered, by members
of CDC, Department of Health and PRVCU, as hotspots that
should be consider as priority in molecular testing for arbovirus
surveillance detection. The municipality hotspot selection was
based on areas with high incidence of dengue human confirmed
cases and mosquito positive traps. Female Ae. aegypti are
collected from AGO traps, identified, and submitted for weekly
testing in PRVCU Molecular Laboratory. Most of those positives
are DENV-1, 29 are DENV-2 and 5 is DENV-3. For the first
time, PRVCU Molecular lab team was able to detect DENV-3 in
a mosquito pool. Table 4 shows the historical overall positive
pools detected in the hotspot’s areas.

Dengue serotype Dengue virus positive pools
Dengue 1 47
Dengue 2 29
Dengue 3 5
Dengue 4 0

Historical overall positives pools detected per hotspot zone considering Dengue
serotype identification.
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INSECTICIDE RESISTANCE ASSAYS

During this reporting period, the Insecticide Resistance Assay  The active ingredients analyzed were Permethrin, Deltamethrin,
(IRA) was performed on the week of December 12, 2022. Al phenothrin, Malathion, Chlorpyrifos, Etofenprox, Alpha-cyper-
assay procedures, diagnostic times and diagnostic doses were  methrin, and Beta-cyfluthrin. Table 5 shows that the mosquitoes
documented and reported based on CDC-CONUS protocol. The  pe gegypti exposed to the active ingredients tested in those

municipality tested were the following: San Juan, Bayamdn, municipality have resistance and a low mortality rate.
Carolina, San German, Ponce, Culebra, and Caguas.

. . CAR-HS2 CAR-7 Villa Fontana Caguas
. . . Diagnostic
Technical grade Diagnostic . Negative
.. Time Negative Susceptible Negative Susceptible | Susceptible
pEStICIdE dose (ugl ml) A Mortality % Control Control Mortality % Control Control Mortality % Contr? Control
(minutes) : : : , Mortality :
Mortality % ~ Mortality % Mortality % ~ Mortality % o Mortality %
Permethrin 43 20 0 0 100 3 0 100 & 0 100
Deltamethrin 0.75 30 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
Etofenprox 20 15 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
Phenothrin 30 20 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
Lambda-cyhalothrin 10 20 56 0 100 54 0 100 42 0 100
Malathion 400 20 71 0 100 74 0 100 75 0 100
Chlorpyrifos 200 45 76 0 100 8 0 100 74 0 100
Alpha-Cypermethrin 1 30 1 0 100 1 0 100 1 0 100
Beta-Cyfluthrin 1 30 9 0 100 7 0 100 2 0 100
N Culebra Irlanda, Bayamén Ponce San German
T Diagnostic ~ Diagnostic
pesticide o Time Mortality Negativle Sué;ii:;ﬁ)le Mortality '\ICeognattri(\J’Ie Susceptill)le Mortality '\ICeognattri(\J’Ie Susceptill)le Mortality '\ICeognattri(\J’Ie Susceptillale
(ng/mi) (minutes) % Cont.r © . Mortality % Mortality Contr © % Mortality Cont‘ro . % Mortality Contr © .
Mortality % % % Mortality % % Mortality % % Mortality %
Permethrin 43 20 12 0 100 1 0 100 15 0 100 27 0 100
Deltamethrin (0,75 30 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
Etofenprox 20 15 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
Phenothrin 30 20 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100 0 0 100
bda-
100 200 46 0 100 39 0 100 51 0 100 5 0 100
yhalothrin
Malathion 400 20 76 0 100 71 0 100 72 0 100 77 0 100
Chlorpyrifos 200 45 78 0 100 78 0 100 78 00 100 78 0 100
Alpha-
C .1 30 0 0 100 0 0 100 2 0 100 13 0 100
ypermethrin
B 30 5 0 100 9 0 100 9 0 100 16 0 100
yfluthrin
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VECTOR CONTROL

PROJECT IN CAGUAS TO DETERMINE
MOSQUITO THRESHOLDS NECESSARY TO
SPREAD DISEASE

In collaboration with the CDC Dengue Branch, a Department of
Defense-funded program was begun to determine the minimum
numbers of Ae. aegypti mosquitoes required to maintain
outbreaks of arboviruses such as dengue, chikungunya and
Zika. The three-year project (2021 - 2024) received $900,000.
Over 4,000 AGO traps are currently deployed throughout
Caguas. The preliminary results show a reduction of Ae. aegypti
mosquitoes in areas with more traps per house of which that
don’t have traps. Since the deployment, there have not been
significative changes in the percent coverage of traps by cluster,
for this reporting period varies between 69.0% to 78.50%.

In September 2022, the first annual cross-sectional serosurvey
was completed throughout Caguas study area as another
component of this project. The results of the first serosurvey
indicated that more than 70% of the participants have been
positive to IgG, that represents that the person had an infection
sometime in the past. In terms of IgM, around 3.99% were
positive at the time of the test, that can represent a recent
dengue virus infection. The next annual cross-sectional
serosurvey will start on October 2023.

Pictures of the Caguas team working on the project.
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DENGUE HOTSPOT RESPONSE AND
MUNICIPAL SUPPORT FOR VECTOR
CONTROL

One of PRVCU’s teams is its Municipal Support Team. They
provide many types of vector management support to individual
municipalities throughout the archipelago. As part of the
collaboration with the CDC, PRDoH and PRVCU, a rapid vector
control response has been implemented in areas with active
dengue cases. The following areas where cases of Dengue 1, 2
and 3 were detected, PRVCU responded quickly and effectively.

As part of the collaboration with the PRDoH and local
municipalities, PRVCU provided support on the use of Wide
Area Larvicide Spraying (WALS) in some of the hotspots’ areas.
During this period, more than 125 WALS applications have been
conducted. Table 6 shows the areas that were served during the
|last year.
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Table 6. Summary of the areas that were served as part of the rapid vector control response.

Start date

September
2022

September
2022

September
2022

October 2022

October 2022

October 2022

October 2022

October 2022

October 2022

PUBLIC HEALTH

Serotype

Dengue 1

Dengue 3

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 2

Dengue 3

Dengue 3

Area

Residencial Virgilio
Davila, Bayamén
(BAY-HS1)

Barrio Cubuy, Candvanas

(CAN-HS)

Barrio Canovanillas,
Carolina
(CAR-HS3)

Residencial Juana
Matos, Catario (CAT-1)

Residencial Columbus
Landing, Mayaguez
(MAY-HS1)

Residencial Sabalos
Gardens and Ext.
Sébalos Gardens,

Mayaguez
(MAY-HS2)

Urbanizacion Los
Angeles, Carolina
(CAR-HS4)

Barrio Jiménez, Rio
Grande
(RIO-HS1)

Urb. Pedregales and
Villas de Cambalache,
Rio Grande
(RIO-HS2)

Activities

10 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities.

9 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities.

6 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications

Community and education activities.

20 AGO surveillance traps
14 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction

Community and education activities.

11 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

21 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

9 AGO surveillance traps
WALS applications
Breeding sites source reduction
Community and education activities

8 AGO surveillance traps
30 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

4 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
Community and education activities

150

Result

No more cases of
Dengue 1 were reported.

No more cases of
Dengue 3 were reported.

No more cases of
Dengue 3 were reported.

No more cases of
Dengue 1 were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 2
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 3
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 3
were reported.
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Start date

October 2022

November
2022

November
2022

November
2022

December 2022

December 2022

December 2022

December 2022

January 2023

January 2023

Serotype

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 1

Dengue 3

Dengue 1

Dengue 3

Area

Caparra Hills, Guaynabo
(GUY-HS1)

Residencial La
Candelaria, Mayagiiez
(MAY-HS6)

Residencial Franklin D.
Roosevelt
(MAY-HS7)

Villa del Mar, Hatillo
(HAT-HS1)

Residencial Rafael
Hernandez (Kennedy)
(MAY-HS4)

Residencial El Carmen
(MAY-HSS5)

Puertas del Mar, Hatillo
(HAT-HS2)

Virginia Valle, Juncos
(JUN-HS2)

Brisas de Bayamdn,
Bayamon
(BAY-HS2)

Senderos de Juncos,
Juncos
(JUN-HS1)

Activities

10 AGO surveillance traps
Community and education activities

16 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

10 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

5 AGO surveillance traps
15 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

12 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

10 AGO surveillance traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

12 AGO surveillance traps
38 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

8 AGO surveillance traps
86 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

10 AGO surveillance traps
Community and education activities

6 AGO surveillance traps
59 AGO control traps
Breeding sites source reduction
WALS applications
Community and education activities

Result

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 3
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 1
were reported.

No more cases of Dengue 3
were reported.
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Start date

Serotype

Area Activities Result
20 AGO surveillance traps
#21 AGO control traps No more cases of Dengue 2
January 2023 Dengue 2 Mariolga, Caguas Breeding sites source reduction
. were reported.
Use of larvicide
Community and education activities
7 AGO surveillance traps
Villa Graciela and Villa 49 AGO control traps T
March 2023 Dengue 3 Ana, Juncos Breeding sites source reduction
(JUN-HS3) WALS applications were reported.
Community and education activities
10 AGO surveillance traps
Jardines de Ceiba Norte, 86 AGO control traps
. L . No more cases of Dengue
April 2023 Dengue 3 Juncos Breeding sites source reduction 3 were reported
(JUN-HS4) WALS applications '
Community and education activities
June 2023 Dengue 1 Urb. Hermanas Davila 5 AGO surveillance traps Active

and Villa Rica, Bayamon

WALS applications

To facilitate the visualization of the hotspot’s response, PRVCU
developed a dashboard for this purpose that includes the
mosquito data, WALS applications, positive mosquito pools,
among other variables.

. Dengue Hotspots

et Trap Status

Total Captured Aedes __ ey
® =

Average

Hotspots Dengue

ot AGO Control Intervention

ot WALS intorvontion

Last Diata Update

Dengue hotspot dashboard.
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COLLABORATION WITH ROTARY CLUB
INTERNATIONAL IN CULEBRA

PRVCU received a grant of $199,500 from the Rotary Club
International and the Rotary Club of San Juan to conduct a
vector control project in Culebra. In collaboration with the
municipality of Culebra, PRVCU aim to control the Ae. aegypti
and prevent epidemics caused by the viruses they transmit. The
project, funded for two years, was divided into three key areas:
surveillance, control, and community mobilization. PRVCU seeks
to continue supporting the Culebra municipality in this project.

Average Number of Ae. aegypti female

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

Surveillance

Atotal of 37 AGO traps were deployed to monitor the abundance
of Ae. aegypti. The surveillance data collected between December
1, 2022, and May 31, 2023, spanning 26 weeks (from project
week 71 to project week 96), revealed a significant reduction
in the average female Ae. aegypti captured per trap per week.
During this period, the average number of female Ae. aegypti
was recorded as 2.74, which represents a 60% suppression rate,
with 4.02 fewer mosquitoes per trap compared to the first 70
weeks of the project (Figure 14). During this reporting period, no
positive mosquito pools were detected.
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Average number of female Ae. aegypti/trap/week on the Culebra Project.

Control

A total of 213-yard inspections were completed within the
project period, encompassing 185 houses. Among these
inspections, 28 were conducted as follow-up visits during this
reporting period.

To effectively control Ae. aegypti mosquitoes, a total of 510
control AGO traps were deployed.

WALS activities started on December 1, 2022 (Project week 70)
with the collaboration of the local municipality and personnel.
The WALS approach has proven to be an essential component
of vector control efforts, significantly reducing the mosquito
population in the treated areas, and contributing to the
prevention of mosquito-borne diseases.
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AGO traps were deployed

Picture of the team working in the project. First photo from left to righ was
performing a house inspection. Second photo, is one of the tecnichian coun-
ting mosquitoes as part of the mosquito surveillance.
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COMMUNITY MOBILIZATION:

The PRVCU provided educational materials for the Culebra
residents; these included distributing more than 1,000
educational flyers, 361 repellents for personal protection, and
308 larvicides for biological control. More than 25 activities
such as meetings, train the trainers, brigades, talks, and booths
were conducted during this reporting period with an impact
of around 300 people. To inform the community about the
project, newsletters were developed and distributed. As part of
the communications efforts, interviews on radio stations and
newspaper were carried out.
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Cover page of El Nuevo Dia about the Culebra project.

EVALUATION OF WOLBACHIA
REPLACEMENT IN EL SALVADOR

PRVCU received a grant of $5.4 million from the CDC to conduct
a vector control project in El Salvador. The objective of this
project is to establish and evaluate Wolbachia in the Ae. aegypti
population throughout the urban areas of the municipalities
of Santa Ana, San Sebastian Salitrillo, and Chalchuapa in El
Salvador. This project involves collaboration between several
disparate organizations working in partnership: PRVCU, World
Mosquito Program (WMP), El Salvador’s Ministry of Health
(MINSAL). These three collaborators will also work in close
association with the CDC Dengue Branch in San Juan, Puerto
Rico, CDC's Central American Regional Office in Guatemala, and
the municipality of Santa Ana, El Salvador.

During this reporting period, PRVCU has been working with
the collaborators in the organizational phase and beginning the
operational phase. The following items have been completed:

Kickoff meeting in Puerto Rico with WMP, MINSAL and CDC in
October 2022.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been established
between the four main units: CDC, MINSAL, WMP, and the PRV-
CU. This MOU established the roles and responsibilities of each
of the units in the project. The MOU established the authority
of the PRVCU and WMP to operate in El Salvador as needed for
this project.

PUBLIC HEALTH

m  Contract between WMP and PRVCU.

m Establishment of the steering committee of the project.

m Establishment of the technical team in El Salvador, Both, the
WMP and PRVCU established their technical teams on the
ground.

m Development of protocols, training courses, key messages,

communications plans, among other key activities to start the
implementation of the project in August 2023.
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Kickoff meeting for El Salvador Project.
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SISCREENS PROJECT, PONCE, PUERTORICO L R
PRVCU received a grant of $925,000 from HUD to evaluate 925K 43

the effectiveness of house screening against Ae. aegypti L

mosquitoes in Puerto Rico and its impact on reducing arbovirus Grant from HUD J U Participants )
infections. The study will be conducted in Ponce, Puerto N\

Rico, where randomized cluster trials will be conducted to 150 5

monitor local arbovirus transmission through mosquito Employees
virologic surveillance and surveillance for dengue cases among Surveillance AGO traps hiring and training

participating households.

The project will also conduct acceptance surveys of screens to
understand why window and door screens are not universally
used and how consumer acceptance can be increased. The
project will encourage new screen design and new materials
development and establish up to four micro-enterprises for
screen contractors who will provide the initial installations and
will continue to provide screen services after project completion.

The project will also develop community engagement guidelines
forincreasing the use of screens throughout Puerto Rico. During
this reporting period, the following activities were conducted:
(1) kickoff meeting to present the project to all collaborators
with 43 participants; (2) IRB submission and approval; (3)
development and approval by HUD of the Quality Assurance Plan
that included the SOPs, consents, questionnaires, educational
materials, among other key documents; (4) contract with the
Ponce Neighborhood Housing Services, contractor for the
development and installation of screens; (5) employees hiring
and training; (6) deployment of 150 surveillance AGO traps in
the study area, and other activities. The implementation of this
project will be at the end of July 2023.
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COMMUNITY MOBILIZATION PROGRAM

COMMUNITY OUTREACH
AND EDUCATION ACTIVITIES

The PRVCU Community Mobilization Program continues

participating in the proactive program. Even though some of )
our activities have been reduced due to the pandemic, the team

was able to have a significant impact this year with 110 activities 1 10 ACTIVITI Es

and a distribution of 6,101 educational materials and 14,310
repellents (Table 7). During this period, the PRVCU collaborated -
with the San Juan School of Mathematics, Sciences and
Technology with the project: “Use of an Arduino microcontrol of 6 100 + 14 300 +
humidity and temperature to monitor the Ae. aegypti mosquito y |

in AGO and BG traps”. This was presented at the Puerto Rican Educational Materials Repellents
Metropolitan Science Fair, obtaining first place.

August 2022- June 2023 Total to date since September 2017
Activity/ Material o
Number of activities/ Number of
Number of activities/materials
materials Municipalities
Educational booths 30 656 59
Educational talks (general public) 24 395 47
Educational talks (schools) 16 561 5l
Community visits 22 9,345 30
Informational visit 14 399 23
Workshop or training 4 24 7
Summer camps 0 31 8
Distribution of repellents 14,310 132,987 78
Distribution of larvicides 977 6,968 51
Distribution of educational material 6,101 181,263 78
Distribution of activity books 0 19,654 55
Mosquito nets 0 1,331 20

Table 7. Summary of outreach and education activities conducted during this period.
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Collaboration with the San Juan School of Mathematics, Sciences and Technology
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MOSQUITO DAY 2022

World Mosquito Day is observed annually on August 20th to
commemorate that day in 1897 when British doctor Ronald
Ross discovered that female mosquitoes transmitted malaria.
In 2019, the governor of Puerto Rico signed a proclamation to
declare August the Awareness Month against the Mosquito Ae.
aegyptiin Puerto Rico.

During this year, the initiative seeks to promote citizen
participation in the identification and reduction of breeding sites.
Four training workshops were held where a total of 56 captains
were impacted. The participants in these workshops were from
the following municipalities: Ponce, Yauco, Mayagiiez, Aguadilla,
Cayey, San Juan, Naranjito, Toa Alta and Pefiuelas. Also, we
have representation of municipalities such as Culebra, Patillas,
Bayamodn and Aibonito in activities related to this initiative.

The PRVCU participated in 18 activities during the month of
August 2022. A total of 49 breeding kits were delivered. In the
inspections carried out, 312 breeding sites were reported as
eliminated. There were 703 adults and 106 children for a total
of 809 participants. Aibonito, Bayamén, Culebra, Mayagiiez,
Patillas and Ponce were the municipalities where the use of the
Mosquitalo application was reported.

The five most common breeding sites reported were plastic
containers (44%) followed by flowerpots (18%), drones (15%),
tires (12%) and trash cans (11%). In 47% of the reported breeding
sites the presence of larvae was identified, 22% pupae and 5%
in both immature stages. The most common action to eliminate
the breeding sites was emptying (47%), brushing (25%),
covering (19%), throwing away (7%) and using a screen (2%).
The Mosquito Day 2022 webpage had 1,002 visits during the
campaign period. In the communications area, 14 publications
were made in various media and three interviews (TV/Radio) were
performed.
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Pictures of the Mosquito Day 2022 activities.
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HEALTH GUARDIANS DENGUE TOOLKIT

The PRVCU implemented a virtual and in person train the  As part of the response of dengue cases and the constant
trainers. The trainees need to conduct a series of activities, threat of contagion from mosquito-borne viruses, the PRVCU
including presentations to other people or breeding sites in collaboration with the CDC developed its Dengue Toolkit. The
reduction activities to receive a certification as “Guardian de kit is a set of educational and mass communication materials
la Salud” or Health Guardian. The training is divided into four ~ designed to help municipalities, communities, nonprofit
1.5-hour sessions. The objective is to train the community and  organizations, and others to combat the spread of this disease.
help them foster their leadership in mosquito control. PRVCU The kit includes posters, brochures, videos, audios, materials
provided the materials necessary to conduct their activities for ~ for social networks, and teaching guides on how to prevent
the certification. During this reporting period, a total of four  and control the proliferation of the Ae. aegypti mosquito and
(4) full training sessions have been conducted for a total of 47  the dengue virus. To promote this toolkit, three interviews
trained participants and 41 certified “Guardianes de la Salud”. were conducted in WIPR, ABC Puerto Rico and Be Health
From the beginning of the initiative more than 370 people have  social media channel, and a press release was disseminated in
been impacted by Guardians of Health. Information about this  the principal newspapers of Puerto Rico including Metro and
initiative can be found at http://prvectorcontrol.org/guardia- El Nuevo Dia. At the same time, this initiative began to be
nes-de-la-salud/. promoted on the PRVCU social media networks. Link for the
Dengue Toolkit: https://prvectorcontrol.org/recursos/

In collaboration with the CDC, the Department of Health
and the Department of Education, in December 2022 a
talk was provided to the schools’ nurses with an impact
of 400 participants. In addition, in March 2023 health
teachers participated in an educational talk with an impact
of 228 teachers. These talks had the objective to increase
the knowledge of these professionals about the mosquito,
protective measures, dengue virus and vaccine.

920600000 03
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Crean "kit" de herramientas para educar sot
combatir la propagacion de esta enfermeda
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Crean "kit" de herramientas para educar sobre el dengue y como
combatir la propagacion de esta enfermedad
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Pictures of Health Guardians activities. Talks in collaboration with CDC, Department of Health and
Department of Education.
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ENTOMOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA
(ESA) PROJECT

PRVCU received an award from the ESA - Chrysalis Fund to
conduct a project titled: “Promoting citizen science through
monitoring of the Ae. aegypti by high school students”. In this
project, we are training students in a secondary school from
the Department of Education in San Juan, Puerto Rico. The
objectives of the study are:

1) to achieve awareness and understanding of Ae. aegypti and
the pathogens that they transmit and the environment in which
they breed and live;

2) increase understanding of the physical control of immature
stages of Ae. aegypti; and

3) demonstrate scientific skills such as careful observation,
scientific illustration, data collection, and written/oral
expression.

To achieve these goals, before the implementation of the project
a Knowledge, Attitudes, and Practices (KAP) survey about
vector management, biology, and vector-borne diseases were
administered to the students. They participated in educational
modules about the biology, identification, surveillance, and
control of Ae. aegyptiand the use of mobile app to conduct
yard inspections.

They built an adhesive trap for gravid female mosquitoes and
evaluate if the color trap (red, blue, and black) can attract
different numbers of mosquitoes. The students deployed
twelve traps (four for each color) in different places in their
school. The surveillance had a duration of nine weeks (March
28 to May 23). They identified the mosquito species caught and
determine the abundance of Ae. aegypti and the risk of dengue
virus transmission in their community through data collection
and PCR analysis. For the next report, the results of this project
will be presented.

_. i
KAP administration and identification of mosquitoes conducted by the
students.
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ENTOMOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA
(ESA) PROJECT

PRVCU received an award from the AMCA to determine the
barriers to people’s behavior change by comparing different
community and educational approaches regarding the
prevention and control of Ae. aegypti in Puerto Rico. Thirty
clusters with approximately 100 structures per cluster from Toa
Baja, Puerto Rico were randomly selected.

Project study area in Toa Baja, Puerto Rico.

Ten clusters will receive a novel Community Engagement (CE)
campaign, ten will receive a traditional CE campaign, and ten
will be control sites for evaluation purposes. A subsample of 5
houses of each cluster has an AGO trap deployed in front of the
house for a total of 150 AGO traps in the study area. Thus, we
will evaluate each campaign’s impact on the vector population
and arboviral prevalence in that population. In 10 houses in each
of the 30 clusters, a KAP survey has been administered to the
head of the household to determine what the residents know,
do, or believe about the prevention and control of Ae. aegypti
mosquitoes; the survey will guide community planning for the
project.

( ) ( )

10 CLUSTER | | 10 CLUSTER

Receive a novel Receive a traditional
Community Engagement CE campaign

10 CLUSTER

Receive control sites
for evaluation process

150

AGO traps in
the study area
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The KAP survey was administered at the beginning of the pro-
ject, before the CE campaigns, to establish a baseline. A second
KAP survey at the end of the project will be administered for a
total of two questionnaires in each of the clusters. When we
administered the initial KAP survey, we also conducted a house
inspection to quantify the number of positive containers with
Aedes larvae on the premises. A total of 106 KAP and yard ins-
pections were conducted during this reporting period. A prelimi-
nary analysis of the results so far tells us the following: 82% of
participants have heard, read, or seen information related to Ae.
aegypti, 18% have not; only 32% of the respondents identify
mosquitoes as a problem in their community; 95% of partici-
pants find some benefit in controlling mosquitoes and mosquito
breeding sites, although not all act on this; 60% of participants
are afraid of contracting a mosquito-borne disease while 40%
have little or no fear.

Yard inspections in Toa Baja.
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PUERTO RICO VECTOR
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION

To date, 212 individuals from different sectors (municipal,
private, academic, among others) have become members of
the Puerto Rico Vector Management Association (PRVMA)
representing 64 local municipalities and eight additional
countries (Australia, Chile, Colombia, Ecuador, Spain, United
States, Mexico, and Pertl). There are 46 municipalities that have
representation from municipal employees (OMME or PRDoH).

Efforts will continue to recruit members using social media
strategies as well as announcements using traditional media.
Every year, all the members receive a welcome kit (poster,
calendar, and others) about the Association as part of the
recruitment and retention process. As part of the benefits, the
members received three orientations about vector control.

On June 2, 2023, the PRMVA was invited by the NMEAD (for
its acronym in Spanish) to the Community Hub Meeting in
preparation for the hurricane season. On this occasion, the
PRVMA had the opportunity to guide the leaders of different
municipalities about mosquitoes and how to prevent them in,
during and after an atmospheric event.

VMA members.

Distribution of kits to the PR

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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ANNUAL CONVENTION OF
VECTOR CONTROL 2022

During this year, the Annual Convention of Vector Control was
held from September 14 to 16, 2022 with the participation
of approximately 200 professionals. On the first, virtual day,
a diverse group of professionals participated who served as
speakers from different countries such as Puerto Rico, United L] §
States, Colombia, Mexico, and the Dominican Republic. £ _ %encié‘n B

! de Contral de Vectores
In addition, the PRVMA instituted the Alfredo Evaldo Casta
Vélez Award, which is given to outstanding field personnel in
vector control in Puerto Rico. The first prize was awarded to
Mr. Carlos A. Febus Castro from the Municipality of Bayaman,

L

Puerto Rico. In addition, a poster submission competition on Puerto Rico
mosquitoes, community engagement and Integrated Vector zoo United States
Management was launched this year. In addition, we had Colombia
face-to-face activities in Bayamoén and Mayagiiez where the Profssionals Mexico
participants were able to put into practice what they had learned Dominican Republic

in the virtual activity and to calibrate their spray machines.
Figure 30 shows pictures of the Annual Convention of Vector
Control 2022.

Pictures of the Annual Convention of Vector Control 2022.
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PRESENCE IN TRADITIONAL
AND DIGITAL MEDIA OUTLETS

The main social media page used by PRVCU is Facebook,

with a total of 16,844 followers. New strategies to increase Social Media Number of Number of
engagement and provide more relevant information include Channel followers fOI!owers
video blogs, social media campaigns, contests, and mosquito (last year) (this year)
facts. Facebook 16,632 16,844
In addition to Facebook, PRVCU has accounts on Instagram and Instagram 950 1,064
Twitter as well as a YouTube channel where digital content has Twitter 303 322
been increased to provide additional material to our followers.
To increase the subscribers to YouTube, a video blogs series was YouTube 432 527
developed to promote the reuse of potential breeding sites and
eliminate them.

r -

Lot mosquitos aman el camblo cimdtico
www.prvectorcontrol.org

A total of 71 videos have been developed and distributed using e +® '
this platform. The channel has 527 subscribers. Moreover, : Wb, m =~ TRANSFORMANDO
PRVCU develops monthly newsletters that has being distributed -&- -4 Crinisia de Masulies gy

to more than 1,200 contacts and special newsletters for the ( ‘@
".}\

|
Culebra project. gﬂ EPISODIO 11
—t

16 '] 844 7 1 G, - - P

Followers Videos developed Posts of various campaigns for social media.

nted fn the
program at

QUALITY ASSURANCE == _ e
DIVISION o e
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The PRVCU has a Quality Assurance Specialist to evaluate
current and future processes for improvement within and across
projects, to identify problems in data management, and to
standardize and implement quality controls. To our knowledge,
the PRVCU is the only vector management program with a
dedicated QA specialist.
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FUTURE PLANS
WHAT’S NEXT?

The new funding will enable the PRVCU to expand its municipal
support. With the projects in Caguas and Culebra winding
down, most of the PRVCU staff assigned to those projects
will be reassigned to municipal support. Meanwhile, the new
Training Center will be starting with the hiring of a Trainer
Coordinator, development of a curriculum, initiation of a
Continuing Education Program, and delivering the program.
The Unit’s administration can now reduce emphasis on grant
writing and emphasize legislative initiatives. These will include
formalizing the MOU with PRDoH into statutes and securing a
tax-based funding stream. Those two items will keep the Unit
viable for the foreseeable future.

PUBLIC HEALTH

The Unit will continue to develop, implement, and incorporate
new technology. For example, a new mobile molecular laboratory
(2024) will be able to assess Wolbachia introgression, insecticide
resistance, and dengue sequences. Other exciting technologies
will also be adopted. These and other measures will produce
a world-class vector management program. One that will
be exhibited to the world at the International Congress of
Entomology in Kyoto Japan in 2024 and at the Annual Meeting
of the American Mosquito Control Association in 2025.

THE PRVCU PROGRAM WILL BECOME A
MODEL OF EXCELLENCE TO THE WORLD!
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More importantly, we initiated new projects with new and
additional funding partners and these projects will greatly help
in our fight against mosquito borne diseases in Puerto Rico. The
Unit continued to grow its reputation through major recognition
and awards, and this was reflected in the Unit being named as
a national training center for vector management. The coming
year will see the Unit continuing to execute its mission while
building on the successes achieved this year.
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PUERTO RICO
CONSORTIUM FOR
b‘ CLINICAL INVESTIGATION

®
o”

PRCCI

Puerto Rico Consortium

for Clinical Investigation WHAT WE DO
MISSION AND VISION

The Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical Investigation (PRCCI) has
a clear vision which is to become the preferred partner for the
implementation of clinical trials in Hispanics.

Our mission is to promote and expand clinical research activities
optimizing the quality and speed of execution; leveraging strate-
gic partnership (in and outside of Puerto Rico); establishing best
practices to conduct clinical trials; building capacity and creating
new job opportunities; and educating patients, sponsors and re-
search professionals. These combined efforts result in a direct
and indirect impact in inclusion of Hispanics in clinical trials.

HOW WEDOIT

Ourvalue proposition focuses onthe continuous growth of clinical
research to deliver safe, timely, effective, efficient, equitable pa-
tient-centered clinical trials. PRCCI has access to a large network
of strongly committed and experienced investigators in Puerto
Rico; serves as one-point of contact for sponsors for quick and
effective start-up processes; offers an array of local services such
as quality assessment and validation, study monitoring, patient
recruitment strategies, contract and budget negotiations,
invoice and billing, clinical trials management system, regulatory
and staffing support; educational and capacity building for
healthcare professionals and other staff to share best practices
and tailored sessions for advocacy groups.

Are you interested in clinical
investigation in Puerto Rico?
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WHO WE
CONNECT WITH

— e

s

Arobust network of connections encompassing
various stakeholders within the clinical research
ecosystem in Puerto Rico and internationally.

Healthcare providers allow access to a diverse
patient populations, ensuring the broad
representation necessary for comprehensive
clinical trials. We support the delivery of new
opportunities to patients while promoting
capacity building. Also, forging strategic
alliances with pharmaceutical companies
that facilitate us to gain access to innovative
therapies while making them accessible to our
population.

PRCCI also partners with academic institutions
that enable us to leverage the expertise of
researchers, professors, and students. These
strategic connections empower us to make
significant strides in advancing clinical research
and improving patient outcomes in Puerto Rico.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of our commitment to the continuous growth and
expansion of clinical research in the island, the Puerto Rico
Consortium for Clinical Investigation (PRCCI) has been
actively focused on sharing our vision and mission through
various means. Carefully selecting scientific congresses and
conventions in the United States and Puerto Rico with the main
goal of attracting new opportunities to our island and continue
strengthening the clinical research ecosystem has been one of
our strategies. Increasing our presence in digital and non-digital
platforms and engaging with patient advocacy groups could
very well increase patient participation and retention in studies
executed in Puerto Rico and we are pursuing this venue.

After seven (7) years of the creation of PRCCI, the partnerships
achieved both locally and abroad are a testament to our
dedication for Puerto Rico to become a beacon of clinical
investigation for the Hispanic population. Continuously
searching for possibilities outside of the consortium division
undoubtedly became the focus, for example, to operate as a
clinical research organization (CRO).

PRCCI aims to be the first PR based CRO to provide specialized
research services to the pharmaceutical, biotechnology, and
medical device industry ina US territory regulated by the highest
standards of quality and compliance. The goal is to locally
provide services, including but not limited to clinical monitoring,
data and document management, regulatory support, protocol
development, among others. PRCCI is already in negotiations
with US based companies of research and development to bring
innovative trials to Puerto Rico.

To further understand our potential for growth on the island,
it was necessary to understand the history of clinical research
in Puerto Rico as a whole. A renowned economic researcher
and data scientist, Dr. Mario Marazzi, PHD, conducted a project
which included an economic analysis of the current clinical
research ecosystem in Puerto Rico and how PRCCI contributes
to the financial growth of this segment directly and/or indirectly.
The results of this analysis demonstrate a steady growth in this
sector since the creation of PRCCI.

This year, a delightful collaboration took place with the
support from “Juvempleo”, a youth program developed by
the Department of Economic Development and Commerce of
Puerto Rico. A program that helps undergraduates acquire their
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first work experience in the studied field just before or after
graduation. Also, “Programa de Apoderamiento y Retencién de
Agentes de Cambio” (PARACa) is a program for young university
students, professionals or recent graduates recognized for
their leadership and sense of responsibility for Puerto Rico. The
opportunity is aimed at young people interested in developing
professionally in the social sector. These programs introduced
young talent to provide support in marketing and social media.
Another eight (8) young high school students participated in
our Summer Seminar 2023 aimed at developing interest in the
areas of STEM.

We now move forward to amplify PRCCI’s presence in the US
mainland and Puerto Rico with the expertise of an independent
agency with the capabilities to lead PRCCI through different
channels of marketing in the effort to gain additional exposure
to communicate our mission and expand our access to innovative
clinical trials.

“WE ARE MOVING FULL SPEED AHEAD
TO BRING INNOVATION IN THE AREA OF
CLINICAL RESEARCH TO PUERTO RICO”

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY NUMBERS

Active Studies PR Conference participation US Conference participation
New grant (All of US) Certified CRC’s Webinars
66.7% 132 5
N (1]
Social media engagement increase New followers in social media Patient advocacy activities
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CLINICAL RESEARCH
OPERATIONS

The Clinical Research Operations team continued securing ( )
clinical trials for this fiscal year 2022-2023, focusing on PRCCI’s

main therapeutic areas. The studies were focused on the areas
of oncology/hematology, respiratory, dermatology, infectious
diseases, cardiology, rheumatology, and psychiatry/neurology. CLI N ICAL TRIALS

PRCCI contracted 15 clinical trials for our consortium sites \ J
during this fiscal year. Administrative support was offered to ( \ ( )
the consortium sites including the site selection process. During

this process, we assisted the sites with effective and expedited
completion of feasibility questionnaires and the reduction of +

the aver.age t.urnar.o.und time. The team aI.so. part|C|pated. in Sponsor’s/CRO’s & active studies
site qualification visits from Sponsors providing an effective o .

. ; s clinical research sites
communication between the Sponsor/Site and facilitating the . J L y
budget and contract negotiations for each study. The team - \
surpassed their goal to increase the study budget for each study The team surpassed their goal to increase

by 10% in the per patient total and by 25% in the administrative
costs. PRCCI’s focus was to have a robust pipeline of studies
and it currently has over 35 active studies in the consortium

o = .
network. This has been possible in part by the partnerships 10% in the per patlent total and by

PRRCI has established with different organizations such as new 25% in the administrative costs.
Sponsors/CRQ’s. The team has been directing PRCCI’s overview \ J

presentation for over 25 Sponsor’s/CRQ’s and clinical research
sites, promoting our services and giving exposure to what
Puerto Rico has to offer.

the study budget for each study by

Once again, PRCCI attended the MAGI conference that aims
to train clinical research professionals on topics like contract
and budget negotiations, clinical operations, regulatory
compliance, new tendencies in clinical research, among others.
The importance of PRCCI attending this type of conference is
that our clinical operations team can learn about new fees being
negotiated by sites that can increase the company’s revenue.
Also, this conference provides important training on clinical trial
contracts. Learning from professionals of both Sponsors/CRQ’s
and site’s perspectives on how to negotiate certain sections is
imperative to protect our sites and subjects.

MAGI Conference 2023
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

A continuous priority for PRCCl is the participation in scientific
events in Puerto Rico where we have the opportunity of sharing
general information about clinical research with clinical and
general community, attract potential investigators interested in
clinical research, connect with sponsors, and educate patients.
Leveraging the opportunity in several important local events
such as:

m 10th Annual Respiratory Congress

PR Urologist Annual Convention

19th Annual Bioscience Celebration

21st Annual Convention CMCPR

1st Winter Congress and First Pan American Pulmonary

Hypertension Symposium

m Puerto Rico Alzheimer’s Disease Research Symposium,
among others.

For the second consecutive year, participation in two of the
biggest events in the United States pertaining to the clinical
research could not be overlooked.

First, the World Vaccines Congress celebrated at Washington
D.C.inApril 2023, where we had the opportunity of networking
with pharma, biotech, industry, and academia leaders. Our
participation in the World Vaccine Congress represented a
unique opportunity to connect with a clinical research sites
network located in South America, that is collaborating with
us to fulfill our desire of expanding the Clinical Research
Coordinator Professional Training Program to other countries.

Webinar Puerto Rican women and their participation in clinical research A

Second, PRCCI participated in the BIO International
Convention 2023 celebrated in Boston, MA in June 2023 as
part of the Puerto Rico delegation. This convention had more P DE . | Somane
than 20,000 participants and gave us the opportunity of ON PROFESIONAL ﬁTfJ PRCCI o i
positioning PRCCI as the preferred point of contact for clinical kG
research in Puerto Rico. We are dedicated to defining potential @ Gﬂ =
areas of collaboration with Clinical Research Organizations, Identifica céma puedes ayudar a tus pacient acién Clinica
biotech companies, scientists, regulatory authorities, academic JUEVES | 23 DE MARZO 2023 1 7:00 PM | ZOOM

researchers, and other industry stakeholders interested in PANEIETAS MRS b
coming to Puerto Rico @miﬂ:%w o ®.{z?:_':::]rf;ﬁ'_‘,,_ HERINAR

PR

look at history

!

INSCRIBETE
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RESEARCH
PROGRAM GRANT

The All of Us Research Program, created and fully sponsored by
the National Institutes of Health (NIH) is a longitudinal historic
effort to gather data about a wide variety of people living in
the United States and its territories to improve research and
health. The program aims to examine the role that individual
differences in genes, environment, and lifestyle play in disease
and health, leading to the delivery of precision medicine. The
primary objective is to build a robust research resource that
can facilitate the exploration of biological, clinical, social, and
environmental determinants of health and disease. Today, All of
Us hosts the largest and most diverse dataset of its kind, which
continues to grow daily through a plethora of collaborations
nationwide.

Our organization has been selected as a sub-awardee within
the program through direct collaborations with Yale University
and the University of California in San Diego. More specifically,
PRCCI is now part of the program through a project titled “All
of Us Geographic Expansion to Underserved Areas: Measuring
Costs and Documenting Processes”, which aims to expand the
program into new geographic areas, with a focus on low-income
participants in San Juan, PR, and to rigorously document all
phases of implementing the program at a new institution/site
to provide guidance for new institutions in the future.

NIH Visit February 2023 in the Innovation Building located in the Puerto Rico

Science, Technology & Research Trust.

PUBLIC HEALTH
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Through the aforementioned project proposal, PRCCI was
awarded $544,047 to cover allocations for equipment,
supplies, marketing, and shipping, among other expenses, from
February 1st, 2023, through March 31st, 2024.

PRCCI was awarded

$544,047

Additionally, this budget allows for 100% support for key
program personnel:

\. J

m Project Manager

m Lead Clinical Research Coordinator

m Clinical Research Coordinator

m Data Specialist

m Research Associate.

Moreover, it provides a small percentage of support to other
PRCCI staff that have been key in providing guidance for the
implementation of the program within our organization.

Our current All of Us staff and supporting PRCCI personnel
have been working diligently in all administrative phases of
the program implementation since November 2022. Moreover,
PRCCI hosted the visit of NIH All of Us Research Program
officials this past February, who were thrilled to establish a new
program collaboration model in Puerto Rico.

With a tentative program launch set for mid-August 2023, our
primary objective is to recruit 325 or more program participants
by March 31st, 2024. To achieve, and ideally surpass this
number, we have established a collaboration with Mindful
Medical Research Center, a top-performing and well-experi-
enced clinical research site in San Juan led by Dr. Oscar Soto
Raices and Dr. Paloma Alejandro. Moreover, we will also recruit
patients at our newly established Clinical Research Facility,
which is set to launch in the upcoming weeks.
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PATIENT ADVOCACY

Spreading the message of the importance of clinical research
to the general community is just as important as participating
in scientific events with the medical community. This year, two
roundtable meetings were hosted with leaders of over 20
patient advocacy groups of Puerto Rico. These meetings are
held to continue to better understand patient needs, concerns,
and informational gaps regarding how their participation in
clinical research can mutually benefit the patient’s quality of
life and the growth of innovative medicine. Leaders of each
advocacy group reach out to provide insight on resource
limitations, including language barriers, to educate patients
and how PRCCI can become more accessible to the general
community to address the informational gaps.

As a starting point, the PRCCI website has now a “For Patients”
tab that provides in Spanish, not only information explaining
what clinical research is, its benefits and the different types
of studies available; but also, the segment provides the
opportunity for patients to answer a survey regarding the
perception and opinion on clinical research and provides a list
of patient advocacy groups that they can join.

PRCCI enthusiastically accepted invitations to patient activities PR MS Walk 3k-5k
such as “PR MS Walk 3k-5k” hosted by the Multiple Sclerosis
Foundation of Puerto Rico, celebrated the Clinical and
Translational Research Week in Puerto Rico by participating in a
health fair for patients hosted by SanaCoop Institute and later Inférmate sobre cémo participar en estudios
in the summer joining the Solidarity Walk Against Cancer also clinicos. Aporta a tu bienestar y al de otros
hosted by SanaCoop Institute. pacientes hispanos con tu condicion.

ﬁ[ﬁ PRCCI (PR — PR —

é{Qué es la investigacién
clinica?

Eetiation ptimiras - o4 5on baseuie Lis I s 8 st par

PRCCI website tab: “For Patients”
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CLINICAL RESEARCH
EDUCATION PROGRAM

Due to all the positive feedback received last year, this fiscal
year 2022-2023 PRCCI was energized to provide more digital
content for the medical community. For a third consecutive
year, 41 professionals successfully completed a 10 week/30
hours Clinical Research Coordinator (CRC) training program.
This program included a comprehensive introduction to clinical
research and its core functions. Already eight CRC training
courses have been provided since it first started three years
ago. A valuable resource for health professionals interested
in exploring the world of clinical research. To ensure the CRC
training courses are accessible any time of the year, PRCCI
implemented On Demand pre-recorded sessions for all
individuals interested in the field of clinical research with or
without previous experience in clinical research.

All three webinars were well received last year, and this year
was no exception with the 7 webinars offered. PRCCI worked
diligently to provide digital content of requested topics and a
variety of webinars were offered such as Forum: The Importance
of Clinical Research in Puerto Rico (95 participants), R&D Tax
Incentives and Clinical Research Studies in Puerto Rico cohosted
with the Department of Economic Development and Commerce
of Puerto Rico (98 participants), Pfizer 3D (41 participants),
Productive Leadership (72 participants), Puerto Rican women
and their participation in clinical research (73 participants),
Introduction to Clinical Investigation- Part 1 (32 participants),
Introduction to Clinical Investigation- Part 2 (22 participants),
and Role of the CRC: “Leading the way: Learn the step by step
of how to start a successful clinical study” (51 participants).

Last in order of occurrence but just as important, the second
Summer Seminar was offered to a total of 8 high school
students. The summer seminar was organized for a duration
of 2 weeks centered in topics of science, clinical investigation,
and technology. In addition, other courses were provided to
enhance their professional development in resume building,
job interview techniques, personal finances, communications,
among other topics. PRCCI is passionate about exposing
students to topics of science early on in their high school that
may influence the decision-making of their academic future.

PUBLIC HEALTH
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Professionals 10 Week/30 hours
successfully Clinical Research
completed Coordinator
| CRCTraining Program \

95

Professionals
successfully
completed Webinar of
Clinical Research

8

High School Students
succesfully completed
Second Summer Seminar

174

7 Webinars

433 Participants

Topic

The Importance of Clinical Research in

Puerto Rico

R&D Tax Incentives and Clinical
Research Studies in Puerto Rico

Participants

95

98

cohosted with the Department of
Economic Development and Commerce

of Puerto Rico
Pfizer 3D
Productive Leadership

Puerto Rican women and
participation in clinical research

lIntroduction to Clinical Investigation-

Part 2

Role of the CRC: “Leading the way:

41
72

their 73
22

51

Learn the step by step of how to start a

successful clinical study”
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SOCIAL MEDIA MANAGEMENT

Since early May, PRCCI team members have been managing
all aspects of the official social media platforms for the
organization (Facebook, Instagram, and LinkedIn). Team
members enthusiastically keep track of weekly posts and future
content, highlighting upcoming events and important dates to
be shared with the public.

During this time, the team has consistently followed through
with an average of 4 weekly posts which represents a 66.7%
increase in post frequency and consistency when compared to
previous similar periods. Moreover, our audience engagement
on Facebook has increased by 500% when compared to
similar periods. In two months, we achieved 48 new followers
on Facebook, 41 new followers on Instagram, and 43 new
followers on LinkedIn, numbers which all represent the positive
outcome of a consistent approach to engaging new members
through these distinct platforms. Additionally, our publications
on LinkedIn have attracted 152 key/unique visitors to our page,
which represents a 28.8% increase when compared to similar
visitors. These visitors are mainly professionals whose job
functions are categorized under Research (17.9% of visitors)
and Business Development (11% of visitors).

In today’s hyperconnected world, it is important to note these
numbers and increments have been achieved through organic
means, with no monetary input to promote publications. The
team continues to strive to reach a broader audience in the
upcoming months, particularly with the advent of so many
organizational milestones to be accomplished in the near
future.

Subsidiary of the:

o

Puerto Rico
Science, Tech
& Research Tr

PRCCI

Puerto Rico Consertium
far Clindcal Investigation

iy

B
o’ 1™
Puerto Rico Consortium for Cli
Investigation

1.BK likes « 1.8K followers

PRCCI Facebook page/ PRCCI LinkedIn page

& 67%

Weekly post Increase in
post frequency
Facebook engagement LinkedIn visits have

has increased by increased by

500%

28.8%

ESTUDID ELINICD EN BAYAMON
PARA PACIENTES ADULTOS CON
FALLO CARDIACO CRONICO

icentives and Clinical Research Studies in Puerto Rico

B2 -
@

PROFESSIONAL
TRAINI NC.

R k G]ﬁmm 0

' PROGRAMADE A
P4 ® CAPACITACION PROFE

Certificacion Profesional:

Coordinadores de Investigac
(CRC, por sus siglas en inglés)

22 DE FEBRERO DE 2023 - 26 DE
MIERCOLES | 5:30 PM - 8:00 PM

Mas informacion:
mitzy.gonzalex@preci.org / 787-430-177¢

SEPARA TU ESPACIO

Horas contacto: 30
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FUTURE PLANS
WHAT’S NEXT?

PRCCI will open a modern facility for new and experienced
investigators to perform their clinical trials with the full support
system of the consortium. It will be complimentary, synergistic
and ancillary to other facilities located in Puerto Rico.

Providing capacity building for new investigators and other
clinical research professionals interested in developing skills and
experience under the mentorship of experienced professionals;
a space for investigators interested in receiving ancillary
support to execute their trials and not interested in managing
a site; new opportunity for Sponsors (CRQ’s, pharmaceutical,
biotech, and other companies) in need for additional clinical trial
facilities to implement their studies; and access to equipment
and technologies to manage new tendencies in clinical research
(e.g., decentralized and hybrid clinical trials).

PUBLIC HEALTH

We will also provide highly qualified staff, experienced and
trained in the regulations applicable to clinical research activities
with experienced in clinical trial operations; access to a minority
population with a high prevalence of chronic diseases educated
in the benefits of participating in clinical trials; and additional
infrastructure (back up site) to existing clinical sites who reached
their maximum capacity.
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DIRECTOR'’S POV

Dr. Amarilys Silva - Boschetti,
Pharm.D., BS.Pharm.

This past year required us all to find ways to
adapt to constraints on how we work and
highlighted the importance of our network
of committed partners. However, it is not
our accomplishment alone. We thank all who have contributed
to our success. The mission of PRCCI to expand and enhance
clinical research in Puerto Rico is more relevant than ever.

MEET THE TEAM

Ricardo Garcia, CPA
Finance Lead

Edmagally Villafarie, RN
Clinical Research
Quality Manager

Zulmarie Vazquez, MBA
Research Grants
Project Manager

Ana Gomez
Clinical Research
Quality Specialist

Zuna Maza
Strategic
Communications
Specialist

Jorge Martinez, MPH
Clinical Research
Operations Lead

Mitzy Gonzalez, EdD
Training and HIPAA
Compliance Officer

Sonia Camacho
Operations Manager

Karla Correa
General Accountant
and Business Specialist

We accelerated efforts to develop our research center, catalyze
the development and deployment of new projects, and
strengthen new partnerships with sponsors to bring innovative
studies to Puerto Rico.

This past year required all of us to find new ways to deliver our
training programs and expand our horizons offering trainings to
Hispanic markets outside Puerto Rico fulfilling global demands.
We continue impacting the well-being of our patients while we
make significant contributions to global scientific innovation.

Dayanara Belén, MPH
Strategic Business
Development Lead

Astrid Diaz, MSc
Clinical Research
Manager

Obed Pérez
Business Support
Specialist

Juliemar Aponte
Research Associate
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STEM EDUCATION
& WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM

WHATWEDO

Global economies, innovation, science, and technology
require adaptable, skilled workforces to navigate 21st-century
challenges. The STEM Education & Workforce Development
Program fosters formal and informal approaches to sustain a
healthy K-12 and lifelong learning pipeline through meaningful
partnerships, innovative programs, and educational policy
advocacy to revolutionize the region's educational and
employment systems. It focuses on equity and diversity in STEM
opportunities for K-12 students and skills-building in emergent
technologies open to interested stakeholders, thereby enabling
for success the island's prime asset - its people.

+

Our mission is to advance, connect, expand, and sustain key
initiatives that drive STEM education & Workforce Development
as key components of Puerto Rico’s economic development.

WHO WE CONNECT WITH

As a strategic partner for the innovation, science, technology
and research ecosystem, the program connects with a multitude
of stakeholders to deliver high quality STEM education content,
programs, and services, as well as workforce development pro-
grams specialized in emerging technologies.

PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND RESEARCH TRUST

@6/ STEM EDUCATION &

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

HOW WEDOIT

Connecting with key education, technology and innovation
projects, communities and organizations, engaging in meaningful
work that advances our mission.

Collaborating with key stakeholders to ensure successful STEM,
CTE and Workforce Development initiatives.

Designing informal and formal approaches to learning, training,
and capacity building.

Evangelizing on behalf of innovation, lifelong learning
and professional development as the keys to long-term
socioeconomic development on the island.

~

) )

P
We connect & serve: | | We collaborate with:
m K-12 Students m Schools
m Educators m Academia
m Parents m Communities
m Individuals m Industry

m Nonprofit organizations
. J |\ J

C T AT !
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¥ iF* i
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As we conclude the STEM Education and Workforce Program’s
fifth year, we reflect upon a period of significant growth
and development in our initiatives. Throughout the year, we
welcomed a host of new participants to our programs, kindled
interest in emergent technologies, innovation, and promoted
participants to consider future careers. Our program has
partnered with great collaborators to advance both formal and
informal STEM learning to more than a thousand individuals,
increasing both interest and engagement in our mission.

We successfully completed a substantial portion of the
Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Relief (CDBG-DR)
funded Puerto Rico Ready program, awarding 190 credentials
to low and mid income individuals. Our return to in-person
modalities, alongside enhancements to our hybrid and distance
learning offerings, have ensured continuous, high-quality service
to the public.

Meaningful Learning and Empowerment:
Five Years of Transforming Lives Exploring Computer Science, STEM en la Montafa, and Tech

through STEM Education and Workforce Summer Experience, have continued to cultivate curiosity and

empower the next generation of scientists, engineers, and
Development innovators. Our Workforce Development program, Puerto Rico

Our STEM Education initiatives, including STEM Boxed Kit,

Ready, has progressed significantly in its mission to improve
lives through technology training and education as it changes to

( Y\ ( \ expand its mission and offerings to the public.
Simultaneously, our agricultural initiatives - Academia del Cacao,
Agroecologia para el Futuro, and EcoGather - have demonstrated
. 4K ere our commitment to sustainable farming practices and education.
TEM BO.X? Kit . Teachers in . Academia del Cacao, currently leveraging $50,000 in funding,
New Participants Exploring Computer Science . . . : . .
is moving the cocoa industry forward with sustainable farming
practices and supporting local farmers.
Aswetransitioninto our next five years, we stand more committed
than ever to delivering a wider variety of high-quality STEM
education and workforce development programs. Our vision is
Students in Studentsin to' continue driving Puerto Rico s economic development with
STEM en la Montafia Tech Summer Experience science, technology, research, and innovation at the forefront of
L J L ) ourinitiatives.
Certified in IT, Human Services Engaged in Platforms
& Manufacturing Fundamentals

\ J \ J
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DIRECTOR'S P.O.V.

Jorge A. Valentine, EDP, CAPM Director

In this fifth year, we've welcomed new
participants to our host of STEM education
initiatives, kindling interest in emergent
technologies, helping them experience tools for innovation
and engage in exploration of future careers. In the workforce
development arena, we have completed most of our CDBG-
DR Puerto Ric Ready program, with success stories and 190
credentials offered to low- and mid-income individuals. We
have not only returned to in-person modalities but have had
the opportunity to improve our hybrid and distance learning
offerings for the public. This is a great starting point for the
next five years.

The program’s achievements wouldn't have been possible
without the team's dedication to our mission. In this upcoming
year, we are more than ever committed to delivering a wider
variety of high-quality STEM Education and Workforce
Development programs, underpinning Puerto Rico's economic
development with science, technology, research and innovation
as the driving force behind our initiatives.

i
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STEM

EDUCATION PROGRAM

FOUNDATION PROGRAM

STEM EDUCATION

Our program has increased its scope, making more activities open
to participants across the island, and partnering with relevant
organizations that are working to enable high-quality learning to
occur. During the 2022-2023 year, the STEM Education program
increased its footprint to more than 1,600 participants served
since the program's inception, as well as partnered with recognized
stakeholders like Forward Learning, Holberton School, Caribbean
University, HITN and Expanding Computing Education Pathways
(ECEP).

STEM BOXED KIT

The program that aims to cultivate curiosity, empowering the next
generation of scientists, engineers and innovators, has entered
its third year with the addition of 375 new faces. These carefully
curated kits are delivered free of charge thanks to the kind of
program underwriting from the Medtronic Foundation. They serve
as a comprehensive educational tool, providing students with
hands-on, exploratory learning experiences.

EXPLORING COMPUTER SCIENCE

This collaboration between the Trust, the University of Puerto
Rico and the Puerto Rico Department of Education continues to
be a potent catalyst for education, with 88 teachers deepening
their understanding of the intricate tools and insights to integrate
Computer Sciences into their schools. The progress of these

88 teachers reflects ECS's commitment to continual learning to
elevate the quality of computer science education in Puerto Rico.

TECH SUMMER EXPERIENCE

In our continuing collaboration with Holberton School, this
year, we empower 25 new high-school students to venture into
programming. This immersive program provides a solid foundation
in various programming languages, helping these students initiate
their journey into the digital universe. As they take their first steps
in programming, these students acquire essential tech skills and
ignite a passion that may shape their future career paths in the
technology industry.

SPACE WEEK

In collaboration with HITN and the Puerto Rico Department of
Education, the program coordinated and broadcasted the two-day
event commemorating Space Week. During the event, more than
800 students from public and private schools had the opportunity
to meet and engage in Q&A sessions with astrophysicists and
engineers currently working at NASA.
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STEM EN LA MONTANA

In 2022-2023, our informal learning opportunities returned to
in-person formats this past summer with STEM en la Montana.
As dynamic as ever, the program continues its transformative
journey in education, engaging 48 enthusiastic learners from
the island’s central region. The program, a collaborative effort
between the Municipality of Utuado and the Puerto Rico
Department of Education and facilitated by our long-time
collaborator Emergent Tools, offered students their first
experiences in Virtual and Augmented Reality (VR & AR).

The program's emphasis on hands-on experience enables
the participants to grasp the complexities and potential of
VR & AR in fields ranging from gaming to architecture and
engineering. Focused on bridging the digital divide students in
the mountainous regions experience, the experience opened the
door to innovation and curiosity for students who do not have
access to learn with emergent technologies in the foreground.

RETO MARTE

In conjunction with Caribbean University, the Puerto Rico
Department of Education and Virtual Educa, an international
organization advancing innovative education for all, the Program
sponsored and supported the local competition known as
Reto Marte. In it, 10 public schools from the Bayamdn Region
engaged in a 3-day challenge learning about Mars, the challenge
of colonizing the planet, and developing solutions to reach it
while making it livable. The winning team from this competition
will represent Puerto Rico on the international competition in
Ecuador during 2024.
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HOUSING
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WORKFORCE TRAINING
PROGRAM

R PR READY

WORKFORCE TRAINING PROGRAM

WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT

PUERTO RICO READY

The Puerto Rico Ready program has achieved a significant
milestone in its mission to empower low and mid income
individuals. Entering the "last mile" of its Community
Development Block Grant-Disaster Relief (CDBG-DR) funding,
the program has seen a total of 190 participants gain valuable
credentials in several high-demand fields. This includes
Information Technology (IT), Geographic Information Systems
(GIS), Drone technologies, Human Services, and Manufacturing
Fundamentals. PR Ready underscores the Trust's commitment to
improving lives through relevant emergent technology training
certificates and credentials.

'[:"rqn'- frmy
TR e
b
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AGRICULTURE
INITIATIVES

ACADEMIA DE CACAO ‘I

CADEMIA

In the past year, our agricultural
initiatives have achieved great D

traction, reflecting our commitment to sustainable farming
practicesand education. Academiadel Cacao, currentlyinits pilot
stage, is successfully leveraging $50,000 in funding, marking
a significant step in our mission to move the cocoa industry
forward as a relevant agroforestry practice. This investment
is poised to stimulate innovative developments in the sector,
fostering sustainable farming practices and supporting five (5)
local farmers. This phase of the project will drive much-needed
research and demonstrations to ensure that the industry can
effectively respond to evolving market demands.

. Agroecologia
AGROECOLOGIA nara el Futuro
PARA EL FUTURO

Our Agroecologia para el Futuro project has been actively
engaged in a comprehensive status and state analysis of
agroecological practices. The project's aim is to gain an in-
depth understanding of farming practices, thereby identifying
strategies to enhance productivity, diversity, and sustainability
in agriculture.

ECOGATHER % EcoGather

We are thrilled to announce that the Trust has successfully de-
veloped and integrated four (4) agroecology courses into Ster-
ling College’s EcoGather initiative. This pioneering platform
provides online educational content to diverse global audien-
ces, with our courses now reaching learners in countries like
India and Bhutan.
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WHAT'S NEXT
" We are mOVing As we look towards the future, we are excited to expand our

impact, offering enhanced opportunities in STEM learning and
workforce development. This ambition involves scaling up our

to Wards Sca/e and existing STEM programs, expanding our service base, continuing

to open learning opportunities in emerging trends and expanding
our catalog of services to reach a broader market. New projects

better Opportunities for 2024 include a collaboration with the Department of

Economic Development's 21st Century Techforce, as well as

. . the development of more credential options on our workforce

In STEM /earnlng program, Puerto Rico Ready, which has set a significant
benchmark in workforce development, and we will open our
offer to a wider audience interested in new training courses in

and WO rkforce high-demand fields such as cybersecurity, cloud computing, and
data science.

We will work to advance supportive policies in multiple scenarios

n
Development. conducive to improving outcomes in science, technology,

innovation, and the future of work.
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MEET THE TEAM

Jorge A. Valentine, EdP. CAPM
Director, STEM Education &

Workforce Development Program

Frances Zendn Meléndez, PhD
STEM Director

Adriana Santiago Morales

Program Operations Support
Manager

Gilmarie Mendoza Robles, EdP
PR Ready Program Manager

Lorraine Negroni Herndndez

PR Ready Program Coordinator

Nayla Bezares Saker

Agricultural Initiatives Program
Manager
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Meetups have become a dynamic platform to identify a variety
of issues, from pressing social concerns, like waste management
and the protection of our environment, to promising scientific
and technological advancements, like in the bioeconomy.
We identify, reach out, and engage scientists, researchers,
inventors, academics, teachers and students, subject matter
experts, as well as leaders from civil society and the private and
public sectors, and hone our guest lists to ensure top quality
speakers. Our pre-production research allows us to curate topics
to enhance a facilitated dialogue that allows us to share and
learn by way of the comparison and contrast of ideas that affect
our communities and businesses as we identify challenges and

give shape to solutions.

A robust knowledge economy based on a community that thrives
on its diversity and creativity as the pillars of our social wellbeing
and economic prosperity.

To foster productive dialogues that lead to innovative solutions,
ultimately enhancing the well-being of citizens and driving
sustainable economic development.

Meet-Up : La Ciencia de Comunicar
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Puerto Rico Research and Innovation Meetups
Program finishes its eighth year of successful outreach and Meetup Program Annual Attendance
dialogue with a diverse audience of scientists, researchers, (2015-2022)

teachers, students, business leaders and public servers, as
they are important stakeholders of emerging ecosystems
that have a high potential of enabling new scientific, 460
business, and civic activity that leads to citizen wellbeing

and economic development. The program remains

committed to increasing social capital, shared leadership, 6 177 206
collaboration, and promoting innovative business practices 123 83

within Puerto Rico's emerging ecosystems.

The graph belowillustrates attendance levels to adiverse agenda 2015 2016 2017 2018 2015 2020 2021 2022 2023
of facilitated discussions in our Meetup events (2015-2023).
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MeetUp Program - Attendance (2015-2023)
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DIRECTOR'S P.O.V.

In the face of global challenges and uncertainties, we have focused on leveraging the expertise and dedication of Puerto
Rico's knowledge economy stakeholders to drive meaningful change. Through successful meetups and special projects, we
have engaged stakeholders, addressed pressing challenges, and explored opportunities for sustainable development. Our
audience base has expanded, and we have facilitated knowledge exchange, particularly in the fields of the bio-economy and
science communication. Notably, we have made progress in promoting the B Corporation movement, aligning economic
development with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals. Additionally, our efforts in waste management
and food security contribute to the well-being and sustainability of Puerto Rico. | am proud of our impact and excited
about the future possibilities for positive change and the cultivation of Puerto Rico's social capital.

Ricardo Burgos Ernesto Cruz

Program Director Program Manager
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MEET-UPS PROGRAM IMPACT
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This year we facilitated 4 Meet-up events, with one of them being our first in-person event since the Covid pandemic:

END OF LIFE PHOTOVOLTAICSYSTEMS

The End of Life Photovoltaic Systems Meet-up was produced
in collaboration with Interstate Renewable Energy Council
(IREC), Asociaciéon de Consultores y Contratistas de Energia
Renovable de Puerto Rico (ACONER) to address the challenges
and opportunities associated with the disposal and recycling of
photovoltaic system components. The event brought together
industry experts, researchers, and policymakers to discuss
sustainable strategies for managing end-of-life photovoltaic
systems and maximizing their environmental and economic value

BIO-ECONOMY MEET-UP

The Bio-Economy meetup was produced in collaboration with
InvestPR and New Lab, to explore the potential of bio-based
industries and their contribution to a sustainable and circular
economy in Puerto Rico. The event facilitated discussions on bio-
based innovations in the use of sargassum for the development
of value-added products, the production of biochar and its use in
soil remediation practices, the development of biomaterials for
their use in the creative industries, and the development of bio-
based solutions for the agricultural sector.

SCIENCE COMMUNICATIONS MEET-UP

The Science Communications was a collaborative effort between
Universidad del Sagrado Corazon and the Trust. It was also
our first in-person event since the Covid pandemic as we aim
to bridge the gap between scientific research and the general
public. Through interactive discussions and presentations, the
event focused on effective science communication strategies,
emphasizing the importance of clear, engaging, and accessible
communication to foster public understanding and support for
scientific advancements.

TRANSFORMATIONAL TECHNOLOGIES

The Transformational Technologies meetup was produced in
collaboration with Puerto Rico Blockchain Trade Association and
Evolving Space, a nonprofit organization that develops Web 3.0
groups in colleges and universities. This meetup was designed
to explore and build awareness of cutting-edge technologies and
their potentialimpact on various sectors in Puerto Rico. The event
featured discussions on the development of Web 3.0 applications
with a special focus on artificial intelligence, blockchainand NFTs,
highlighting through case studies,opportunities for innovation,
entrepreneurship, and economic growth.
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B CORPS IN FORMATION MEET-UP

The B Corps in Formation Meetups, four in total, were produced
in collaboration with B Labs (US & Canada) and Sistema B
Latam to elaborate on the concept of B Corporations and
their role in promoting social and environmental responsibility
within the business community. Besides successfully gathering
entrepreneurs and business owners interested in becoming B
Certified the events are part of a broader strategy to promote the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals and for business
to become a force that drives sustainable economic development
in Puerto Rico. The events provided insights into the process of
becoming a certified B Corp, shared success stories of existing
B Corps, and encouraged collaboration among entrepreneurs
interested in using business as a force for positive change.

Salient Achievements of the Program for the past year include:

m Increased stakeholder engagement. The program has
successfully expanded its stakeholder base, fostering
a diverse and inclusive community of researchers,
entrepreneurs, policymakers, and industry professionals
invested in Puerto Rico's research and innovation landscape.

m  Meaningful dialogue. The meetups have facilitated
constructive  discussions, knowledge sharing, and
collaboration, contributing to the development of innovative
solutions to local challenges.

m Ecosystem Mapping and State of Development. These are
integral components of our initiatives at the Puerto Rico
Science, Technology & Research Trust. We have effectively
mapped and assessed emerging knowledge economy
ecosystems in Puerto Rico, gaining valuable insights into
their current state of development. The knowledge and
visibility we acquire through ecosystem mapping enable
the Puerto Rico Science, Technology & Research Trust to
identify key areas that require support and intervention.
This information guides the Trust in strategically allocating
resources and designing support strategies that can drive
the successful development of these ecosystems.

m Knowledge dissemination and awareness building. The
program has played a vital role in disseminating knowledge,
promoting best practices, and creating opportunities for
networking and partnerships among stakeholders.

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG



PRSTRT PROGRAM SUPPORT

.@ ANNUAL REPORT FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

Beyond dialogue facilitation, the Meetups Program is also committed to remaining a transversal supporting unit to other PRSTRT
programs. This year our engagements supported eight (9) PRSTRT programs, as described below:

Science Communications Meetup

The highlight of our program collaborations was the participation
of 7 PRSTRT programs in one event: our Science Communications
Meetup, which was produced in collaboration with Universidad
del Sagrado Corazén, with a special guest participation from the
Department of Marketing and Communications, we hosted the
Center for Rising Seas, the Center for Tropical Biodiversity, the
Puerto Rico Public Health Trust, Research Grants Program, the
Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical Investigation, and the Puerto
Rico Vector Control Unit.

Center for Tropical Biodiversity

Production of a Bioeconomy Meetup.

Colmena 66 - Creative Economy Project

In collaboration with the Colmena 66 program and the
Municipality of San Juan, the program organized a creative
economy event. The event brought together key creative
entrepreneurs, directors of cultural institutions, and San
Juan representatives. The agenda centered on discussing the
challenges and opportunities faced by creative entrepreneurs in
San Juan, as well as exploring ways in which the city can support
their success and overall development. The event aimed to foster
collaboration, networking, and knowledge exchange within the
creative economy sector.

SPECIAL PROJECTS

In addition to organizing Meetup events, our program actively engaged emerging opportunities as special projects, which are driven
by the partnerships and collaborations that arise from our conversations and are centered around areas with strong potential to
positively impact the well-being of Puerto Rico's citizens. The Meetups Program continues to engage these initiatives to improve
PRSTRT's program’s outreach leadership and leverage economic growth and impact. During the last year we engaged three multi-
stakeholder sector special initiatives along three core areas explained below:

Waste Management Project

Developed in partnership with the Syracuse University
Center for Sustainable Community Solutions / Environmental
Finance Center and Generacion Circular, the first interactive
geo-referenced map of recycling locations in Puerto Rico. This
map serves as a comprehensive resource for citizens, providing
information on recycling facilities and the materials accepted
for recycling. The initiative aims to facilitate recycling efforts
by educating citizens about recycling practices and making it
easier for them to find nearby recycling centers. By promoting
recycling and proper waste management, the project contributes
to Puerto Rico’s sustainability.

Social and Solidarity Economy Project

The program conducted four encounters with entrepreneurs who
expressed a strong interest in becoming certified B Corporations.
These events provided a platform for aspiring entrepreneurs
to learn about the benefits of becoming a certified B Corp and
gain insights from mentors experienced in the process. The
encounters aimed to foster a greater understanding of the

FOUNDATION PROGRAM

social and solidarity economy and the significance of B Corp
certificationin promoting social and environmental responsibility.
The program played a crucial role in facilitating the knowledge
transfer and networking necessary for entrepreneurs to pursue
their certification goals.

Salient Achievements of our Special Projects include:

m Shared leadership and Collaboration.  Successful
collaboration with Colmena66 and the Municipality of San
Juan to promote the creative economy and support creative
entrepreneurs in San Juan.

m Datavisibility. Development of aninteractive geo-referenced
map of recycling locations, enhancing accessibility to
recycling facilities and promoting responsible waste
management practices.

m Networking. Facilitation of four encounters with
entrepreneurs interested in  becoming certified B
Corporations, providing valuable guidance and mentorship
on the process and benefits of certification.
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FUTURE PLANS

As the Puerto Rico Research and Innovation Meetups Program
moves forward, we remain committed to addressing critical
challenges and fostering collaboration within Puerto Rico's
emerging ecosystems. In the coming year, we will continue to
organize impactful meetups, undertake special projects, and
further support the growth and development of the creative
economy, waste management initiatives, Puerto Rico’s food
security, and the social and solidarity economy. We express our
gratitude to all participants, partners, and supporters who have
contributed to the success of our program, and we look forward
to another year of fruitful engagement and impactful initiatives.

For the upcoming year (2023-2024), we have outlined a work
pipeline focused on expanding the audience base, producing
meetups events, and conducting in-depth reviews of emerging
ecosystems, as the program aims to stay on top and engage
emerging topics and opportunities that align with global trends
while promoting the development of Puerto Rico's research,
science, and technology sectors. Topics of discussion include:

m Advancesinprecisionagriculture and controlled environment
farming. To explore innovative techniques and technologies
to enhance agricultural productivity and sustainability.

m Climate technology to address climate change and rising
seas impact on Puerto Rico. To examining solutions and
innovations to mitigate and adapt to the effects of climate
change.

m  Well-being economy. To promote a holistic approach
to economic development that prioritizes well-being,
sustainability, and social impact aligned with the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goal.
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m Addressing the senior citizen population through science,
research, and technology. To explore advancements in
healthcare, technology, and social services to cater to the
needs of the aging population.

m Remote sensing. To leverage remote sensing technologies
and applications to gather data and insights for various
sectors and challenges.

m B Corp Certification. To launch the first B Corporation
certification cohort with the aim to support entrepreneurs
and business owners in their B Corp certification efforts.

m In-Depth Review of Emerging Ecosystems. The program will
conductacomprehensive review of the emerging ecosystems
that have been previously addressed over the past seven
years. This review will assess their development, and current
state, and identify opportunities for future support. By
understanding the progress and challenges faced by these
ecosystems, the program can provide targeted assistance
and guidance to foster their continuous growth and success.

By focusing on emerging topics and conducting in-depth
ecosystem reviews, the program aims to stay at the forefront of
global trends and contribute to the sustainable development of
Puerto Rico's research, science, and technology sectors. We are
excited about the opportunities that lie ahead and look forward
to engaging with our stakeholders and supporting the growth of
Puerto Rico's knowledge economy emerging ecosystems.

We extend our gratitude to all participants, partners, and
supporters for their contributions to the success of the program
and look forward to another year of meaningful engagement and
impactful initiatives.
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SCIENCE CITY

WHAT WE DO

Science City is to become a globally recognized innovation
hub connecting and integrating Puerto Rico science and
technology ecosystem. As a multidisciplinary international
center of collaboration, it will inspire new ideas, inventions and
enterprises, resulting from its vibrant and rich environment to
innovate, work, and live.

The Science City,
approximately 69 cuerdas
of land, is a project that
seeks to convert the estate
of the former Oso Blanco
State Penitentiary into a
central point of economic
development. It will be
a  high-tech
research complex that

will house facilities and mixed uses to enrich and facilitate
the lives of its users, such as high-tech laboratories and
spaces for the development and production of new ideas
and products ("incubators of ideas"), a hotel, a confe

rence center, offices, a civic center with an elementary and
intermediate level school, commercial premises, multi-family
housing, recreational areas and a linear promenade.

"Cuerdas" of land

The Science City is located in the geographic center of the
San Juan metropolitan area. An important element due to its
strategic location is its proximity to the Puerto Rico Medical
Center, a structure of seven important medical care facilities.
These include the Comprehensive Cancer Center, the Veterans
Hospital, the Medical Sciences Campus of the University of
Puerto Rico, and other important facilities.

There are three main zones within the proposed development
of the Science City. On both sides of the Old Oso Blanco
Penitentiary is a development area of laboratories totaling
approximately one million square feet, centered around the
intersection of the main north-south axis. Other smaller-
scale retail businesses are distributed throughout the
development, particularly along the perimeter of the central
park of the Science City. Medical/professional office space

with .

scientific  \ J
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anchors the development to the north and south with highly
visible towers marking the entrances to the development.
Given the similarities in parcel size requirements, professional
office and laboratory areas can be swapped as needed.

The Science City is defined by a series of main roads. These
roads are: the Luis A. Ferré Highway (PR-18-Expreso Las
Américas), Avenida de Diego and Highway PR-21. In addition,
it is located in the area of the Cupey Urban Train and Medical
Center stations.

HOW WEDOIT

To support private development efforts to attract
tenants to Science City, developers of the Site can take
advantage of numerous tax incentives including:

m Full real estate tax abatement.

m Full sales tax abatement on construction materials and
capital equipment.

m Full exemption from Federal Income Taxes for bona fide
residents of Puerto Rico and Puerto Rican corporations.

m Competitive tax incentives to attract investors, tenants
and employees.

Science City specific incentives:

m Up to $250,000 of the compensation received by
eligible researchers/scientists residing in Puerto Rico
and conducting work within the Puerto Rico Science
District created by Act No. 214 of 2004, as amended
will be exempt from Puerto Rico income taxes (Section
1031.02(a)(27). This exemption is independent and
separate to the other incentives discussed herein.

m Sales tax exemption on construction materials and capital
equipment (11.5%)

m New Tax Market Credit Eligible Location

PRSCIENCETRUST.ORG
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ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2022-23

7 preci

AP SV [ CLINICAL

PRCCI CLINICAL RESEARCH CENTER W\ pis I : E?IE‘“H
m New clinical trials office space is at the 1st Floor of the TER
Innovation Center. P4

m The contract amount was $460,000.00.

m The project is completed.

WHAT’S NEXT?

Department of Security

The PRSTRT will rent the parcels B-1 and B-2 to the Depart-
ment of Security. They will build a Safety Room and the Emer-
gency Operation Center for Puerto Rico. It would be 200,000

FORWARD CENTER PROJECT <quare feet buiding,
Contract Amount

s 6 986 47 6 67 Science City Boulevard
) | ) | u The Science City Boulevard will be a road that consists of a
The project is completed half (1/2) mile, of a right of way of 29.3 meters, located in
. ) Science City. This boulevard will consist of four (4) lanes to ac-
- N commodate vehicular traffic from two directions. This propo-
TEMPORARY PARKING FACILITIES sed pathway will include landscaping, a bike lane on the west
side, wide pedestrian-facing sidewalks with street furniture.
In addition, it will include a new bridge over Highway PR-18
60 new parking spaces (Expreso las Américas), which will enable its continuity, from
its beginning at the north entrance of the Science City project
$603,471-00 Contract amount on Highway PR-21, towards the segment of the boulevard

which is currently being built in front of the Comprehensive
Cancer Center. This extends towards the south entrance of the
Medical Center. This boulevard is essential to continue the full
development of the Science City.

80% Project completed

RESEARCH INSTITUTE CORE
LABORATORIES PROGRAM TEAM

New laboratory space is at the 1st Floor
of the Innovation Center.

$900 ,000.00 Contract amount

The project is in progress

Eng. Jerry Meléndez Sardiina
Chief Facilities Management Officer
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PRCCI Clinical Research Center
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DESIGN, MARKETING &
COMMUNICATIONS

The Communications & Marketing division, also known metrics and results; we aim to bring the organization closer
as DMC (Design-Marketing-Communications) defines the to diverse audiences so that our work is easily understood.
communication strategy for the Puerto Rico Science, Technology The Trust is a brand of respect, results, and credibility. Our
& Research Trust, and its programs. Guided by the strategic goal is to continue to grow and strengthen our organization’s
pillars of Research & Development, Entrepreneurship, Public presence as the leading scientific entity on the island.

Health and our Foundation programs, we give visibility to
the discoveries, achievements and talent that form the Trust.
Through communication and marketing initiatives, we bring to
life the mission of our organization, building upon the visibility,
credibility, and achievements of the Trust and its programs.

Puerto Rico and the world recognize the Trust as a facilitator and
reference forinnovation, thanks to our growthin communications
and marketing channels.

WHAT WE DO

With the support of our creative resources and talent, we
promote the Trust’s brand, purpose, and individual program
objectives. DMC's core team capabilities include:

m Brand identity and design m Photography

m Content development m Event production and

m  Social media support

m  Websites and blogs m Video Editing & Production

m Channel strategy and m Podcast Production
campaigns m  Many other services

m Audio, video and interactive

productions

DIRECTOR’S POV

Lupe Vdzquez,

Chief Communications

& Marketing Officer

In the changing communications
and marketing landscape, it is
important to have a talented team
equipped with the best technological
tools available and the social skills
necessary to connect with diverse
directors’ group to communicate
what they do for the organization
as program directors. We have
consistently  obtained  optimal
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SUMMARY

We highlight the outstanding accomplishments of the DMC
team. From strategic communication and innovative marketing
campaigns, to customer relationship management and event
production. Our communication team elevated our brand
presence and engagement.

The Trust has a total of 20 communications and marketing
positions, including regular employees and service
contracts. Of the PRSTRT's 16 programs, 11 programs
are supported 100% by the core Communications and
Marketing (DMC) group, which also defines, strategizes and
manages all communications and marketing tasks for the
Trust, as an organization and on its social media channels.

The core DMC group consists of 8 people. They currently
support in this proportion the following programs: STEM (50%),
Research Grants Program (20%); Meetups program (20%);
Caribbean Center for Rising Seas, (10%). SBIR and Biodiversity,
depending on the month, can be 5% to 10%. We have 12
positions fully dedicated to five programs, such as Parallel18,
Colmena66, PRCCI, PRVCU, and PRPHT. For internal audiences,
such as employees and staff members, DMC also supports the
development and delivery of marketing materials, events, and
newsletters that promote an organizational culture aligned with
our values and vision.

The communications and marketing team has demonstrated
exceptional proficiency in managing a core group of vital
operations, for the Trust and 10 programs, including
communications, marketing, customer relationship management
(CRM), and event coordination. Their efforts have resulted
in significant achievements and have helped elevate the
organization’s brand presence and customer engagement to new
heights.

m Strategic Communication: The team has effectively
developed and executed communication strategies
that align with the organization’s goals. They have
consistently delivered clear and compelling messages to
the target audience through various channels, such as email
newsletters, press releases, blog posts, and social media
updates.

m Innovative Marketing Campaigns: Leveraging their
creativity and market insights, the team has devised
and implemented innovative marketing campaigns that
resonate with the target audience. These campaigns have
led to increased brand awareness, customer acquisition,
and improved conversion rates. Examples of this are STEM

#WEARETHETRUST
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Boxes efforts, for STEM & Workforce program, Research
Grants Programs calls efforts for AGP and Catalyzer
calls, Parallel18 new cohorts’ campaigns, BE Fest digital
promotion campaigns.

Customer Relationship Management (CRM): By leveraging
advanced CRM tools and technologies, such as HubSpot,
the team has strengthened customer relationships and
improved customer retention. A new position was added
to the team, with the CRM Lead, a role that has begun to
implement personalized communication and engagement
tactics, leading to enhanced customer satisfaction and
loyalty. We incorporated a chatbot in the home page of the
website, to answer questions about our programs, events,
sponsorships, jobs & careers, hours, location and facilities.
Some metrics from HubSpot CRM platform: 4 PRSTRT
Programs in HubSpot: 7,840 Contacts registered; 465
Companies registered;30 Registration Forms; 18,000+
Form views; 4,000+ Form Submissions; 515 Conversations.
Social Media Metrics & Achievements: The team has
demonstrated a keen understanding of social media
platforms and stayed on top of the latest trends. Their
adeptness with tools like Sprout Social has enabled them to
monitor social media metrics effectively. As a result, they
have witnessed substantial growth in social media followers,
engagement rates, and overall brand visibility. Some specific
achievements for social media are that we have migrated all
program accounts to a single main organization account:
we share content not only from the Trust, but also from
our programs and we have engagement with audiences in
all active channels. Some metrics are 147,601 followers
for a Total Net Audience Growth of 24.6%, and LinkedIn’s
best growth channel: with 36.9%. More data in social media
graphic summary.

Seamless Events Coordination: The team’s meticulous event
coordination skills, supported by platforms like Eventbrite,
have led to successful and memorable events. They have
organized product launches, webinars, conferences, and
other promotional events that have garnered positive
feedback from attendees and stakeholders. These additional
capabilities round out our team, positioning us as a small
communications, marketing and event production agency.
Email Marketing Excellence: Utilizing Mailchimp, the
team has effectively managed email marketing campaigns,
ensuring a targeted and personalized approach. This has
resulted in higher open rates, click-through rates, and
conversions through email channels. Total audience metric
for this fiscal year in Mailchimp is 96,540, with an open rate
of 47%.

International Projection: In 2022, the PRSTRT was invited
by Invest Puerto Rico to participate in a commissioned
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book, called Innovate Puerto
Rico. DMC oversaw the
compilation of photos, data
and editorial production.
The INNOVATE® publishing
series is a 350-page in-
depth study that showcases
the people, companies,
products, and services
that are leading the race
within a city’s innovation
ecosystem. A book with
an online platform, and
a global network with a
common goal of ensuring
the  best  innovations
and innovation enablers
connect and  succeed.

COMMUNICATIONS

THE BIG

THINK  [JCW [ PharMaCon

GROUP

& MARKETING
# GROWTH METRICS

EARNED MEDIA

Earned media (or free publicity) refers to publicity gained
through promotional efforts other than advertising (paid
media) or branding (owned media). The Trust collaborated this
year with three main media and public relations partners: The
Big Think Group, BCW, Pharmacon & Publicize.

Through these partnerships we were able to gain more than
$3.5M of non-paid publicity for our non-profit organization.

. .. . Media
Agency Non-Paid Publicity Impressions Appearances
The Big Think Group $3,192,595.32 2,702,388 350
BCW $171,200.00 177,682,343 60
Pharmacon $29,500.00 (rate card) 60,000 3

$3,494,608.48 | 181,052,094 | 453

Total Non-Paid Publicity Total Impressions Media Appearances
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35k § 76k

Research & Development Entrepreneurship Public Health Foundation
Followers Followers Followers Followers

148k 96k (12 l®

Social Media Followers Mailchimp Contacts dESIgI‘IS
of PRSTRT and programs with interests aligned to research FWD Summit 2023 | ARG Space Edition
(Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, and development, entrepreneurship, | STEM Box Kit (r?des’gn‘?d)/ YOUTH
Twitter, YouTube and TikTok) public health and innovation. 2050 | ConCiencia Podcast | Agroeco-

logia Para El Futuro

Platforms and organizational licenses that

facilitate the delivery, monitoring, and
Cha n ne I optimization of marketing efforts. Some of
these are:
Landsca pe Web & Admin:  Video & Audio

\Cll\goordlprt;/lss YouTube FideicomisoTV Videos
9 website/landing pages Busii:gg / Z‘:‘ZEZ Videos produced and published at
9 Facebook Pages Social Media & Event Promotion Fideicomiso TV, youtube channel
1 Facebook Group Administration:  and Ticketing: \ J
8 Instagram accounts Facebook Eventbrite ( )
Instagram Virtual Events

7 LinkedIn pages Linkedin & Streaming:

6 Twitter accounts Twitter Streamyard
5 YouTube Channels TikTok Teams +
3 TikTok profiles Sprout Social Zoom

Business Manager Recruiting:

7 monthly newsletters for a eMarketing: ADP Press releases
total of 84 newsletters yearly Mailchimp Indeed . .
Hubspot i submitted to media

CRM & 7.8K 465 30 18k 4k 303 515

Programs  Contacts Companies Registration Form Form Sub-  Calls Conver-
Met"cs inHubspot Registred  Registered Form Views  missions sations

J

The communications and marketing team’s exemplary performance in addressing crucial functions has proven instrumental in eleva-
ting the organization’s brand image, increasing customer engagement, and achieving notable business outcomes. Their proficiency in
harnessing the potential of innovative platforms like Sprout Social, HubSpot, Mailchimp, and Eventbrite has been a key factor in their
success and has positioned the team as a driving force behind the organization’s sustained growth and success.
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https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/business/science-trust-commits-1-8m-to-science-and-technology-innovation/article_d82b8fa0-cab9-11eb-b36d-6bb15c88d961.html
https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/business/science-trust-commits-1-8m-to-science-and-technology-innovation/article_d82b8fa0-cab9-11eb-b36d-6bb15c88d961.html
https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/business/science-trust-commits-1-8m-to-science-and-technology-innovation/article_d82b8fa0-cab9-11eb-b36d-6bb15c88d961.html
https://newsismybusiness.com/puerto-rican-startups-lead-at-p18s-redesigned-gen-x/
https://newsismybusiness.com/puerto-rican-startups-lead-at-p18s-redesigned-gen-x/
https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/opinion/puerto-rico-ranks-no-2-in-u-s-patent-trends-and-tech-transfer-makes-an/article_f8142772-050c-11ec-ab40-07a18be6ba13.html
https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/opinion/puerto-rico-ranks-no-2-in-u-s-patent-trends-and-tech-transfer-makes-an/article_f8142772-050c-11ec-ab40-07a18be6ba13.html
https://www.theweeklyjournal.com/opinion/puerto-rico-ranks-no-2-in-u-s-patent-trends-and-tech-transfer-makes-an/article_f8142772-050c-11ec-ab40-07a18be6ba13.html
https://newsismybusiness.com/colmena66-to-host-virtual-boricua-emprende-entrepreneur-fest/
https://newsismybusiness.com/colmena66-to-host-virtual-boricua-emprende-entrepreneur-fest/
https://www.elnuevodia.com/ciencia-ambiente/cambio-climatico/notas/urge-atender-el-aumento-del-nivel-del-mar/
https://www.elnuevodia.com/ciencia-ambiente/cambio-climatico/notas/urge-atender-el-aumento-del-nivel-del-mar/
https://latinamericareports.com/20-top-accelerator-programs-and-incubators-making-a-mark-on-latin-america/5777/
https://latinamericareports.com/20-top-accelerator-programs-and-incubators-making-a-mark-on-latin-america/5777/
https://latinamericareports.com/20-top-accelerator-programs-and-incubators-making-a-mark-on-latin-america/5777/
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FUTURE
PLANS

m Continuity and improvement of non-paid
publicity results

m Expand communication and marketing
teams’ capabilities through recruitment
and/or capacity building of our teams. We
are working to reformulate a new creative
team structure that includes all talent and
is distributed by pillar to support more
than one program, to better distribute
talent and needs. In this way, we intend
to distribute tasks and enhance internal
talent to continue to exponentiate their
strengths.

m We will conduct focus studies and analyze
the performance of our webpage to make
the necessary adaptations to ensure that
it is an easy to navigate homepage with
the necessary information to know our
pillars.

m We initiated a project for an Endowment
plan to bring in new donors, foundations
and collaborators.

m Improve our customerexperience strategy
maximizing platforms like Hubspot and
Sprout Social.


https://www.linkedin.com/in/lupevazquez/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/ricky-v%C3%A1zquez-manzano-08a20756/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/marieligrant/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/xavierxaos/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/natasharaquel/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/alexandermorales/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/felixnr/
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Strategic Plan 2022 - 2025

Puerto Rico Science Technology & Research Trust

June 17, 2022



Executive Summary

In 2015 the Puerto Rico Science, Technology
& Research Trust completed its first
Strategic Plan 2015-2022. The key strategic
objective of the plan was to increase the
innovation capacity of Puerto. This plan
that was developed with ample
participation from the different
communities we serve: researchers,
entrepreneurs, and partner organizations.
We also used the plan as the foundation to
set the Trust’s human and system
infrastructure as well as to guide the
development and deployment of the Trust’s
existing programs.



New strategic plan

In 2022, as part of the strategic planreview process, we
evaluated how each program was contributing to
advancing the organization’s mission to build capacity to
continually advance Puerto Rico’s economy and its
citizen’s well-being. We also explored and identified
potential synergies between programs. As part of this
review, we enhanced the mission to reflectthe
integration of public health activities, we simplified the
vision, and we are transitioning from a program-centric
approach into a strategic pillar-centricapproach. Each
pillaris building programs and initiatives that in most
cases are complementing each otherto grow with
enormous collaboration potential, creating a cross-
pollination of new solutions and initiatives empowered
by the Trust infrastructure. The pillars are shown in the
slide to the right.



Key Performance Indicators

As part of the review process, we also defined

a set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) from ;
the aggregate KPSs of each programto reflect ~ KPIs Logic
the overall Trust performance. In addition to
working towards meeting the discussed KPlIs, ;

the PRSTRT will make efforts to participatein 1

global indexes and studies regarding Research & Development Entrepreneursiip Public Foundation

. o # of strategic opportunities # of people trained

innovation, research, development, and 4 e tachncloges raed reached ﬁafp%pa:r.ﬂ:;d
H 1 ual r

entrepreneurship, among others. Bet oited i srppiined

research
This strategic business planis a living
document created by the Trust team. A team
characterized by thinking out of the box,
taking risks, building innovation in everything
we do, and always moving forward to advance
Puerto Rico’s economy and its citizen well-
being.
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Strategic Plan Summary

Roadmap of the Science Trust evolution and strategies:

The PRSTRT early days » Life after the hurricane » 2021 and beyond

* Science and research mandate * Professionalization of organization * Reinforcement of our strategy map:
* Research Grants as the first Trust departments (HR, IT, Legal, Finance Mission and Values
Program etc) * Scaling of the organization tonew
* Innovation and entrepreneurship * Growth in entrepreneurship heights, but also a scaling of its impact
Ecosystem mapping (parallel18, Colmena66 and RBI) * Synergies across the organization’s
* Initial Science City Development make it own pillar pillars to find groundbreaking solutions
* The Trust begun to execute its * Programs and Pillars new impact
Public Health capabilities through
PRPHT

* Increasing the amount of external
capital to more than 50% and
beginning the endowment.



Effective and results driven

The Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust is a reputable and effective organization that has
complied with its mandate: keep driving research, innovation, entrepreneurship, public health policies, and
more, on the island. After experiencing accelerated growth in the last six years, it is time to start thinking about
the next six and setting up the right structure to maximize its impact.

The organization has 20+ programs under its umbrella. To define its purpose and messaging it has begun to
group them into four main pillars:

Research Entrepreneurship Public Health Foundation




Who we are

We are a private non-profit organization created in 2004 to encourage
and promote innovation, transfer and commercialization of technology
and creation of jobs in the technology sector. We are responsible for
Puerto Rico’s public policy for science, technology, research and
development.

#WeAreTheTrust prsciencetrust.org



Our Council of Trustees is composed of distinguished professionals who support and

Tr u S t e e s oversee our work and provide guidance to ensure that the Trust us managed within its

mission and vision.

#WeAreTheTrust prsciencetrust.org



Moving Forward
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[ ] [ ]
Mission
We invest, facilitate, and build capacity to continually advance Puerto

Rico's economy and its citizens’ well-being through innovation-driven
enterprises, science, research, public health and technology.

#WeAreTheTrust prsciencetrust.org



[ ] [ ]
Vision
Puerto Rico is a globally recognized innovation
hub.

#WeAreTheTrust prsciencetrust.org



#WeAreTheTrust prsciencetrust.org



Strategy Map

Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust

Organizational Programs and internal proce Financial

capacity synergies stewardship

«  Strengthen internal culture + Transform public health paradigm e Increase Trust fund

«  Enhance governance Expand and clinical trial capabilities availability

*  Enhance staff capacity, capabilities, ¢ Accelerate technology transfer e Increase diversification of
and work environment * Expand entrepreneurship and business funding sources, including

* Leverageon Trust ICT resources to development capability earned income mechanism
get recognized as a data + Evolve STEM adoption and workforce e Increase endowment funds
management powerhouse development e Expand Trust’s financial

*  Continue development of physical * Expand on outreach and accessibility capabilities
infrastructure (Science City) * Enhance strategic partnerships

\ J
I

Plan Objective: Increase Puerto Rico’s innovation capacity



The strategic pillars come to life

The strategic pillars have created a more comprehensive structure to incorporate new initiatives and enhance existing ones consolidatingin
units that have a common pattern. It is important to mention that one of the highlights across the board of the pillars has been an investment
in our governance by including a complete compliance infrastructure and a safety department

Foundation

Research Entrepreneurship Public Health

Increased reach with new
COVID Programs

TTO with new record
patents and Life Science
Accelerator

Solid infrastructure with
tangible results with
Colmenab66 and
Parallel18

New Programs to

Successful Federal funding
raise

Strategic talent attraction
Community driven
approach across the island

STEM program to
strengthen critical thinking
and scientific skills from
the early days of the
school journey

Beginnings of Climate with increase pipeline: Fasel, Telemedicine Pilots ° Science City used to find
Caribbean Center for prel8, and Investment COVID19 SME and specific real estate

Rising Sea Deep tech startups communication projects and host the
Exposing inventions and through SBIR/STTR Vector Control Science Trust

research is still a challenge space to grow performance administration and special
Collecting funds for Exportation for a startup CDC, HHS and Department projects

research it is a growing is still a challenge of Health relationships o Research Meet ups key

opportunity

events and discussions
around critical island
challenges






Program Strategic Plan Research Grants Program

What do we want to achieve?

Empower local scientists and researchers to take
Puerto Rico’s knowledge economyto a higher
level of excellence.

How do we want to achieveit?

Provide seed funding and incentives to advance
locally developed R&D projects to become more
competitive for federal and private funding and/or
commercialization.

How are we going to measure it?

# funded research projects

# of external grants secured after receiving Trust’s funds
(ROI)

# of research assets (publications, patents, students
impacted, PhD dissertations, companies funded,
participation in local/international conferences to present
findings)

# of female researchers participating in the program

# strategic relationships that promote R&D and attract more
fundsto theisland

# of active researchers with a complete profile in BEACON

# of research administrators trained in the pre & post award
grants cycle process.




Program Strategic Plan Scientific Research Institute

What do we want to achieve?

Build an ecosystem that works for the researcher
and to bridge opportunities for collaboration and
evolution

How are we gointo # of research assets

measure it? (publications,

# funded research patents, students
projectsand $ impacted, PhD

# strategic relationships dissertations, companies
that promote funded)

R&D and attract more

fundsto PR

How do we want to achieve it?

We are going to use all powers of Law 214

Designate Scientific Advisory Board

Commission an assessment of the current state of
researchin PR

Create the perfect administrative support

Deploy unique research infrastructure

Attract merit-based intramural & extramural affiliated
researchers

Establish educational and training programs




Program Strategic Plan Technology Transfer Office

What do we want to achieve?

Advance innovations from the lab to the
marketplace in order to benefit the public.

How do we want to achieve it?

Provide best-of-class technology transfer services
in partnership with our academic partner
institutions.

How are we going to measure it?

Performance is measured by using our profession’s standards regarding research
funding, technology transfer activities, and impact of innovation.




Program Strategic Plan Caribbean Center for Rising Seas

What do we want to achieve? How do we want to achieve it?

1. Redefine Professional Knowledge and 1. Outreach, Community Engagement, Education, and
Understanding of Sea Level Rise + Flooding Professional Training Program

2. Update Building Codes, Zoning, and Land Usein 2. Rising Seas Policy Reference and Resource Center
PuertoRico 3. AdvisoryService Program

3. Change Urban Development Practices

How are we going to measure it?

# of Stakeholders Contacted and Level of Engagement in Puerto Rico >>> (Workforce Development)

# of Legislation/Policy/Planning/Educational Standards/Building Standards addressed and modified (Opportunity
Development)

# of Publications, Literacy Tools, Key Reference Documents/Instances >>> (Knowldege Transfer, Outreach)

# of Coastal Communities Engaged in Puerto Rico and Level of Engagement>>> (Mental Health, Research,

Tracking publicand private building projects and level of built-in resiliency and adaptation measures to flooding and SLR >>>
(Research)




Program Strategic Plan Center for Tropical Biodiversity

1)

2)

3)

To establish Puerto Rico as the regional leader in the
development of biodiversity products.

To make biodiversity protection a major component of
the regional agenda for economic development.

To increase the local portfolio of biodiversity-related
companies

1)

2)

3)

Providing key services to companies that develop (or
seek to develop) biodiversity products.

Increasing the scope and value of existing research on
biodiversity-related products.

Building a catalog of biodiversity assets for Puerto Rico
and the Caribbean

licensing pipelines of the TTO.

support.

(NatPORT).

1) Number of biodiversity-related products entering the IP protection or

2) Number of companies developing biodiversity-related products, seeking SBIR




Since 2015, entrepreneurship has been in the DNA of the PRSTRT with programs like parallel18 and
Colmenab66. They have been paving the way for a stronger entrepreneurial culturein theisland,
broader access to capital and technical resources, retention and repatriation of talent, and regional
an international reputation.

With this background and its current status, the Entrepreneurship pillar has a clear new approach of
building a innovation platform

Colmena66 Fasel P18 Ventures
newly launched and Xpand

SBIR/STTR




Parallel18: Prel8 and P18

2016 o o o ® o o o o
Prel8 born
PI8was 40 $14M total $7.8M total  $7.4M total $1.87 M total 3 initial after hurricane
launched Participants revenue revenuein investmentraised Investment investments i
. Maria in 2017 as
PR by companies raised by P18 by P18Ventures _ . ..

companiesin PR
program.

Became a fixed
program in 2018

202 1 @—0— @ L @ - @ o
Prel8
9 291 $189M total $62M total  $126 M total _520 Mtotal 59 3 cohorts
cohorts participants revenue revenuein  investmentraised investmentraised  jnvestments 903 applicants
: by P18 companies  py P18Vent PP
PR by companies inyPR y ENTUres 43% femaleled

47 moved to P18



Colmenab6

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
® @ @ @ @ @
Launch with 160 » Networking Meetings » Tu Camino » FirstBoricua > Levanta Tu Negocio: » Serie deIncentivos
collaboratorsonthe | oyantaTu Negocio: Empresarial(Map) Emprende Fest Terremotos » Acércateal Grant: Fase O
Net Huracan Maria > Tu Camino g %BlR/STTR SBIR Road g CLSV\?PDtiTQU Negocio: » SBA Lab-to-Market: Super

» Shop&Hire Empresarial Tour ~ 'OU" . Connector Award

» PRSTRT Co-Working > Meeting Agro > Recovery Guide » SBIR Growth Accelerator

Industries » COVID-19 L.
Space _ Fund Competition
g —Erruncferg‘anrizr Version » Webinars SBIR » Boricua Emprende Fest
P ‘ » Boricua Emprende Fest Virtual

Agro Virtual: eCommerce Edition
» Personalized Action

In 2021: Plan » Refuerzo PyME

2,212 entrepreneurs served > Entrepreneursup to date
4,275 interactions

7,632 referrals

274.5 counseling hours

7K searches on the network navigator
2,212 entrepreneurs served




SBIR

43

Winning
proposals

8 SOM

Phase ll Total of
obtained funds

5 1% of funds generated are part of the Trust’s
efforts since 2015.

35% of total awards belong to this period as well.

16 total awards were received during this period.



Program Strategic Plan Colmena66

What do we want to achieve?

Everyone in Puerto Rico can start and grow a business.

How do we want to achieve it?

Colmena66 facilitates entrepreneurship by connecting and
building the entrepreneurial community.

We:

Catalyze and facilitate access and resources

Build and connectthe entrepreneurial community

Create and Drive innovation

data, and (5) innovation.

How are we going to measure it?

We have a series of 17 measurable objectives to measure (1) business
development, (2) network navigation, (3) communications and marketing, (4)




Program Strategic Plan: Fasel

What do we want to achieve?

Facilitate and transform new idea generation into proper
innovative businesses (start-ups), and thus creating a
stronger base of successful companies in Puerto Rico.

How are we going to measure it?

# of individuals that participate in FASE1 Lab: 500

# of projects selected to pass to FASE1 Intensive: 50

# of businesses that get into pre18 selection committee: 30 at least

# of training modules developed: 3 permanent, 4+ additional content per
year

# of businesses established

# Number of people hired

Revenue generated & Capital Raised

How do we want to achieveit?

With a dualapproach:

Fasel Lab — an entrepreneurial virtual academy to: 1) change the
mindset of participants into an entrepreneurial mindset 2) provide a
framework and validated knowledge for idea generation 3) provide
tools and resources to facilitate the transformation ofideas into
business ventures; 4) track performance; 5) transform traditional
business ideas into scalable ones.

Fasel Intensive — our 12-weeks curriculumideas incubator programto
1) develop ideas into services or products (MVP); 2) to provide
individual, targeted support to increase successful start-ups
generation; and 3) provide structured tracking of milestones
achievements.




Program Strategic Plan for parallel18

What do we want to achieve? How do we want to achieveit?

To become the leading player involved in the » Raising outside capital from Limited Partners to create
Global Startup Incubation Program by providing a sustainable and profitable program

mentorship, and investment to underrepresented » Adding corporate partners to fund the cohorts and
founders around the globe to turn theirideas into Studio companies

market leading startups.

How are we going to measure it?

# of new startups funded and created by parallel18 programs
# of private capital raised by parallel18 programs

# of Jobs created by starts created and funded by parallel18
programs

# of underrepresented founders funded.

# of companies created by parallel18 programs



Program Strategic Plan SBIR/STTR Federal Grants

* Increase the number of SBIR/STTR awards in
Puerto Rico.

* Create jobs

* Bring funding to support our entrepreneurship
community

Recruiting small businesses and individuals located in Puerto
Rico to participate in the program

Recruiting companies from outside Puerto Rico to establish
on the island

Providing support to companies considering the program
Providing support to companies working on proposals

* Number of awards

* Number of jobs created

*  Amount of funding brought to Puerto Rico




The Puerto Rico Public Health Trust (PRPHT)

The PRPHT has experienced a major positive growth inthe last
two years, driven primarily by the pandemic. The organization
has been able to successfully leverage its expert positions,
building a knowledgeable innovative reputation that has
attracted experienced talented staff, secured key grantors and
funding opportunities, and generated impact by increasing
access to health by empowering communities and formalizing
strategic alliances with external an internal partners

After asignificant 2020 the PRPHT
decided to beginyear 2021
designing how they want to move
forward the next three years,
organizing a week long workshop
involving all the leadership team
of the organization, where they
came up with the most critical
goals and strategies.



Puerto Rico Public Health Trust (PRPHT)

Goals and Strategies Organizational Outputs
Programmatic Programmatic
® Increase presence in our communities for e Health promotion/education curriculums on
health promotion, increase preparedness, and chronic disease; CHW training/certification
decrease disease burden program; All Hazards Center established at PRPHT
e Obtain, collect, and use data to drive our work e Centralized data hub for all PRPHT programs data;
and create initiatives e Two position papers; Two (per year) public health
e Promote, inform the creation of public health policy issues promoted; Attend three
policy, informed by evidence, focused on discussions/formal legislative hearings on public
enhancing health equity and social justice. health policy
® Increase research and opportunities for e Onereport on five most prevalent chronic diseases
research of chronic and infectious disease in in Puerto Rico; One community based participatory
public health. research project conducted.
e Effectively create, implement, and distribute e Onestrategic plan to increase telemedicine
telemedicine and telehealth technology. utilization; One promotion plan for telemedicine

and telehealth adoption; One plan for technology
use in chronic disease health education;



Puerto Rico Public Health Trust (PRPHT)

Goals and Strategies
Operational

e Improve and create effective processes for
operations and management

e Create and maintain PRPHT as a place to work
where one is valued and successful

Organizational Outputs
Operational

One needs assessment report; One operational
improvement plan; One sustainability plan.

One cultural assessment; One culture management
plan; One performance management process;
Individual goals for all staff and contractors; Goals
based performance reviews for all staff.



Vision

Mission

OUR FOUNDATION

Achieve sustainable
health equity in Puerto
Rican communities and

improv e their quality of life
through innov ation,
collaboration, and
community engagement.

Serve as atfrusted ally
working with private and
public partners to identify
and execute community-

led, evidence-based
solutions.

Priorities

Emergency Preparedness,
Recovery and Response

Health Equity
Climate Change

Mental Health
Opioid Epidemic

Emerging Public
Health Issues

Values

Collaboration

Excellence

Innov ation

Respect

Inclusion

Intfegrity

Social Justice

Divisions & Projects

Community
Engagement

Covid
Variants Lab

All Hozards

Telemedicine
& Telehealth

Health
Communica-
tion







Program Strategic Plan Puerto Rico Public Health Trust

What do we want to achieve? How do we want to achieveit?

Achieve sustainable health equityin Puerto Rican Serve as a trusted ally working with private and
communities and improve their quality of life public partners to identify and execute community-
through innovation, collaboration, and led, evidence-based solutions.

community engagement

How are we going to measure it?

We have a series of 28 measurable objectives to measure organizational,
programmatic, and operational strategies.




Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit (PRVCU)

The PRVCU has done a titanic work all over the island controlling the biggest mosquito outrage in the United States. The
key to their successis the generation of close and trustful relationship with local municipalities, the Department of

Health, and the CDC.

The latter has laid down the road to continue to find financing, formalize a collaboration with PRDoH,
strengthen their relationship with municipalities, PRVCU authority for IVM plan development

External approach: Research

Develop an entrepreneurial Shift operational emphasis o
applied R&D arm, industry on vector control to the institutions and Center of
funded, capitalizing on our municipalities. Excellence; Building program

unique situation. with USVI; Collaborations
with Latin America.

\ Path to PRVCU financial sustainability J




Program Strategic Plan Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit

What do we want to achieve?

Striving together for a Puerto Rico free from mosquito-
borne disease.

How do we want to achieve it?

Protect the people of Puerto Rico from the Aedes aegypti
mosquito, while educating and empowering everyone to
dramatically and sustainably reduce mosquito-borne disease
across Puerto Rico.

How are we going to measure it?

Continuing our surveillance system to provide accurate data to stakeholders; strengthing the collaboration with the municipalities and provide
plans for vector management; and completing evaluations and implementation of vector control techniques.

PRVCU laboratory is currently conducting dengue serotype assays (# of assays); # of traps deployed (on-demand); # of mosquitoes and # of human
dengue cases; % of participants completing community assessments (pre and post tests, questionnaires); # of people, schools, communities,
municipalities, collaborators reached/trained/impacted; # of people/municipalities enrolled in the Puerto Rico Vector Managem ent Association.




STEM Education and Workforce Development

These efforts began with STEM programs impacting younger generations and were aligned with the Research and
Development pillar of the organization. Today the Education pillar of the PRSTRT is evolving to focus on Public
Policy, Strategic Partnership, and equitable access to STEM and Workforce Development.

Today, the STEM and Workforce Development program is not only serving an external audience, but the PRSTRT
as awhole.

STEM Workforce Development
e STEM training Teachers ® ISACA Certifications
e Resuelvelo Boricua e Academiadel CACO
e STEMKIT BOX, funding e Puerto Rico Ready (PR-
through MEDTRONIC. READY): CDBG-DR
(Online component) Workforce Development
e Partnership Departamento Grant

de Educacidn e Good Jobs Challenge



Program Strategic Plan STEM Education & Workforce Development

What do we want to achieve? How do we want to achieve it?

STEM Education STEM Education & Workforce Development

- We want the STEM Ed Program to become a source for
public policy leadership and relevant STEM data to inform - By developing appropriate frameworks and practices for
such public policy. public policy.

- Thatthe programcan provide high-quality informal STEM - By developing programs with best practices and
learning for grades K-12. innovative component.

- Thatthe programincludes relevant professional - By establishing effective partnerships.
development opportunities to STEM educators on the - By accessing funding that enablesiit.
island.

How are we going to measure it?

Workforce Development

- To lead the public policy on workforce developmenton STEM Education & Workforce Development
theisland. - By establishing clear KPIs

- To becometheleading programin emergent technology - By developing SMART objectives
certifications for the island. - By conducting formal program evaluations:

- To bethe leader organization in upskilling the - Formative assessments (customer surveys)
IT/Innovation workforce - Evaluative assessments (aligning KPls and

execution)






KPls Logic

Trust level KPIs: fed by the Strategic Pillars

\ J

Research & Development Entrepreneurship Public Health Foundation
# of strategic opportunities # of new companies # of communities /people # of people trained

# of new technologies # of capital and revenue Al o # of people placed
created and protected # of jobs # of Funding Opportunities # Quality of Labor

# of funded and supported # of new public health
research programs




Trust level KPIs: fed by the Strategic Pillars

Research:

#funded/supported

research labs that consequently
are capable of supporting

their research through other
sources, including corporate, non-
profit, and governmental entities.

#research assets that resultin (a)
technologies disclosed, protected,
and transferred from research

labs (differentiate academic v
private) to the market for the public
benefit; and (b) knowledge transfer
outputs (e.g., publications, research
collaborations, consulting ).

#istrategic

opportunities that informs funding
decisions to leverage research
assets and support technology
and knowledge transfer.

Entrepreneurship:

# new companies created
through any of the Trust
programs including the
companies registered and
referred by Colmena66

#Private and public Capital
raised and revenue
generated in Puerto Rico
by the companies
graduated from the Trust
programs

#Employees hired by the
companies supported by
the Science Trust
infrastructure

Public Health:

# resources and funding to
support public health
activities in Puerto Rico

# public health programs and
efforts in Puerto Rico through
formalized partnerships with
the Department of Health and
other governmental entities

#Puerto Rican communities
through capacity building and
training to increase positive
health status for citizens

Foundation:

# individuals trained by the
Puerto Rico Ready program,
STEM and eventually Good
Jobs Challenge

# individuals placed in
different labor
opportunities presented by
the Trust workforce
initiatives

#quality of labor: Increasing
income of participants,
improving in

perceived working
conditions
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F787-759-7479
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The Board of Trustees of
Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust, a
Puerto Rico not-for-profit organization, and its Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2023, the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust and its Subsidiaries as
of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Puerto Rico Science,
Technology and Research Trust and its Subsidiaries and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on July 1, 2022, Puerto Rico Science, Technology
and Research Trust and its Subsidiaries adopted the ASC Topic 842, Leases, issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the net assets as of June 30, 2022 have been
restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Puerto Rico Science, Technology and
Research Trust and its Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX| CONSULTING

RSM Puerto Rico is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network. Each member of the
RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any Jurisdiction.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust and its Subsidiaries’ internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust and its Subsidiaries’ ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

San Juan, Puerto Rico
October 31, 2023.

Stamp No. E554046 was affixed to
the original of this report.
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PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2023

ASSETS:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $58,337

Prepaid expenses

Due from governmental entities

Investments

Notes receivable, net

Other assets

Endowment fund

Property and equipment, net

Right-of-use asset for operating lease, net of
accumulated amortization of $34,198

Building, net

Land and property for research, development and
infrastructure project related to science and technology

Land development costs

Construction in progress - Science City

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Program service payable
Accounts payable
Refundable advances
Accrued expenses
Operating lease liability
Other liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated
Designated by the Board of Trustees for endowment

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
Perpetual in nature

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of financial position.

$

21,109,811

488,982
45,037
1,649,372
4,176,405
419,415
27,261
47,201,182
2,278,702

215,939
14,517,984

18,100,307
11,794,958
11,148,357

133,173,712

1,280,346
2,385,558
2,753,965
479,296
216,086
178,616

7,293,867

49,601,974
47,201,182

96,803,156

10,976,382
18,100,307

29,076,689

125,879,845

$

133,173,712




PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2023

REVENUES, SUPPORT AND OTHERS:
State grants and assessments
Federal grants
Private grants and sponsorships
Donations and contributions
Clinical trials
Rental income
Interest Income
Net return on investments
Net return on endowment fund
Other income

Net assets released from restrictions:
Satisfaction of program restrictions

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Program and services:
Research and data
Public health initiative
Technology transfer and commercialization
Science City development

Supporting services:
Management and administrative

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year (as restated)

NET ASSETS, end of year

Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total

$ 7,285,080 $ - $ 7,285,080
10,596,966 1,532,478 12,129,444
768,048 1,368,831 2,136,879
26,684 - 26,684
91,014 - 91,014
282,279 - 282,279
493,695 - 493,695
170,610 80,719 251,329
2,099,356 - 2,099,356
249,179 - 249,179
22,062,911 2,982,028 25,044,939

1,633,780 (1,633,780) -
23,696,691 1,348,248 25,044,939
4,131,052 - 4,131,052
11,005,778 - 11,005,778
6,684,998 - 6,684,998
108,396 - 108,396
21,930,224 - 21,930,224
5,840,608 - 5,840,608
27,770,832 - 27,770,832
(4,074,141) 1,348,248 (2,725,893)
100,877,297 27,728,441 128,605,738
$ 96,803,156 $ 29,076,689 $ 125,879,845

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement.



PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Program activities

Support activity

Technology transfer

and Science City Management and
Research and data Public health initiative commercialization development administrative Total

Program support:
Capacity builiding and sponsorships $ 184,982 $ - $ 62,650 - - 247,632
Research and development grants 864,059 - 324,188 - - 1,188,247
Matching grants - - 412,500 - - 412,500
Parallel 18 grants - - 2,204,787 - - 2,204,787
Other program initiatives 387,913 3,561,627 780 - - 3,950,320
1,436,954 3,561,627 3,004,905 - - 8,003,486

Personnel costs:
Salaries and wages 1,277,888 2,965,572 1,645,678 17,538 2,197,879 8,104,555
Benefits and payroll taxes 497,560 1,312,069 573,674 3,965 1,029,077 3,416,345
1,775,448 4,277,641 2,219,352 21,503 3,226,956 11,520,900
Professional services 429,537 1,194,968 779,238 66,264 685,577 3,155,584

Occupancy expenses:

Depreciation and amortization 27,446 1,331,921 3,705 1,816 266,338 1,631,226
Rent - 1,000 212,090 - 74,446 287,536
Repairs and maintenance 1,123 - 1,165 16,356 286,977 305,621
Security - - - - 185,313 185,313
Other 3,984 28 14,172 - 529,298 547,482
32,553 1,332,949 231,132 18,172 1,342,372 2,957,178
Travel 54,318 102,363 115,233 - 63,813 335,727
Other 402,242 536,230 335,138 2,457 521,890 1,797,957
Total operating expenses $ 4,131,052 $ 11,005,778  $ 6,684,998 108,396 5,840,608 27,770,832

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement.



PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:
Bad debts expense
Unrealized loss on investments
Realized loss on investments, net
Capitalized income on Endowment fund
Unrealized gain on Endowment fund
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of right-of-use asset for operating lease
Changes in operating assets and liabilities-
Increase in assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Due from governmental entities

Other assets

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Program service payable

Accounts payable

Refundable advances

Accrued expenses

Operating lease liability

Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Advances under notes receivable
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments
Purchase of investments
Contributions to Endowment fund
Purchase of property and equipment
Additions to building
Additions to land development

Net cash used in investing activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement.

$

(2,725,893)

295,399
88,476
187,401

(2,099,356)

(139,021)
1,631,226
34,198

(26,212)
(29,651)
(646,007)
(1,000)

225,296
(1,072,015)
(2,065,798)
33,962
(34,051)
(1,803)

(6,344,849)

134,050
301,062
(475,000)
(169,808)
(831,238)
(3,129,880)
(228,096)

(4,398,910)

(10,743,759)

31,853,570

$

21,109,811




PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND

RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

1)

Organization and summary of significant accounting policies:

A) Organization — Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust (the Trust) is a not-for-profit

organization created on August 18, 2004 by Act No. 214, as amended (the Act 214), of the Legislature of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth). The purpose of the Trust is to foster, and fund
research, development and infrastructure projects related to science and technology that will promote the
economic, social or educational development of the Commonwealth and to operate exclusively for charitable,
educational and scientific purposes. The Act 214 also designates the Trust as a Public Health Institute, an
Educational Organization and allows the Trust to act as fiscal agent to pursue certain federal funding
opportunities on behalf of the Commonwealth. The Act 214 also enables the Trust to establish a research
institute through which researchers from public and private research institutions might affiliate with and
enables the Trust to evaluate competitive grant proposals and/or act as fiscal sponsor to pursue funding
opportunities on behalf of these institutions.

The projects of the Trust are financed as follows: (i) the greater of $6,340,000 or 31% out of the monies deposited
in the Special Fund for Economic Development (FEDE for its Spanish acronym) managed by the Puerto Rico
Industrial Development Company (PRIDCO) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 through 2019, (ii) the
monies of Scientific Investigation Fund for the Centenary of the University of Puerto Rico (Centenary Fund),
(ii) $5,000,000 annually from the balance of collections of federal excise taxes in accordance with Section
7652(a)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and (iv) private grants and
donations, other government funds, and legislative appropriations. Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020 and thereafter, FEDE was superseded by the Economic Incentive Fund (EIF), created under Act 60 titled
“Cadigo de Incentivos de Puerto Rico”. Section 5010.01 of Act 60 bestows upon the Secretary of the Department
of Economic Development and Commerce (DEDC) total discretion upon the use of the EIF.

The Act 214, as amended in August 2017, provides that the Board of Trustees is to be composed of
eleven (11) trustees, two (2) of whom shall be members ex officio including the Secretary of the
Department of Economic Development and Commerce and other government agency representative to be
appointed by the Governor of the Commonwealth; and nine (9) members from the private sector.

Since September 2016, the Trust has been awarded, as prime recipient and subrecipient, with federal funds
from the US Department of Health and Human (DHHS) - Center for Disease Prevention and Control, the
DHHS - National Institutes of Health, the US Department of Commerce — Economic Development
Administration, the US Department of the Treasury, and the US Department of Agriculture. In addition, during
the year ended June 30, 2023, the Trust has been the primary recipient, or acted as fiscal sponsor, for the
implementation of privately funded initiatives, mostly related to recovery efforts after the passing of Hurricane
Maria in Puerto Rico in September 2017 and the organization’s Public Health Institute initiative.

Subsidiaries — The Trust has established the following subsidiaries by virtue of Article 5(26) of Act 214, as
amended, whereby the Trust may organize subsidiaries or affiliates subject to its total or partial control to
carry out any assignment from the Trust’s Board of Trustees for the best interest of the Trust:

e The Puerto Rico Consortium for Clinical Investigation, Inc. (PRCCI) — A not-for-profit entity organized
on January 20, 2016. PRCCI began operations on April 1, 2016 and its purpose is to improve the impact,
quality, and speed of clinical research activity conducted in Puerto Rico, especially in the fields of
oncology, infectious diseases, neurological disorders and cardio-metabolism. To achieve its mission,
PRCCI partners with clinical research sites across Puerto Rico to ensure access to a diverse patient
population. PRCCI’s operations are sustained through a combination of revenues obtained from clinical
research sponsors, grants and contracts with state and private entities, and contributions from the Trust.
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PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

e PRST, Inc. (PRST) — A not-for-profit entity organized on December 28, 2016. The purpose of PRST is
to act as a Qualified Promoter as defined in Section 2034.01 of the newly enacted Incentives Code of
Puerto Rico. A Qualified Promoter is authorized by the Department of Economic Development and
Commerce to engage in the promotion of new companies established in Puerto Rico and to obtain
decrees under Act No. 20 of 2012, to establish and expand their export services.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Trust and its Subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the Trust and its Subsidiaries), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Summary of significant accounting policies — The Trust and its Subsidiaries prepare its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP) for not-for-profit organizations. The significant accounting policies used by the Trust and its
Subsidiaries are as follows:

Principles of consolidation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Trust and its Subsidiaries, as described in Note 1A. Intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of presentation — The consolidated financial statements of the Trust and its Subsidiaries report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net assets classifications:

o Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Trust and its Subsidiaries.
These assets may be used at the discretion of the Trust and its Subsidiaries' management and the
Board of Trustees.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets that are subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
some grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Trust and its Subsidiaries or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions in the statements of activities. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same
period in which the contribution is received, the Trust and its Subsidiaries report the support as without
donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries’ net assets with donor restrictions include the following:
Purpose restrictions:

e Federal funds that are restricted for the implementation of programmatic initiatives, and funds from
private sources that are restricted for the implementation of initiatives related to recovery efforts after
the passing of Hurricane Maria through Puerto Rico on September 20, 2017 and the Coronavirus
Pandemic (COVID-19).

e Monies for the Scientific Investigation Fund for the Centenary of the University of Puerto Rico. This fund
was created to improve the infrastructure, activities and environment of investigative activities of the
University of Puerto Rico, and to facilitate the commercialization of the innovations that are developed
there. Among the activities to be supported are the recruitment and retention of researchers and the
promotion of technology transfer.
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PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND
RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Perpetual in nature:

e Consist of aland, described in Note 11 that was contributed with the restriction of using it for the purpose
described in Act 214, as amended, through the implementation of a Master Plan.

Accounting estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, at the date of financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Allowance for doubtful accounts — The Trust and its Subsidiaries provide an allowance for doubtful accounts
equal to the amount of estimated uncollectible amounts. The estimate is based on the review of the
current status of donor pledges, contributions and grants.

Investments — Investments represent a Puerto Rico government bond, private equity securities and Simple
Agreements for Future Equity (SAFE) investments, that are recorded at its fair value. Net investment return
(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and
unrealized capital gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses.

Fair value measurements — Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date. The valuation techniques are based upon observable or unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s market
assumptions. Market or observable inputs are the preferred source of values, followed by assumptions
based on hypothetical transactions in the absence of market input. These two types of inputs create the
following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are
observable or whose significant value drivers are observable.

Level 3 — Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.

The Trust and its Subsidiaries maintain policies and procedures to value financial instruments using the best
and most relevant data available.

Property and equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost, or if donated, at the fair value at date
of receipt. Maintenance and repair costs that do not improve or extend the useful life of the respective assets
are expensed as incurred. Costs of renewals and betterments which extend the useful life of the respective
assets are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, as follows:

Description Estimated Useful Life
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computer and laboratory equipment 3 to 5 years
Leasehold improvements Lease term
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At the time property and equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from the books and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is credited or
charged to operations.

Building — Is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the useful life of 35 years. Maintenance and repair costs that do not improve or extend the useful life
of the building are expensed as incurred while the costs of renewals and betterments which extend its useful
life are capitalized. When the asset is sold or disposed of, the cost of the asset and the related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the books and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is credited or charged to
operations.

Accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets — The Trust and its Subsidiaries’ long-lived
assets held and used in operations are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. Assets are considered to be impaired
if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flow expected to result from the
use and eventual disposition of the asset.

If such assets are impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its fair value. Assets to be disposed of, other than by sale, continue to be
classified as held and used until they are disposed of. Assets to be disposed of by sale are classified as held
for sale in the period in which certain criteria are met and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair
value. At the time such criteria are no longer met, such assets are reclassified as assets held and used in
operations.

Land development costs — Represent costs for a land site consultation approval, certification of
environmental compliance, architectural design, and other costs incurred in connection with land received
by the Trust and its Subsidiaries for the construction of its facilities.

Contributions and support revenue — The Trust and its Subsidiaries mainly derive its revenues from state and
federal grants, contributions received from the government, corporations, sponsors and individuals. The Trust
and its Subsidiaries recognize contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an unconditional promise to
give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Grants, contribution, and conditional promises to give
with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been met. All revenues and contributions are considered to be available for
unrestricted use, unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future
periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as donor-restricted support that increases
the net assets with donor restrictions class. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Trust and its Subsidiaries report the support as an increase in net assets without
donor restrictions. The Trust and its Subsidiaries also report donor restricted contributions that were initially
conditional as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if both the donor-imposed restriction and the
condition are met in the same period. The Trust and its Subsidiaries has a similar policy for reporting gains
and investment income that are limited to specific uses by donor-imposed restrictions and the restrictions on
the gains and income are met in the same reporting period as the gains and income are recognized.

A portion of the Trust and its Subsidiaries’ revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state
contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Trust and its
Subsidiaries have incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the consolidated
statements of financial position.
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In-Kind contributions — Contributed nonfinancial assets include donated professional services, donated
equipment, and other in-kind contributions which are recorded at the respective fair values of the goods or
services received. There were no in-kind contributions during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Leases — In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance related to accounting for leases, ASC Topic 842,
which requires lessees to record assets and liabilities reflecting the leased assets and lease obligations,
respectively, while following the dual model for recognition in statements of income requiring leases to be
classified as either operating or finance. Operating leases will result in straight-line expense (similar to current
operating leases) while finance leases will result in a front-loaded expense pattern (similar to current capital
leases). The Trust and its Subsidiaries adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2022, as allowed, using the
modified retrospective approach.

The Trust and its Subsidiaries elected the practical expedients of not reassessing whether any expired or
existing contracts are or contain leases, not reassessing the lease classification for any expired or existing
leases and not reassessing any initial direct costs for existing leases. In addition, the Trust and its Subsidiaries
elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all of our asset classes. A
permitted accounting policy election was made to not apply the new guidance to leases with an initial term of
12 months or less. Those lease payments are recognized in the statement of operations and retained earnings
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As of July 1, 2022, the adoption of the standard did not result in
the recognition of a lease liability or a right-of-use, or ROU, asset. A lease entered during the year ended June
30, 2023, however, was recognized under the new accounting standard resulting in the recognition of a ROU
asset and a lease liability for $250,137 at the inception of the lease. The standard does not materially affect
the results of operations, cash flows and liquidity. See Note 14 for further information.

In addition, under Topic 842, lessors will only capitalize incremental direct leasing costs. As a result, starting
July 1, 2022, the Company no longer capitalizes non-incremental direct costs. These costs are expensed
as incurred and are included within general and administrative expenses on the statement of operations.

Functional allocation of expenses and operational expenditures — The costs of providing the Trust and
its Subsidiaries’ programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses
present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. During the year ended June 30, 2023,
certain costs have been allocated among the following programs and support activities:

e Research and data: includes expenses aimed to improve, analyze and/or strengthen the local research
and development (R&D) infrastructure and the breadth of science and technology activity in Puerto
Rico. It also includes support activities to strengthen science, technology, engineering and
mathematics (STEM). Expenses within this function include: clinical trials, grants to support laboratory
infrastructure, research grants, research institute and educational organization initiatives, grants to
attract or retain distinguished researchers, studies to determine R&D, innovation, knowledge economy
activity in the Island; and, salaries and professional services to support this area.

e Public health initiative: includes expenses incurred regarding the Puerto Rico Public Health Trust, an
initiative established by the Trust and its Subsidiaries to act as Public Health Institute (PHI). Acting as
a PHI, the Trust implements programs which aim is to improve public health capacity, systems and
outcomes by fostering innovation, leveraging resources and building partnerships to improve the
publics’ health. Expenses within this function include: integrated vector management initiatives, farmers
support, health-outcome-and-measures research and studies, and salaries and professional services
to support this area.
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e Technology transfer and commercialization: includes expenses incurred in initiatives to support
technology transfer and commercialization and direct investments in technology development projects
which have a clear commercialization aim. Expenses within this function include: intellectual property
assistance, sponsorship, grants for technology developments; investment in technology
commercialization accelerators and startup incubators, salaries and professional services to support
this area.

e Science City development. includes non-capitalizable expenditures necessary for the on-going
development and construction of sites at the Science City. These expenditures include salary and
professional services to support this area, planning and assessment projects, security services to
enable construction work, etc.

e Management and administrative: includes all administrative expenses incurred to support all functional
areas as described above which are not directly allocable to any of them. These expenses include
administrative staff salaries, accounting fees, depreciation and amortization, utilities, etc.

e Fundraising: includes expenses incurred in soliciting contributions, gifts, grants, etc. These expenses
include publicizing and conducting fundraising campaigns, soliciting grants from foundations and
government agencies, costs of participating in federated fundraising campaigns, preparing and
distributing fundraising manuals, instructions and other materials. The Trust and its Subsidiaries did
not engage in any fundraising activity during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Certain categories of expenses are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore,
expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are
allocated include mainly salaries, fringe benefits and payroll taxes, which are allocated on the basis of time
and effort.

Income taxes — The Trust and its Subsidiaries are exempt from Puerto Rico income taxes under the provisions
of Act 214, as amended, and from federal taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

The Trust and its Subsidiaries follow the guidance for uncertainty in income taxes issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). Management evaluated the Trust and its Subsidiaries’ tax positions and
concluded that the Trust and its Subsidiaries had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustments or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

All applicable tax returns have been appropriately filed by the Trust and its Subsidiaries. The Trust and its
Subsidiaries’ open audit periods are fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 to 2023.

Advertising and promotion — The Trust and its Subsidiaries charge to operations advertising and promotion
costs as they are incurred. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries incurred in
advertising and promotion expenses of approximately $181,000.

Correction of prior year net assets classification:

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries corrected the classification of the beginning
net assets classification in order to properly present the funds received from the US Department of Commerce
- Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant as net assets with donor restriction.
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3)

4)

According to the grant, the funds are to be used for the construction of a building to provide space to high-
technology ventures to conduct research and development and manufacturing activity for a period of 20 years
from the date of its completion. Accordingly, the net assets classes as of June 30, 2022, are presented as
restated in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.

The effect of the restatement on the net assets classification as of June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Net assets Net assets

without donor with donor

Description restrictions restrictions
As previously reported $ 105,096,819 $ 23,508,919
Funds received with purpose restrictions (4,219,522) 4,219,522

$ 100,877,297 $ 27,728,441

Concentrations of credit risks:

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Trust and its Subsidiaries to concentration of credit risks,
consist of cash deposits and accounts receivable.

The Trust and its Subsidiaries maintains its cash deposits in various financial institutions. The cash deposits, at
times, may exceed the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) of $250,000 per
financial institution or the amount protected by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) of $250,000
per brokerage firm. As of June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries' cash deposits exceeded the insured
limits of FDIC and SIPC by approximately $19,407,000.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, grants and contributions from state and federal entities represent
approximately 78% out of total revenues. The balance due from these state and federal entities represent
approximately 75% of total accounts receivable.

Liquidity and availability:

As of June 30, 2023, financial assets available for general expenses, that is, without donor restriction or other
limiting their use, within one year of the financial position date, comprises the following:

Description Amount
Cash $ 21,109,811
Accounts receivable 488,982
Due from governmental entities 1,649,372
Investments 4,176,405
Endowment fund 47,201,182
74,625,752

Less amount not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions (5,224,382)

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve months $ 69,401,370

Page 7



PUERTO RICO SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY AND

RESEARCH TRUST AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

5)

6)

Investments:

As of June 30, 2023, investments consisted of the following:

Description Cost Fair value
Fixed income:
Puerto Rico government bond $ 2,044,237 $ 1,692,598
Private equity securities 1,783,807 1,783,807
SAFE investments 700,000 700,000

$ 4,528,044 $ 4,176,405

Fair value measurement:

For certain of the Trust and its Subsidiaries' financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair market value due to their short-term
maturities.

Below is a description of the methodology used for instruments recognized at fair value, including the
classification of such transactions in accordance with the valuation hierarchy.

Puerto Rico government bond — The fair value of this bond is obtained from third party pricing service providers
that use a pricing methodology based on an active exchange market and quoted market prices for similar
securities. This bond is classified as Level 2.

Private equity securities and SAFE investments — The objective of these investments is to achieve currentincome
by providing debt and equity financing alternatives to targeted privately-held companies that are mostly organized
or engaged in trade or business in Puerto Rico. These investments are classified in Level 3 since its market
value was determined based on unobservable inputs that are significant to the market value measurement.

As of June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries’ investments are classified as follows:

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fixed income:

Puerto Rico government bond $ - $ 1692598 $ - $ 1,692,598
Private equity securities - - 1,783,807 1,783,807
SAFE investments - - 700,000 700,000

$ - $ 1692598 $ 2483807 § 4,176,405
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7)

The change in carrying values associated with investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), are as follows:

Private equity SAFE
Description securities investments Total

Balance at July 1, 2022 $ 1,636,208 $ 450,000 $ 2,086,208
Purchases 175,000 300,000 475,000
Conversion of SAFE

investments to private equity

securities 50,000 (50,000) -
Conversion of note receivable

to private equity securities 110,000 - 110,000
Realized losses (187,401) - (187,401)
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 1,783,807 $ 700,000 $ 2,483,807

The table below presents qualitative information for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), as of June 30, 2023:

Valuation Unobservable
Description Technique Input

Acquisition

Private equity securities cost None
Acquisition

SAFE investments cost None

Notes receivable:

As of June 30, 2023, the Trust is the holder of the following promissory notes:

Description Amount
5% interest bearing promissory note, due in May 30, 2024. $ 25,000

5% interest bearing promissory notes, convertible to shares of common stock of
the issuers. The notes are due in December 2023. 125,000

5% interest bearing promissory notes, convertible to shares of common stock of
the issuers. The notes were due in August 2022. The notes are currently in the

process of either conversion or payment. 175,000

5.25% interest bearing promissory note, due on June 30, 2024. 74,329

5% interest bearing promissory note, due on July 5, 2023. 6,000

5% interest bearing promissory note, due on June 30, 2023. 14,086

5% interest bearing promissory note, convertible to shares of common stock of

the issuer. The note is due in May 2024. 25,000
Continues...
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8)

Description Amount

Continued...

3% interest bearing promissory note, convertible to shares of common stock of

the issuer. The note is due in December 2023. 75,000
7% interest bearing promissory note, convertible to shares of common stock of
the issuer. The note is due in December 2023. 75,000

10% interest bearing promissory note, convertible to shares of common stock of
the issuer. The note was due in August 2022. A repayment agreement is
currently in progress. 50,000

5% interest bearing promissory note, convertible to shares of common stock of
the issuer. The note was due in January 2021 and a repayment agreement is in

progress. 75,000
719,415

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (300,000)
$ 419,415

Endowment fund:

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Trust and its Subsidiaries established an investment fund that has a
perpetual investment horizon and is tax exempt. Its main purpose is to provide for long-term sustainable growth,
while addressing any current operational expenses and those public financial responsibilities established by
applicable law, rules and regulations.

The endowment fund includes funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, including
reserves created by the Trust and its Subsidiaries to assist in assuring its sustainability and its projects into
perpetuity. The endowment fund might be nurtured as well of donations from individuals, private corporations
and the U.S. government. Net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Trust and its Subsidiaries have adopted an investment policy for endowment assets, as approved by the
Board of Trustees, that attempts to provide a predictable stream of funding while seeking to maintain their
purchasing power. Under this policy, total investments’ return should exceed the rate of inflation, as measured
by the Consumer Price Index plus 3%, net of fees, expenses and taxes. This objective should be achieved in
such a manner that the fund is protected from unwarranted market risk. Actual returns in any given year may
vary from this amount. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Trust and its Subsidiaries rely on a
total return strategy in which investments’ return is achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Trust and its Subsidiaries targets a diversified asset
allocation and provides its managers appropriate guidelines to achieve its long-term objective within prudent risk
constraints. The preferred asset mix, expressed in lower-upper limits, is: 10%-70% global equities, 10%-40%
global fixed income, 0%-25% alternative investments and 0%-5% cash and equivalents.
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10)

As of June 30, 2023, the endowment fund is presented in the net assets without donor restrictions as designated
by the Board of Trustees. Changes in the endowment fund for the year ended June 30, 2023, consisted of the
following:

Description Amount

Endowment fund at beginning of year $ 44,792,997
Investment return:

Investment income, net 2,099,356

Net appreciation 139,021
Total investment return 2,238,377
Contributions 169,808
Endowment fund at end of year $ 47,201,182

Property and equipment:
As of June 30, 2023, property and equipment consisted of the following:

Accumulated
depreciation and

Description Cost amortization Book value
Furniture and fixtures $ 346,281 $ 159,092 $ 187,189
Computer and equipment 4,896,498 2,839,156 2,057,342
Leasehold improvements 829,068 826,013 3,055
Vehicle 59,025 27,909 31,116
$ 6,130,872 $ 3,852,170 § 2,278,702

Building:
As of June 30, 2023, building consisted of the following:

Description Amount

Innovation Center Building - A three-story building that houses the Trust’s
headquarters and provides space for both, the incubation of local hi-tech
startups and strategic service providers, creating a synergistic effect to
accelerate the commercialization of technologies. $ 4,632,321

Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board’s Laboratory - Building that houses
the laboratory facilities of the Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board and
the laboratory facilities of the Puerto Rico Vector Control Unit. 3,558,446

Forward Center Building - A three-story building partially funded by EDA
grant. In connection with the EDA grant imposed restrictions, the property
shall only be used to provide space to high-technology ventures to conduct
research and development and manufacturing activity for a period of 20

years from the date of its completion. 7,684,408
15,875,175

Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,357,191)
$ 14,517,984
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11)

12)

13)

Land and property for research, development and infrastructure project related to science and
technology:

On October 22, 2007, the Trust received prime real estate in the metropolitan area of San Juan, which includes
the former Rio Piedras Correctional Facilities (Oso Blanco State Penitentiary). The land and property were
valued based on a market appraisal opinion report, dated October 20, 2008.

As established by Act 214, as amended, the Trust and its Subsidiaries plan to develop the land of Oso Blanco
State Penitentiary site into a research park, which combines residential, retail, educational, and civic facilities
with laboratory and research and development facilities with the purpose of facilitating the development of
infrastructure favorable to the research and development of science and technology. Costs related to the design,
development and improvements of the campus are capitalized as incurred. As of June 30, 2023, the land was
restricted by donor for research, development and infrastructure project related to science and technology.

The land was restricted by donor for research, development and infrastructure project related to science and
technology.

Construction in progress - Science City:

The Trust and its Subsidiaries’ main infrastructure-related initiative is the Science City, located in a 69-acre
mixed-use land located in San Juan, in a dense concentration of hospitals, universities, and other science and
technology resources. The aim for the development of the Science City is to strengthen Puerto Rico’s research
infrastructure and enable its use as a tool to develop, attract, and retain a vibrant research ecosystem.

Since the year ended June 30, 2016, the Trust and its Subsidiaries are executing a plan of action with the
ultimate goal of facilitating such an innovation ecosystem, including the identification of a Master Development
Partner (MDP) to lease, finance, develop, and manage the Science City project. To facilitate the identification
and attraction of a MDP, the Trust and its Subsidiaries have invested approximately $11,150,000 in critical
infrastructure comprised of the construction of the Laboratory Road and major improvements for the
interconnection of Highway 21 and 28 to the Science City. These projects will be further developed and finalized
after the identification of the MDP.

Rental income:

The Trust and its Subsidiaries lease building spaces under operating lease agreements. The lease agreements
are for periods of one year with a renewal option for an additional year on a month-to-month basis.

In addition, as of June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries lease a facility for two (2) years expiring during
the year ending June 30, 2025. The monthly rental payments are approximately $21,000.

As of June 30, 2023, future minimum lease payments to be received from these agreements during the remaining
non-cancellable term of the lease is as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2024 $ 260,100
2025 252,000
$ 512,100

For the years ended June 30, 2023, revenues on rental agreements amounted to approximately $282,000.
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15)

Leases:

The Trust and its Subsidiaries lease an office space located in Ponce, Puerto Rico, under an operating lease
agreement expiring on December 31, 2025. The remaining term of the agreement calls for monthly rental
payments of $7,500.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the component of the lease cost is as follows:

Financial Statement
Description Classification Amount

Program and services-
Operating lease cost Public health initiative $ 37,648

The weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate for the Trust and its Subsidiaries’ operating lease
were as follows as of June 30, 2023:

Years /
Description Discount Rate
Weighted-average remaining lease term in years 2.5
Weighted-average discount rate 3.5%
As of June 30, 2023, maturities of lease liability for the operating leases are as follows:
Year ending June 30, Amount
2024 $ 90,000
2025 90,000
2026 45,000
Total lease payments 225,000
Less: Imputed interest (8,914)
Present value of lease liability $ 216,086

For the year ended June 30, 2023, total rent expense amounted to approximately $603,000.

Retirement plan:

The Trust and its Subsidiaries have established a defined contribution retirement plan (the Plan) that covers all
full-time employees who have reached 21 years of age, without requiring eligibility service requirements. Under
the Plan, participants may contribute an amount not exceeding $15,000 per year. The Trust and its Subsidiaries
is not required to make matching contributions but reserves its right to start making matching contributions based
on a maximum of 3% out of each dollar contributed by the employee, up to 10% of compensation. The Trust
and its Subsidiaries may contribute a discretionary amount in addition to the matching contribution for all eligible
participants. Amounts contributed by the Trust and its Subsidiaries are 100% vested after an employee
completes one (1) year of service. Total contributions made by the Trust and its Subsidiaries during the year
ended June 30, 2023, amounted to approximately $220,000.
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16)

17)

18)

Commitments:

The Trust has entered in certain commitments to invest in various private equity funds. These commitments
and the investment as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Entity Commitment Investment
Parliament Credit Opportunities Fund, LLC $ 500,000 $ 350,000
Semillero Investment Fund I, LLC 500,000 499,620
Semillero Investment Fund II, LLC 1,000,000 411,142
Bluhaus Small Business Fund, L.P. 250,000 187,500
Grupo Guayacan, Inc. 1,000,000 12,893

$ 3,250,000 $ 1,461,155

Supplemental disclosures for the statement of cash flows:

A) Non-cash from investing and financing transactions — During the year ended June 30, 2023, non-cash
investing and financing activities consist of the following:

Description Amount

Adoption of ASC 842:

Right-of-use asset for operating lease $ 250,137
Lease liability $ 250,137
SAFE investments converted in private equity securities $ 50,000
Note receivable converted into investment in private

equity securities $ 110,000
Unpaid additions to building charged against accounts

payable $ 368,638
Unpaid additions to land development charged against

accounts payable $ 226,403

B) Other cash flows information — During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries made
no interest payments.

Subsequent events:

In July 2023, the US Department of Health and Human Services (US DHHS)’s Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention awarded a yearly grant amount of $750,000 to implement a project titled Strengthening Training,
Evaluation, and Partnerships in the Prevention and Control of Vector-Borne Diseases. The program expires in
June 2028.

In August 2023, the Trust and its Subsidiaries signed an agreement with the Puerto Rico Department of
Economic Development and Commerce (DEDC) to implement an initiative titled “Proyecto de Innovacién Digital
Educativo” with the aim of introducing Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) projects and/or
classes into local school curriculums. The agreement provides a total of $1,919,710 in funds and expires on
June 30, 2024.
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In September 2023, the US DHHS’s Centers for Disease Control and Prevention awarded a yearly grant amount
of $500,000 to implement a project titled Caribbean All Hazards Program to Building Resilience Against Climate
Effects for the Promotion and Protection of Human Health. The program expires in September 2025.

Subsequent events were evaluated through October 31, 2023, the date on which consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

Page 15
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Parallel18 started in 2016 as part of an initiative of the Puerto Rico Science Technology and Research Trust to support the island's
economy by promoting a diverse ecosystem. Since then, 394 startups have been impacted by our funding, mentorship, business
connections, business resources and investment opportunities. Our program serves as an innovation hub for startups in all stages of
development; promoting a local scene where investors land, entrepreneurs meet, and emerging and fully developed markets link up.

This 6th Impact Report of parallel18 presents the results of the Gen. X of the international acceleration curriculum P18 and the
fourth cohort of the local pre-acceleration program: prei18. A total of 35 local and international companies completed the programs
between January and December 2022.

This document also captures data about the application round for prei8's Gen. 5, updates on the cumulative data of all startup
alumni and our subprograms' initiatives and achievements.

The information was collected through exit surveys at the end of the program (for Gen. X and Gen.4), P18 alumni surveys from Gen. 1
through Gen. 9, pre18 alumni surveys from Gen. 1 through Gen. 3 and additional data gathered by the parallel18 team.



ABOUT US

parallel”

Parallel18 is a top-level, performance-driven international
innovation hub focused on providing funding, mentorship,
business connections, and investment to underrepresented
founders around the globe. The program is part of the
Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust, a
private non-profit organization created with the goal of
maximizing Puerto Rico's participation and creation of jobs in
the global knowledge economy by promoting investment
and financing of science and technology research
development.

Our mission is to support your entrepreneurial journey while
working to position Puerto Rico as a unique hub for
innovative businesses and technology.

Puerto Rico
Science, Technology

& Research Trust

The Puerto Rico Science, Technology, and Research Trust
(PRSTRT), as described in Act 214, is a nonprofit organization
created in 2004 to promote the participation and creation of
jobs in the lIsland in the global knowledge economy by
promoting investment and the financing of research and
development of science and technology. The PRSTRT invests,
facilitates, and builds capacity to continually advance Puerto
Rico's economy and its citizens well-being through
innovation-driven enterprises, science and technology, and its
industrial base.

Their mission is to invest, facilitate and build capacity to
continually advance Puerto Rico's economy and its citizens'
well-being through innovation-driven enterprises, science
and technology and its industrial base.




Heéctor Jirau, Ph.D.
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Meet the

TEAM

As of 2023
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Héctor Jirau, PhD Natasha Martinez Adriana Pérez Menchu Agiieros Lissa Barreras Alexandra Espinal
Executive Director Operations Manager Investment Manager Outreach Manager Marketing Manager Business Development
Manager
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Sylmarie Diaz Augusto Suarez Yessica Fontanez Daliana Colon Mineiry Ramos
Operations Manager Lead Designer Startup Executive Startup Executive Operations Coordinator
Xpand
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Our Programs

18
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For Puerto Rican startups who are close
to launching their innovative businesses
or have recently launched.

Is open to founders from all over the
world and targets startups already in
the market, with traction and ready to
scale to new markets.

VENTURES
A subprogram focused on helping startups
create a strong investment strategy while

connecting them with a curated network of
investors.

CONNECT

Our Corporate Innovation subprogram has two
purposes: match our startups with big local
companies to promote connections that lead to
business deals and provide our Corporate
Partners with the tools to transform their
mindset from traditional to innovative.



18
oarallel




oooooo

Mentor’'s Data i

With 100+ mentors, parallel18 supports entrepreneurs by making accessible
hand-picked experts to share their knowledge through informative sessions and
one-on-one meetings.

Here's a summary of how mentors engaged with our community from January 1st,
2022 to December 31st, 2022:

Events organized by
parallel18 for the
startups.

Office hours between Mentor sessions

mentor and mentee (pre18 Gen. 4 / P18 Gen. X)
(including alumni).

L 9,3 L 9.8

Avg. Net Promoter Score Avg. Net Promoter Score
out of 10 for Mentor Sessions. out of 10 for Office Hours.



Highlighted Mentor Sessions

!

Neil Cohen Javier Ramirez Orlando Saez Devin Baptiste Alyssa Dizon
Get to the Point B2B Sales What Conflict Taught Me Unit Economics Prepare your Product
About Myself, Trust and Team to Scale

Leadership

Carlos Jiménez Jesse Middleton Cat Middleton June Zhang Holly Chen
SEO Strategies Understanding Venture Understanding Venture Customer Success Growth Marketing

Capital Investments Capital Investments Strategies
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Stephanie Lee Pablo Croci
Strategic advisory, capital Branding, Storytelling, OKRs and
raising, business development, Strategy

and financial operations services

1T 1=
¥ | EA
¥ Y

<y

Jonathan Kalan

Jeffrey Seltzer
Brand, Marketing & Strategy, Executive
Communications Management and

Business Development

Highlighted Mentor Office Hours

Orlando Saez

Angel Investing and Strategy

Gillian Morris
Project Management,
Research, and Economic
Analysis

June Zhang
Customer Success and
People-Centric
Leadership

Devin Baptise
Raising Capital and Unit
Economics

Juan Felipe Campos
Growth Hacks

David Binkowski
Branding, Earned and Paid
Media, Digital Marketing



Mentors
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Highlighted Partnerships
m mastercard

The Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust (PRSTRT), and parallel18, along with Mastercard, global leader
in payments and fintech businesses, renewed the collaborative agreement that benefits the innovative businesses that
are participating in our programs. With this strategic agreement, startups from our programs had the opportunity of
receiving technical support and mentorships that helped them gain local and global growth, within a workspace
sponsored by Mastercard.

. POPULAR.

The Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust (PRSTRT), and parallel18, along with the local bank Banco
Popular signed a collaborative agreement to support and sponsor events in which entrepreneurs from all over the world
are exposed to high-quality connections, mentoring, and networks to help them scale globally. Thanks to this sponsorship,
parallel18 was able to organize and present valuable events for entrepreneurs along the globe and the local
entrepreneurial community. With this collaboration, Banco Popular reiterated its commitment to promote
entrepreneurship as the way to impulse and sustain the economic development of the Island.

“==leroNet

go faster

The Puerto Rico Science, Technology and Research Trust (PRSTRT), and paralle 18, along with Aeronet, leaders in
high-speed broadband internet in Puerto Rico, renewed the collaborative agreement that benefits all parallel18's alumni,
current startups and the parallel18 team with high speed connectivity to operate from the organization's co-working
space located in Santurce, Puerto Rico. With this agreement, Aeronet reiterates its commitment to become a powerful
ally for startups and the local entrepreneurial community.



https://parallel18.com/
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Gen. % Application Round

223 93 42%

open applications submitted conversion rate”
applications

Top Industries:
° E-Commerce
Edu-Tech

(]
e Enterprise
e HRTech

Demographics :
e 58% Males
e 40% Females
e 2% non-binary

“Ratio between draft and submitted applications
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Cumulative Results e

P18 Gen.1 - Gen.X

The following data shows the cumulative of all P18 startups dating from April 2016 to December 2022.

S $237,721,730 global

ﬁ 854 REVENUE ($212,497,028.81 last Year)

employees hired w9,
us $80,753,923 in Puerto Rico

($73,037,.872.31 last Year)

0 74.7%

Companies still

T INVESTMENT s $210M s $ 33.1M

@ Total investment raised Total investment raised in Puerto Rico
~ ($189M reported last Year) ($21.6M reported last Year)

( ) Note that these metrics may be understated as they were estimated from 40 P18 Alumni ( Gen. 1-X) that completed the Impact Report survey.



Highlighted STORIES

We guide our Alumni along the path of success with
valuable tools that encourage them to innovate and find
solutions to local and global challenges. Three hundred
and ninety six companies later, we can say that we are
witnessing the results of that effort.

Here we share some highlights of #P18alumni that have
knocked-it out of the park.
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Leadsales, a Mexico-based startups and CRM for
WhatsApp and Social Networks that dllows clients to
manage all the leads in funnel y s raised a
$400,00 pre- Seed round led by UL nttifes one of the
leading investment firms in Silicon Valleyg,r

With the investmen
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parallel”

VENTURES

Startups have a vital role in propelling innovation, generating employment opportunities, and fostering economic expansion. Nevertheless, numerous
promising startups encounter considerable obstacles in obtaining the essential funding required to fuel their progress and advancement. Parallel18 Ventures
offers assistance and valuable resources to startups in their fundraising endeavors, enabling them to overcome these challenges and prosper amidst the

competitive business environment. Through the provision of resources, mentorship, and access to capital, we empower startups to translate their concepts into
thriving enterprises, generate employment opportunities, and make significant contributions to economic development

$3.2M

Capital deployed (Including Business Continuity Fund)

1%

Portfolio Companies Still Active

Including Business Continuity Fund

\]\j_)Presented results are based on all P18ners from Gen.1-10 that completed the survey.

Total Investment Raised

(Gen. 1 - Gen. X; since company'’s inception)

$24,824,800

Business Continuity Fund Portfolio Raised (29 startups)

48,979,000

Matching Fund Portfolio Raised (34 startups)

Companies still active rates are estimated based on the Department of State filings and reasonable assumptions on the company’s continuous operations
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37 47%

82%

Companies Still Active

SERIES A FUNDING:

WISBOO

SEED FUNDING:

Investments Puerto Rican

Deployed Companies
Business
Continuity

Investments Puerto Rican

Deployed Companies

( ) Companies still active rates are estimated based on the Department of State filings
— and reasonable assumptions on the company's continuous operations.

94%

Companies Still
Active
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INVESTOR EDUCATION
PROGRAM

INVESTOR EDUCATION
PROGRAM

INVESTOR EDUCATION
PROGRAM
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parallel’ | CONNECT

As a program, we aim for the growth of our startups, and a highly effective approach to achieve this is by facilitating connections with prominent local

and international corporations. By linking #parallel18Startups with these companies, we provide them with valuable business opportunities that allow
them to establish a strong presence on the island and expand their operations both domestically and internationally. Collaborating with established
companies not only enhances the visibility and credibility of our startups but also opens doors to potential partnerships, investments, and market
expansion. Through these connections, startups can leverage the expertise, resources, and market access of these larger enterprises to

accelerate their growth trajectory.

Industry events with

Connections between Office Hours with ‘
startups and corporate partners P18 Gen. X & Pre18 Gen. 4 startups parallel18's startups presence

HIGHLIGHTED CONNECTIONS

ARED ATLAS &1 [ poPULAR. i

Parallel18 Connect continues to support the startup Parallel1i8 Connect has successfully initiated an
agreement between the Prei8 Gen. 4 startup,

Red Atlas from Prei8 Gen. 4 in mediating an . !

agreement with Banco Popular de Puerto Rico to MedFly gnd Aerostarl A|rport Holding. \X/e. are

enhance the development of their platform. currently in the negotiation process and providing
support in mediating these potential agreements.
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“Industry Meetups”, the first parallel18
Connect networking event

%

%

%
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GiveBack

Paralell18 entrepreneurs are very diverse, some are new to the startup world, while for others it might be their second (third or fourth) rodeo. Each one of them
have skills, industry or professional knowledge and experiences that can be helpful to peers, students and other entrepreneurs. Each parallel18 participant is
required to support the local community through specific engagements. On each of the programs (pre18 and P18), startups are required to make it to 18 points.
Give back engagements must be related to technology, innovation or entrepreneurship, and should accelerate the startup ecosystem in Puerto Rico.

Gend 57.25

Giveback Hours

GENX 44

Giveback Hours

Cumulative Results:

P18 Gen.i - Gen.X
P18 Gen.i - Gen4

GIVEBACK PARTNERS

SAGRADO

Universidad del Sagrado Corazén

1,164

People Impacted

/@ Universidad ] ‘( )"’Cfl( mn

de Puerto Rico

c3cec:: b

“enactus

468

People Impacted

35,815

People Impacted






TALENT

program

Parallel18 has built a database of local talent interested in joining the technology, innovation &
entrepreneurial ecosystem, and looking to gain professional experience with our companies. We welcome
college Juniors, Seniors, recent graduates and postgraduate students from all disciplines, along with
freelancers and professionals and present their profiles and resumes to the more than 390 startups that have
participated from one of our programs. The main goal is to provide employment opportunities to local
professionals while making the recruitment process easier for startup founders.

ACTIVE PROFILES DEC. 2022 NEW PROFILES IN 2022 ALUMNUS USED THE APP

1,410 173 11

14% increase compared to
2021 (1,238 profiles)

9% increase compared
to 2021 (159 profiles)

HIRING INTERVIEWS TALENT HIRES

19 3

TALENT

program

Accounting &
153 items

422 items

Agriculture
4 items

Architecture
16 items

Biology/BioSt
64 items

Business &

341 items

Communications

325 items

& \,1‘!'“,5.:; ,'rvww:, o




NON-PAID
PUBLICITY VALUE

TOTAL IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL
APPEARANCES
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What's

SR _- becomes a post-acceleration program and joins parallel18,
[D=1T] closing the gap in the acceleration cycle for startups.
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Executive Summary
A message from our CEO

A message from the Bees

The Beehive:
Our Community Impact

Pollinating the Community:
Strengthening the Hive

What Drives our Buzz:
Entrepreneurs

Those Who Make Pollination Possible:
Our Resource Partners

The Diversity of Bees in our Honeycomb:
Deep Diving into Specific Interest Groups

Revisiting our 2021 Ecosystem
Gap Analysis & Recommendations



Executive Summary

With the goal of continuing to inform the ecosystem
and provide actionable data, we previously launched the
Status Report of the Entrepreneurial Community in
Puerto Rico. Furthering our analyses and exploring new
topics, in this 2022 report we include impact metrics for
the year from efforts such as Network Meetups, the
Xpand and Pulso programs, Levanta Tu Negocio PR,
Boricua Entrepreneur Fest (BE Fest) 2022, and more.

Responding to the community’s interest for deeper
insights about entrepreneurs, we share the results of
our Annual Entrepreneurship Survey 2022. We delve
into who is starting and growing businesses, the types
of businesses being formed, the impact they have and
the gaps we must collectively address; such as, crisis
preparedness and access to capital. We also include
deeper insights about special interest groups,
specifically Females, Afro-Caribbeans, Adults 50+, and
the LGBTQ+ community. Finally, we share the results of
our Annual Resource Partner Survey 2022 where we
explore the sectors and regions the entrepreneurship
community serves, the gaps they have identified and the
types of support they need as organizations.

With this report we expect to continue highlighting the
stories and challenges our community faces and how we
have all been working together to drive equitable and
inclusive entrepreneur-led economic development.

Tu Camino Empresarial

k Colmena66



A Message from our CEO

I am proud that as the leading innovation ecosystem
integrator, Colmena66 is presenting the Status Report
of the Entrepreneurial Community in Puerto Rico for
2022. As the first step for many potential entrepreneurs
and the first stepping-stone within the Trust'’s
Entrepreneurship Pillar, Colmena66 is focused on
building an entrepreneurial community that helps
entrepreneurs start and grow successful businesses,
drive innovation and foster sustainable economic activity
on the Island. In the last year, Colmena66 reached
10,515 searches on its Network Navigator, delivered
472 counseling hours, and facilitated 3,630 referrals to
the Resource Network, serving 2,933 entrepreneurs.
Colmenab6's success is evident in its ranking among the
top affiliates of the 80+ affiliate national Source Link®
network on key performance indicators, such as network
access and counseling hours.

Some of the many significant contributions of the
program during 2022 were: The launch of Xpand, a
program developed in partnership with Parallel18 and
funded by Banco Popular Foundation, to support
innovative startups with over three years of operation,
annual revenue of $250K or more, and the basic
infrastructure to begin their expansion process.
Colmena66 co-launched Pulso, a program led by
Foundation for Puerto Rico and funded by the SBA
Community Navigator Pilot Program that supports
entrepreneurs in the northern region of the island. With
the impact of Hurricane Fiona in September, Levanta Tu
Negocio PR was reactivated and Colmena66 was able to
quickly gather disaster data and share its insights with

Eng. Luz Crespo Valentin, CEO

Puerto Rico

©

Science, Technology
& Research Trust

the ecosystem, helping deploy resources and participate
in regional business support brigades. Colmena66 also
hosted the Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2022, Puerto
Rico's largest entrepreneurship education event,
gathering over 1,200 participants with over 100
speakers and mentors, 50+ educational sessions,
networking, 70+ Resource Expo, and more.

In this report, Colmena66 shares valuable data about the
community from their 2022 Annual Entrepreneurship
Survey and Resource Partner Survey. Compared to 2021,
the Annual Entrepreneurship Survey participation
increased 47% and the Resource Partner Survey
increased 27%. Leveraging this data, they provide
deeper insight into the topics covered in their 2021
report and highlight the collective impact the
entrepreneurial community has had. This is actionable
data for stakeholders and decision-makers in various
sectors of the ecosystem to make data-backed decisions
on programming, funding, and policy, among others.

At the Puerto Rico Science Technology and Research
Trust, we recognize the important role that
entrepreneurs play in transforming the economy.
Colmenab6's insights, consistently updated resource
hub, events, and projects have helped support
entrepreneurs and build the entrepreneurship ecosystem
on the Island. This report provides a glimpse into the
impact the program has had and highlights areas where
more resources are needed to continue building a more
equitable and inclusive entrepreneurship ecosystem in
Puerto Rico.




Welcome

We are thrilled to present the Colmena66 2022 Status
Report of the Entrepreneurial Community in Puerto Rico,
which provides a comprehensive view of our role as an
entrepreneurship ecosystem builder, tools and projects
developed, and the collective impact of our
entrepreneurship community. The report reflects our
ongoing commitment to supporting entrepreneurs,
bridging gaps and strengthening multisector
collaboration for the advancement of equitable and
inclusive entrepreneur-led economic development.

We are convinced of the vital role that entrepreneurs play
in creating wealth, driving economies forward, and shaping
our communities. We also recognize that an inclusive and
equitable entrepreneurial ecosystem requires more than
just entrepreneurs, and that is why we build ecosystems:
communities that support entrepreneurs. Together we are
creating the invisible infrastructure to support them,
including tools and access ramps so that anyone can
participate, grow, and thrive.

The year 2022 was a transitioning period for all of us, as
pandemic restrictions eased, new challenges arose that
presented us with opportunities to adapt and come
together. Our aim with this report is to highlight the
stories and collective impact of the community,
furthering our understanding of the challenges we face
and how we may overcome them.

We believe that the future of Puerto Rico's entrepreneurial
ecosystem is bright and optimistic, and we are grateful to
our partners for their continued support and hard work.
The spirit of collaboration and trust has been key to
developing solutions that benefit our communities, and we
are eager to see where we go next.

We trust that the data and stories presented in this
report will prove both engaging and valuable to you, and
that the resources provided therein will be invaluable to
all types of decision makers as they shape public policy,
deploy philanthropic funds, design workforce
development and technical assistance programs, and
invest. Thank you for your collaboration and
contributions during the past year, we look forward to
continuing our work together.

The Colmena66 Team




Where the entrepreneurial beehives are

The Trust’s entrepreneurship pillar provides a blueprint
to support businesses throughout all their stages of
development, stimulate their growth and foster
economic development. Entrepreneurship is essential, it
fuels innovation and creates new jobs, industries, and
markets. It also has the potential to improve our lives,
communities, and countries. As business community
builders, we strive to serve entrepreneurs effectively,
share data to inform the ecosystem, and convene
partners to address ecosystem gaps.

COLMENAG6 provides
primary business
assistance for
entrepreneurs who are
looking to start or grow
their business.

_ Resource Mapping
_Understand needs
_ Connect with resources

_ Creation of educational
content

_The resource hub for
entrepreneurs along their
journey

FASEL provides
universal access to
entrepreneurial
education and incubates
ideas that can turn into
successful businesses.

_ 6 free and on-demand
educational modules

_Incubation program

~ Workshops and
mentoring sessions

PRE1S, a pre-
acceleration program
focused on helping
innovative, early-stage
Puerto Rican startups
that have global potential
to get to market.

~$25,000 grant
_ Expert mentoring

_Access to corporate
network through P18
Connect

parallel”

Fase

PARALLEL18 offers
entrepreneurs from all
over the world access to
high-quality business
training, funding, and
networks to help them
scale globally.

SBIR PROGRAM provides
expert technical
assistance and matches
innovative small business
with grant writers to
access federal funding
for high-risk research and
development.

, Subvenciones Federales
de SBIR/STTR

XPAND is a post-
acceleration program for
Puerto Rican based
founders in second stage
that have been operating
for at least 3 years,
generating $250K annually
and seeking to expand.

Accompaniment from
mentors and other
founders

_ Talent Bank Access

_ International Investor
Network

_ Funded by Banco Popular

Colmenabb is the first step for any entrepreneur looking to start or grow a successful business in Puerto Rico.
Through our services, they can easily navigate the entrepreneurial community, access educational content, and
receive personalized support. Our events help entrepreneurs network with peers, find resources, and explore
business opportunities to advance their business development. As an ecosystem integrator, we work closely with
other programs within the Trust and with Entrepreneurship Support Organizations (ESOs) in our Resource Network
to connect entrepreneurs with the right resource at the right time.

Our resource partners can also leverage our events, communication channels, and data to amplify their reach and
improve their services. Entrepreneurship Support Organizations can network, educate their audience, and join
ecosystem wide efforts through Resource Network Meetups, the Boricua Entrepreneur Fest, Tu Camino Empresarial,
regional events, and many more. We share their new opportunities, events, and programs through our website,
social media, and newsletter. Partners can also be better informed of trends and impact in the ecosystem with the
data we collect, analyze, and publish so they can make data-backed decisions.

Building effective business communities requires commitment to see long-term results, with our knowledge we
aspire to inform key decision makers about the progress made and the work that needs to be done to continue
improving the circumstances needed to start and grow successful businesses in Puerto Rico.



The buzzy bees

Just like the bees in the hive, this committed, highly skilled and passionate team
has grown over the years. We continue to strengthen our work and address new
challenges in the entrepreneurial community.

Samuel Merced Natalia Alicea Gian Ortiz
Program Manager Senior Marketing Business Development
Strategist Specialist

Denisse Rodriguez

Executive Director

Nadya Sola Nackira Castro Ibanaliz Santoni

Entrepreneurship Strategist Lead Creative Designer Entrepreneurship Strategist

Paola Maldonado Noriana Meléndez Bridgette Padilla

Entrepreneurship Strategist Community & Content Entrepreneurship Strategist
Specialist



We believe in the transformative power of entrepreneur
focused economic development that is equitable and
inclusive, necessary to build generational wealth, reduce
poverty and improve the quality of life in our communities.

Anyone in Puerto
Rico can start and
grow a business.

Our growth

2016

N

Launch with 160
collaborators in

our network

2017

LEVANTA
TUNEGOCIO ““

Network
Meetups

Levanta Tu
Negocio:
Hurricane Maria

Shop&Hire

PRSTRT Co-
Working Space

To facilitate entrepreneurship
by connecting and building the
entrepreneurial community.

Catalyze and facilitate

access and resources

Create and Drive
innovation

Build and connect the
entrepreneurial community

We have developed multiple initiatives to continue advancing equitable
and inclusive entrepreneur-led economic development, support
entrepreneurs during and after crises, foster networking and
collaboration, educate the community, provide accompaniment to

high-growth startups, and much more.

2018

Tu Camino
Empresarial

Map unveiling &
first regional tour

2019

E fest

First Boricua
Emprende Fest

SBIR/STTR
Committee: SBIR
Road Tour

Agribusiness
Network Meetup

Tu Camino
Empresarial:
Agro Edition

Personalized
Action Plan

Served 17,000+ entrepreneurs
Grown our network to 270+ organizations
Provided 28,000+ referrals

2020

B fest
2020

Levanta Tu
Negocio:
Earthquakes
Levanta Tu

Negocio:
COVID-19

Recovery Guide:

COVID-19

SBIR Webinar
Series

Boricua
Emprende Fest
Virtual:
eCommerce
Edition
Refuerzo PyME

Empresarios al
Dia

2021,

Incentives Series

Acércate al
Grant: Phase O

SBA Lab-to-
Market: Super
Connector Award

SBIR Growth
Accelerator Fund
Competition
Winner

Boricua
Emprende Fest
Virtual

2022

§8 xpand

BEf5:!

2022

Boricua Emprende Fest
Pulso - SBA
Community

Navigator Pilot
Program

Xpand launch

Lunch and Learn,
San Juan

Report on the
State of Puerto
Rico’s
Entrepreneurial
Community
2021

Levanta Tu
Negocio:
Huracan Fiona
Boricua

Emprende Fest
2022



One resource at a time

Colmenab6 is the one-stop shop to
help entrepreneurs navigate
community resources. We are the
only organization in Puerto Rico
that works with all types of
businesses, at any stage. As the
first step for many entrepreneurs
who are looking to start or grow
their business, we help find answers
to any business question, develop
action plans and foster connections
to enable them to reach their goals.

Entrepreneurs can call us with any
question they have about their
business. Our team takes the time to
understand their needs and share
the most accurate information.

A checklist guide that takes
entrepreneurs from the ideation
stage all the way to marketing and
improving their sales.

We partner with industry experts to
bring entrepreneurs the latest on
resources, initiatives and their
frequently asked questions, in
Spanish.

A space where we share events,
conferences, workshops and more
happening in the ecosystem, making
sure entrepreneurs get access.

We do the research and provide easy
to follow steps for addressing
business needs, planning, access to
capital, marketing and much more.



Resources for the community

Tu Camino @ _—— Resource
Empresarial Map Navigator

A map where you can easily identify the An interactive resource directory where
resources available to start or grow your entrepreneurs can search for services and
business, according to the type of company resources from our 270+ partners according

and business stage in which you are. to their needs and business stage.
Start your Start
entrepreneurial path! searching!
N

“ Business Development
~ Opportunities

p The Weekly Buzz

A convenient and New funding opportunities,
curated weekly update capacity building and technical
where we summarize assistance programs are

new opportunities and researched and organized by
resources for business stage and
entrepreneurs and requirements to help you apply
share all the events before the deadline and take
taking place each week your business to the next level.

EME‘ nad honey See what’s new!
é%% to your mailbox! .



http://www.apple.com
https://www.colmena66.com/tu-camino-empresarial/
https://www.colmena66.com/tu-camino-empresarial/
https://www.colmena66.com/directorio-recursos-empresariales/
https://www.colmena66.com/directorio-recursos-empresariales/
https://www.colmena66.com/newsletter-signup/
https://www.colmena66.com/newsletter-signup/
https://www.colmena66.com/convocatorias-empresariales/
https://www.colmena66.com/convocatorias-empresariales/
https://www.colmena66.com/newsletter-signup/
https://www.colmena66.com/directorio-recursos-empresariales/
https://www.colmena66.com/tu-camino-empresarial/




The consistency

As our entrepreneurial community continues to
progress, accurate and accesible information continues
to be a crucial asset for decision making processes at all
levels. As entrepreneurial community builders, we share
this responsibility to help inform stakeholders about the
challenges, efforts and progress being made by

the community.

We know that a top priority for Puerto Rico’s ecosystem
during the next years is gathering and sharing actionable

Resource
Partners

How we
measure our
impact

Social Media

data. This report serves to share insights about the
entrepreneurial community and the collective impact of
our resource partners. Learn more about our research
and insights here.

To achieve this, we gather data through our client
relationship manager (CRM) Sourcelink® Pro, social
media, events and our annual surveys. With these
strategies we've compiled information on more than
17,000 entrepreneurs since 2016.

Levanta Tu

Negocio Interactions

Snapshots

Referrals


https://www.colmena66.com/nuestro-impacto/

SOURCE
INK'

Network
Access

Entrepreneurs Seeking Assistance

through Hotline and/or Email:

[
Qg 2933

Rank: 1 of 76
Affiliates using SourceLink Pro

Counseling Hours

Counseling Hours Provided:

T

Rank: 1 of 79
Affiliates using SourceLink Pro

OUR RANKING

Searches using Resource Navigator
Network Access

= Counseling Hours
Network Strength

2017

Throughout the years, Colmena66 has improved its offering and
ranked among the top SourcelLink® affiliates. We believe that in the
following years Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurship ecosystem will become
a case study and a great example of equitable and inclusive
entrepreneur-led economic development for other island nations,
various regions across the United States, and the world.

Searches Using
Resource Navigator

Total Searches through the
Resource Navigator on the Web:

10,515

organizations using The Resource Navigator

Network Strength

Resource Navigator Profiles:

Rank: 5 of 78

organizations using The Resource Navigator

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022



Recovering from the COVID-19
pandemic and most recently
having been hit by Hurricane
Fiona, entrepreneurs in Puerto
Rico have been dealing with
lingering economic adversities
such as inflation and labor
shortages for which they
continue to seek support.

Colmena66 saw a decrease in the
number of unique entrepreneurs
served, from 3,072 individuals
servedin 2021 to 2,933 in
2022. However, 9% of
previously served clients in 2021
were supported again in 2022.

Our Step-by-Step
Guides and
downloadable
content help
entrepreneurs get
things done, from
business planning to
e-commerce, and
much more.

Business Planning Assistance was the most
requested type of assistance in 2022 from
entrepreneurs contacting Colmena66,
remaining in the top position asin 2021.
More entrepreneurs requested assistance
with grants in general and mentoring
during 2022 when compared with 2021,
when most businesses had requested
Technology grants and Loans.

2,933

Entrepreneurs Served

3,630

Referrals

9.4/10

Average Rating of
Service (Survey)

10,515

Resource Navigator
Searches

472

Counseling Hours

279

Returning Entrepreneurs
from 2021

The most requested resources during 2022

Personalized Action Plans

Tu Camino Empresarial
Downloads

Commercial Registration
Guide Downloads

Tu Camino Agroempresarial
Downloads

Top 5 assistance requested in 2022 (%)

Business Planning Assistance
Startup Assistance
Regulatory Compliance
Grants, General

Mentoring



To learn about Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurial ecosystem
and make decisions that empower our entrepreneurs,

Colmenat66 uses Sourcelink® Pro as a Client Relationship

Manager. The platform, which also serves as a decision-
making engine, connects and tracks entrepreneurs
through every point of contact with our organization to
streamline data collection and reporting efforts.

Non Binary
0.1%
Male
39.8%
Gender
Female
60.1%

Approximately 2 out of every 3 entrepreneurs
served in 2022 identified as female, with a large
proportion seeking support with Business Planning
or Startup Assistance, similar to the 2021 results.

Education
Bachelor's 27
Master's 21 6%
Associate's / Technical-Vocational
Postsecondary Studies, Non-degree 7 8%

High School Diploma or Less
Doctorate's &
Postgraduate Studies, Non-degree

Advanced Degree 1.5%

SOURCE
%NW L

Age Range

37.5%
32.7%

16.0%

7.1% 6.0%
0.7%

18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

Individuals between the ages of 25 and 44
represented 70% of all entrepreneurs served in
2022. We saw a notable 12-point increase in the
45 - 54 age segment compared to 2021.

As a continued trend, individuals with Associate’s,
Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees are those who most
commonly contact Colmenab6 for business support.

Top Bachelor’s Degree Holder Profiles by
Gender and Age that contacted Colmena66:

Female Male

35-44 Years old 25 - 34 Years old

Bachelor’s Degree Bachelor’s Degree




In 2022, Colmenabé6 served entrepreneurs in 77 of 78 When we compared the number of

municipalities across the island. The majority of these entrepreneurs served per every 10,000
individuals were located in the San Juan Metropolitan residents in the municipalities, we had
Area, including Bayaman, Carolina, and Guaynabo. Other the most reach in Culebra, Las Marias,
large portions of individuals were located in Ponce, Dorado, Florida, San Juan, Barceloneta,
Caguas, and Arecibo. and Vega Baja..

Per capita O 0 lto5 6to 10 11to 15 16to 20

* Numbers are at a rate of 1:10,000 municipal residents.
Source: According to US Census Data, American Community Survey, 2021

When we compared the number of entrepreneurs served per every 100 employer businesses in the municipalities,
we had the most reach in Florida, Las Marfas, Jayuya, Lares, and Arroyo.

-

Per Employer Business O 0 1to5 6to 10 16to0 20 ‘ 21to 25

* Numbers are at a rate of 1:100 employer businesses in each municipality
Source: According to US Census Data, Economic Survey 2020



We have built a robust communications platform to reach entrepreneurs where they are.
Our channels help communicate new opportunities and resources effectively and timely
as a result of the trust and commitment to our audience. Likewise, our partners achieve
great results by leveraging our platform to support their outreach strategies.

Female Female

69% 61%

8.6K

21.6K

Followers / Followers ‘
Non-binary .
0 0 Non-binary
3 L" /0 2% Male L"O /O 15% Male
35 - 44 years old 299% 25 - 34 years old 24%
Top Content Top Content

“Pulso - Impulsa tu Agronegocio” workshop
event

Levanta Tu Negocio PR - FB Live with the
Department of Economic Development and
Commerce about disaster relief resources after
Hurricane Fiona

“Pulso - Proximos eventos” agribusiness and
access to capital workshops and networking
events

BE Fest 2022 invitation from our Executive
Director Denisse Rodriguez.

BE Fest 2022 “behind the scenes” reels with

our Senior Marketing Strategist Natalia Alicea.

Recap - A successful San Juan Lunch and
Learn workshop and networking event

Top Post

Recap - Status Report of
Puerto Rico’s Entrepreneurial
Community 2021 Network
Meetup

1.5K

Followers

1.3K

Followers

Male

38% 39%

25 - 34 years old

Female
61%
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Bees love teamwork!

In 2022, we pollinated the island together with Resource Partners and the
community in approximately 62 events. Here are some of our highlights:

@ Coimenace parallel”

March 24, 2022 April 21, 2022

Denisse Rodriguez in the kickoff A community-driven post-acceleration
event in collaboration with the program designed to support innovative
San Juan Municipality. companies in a growth-stage, funded by

Banco Popular.

August 17, 2022 June 6-7, 2022

Onboarding to the companies of the second Denisse Rodriguez participated as a
cohort of the Pulso Program with Foundation panelist in a conversation about

For Puerto Rico, INprende, Centro para economic development where she

Emprendedores, Brands of Puerto Rico and focused on equitable and inclusive

Latino Economic Development Center. entrepreneur-led strategies.



August, 31, 2022

First event to launch the Report for the Colmena66 Resource
Network public policy decision-markers, and the press.

September, 8-9, 2022

Denisse Rodriguez and Samuel Merced were invited to Indianapolis
for the Ecosystem Building Leadership Project led

by InBIA and funded by the Kauffman Foundation. Seventy (70)
entrepreneurship ecosystems builders came together to support
the construction of pilot projects and resources that will continue
developing ecosystem building as a new field of work and study.

November, 17, 2022

Denisse Rodriguez, Colmena66, participated in the panel
"Aprende a Emprender" , together with Dr. Javier Hernandez,
Universidad Sagrado Corazdn, Dr. Gloria Viscasillas, Echar
Pa'lante and Alex Rodriguez, Universidad Interamericana.

December 6, 2022

First face-to-face event after 2 years as a virtual format.
More than 1,200 people attended.

Bee part of the
community!
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PULSO
O

Small Business Support Program

In 2022, Foundation for Puerto Rico received a S1
million grant from the SBA Community Navigator Pilot
Program to design a program that provides tools and
resources for small business in the visitor economy in
the northern region.

"...Foundation for Puerto Rico will impleMat this
program together with Colmena66, Centro para
Emprendedores, INprende, Brands of Americas and
Latino Economic Development Center, which will
provide technical assistance and companionship using
a tiered methodology." Outlet: News is my Business

T9 Xpand

Together with Parallel18 and funded by Fundacion
Banco Popular, we launched Xpand. A community-
driven post-acceleration program designed to support
innovative companies in their growth-stage.

QOutlet: News is my Business



https://newsismybusiness.com/foundation-for-pr-lands-1m-sba-grant-to-support-150-businesses/
https://newsismybusiness.com/colmena66-parallel18-launch-program-for-innovative-cos-looking-to-grow/

LEVANTA
TUNEGOCIO

After Hurricane Fiona, the business community's
disaster recovery platform, Levanta tu Negocio PR,
was promptly reactivated.

With this platform and the data collected,
opportunities were identified from which business
support organizations could create solutions for
affected businesses.

Outlet: WIPR

L fest
= 2022

Boricua Emprende Fest

After 2 years of doing the virtual event, we were able
to host it in person with more than 1,200 people.

We had 14 mentions in the radio, written press, and
other media platforms.

Outlet: Metro


https://wipr.pr/se-reactiva-plataforma-para-ayudar-a-los-pequenos-negocios-tras-el-paso-del-huracan-fiona/
https://www.metro.pr/noticias/2022/12/06/casa-llena-de-empresarios-y-emprendedores-en-la-cuarta-edicion-del-be-fest/




Trust and action are at the center of successful
entrepreneurial ecosystems. \We organize periodic
meetups with the Resource Network to foster open
dialogue, collaboration, and collective action.

In 2022 we held 3 meetups to share resources among partners and continue
strengthening relationships within the ecosystem focused on:

February Meetup August Meetup
New goals, programs and Status Report of Puerto
opportunities for 2022 Rico’s Entrepreneurial

Community 2021

March Meetup

Developing an inclusive
entrepreneurship ecosystem in
Puerto Rico with Dr. Dell Gines™

*Dr. Dell Gines is Vice President of Partnerships, Advisory
Services, Thought Leadership at the International Economic
Development Council. Learn more about his work here.


https://www.iamdellgines.com/

e ‘ |
— ‘ﬁ'\\

Cuatro Caminos Empresariales,
Una Comunidad de Apoyo

‘%

These events
helped connect and
inform stakeholders

in the ecosystem,
receiving a very high
satisfaction rating.

220+ | 4.7/5

Network participants Satisfaction rating



SAN JUAN

L

Office for Economic Development and Tourism

Understanding entrepreneurs’ need for connection,
especially after the isolation period brought on by the
pandemic, we came together with the City of San Juan'’s
Office for Economic Development and Tourism to design this
educational series, comprising capacity building workshops
and networking, based on our entrepreneurship data.

98%

Would participate in
future events

EVENTS

1. March - Women Entrepreneurs:
Success Stories and How to Start
Businesses in San Juan

100%

Learned of new
ecosystem resources

2. August - Access to Capital
Opportunities

4.7/5

3. December - Emergent Technologies _ . ,
Satisfaction rating

(BE Fest 2022 plenary session)



Ecosystem Building Leadership Program

Entrepreneurial ecosystem building is an emerging
approach in economic, community, entrepreneurial and
workforce development. The EBLP, funded by Kauffman
Foundation and operated by InBIA, is paving the road
forward by uniting select ecosystem builders tasked with
defining the future of Ecosystem Building as a practice and
professional field.

Denisse Rodriguez was invited to be part of

the Collaborative Advisory Group and Samuel Merced
serves as a member of the Network Health working group.
Both participated in a two-day working session in
Indianapolis during September 2022. They were able to
connect with fellow ecosystem builders throughout the US,
learn about new areas of work in the field, and share
experiences about ecosystem building in Puerto Rico.
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‘ Small Business Support Program

PULSO is part of SBA's Community Deploying a Hub and Spoke model, Foundation for Puerto Rico
Navigator Pilot Program, designed to partnered with Colmena66, Centro para Emprendedores, INprende,
provide small businesses with tools and Brands of Americas, and the Latino Economic Development Center.
resources to survive, grow and expand. Together we help businesses identify needs and ecosystem resources,
Through this program, Foundation for learn about and comply with regulatory requirements, develop or
Puerto Rico and its partners guide improve their business plan, strengthen their marketing and social
small businesses in the northern region media strategies, and prepare them for the access to capital process.
of the island through a multi-stage This includes workshops, capacity building, mentoring and technical
business development path. assistance throughout the different stages.

Hub and Spoke model

& Resource Referrals

6 6\@] Business Development Continuity

|\ golmena§6

Camino Empresaria

Q .
> < Foundation

[ .
= forPuertoRico . D= -
\ Loan Application & Management
@ LATINO ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CENTER
4 Financial Literacy & Credit Counseling
@ LATINO ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CENTER
3 Marketing & Digital Presence
@BRANDSOF
AMERICAS

Business Model Innovation

T

PRENDE

Business 101

Eﬁ?";‘;'?éandedores
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‘ Small Business Support Program

Our Collective Impact

S283K+

Approved in loans
and grants

1,158+

Unique clients
trained

100+

Training hours
(Workshops)

SE66K+

Requested in loan and
grant applications

1K+

Individual
counseling hours



PULSO

Small Business Support Program

At Colmena66 we believe PULSO proves to be a great example
of how collaborative networks can amplify the impact of
individual stakeholders while strengthening programmatic
offerings with federal funding and simultaneously helping
government accomplish its mission. With this program, multiple
organizations were able to pursue federal funding opportunities
collectively and work together to benefit the entrepreneurial
community, a definite win-win situation. Through this process
we were able to work closely together to address challenges,
share best practices, develop institutional knowledge, and
provide entrepreneurs much needed resources and services. As
our ecosystem continues to develop, this type of collaborative
model can help stakeholders leverage resources (such as federal
funds for disaster relief) and maximize the impact individual
entities have on our own.

POWERED BY
ﬁ
g

U.S. Small Business
Administration

Funded through a grant with the U.S. Small Business Administration. All opinions, conclusions, and/or
recommendations expressed herein are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the SBA.
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e Xpand

Xpand is a novel program powered by
Parallel18 and Colmena66, funded by Banco
Popular, to support innovative second-stage
startups with mare than three years in
operation, generating over $250,000 in
annual revenue, and with the basic
infrastructure to begin their expansion process
and sustain their growth. Due to Puerto Rico
having a young emergent ecosystem, there is
a need for founders at these stages to
connect and exchange resources for growth.

Program Objectives

Increase participant knowledge in access
to capital through investment
management, bank financing alternatives
and commercial connections.

_ Increase participant knowledge in exports Xpand 2022
through market research resources. .
cohort profile

Provide specialized mentoring and
accompaniment.

58%

Actively exporting

41%

Female-owned

$7.5M

In solicited
investment

300+

Employees

S1.4M

Average annual
revenue




A

e Xpand

These startups were able to connect with 19 mentors
and resources, receiving 36 counseling hours.

THE TOPICS COVERED DURING THESE SESSIONS INCLUDED:

- Financial products and services with Banco - Product Development and Manufacturing
Popular with the Coca-Cola Company Puerto Rico

~ Perspectives on raising capital after ~ Exporting Product and Services with Puerto
acceleration with expert investors and Rico's District Export Council

investment managing partners from Soma

_ _ _ ~ Development of the Startup Ecosystem:
(Capital, Rockelis Partners and Dotline

Investments, Human Capital, and Growth
with Uva!, Skootel and Raise Group

What we learned in 2022 What we'll do for the next cohort
1. Tailored experience through 1. Provide access to Parallel18’s
smaller cohorts and one-on-one investment network and talent
assistance. bank.
2. Emphasis on mentorship in 2. Obtain strategy and governance
manufacturing, distribution, and resources via corporate
exporting, with increased variety partnerships through P18 Connect.
of mentors. 3. Provide access to vetted investors,
3. Increase business connections and educational resources, and
fundraising opportunities. financing opportunities through

Banco Popular.
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LEVANTA
TUNEGOCIO %

During the emergency caused by Hurricane ToREEacio
Fiona in September 2022, we reactivated

Puerto Rico's tech platform for small

business disaster recovery, Levanta tu Negocio.

This multisector collaborative platform is a tool

for data gathering and analysis of challenges ¥
entrepreneurs faced in the aftermath.

Entrepreneurship support organizations, local i

and federal government, foundations, media,

academia, and others are able to make data-

backed decisions to deploy limited resources

ENCUESTA IE IMPACTO BOR

such as cash grants, disaster loans, technical oO
Colmenabb
assistance and other support. We launched two
surveys, for entrepreneurs and support Sl
organizations, and created a recovery guide to
compile available relief resources in one place.
Through previous iterations of this platform during Hurricane Maria
(September 2017), Earthquakes (January 2020) and COVID-19 (March
2020) we have developed our proven disaster response process.
S 029
| 080
React Refocus Rebuild
Activate communication Sharing survey data with Colmenabb continues
channels, mitigate partners and identifying connecting entrepreneurs
damage and provide resources to ease with resources and
immediate relief entrepreneurs’ research supporting the
process community’s relief efforts

In just 6 weeks, we received 660 responses to our entrepreneur
survey from individuals in 76 of 78 municipalities. With this
information we built two online dashboards updated real-time and
shared disaster data with partners deploying relief resources.
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Hurricane Fiona

82%

Do not have a
contingency fund

513.2K

Average loss per
business due to
damages

Our findings

13%

Do not have insurance
*12% do not have insurance
due to high costs

11 34%

Suffered inventory or
raw material damages

43%

Of damages were a
result of failures in
electricity service

55%

Do not have an
alternative source of
energy

Relief efforts with the Resource Network

_ We published 2 dashboards, in
English and Spanish, to highlight
entrepreneur needs and
ecosystem resources.

_ We published and constantly
updated the Disaster Recovery
Guide covering incentives, loans,
co-working spaces, technical
assistance, among others.

~ We participated in 5 Regional
Entrepreneurial Support Brigades
organized by PR-SBTDC, SBA,
and Foundation for Puerto Rico
to bring resources to
entrepreneurs in affected areas
and collect data.

~ We opened a co-working space in
Ponce together with P11 (The
City's Office of Economic

Development), benefiting over
40 entrepreneurs.

~ We included the BE READY Labin
our Boricua Emprende Fest 2022
agenda for December, adding
topics based on the data to help
businesses be better prepared for
future crises.

As we continue to strengthen our knowledge of crisis preparedness and response, we are
now shifting focus to “precovery”. How can we help entrepreneurs be better prepared for
future crisis? How do entrepreneurship support organizations organize in a way that we
are more agile and less reactive? We have made this topic a top priority for Colmena66.

We will be taking on a more proactive approach to these issues and convening the
Resource Network to collectively design our preparedness and response to crises and
disaster recovery efforts looking forward. If you are interested in learning more or
supporting this effort, visit levantatunegociopr.com.



https://bit.ly/DashboardEmpEsp
https://bit.ly/DashboardOrgEsp
https://levantatunegociopr.com/

Where the bees gather and celebrate:
Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2022

The Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2022 was

celebrated on December 6th, 2022. This is

Puerto Rico’s largest, most inclusive, and

accessible annual business education and

celebration event. The design and agenda 2 O 2 2
cater to all types of entrepreneurs at every

business stage and from all backgrounds Borlcua Emprende Fest

within the entrepreneurial community. We
provide a unique experience focused on
connection and community. Thanks to '/ =
efforts of our team, partners and sponsors, % 8’

the event was of low cost to participants N\

and proved to be a huge success, convening

1,200 participants. Feedback from the 120+ 59 : .7O+

. : . Expert Speakers ~ Education  Booths in Resource
community was excellent, with over 90% of d Ment Sessi Net | E
participants giving a very positive rating. an entors essions ELWOrK EXpO

Our audience in numbers:

61% 42 % 60% } ' 81% ’

Are females Have an established 25-44 Isttime
business years old participants

_
IS 'Q
1,200+ participants



Where the bees gather and celebrate:
Boricua Entrepreneur Fest 2022

Participant’s feedback:

( )

9/10 “| participated in the previous [BE Fest]
Participants would and it is the best business event experience

recommend attending | have attended in Puerto Rico.”
a future BE Fest again

- Frances Rodriguez Gémez

Q59 \/
0 ¥ )
Expressed being better “The agend;, the opportunity .for networking
prepared and educated in and mentoring as well as learning. It seemed
e”trePre”eeUVrgmp after the to me a unique and important event.”
- Abneris Silva Rodriguez
A ONGMICO ¥ COMERCIO
Our Sponsors DDEC

TRIPLE-S TUﬁTPS%k il POPULAR.

PUERTO RICO

S Y cwiasiicio . RIS  SAN JUAND 3

é///// CAPITAL PUERTO RICO-=. AVANZA POR Tl

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

==A Ferraiuoli i . ey AARP GRUPO
- erog%set! LaokingFarwaLrL; %{JEI@% (5Business Puerto Rico FERRE RANGEL

s ML id L]
1rst B miox: SeFundiizi ™e(Eegine
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Access to data continues to be a pressing need in Puerto
Rico and a priority issue for Colmena66. We developed
and continue to improve our Annual Entrepreneurship
Survey to help inform the entrepreneurial community
about who is starting businesses, what types of
businesses are being formed, the impact these
businesses have, and what gaps need to be addressed.
We also compile demographic data to analyze results in
relation to segments of interest such as gender,
education level, industry, business stage, and more.

The main purpose of these surveys is to provide
actionable data to stakeholders and decision-makers in
entrepreneurial support organizations, government and
other institutions. We make our insights accessible so
stakeholders can use this data to improve their
programs, create new tools and initiatives, develop
policy, leverage the data for their strategic goals, and to
better understand the people they serve.

Survey Design

8Q8

)

Who is starting What types of
businesses? businesses are
started?

As Puerto Rico faces continued economic crises, data
sources such as this are crucial to accurately assess gaps
in the community and to allocate resources to where
they are most needed. Within this context, it is
important that we continually improve our offering and
the effectiveness of our efforts. Through a well-
informed and well-equipped community, we can
collectively address issues to ensure Puerto Rico is
considered a top destination for business and
investment both locally and internationally.

For 2022, we broadened our survey sample, reaching
693 responses, from which 555 met our requirement of
being an entrepreneur with an established business or
actively developing a business idea. This is an increase of
47% when compared to 2021 (378 responses). This
sample was collected between December 2022 and
January 2023 through social media, email and text
message campaigns. Our strategies were also supported
by partners that shared the survey to their
entrepreneurs through newsletters, social media, and
other channels.

0
[::] 00 0
000
o' 9o

What is the impact
of these
businesses?

What do we have to
work on as an
ecosystem?



Survey Responses by Municipality & Region

...by Municipality

() o

N

o
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1.01% - 4.00%

0.01% -0.5% . 4.01% -9.00%
0.51% -0.9% ' 9.01% - 14.00%

0.91% - 1.00% . 14.01% - 20.00%

Wi
: Islands

...by Region

Islands South Central

Our 555 response sample had representation from all across the island, reaching 74 of
78 municipalities. A majority of individuals were from the Metro Region {39%). We did
not receive responses from Guayanilla, Guanica, Maunabo and Juncos (in white).

To reach this sample, the following organizations helped us by sharing the survey with their audiences.
Thank you for your continued support to help inform Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurial community.

Grupo Guayacan

Puerto Rico Manufacturing
Extension (PRIMEX)

Mujer Emprende Latina

Kiva Puerto Rico, Causa Local
PR SBTDC

Centro Unido de Detallistas

Hecho en Puerto Rico -
Asociacion de Productos de PR

Parallel18

9. (Camara de Comercio de Puerto

Rico

10. World Central Kitchen

11. Asociacion de Agricultores de
Puerto Rico (Puerto Rico Farm
Bureau)

12. Asociacion de Industriales de
Puerto Rico (PRMA)

13. Entrepreneurs Organization PR

14. UPRM E-Ship Network, Area-E,

Centro de Negocios y
Desarrollo Econémico

15. La Cdmara de Comercio
LGBTTQ de Puerto Rico

16. Cdmara de Mercadeo, Industria
y Distribucion de Alimentos
(MIDA)

17. Centro para Puerto Rico |
Fundacion Sila Maria Calderon

18. Centro para Emprendedores
19. Camara de Comercio del Sur
20. Fasel

21. EmprendeCoop

22. Nuestro Barrio de Santurce

23. National PR Chamber of
Commerce



Most responses to our survey were from Female segments, Males
representing 72.1% of the sample. Within this sample, 26.8%
Males made up 26.8% and 0.4% were Non-Binary. Only
0.7% of respondents chose not to identify themselves.
Additionally, 7.4% of respondents identified as LGBTQ+.
33%
31% Age Groups
27% 9
26% W 2021 [ 2022
22%
20%
11%
6% 6% 8% i
O m
18 -24 25-34 35-44 45 -54 55-64 65+

Non-Binary
0.4%

N\ Females
72.1%

In 2022, our survey sample
reflected an 11-point
increase in the 25-34 years
old age group, with other
groups slightly shrinking.

Educational level is an important factor for entrepreneurial activity. In 2022 we saw a 5% increase in the Bachelor’s
degree group responding to our survey. In general, individuals with higher levels of formal education seem to have higher
rates of participation in entrepreneurship and are becoming more involved within Puerto Rico’s entrepreneurial ecosystem.

SR, vy Education Level
P 30% 28y 2021 1 2022
13%  13%
7% o : 8% o
Doctorate's o Master's Postgraduate Bachelor's Associate's / Postsecondary High School
Studies, Non- Technical- Studies, Non- Diploma or
degree Vocational degree Equivalent
Black, African American
Similar to our data in 2021, approximately ;;ﬁ/ﬁo'ca”bbea”
half of all respondents identified as White, °
while 2.5 out of every 10 identified as Black, ,
. . ! White
African American or Afro-Caribbean. Only Eyo
0

2% of entrepreneurs identified as another
race and 21% preferred not to respond.

N Other / No response
23%
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Of the survey responses received, 79% expressed
they were the owners of their own companies or
working independently. Another 11% reported being
full time workers, and smaller portions described they
were students or unemployed.

More males in our sample are business owners
(52.3%) or work independently (28.9%) when
compared to females (50.5% and 27.3%
respectively).

The most represented age groups for business owners
were in the 25 - 34 (53.8%) and 35 - 44 age ranges
(54.4%). Interestingly, the highest percentages of
those working independently were in the 45 - 54
(30.9%) and 55 - 64 age ranges (32.6%).

Labor Status

Owner of my company,
firm, or private practice
Solopreneur,
independent contractor,
freelancer or gig worker

28%

Full time worker
11%

for an employer

Student 3%
Part time worker for
. 3%
one or various employers
Unemployed and actively o
. 2%
looking for work
Unemployed and
ploy 1%

not looking for work

Have an established business

62

Type of entrepreneur
(Self-Described)

Are developing a business idea
38%

In 2022, the most common reason to start a business
across our respondents was the desire to create
something of their own and to generate a higher
personal income. This was followed by the desire to
provide for their family and the interest in being their
own boss. Nonetheless, motivations vary

among different population segments.

Females indicate wanting more flexibility 1.5,
contributing to their community 1.4x, and generate
higher income 1.2x more often than males. Males on
the other hand, reported wanting to provide for their
families 1.3x more often than females.

In contrast with 2021, the two top motivations
to start a business were:

Interest in being my own boss (34%)
~ Desire to create something of my own (30%)

51%

Respondents also self-described
what type of entrepreneur they
were. Most have one or various

established businesses and

almost 2 out of 5 are developing

a business idea.

What motivated you
to start a business?

Desire to create something of my own

(follow a passion, seize an opportunity, 43%
innovate in the market, as a challenge)
Generate a higher personal income 43%

(financial independence, improved
lifestyle, supplement income)

Desire to provide for my family (financial 24%
stability, quality time, legacy)
Interest in being my own boss 19%
(autonomy, freedom, leadership)
Desire t tribute t it
esire to contribute to my community 19%

and make a difference

Desire for more flexibility (more free
time, better work-life balance)

15%

N=555 participants who completed the survey. The sum of percentages can be

greater than 100%. An independent count was done for each answer in this
multiple-choice question.



Top 3 motivations to start a business.... by gender
440/ Desire to create

0 something of my own
3 8 0/ Generate.a higher

O personal income

Desire to provide 0/ Desire to provide
for my family 3 O /0 for my family

Generate a higher
personal income

Desire to create
something of my own

Top 3 motivations to start a business... by age range

25-34

. Desire to create something of my own . Generate a higher personal income Desire to provide for my family

Examining motivations to start a business across age ranges, we can observe the desire to create something of their
own is highest among 18 - 24, 55 - 64 and 65+ age ranges. Wanting to generate a higher personal income is higher
motivator for 35 - 44 and 45 - 54 age ranges. We can also observe that the desire to provide for their family is
highest among the 35 - 44 age range.

Top 3 motivations to start a business... by education level

High School Postsecondary, Associate's / Bachelor's Postgraduate Studies, Master's Doctorate's
Diploma or Equivalent ~ Non-degree  Technical-Vocational Non-degree

I Desire to create something of my own I Generatea higher personal income Desire to provide for my family

Individuals with the highest levels (Postgraduate Studies, Master’s and Doctorate’s) of education seem to also be the
most motivated to start a business by the desire to create something of their own. Individuals with some college
education (Postsecondary Studies) or a Bachelor’s degree report being most motivated by generating a higher
personal income. Individuals with a High School level education report being most motivated by the desire to provide
for their family, which in some contexts can be seen as the need to provide for their families.

42



THE TEAM

Alexa Paola Figueroa Carrasquillo, Founder

CONNECT WITH THEM ONLINE:

(0

The Entrepreneurial Journey

AGUA FRESCAS PR

Founded in 2013 by Alexa Paola Figueroa Carrasquillo, entrepreneur
and cooperative agent, Aguas Frescas PR is a company dedicated to
providing healthy and affordable juice options to the Puerto Rican
market. Inspired by her experience in a study exchange in
Guadalajara, Mexico, Alexa decided to bring to Puerto Rico the
tradition of aguas frescas, natural drinks without preservatives very
popular in Mexico. The products offered by Aguas Frescas PR
include a variety of juices, aguas frescas, fruit trays and

empanadas.

Currently, the company operates from the founder's home in
Caguas, where she prepares these drinks and makes deliveries to
customers and restaurants in nearby towns. Aguas Frescas PR is
currently in the process of opening a food truck and formalizing its
operations in the San Juan area. With the opening of this food
truck, Alexa hopes that more people can enjoy her products and
that the company can continue to expand on the island.

COMPANY PROFILE

Industry - Retail

Location - Caguas, Puerto Rico

Type of Business - Microenterprise

Business Stage - Early Growth

Time generating sales - Between 3 and 12 months

Classification - Minority-Owned, Female-Owned, Youth-Owned,
Low to Moderate Income Owned


https://www.facebook.com/AguasFrescasPR
https://www.instagram.com/aguas_frescas_pr/

ADVICE FOR OTHER
ENTREPRENEURS

-

“Be very persistent
and seek support
from the
entrepreneurial
community,
Colmenabb is there
to help."

The Entrepreneurial Journey
CHALLENGES FACED

Access to capital - Capital needed to investin
expanding operations and purchasing equipment.

Formalization (compliance with regulatory requirements) - Slow
regulatory processes and high costs limit the speed with which the
company can be established and expand operations as a food
truck.

ENTREPRENEURIAL JOURNEY & COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Beginning her entrepreneurial journey as a student in the University
of Puerto Rico system, Aguas Frescas PR was created with a focus
on the Solidarity Economy. Since then, Alexa has sought further
assistance and participated in various programs where she has
received capacity building to run her business and access capital
opportunities.

ACHIEVEMENTS

Being able to continue developing her business idea after 10 years.

Aguas Frescas PR surviving through the multiple crises that have
struck Puerto Rico, particularly the pandemic.

Accessing $10,000 in capital to invest in her business after a
difficult review process.

WHO HAS HELPED THEM ALONG THEIR PATH

Stage 1
|dea | Concept

Instituto de Cooperativismode  PromoCaguas
la Universidad de Puerto Rico Capital Mujer - $1,000

Colmena66 Banco de Desarrollo Econémico
Mujer Emprende Latina - -$10,000
$1,000



In our 2022 survey sample, the
most represented industries were
Creative Industries, Retail Sales,
and Restaurant & Hotels.
Compared with 2021, we observe
a decrease in representation for
Retail Sales and Agribusiness.
However, representation for
Creative Industries, Restaurant &
Hotels, Personal Services and
Manufacturing increased. Ny

15%

14% 13%

10%

We also asked respondents to describe what type of
business they had based on the definitions of our “Tu
Camino Empresarial” resource map.

Most entrepreneurs in this sample categorized their
business as a Microenterprise, which refers to a business
that requires little capital to launch, is mainly built
around the owner’s personal expertise, and they may not
require a physical location. Online businesses and
solopreneurs also fall into this group.

The second most selected category was Main Street
Businesses. These companies have a physical location,
employees, need operations support and are typically
focused on increasing sales.

Microenterprise
58%

9% 10%

Top Industries Represented
2021

37%
34%

2022

12%

9% 9%

4%

Type of Business

Main Street Business

19%

Innovation-led Business
13%

___ Second-Stage Business
10%



What types of businesses are started?

Comparing data from 2021 with 2022, there was an equal 7% change of
business reporting to be in the Idea stage (decrease) in 2021 and those reporting
their business is in the Existence / Infancy stage (increase) in 2022. We also
observe a 3% increase in businesses reporting to be in the Expansion stage.

27%

27%

18%

Idea Existence / Infancy Early Growth Expansion

Business in Puerto Rico, according to the
Puerto Rico Department of Labor
49,973

47,828 47,83,/
\ /
CuelIs

Q3'2019 Q3'2020 03'2021 03'2022

: 13% :
5 10% :
5

+6% -4% +4% +4%

Business Stage
W 2021 [ 2022

%
3% 1% 1%

Maturity Decline

This may be indicative of a wider
trend of new businesses starting in
Puerto Rico as was pointed out in our
2021 report. According to data from
the Puerto Rico Department of Labor
and Human Resources, the there was
a4% (2,141 units) increase in
businesses in Puerto Rico between
032021 and Q3'2022, aftera
previous 4% increase between
Q3'2020and Q3'2021.




It is understood that the first 3 years of a business are the most crucial period for its survival. We asked respondents
to share their business start date and the length of time generating sales to understand the age of businesses.

Analyzing the business start date, 25% of

entrepreneurs reported having begun their
Average 2018 (5 years) operations during 2022, a year or less since the

survey sample was collected. By comparison, only

Median 2020 (3 years) 7% of entrepreneurs in our sample reported having
Maximum 1945 (78 years) started in 2018, the average start date.
Furthermore, we observed that 25% of the total
Minimum 2022 (1 year) sample had started their business before 2018, but

. _ _ a whopping 68% started their business after 2018.
N=468 participants that answered this question.

The length of time generating sales reported during 2022 matches the business age data. This is deduced because
22% express having not yet generated sales and a total 45% express having generated sales for 3 years or less (for a
total of 67%, compared to 68% who started their business after 2018). Additionally, 33% have been generating sales
for over 4 years (compared to 32% who started their business in 2018 or before).

When we compare this data with 2021, there was a 19% decrease in the number of businesses that had not yet
generated sales and a 13% decrease in the number of businesses generating sales for 1 to 3 years. There were also
15% increases for entrepreneurs generating sales in both the under 1 year and 4 to 10 years categories.

Length of Time Generating Sales
2021 2022

41% 39%

22% 24% 23%
19%

9 0 10%
6% 8% 8%

No Sales Yet Under 1 Year 1 to 3 Years 410 10 years Over 10 years



A look into the business profiles
N our community

Seemingly, the most used legal structures in Puerto Rico for businesses are DBAs (Doing Business As)
and LLCs (Limited Liability Companies), which make up 66% of the total sample.

Legal Structures Used
Our data shows that 17% of 349
individuals (up 6% from 2021) 31% S2% 32k o 20
have not yet incorporated their
companies. Amongst non- gresseanensss :
incorporated projects, 43% are 17% :

already generating sales (down Po1% Pl 0y
20% from 2021). Comparing 8% 7%
this data with 2021, we again . % 1%

see that 7% of all survey

i O < . @ O, 7
respondgnts a.re operating O”go /%0 o(;8 %O» 05& %,
their business informally. & 2 %, % N

J}O(o °)(§// @% O/z‘\ /e
Ry (9 ks
% e
2
k3
The main reasons these Top Reasons Business is not Formalized

businesses have not yet been
conece, brsneses ioveteeson e
knowledge, businesses in ack knowledge about the process 32%
early .devebpment St.age, My business is in early stages _ 22%
and financial constraints.
I have financial constraints _ 19%
I'am in the process of formalization - 10%
T %
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THE TEAM

Dr. Pierette Bartolomei-Torres, Founder

Dr. lan Crespo Orta, Co-founder

CONNECT WITH THEM ONLINE:
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LEARNINGBP

Learningbp LLC is a virtual educational company founded by Dr.
Pierette Bartolomei-Torres and Dr. lan Crespo Orta. The idea came
about in 2019 after Dr. Bartolomei completed her doctoral thesis in
education based on the theories of multiple intelligences and
started writing an educational blog. In 2020, after the earthquakes
in southern Puerto Rico and the pandemic, alumni and parents
approached asking for additional support in the educational
process. This led Dr. Bartolomei to turn her blog into a company
that provides educational reinforcement, tutoring, and educational
mentoring services for students, parents, and teachers.

This project has the vision of becoming the benchmark for virtual
education based on the use of multiple intelligences as a facilitating
tool for the teaching-learning process for students, teachers and
parents. To achieve this, they plan to continue expanding their
services of tutoring to students, educational reinforcement,
workshops and mentoring for teachers through more strategic
alliances with other projects, organizations and educational centers
in Puerto Rico. In addition, as a long-term goal they want to offer
these services in other markets around the world and diversify their
offer of online courses.

COMPANY PROFILE

Industry - Education

Location - Digital Company based in San Juan, Puerto Rico
Type of Business - Microenterprise

Business Stage - Early Growth

Time generating sales - Between 1-3 years

Classification - Female-Owned


https://www.facebook.com/learningbp/
https://www.instagram.com/learningbp/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/learningbp/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/
https://www.learningbp.com/

ADVICE FOR OTHER
ENTREPRENEURS

s

“...Start with Colmen66.
Through the Tu Camino
Empresarial map and
mentoring [you] will be
able to find the
resources and entities
that will help you grow."

CHALLENGES FACED

Changes in the market - When the education system normalized in
the late stages of the pandemic, they had an initial drop in the
number of participants due to their return to in-person classes. To
solve this, they adapted their service schedules to the needs of
families.

Recruitment of personnel - During their second year of operations,
they found it difficult to hire tutors to meet demand for their
services. In this process, the Colmena66 team and Kinesis
Foundation were very helpful. They developed an internship
program with which they could access trained resource banks

and resolve the challenge.

Effect of crises on the market - Although their team was ready to
offer the services from the day after Hurricane Fiona, the students
were not. They carried out a needs assessment with which they were
able to adjust their process to the different alternatives, devices and
accessibility of the students and continue offering the services.

ENTREPRENEURIAL JOURNEY & COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Upon contacting Colmena66, Dr. Bartolomei received an individual
mentoring session where she was able to identify resources and
programs from the business community useful for the development
of her project. With this starting point she has received business
training and has been able to connect with peers in the community.
They are currently in the process of researching and accessing
sources of capital within the entrepreneurial ecosystem.

ACHIEVEMENTS

From 2022 to 2023, they had a 67% increase in participating
students receiving mentoring.

This year, for the first time, they will be impacting Bright Stars
students of the Kinesis Foundation with consultancy on their
educational journey toward the College Board and SAT exams. In
addition, they have joined the program as employers to provide
first job opportunities to undergraduate and graduate students.

They achieved a collaboration with the Department of Education
Sciences of the University of Puerto Rico at Ponce to recruit
university students who will serve as tutors.

This year they began to offer their catalog of workshops for
teachers in private schools.

They were selected as part of the 25 finalists in Grupo Guayacan and
Liberty Foundation's Conectando tu Negocio al Exito competition.
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The Entrepreneurial Journey
WHO HELPED THEM ALONG THEIR PATH

Stage 1
|dea | Concept

Colmenab6 Causa Local and Verizon

Causa Local Academy
Verizon Small Business
Digital Ready

Operation Hope

Entrepreneur Training
Program

Centro para Emprendedores
Nucleo

Stage 2
Proof of Concept | Prototype | Market Entry

Fasel Lab & Intensive

Centro de Negocios y Desarrollo Econdmico (CNDE) | UPRM
Area E

Grupo Guayacan and Liberty Foundation
Conectando tu Negocio al Exito - $500

Stage 3

Launch

Co.co.haus
Co-working space

51
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Between 2021 and 2022, 51% of surveyed businesses reported their revenues increased. This also correlates with
the business start date and the length of time generating sales, as many new businesses were formed during 2021
and 2022. Manufacturers (63%) and Agribusinesses (58%) had the highest percentages of reported revenue increases.
Interestingly, Agribusinesses (17%) and Retail (17%) reported the highest percentages of revenue decreases.

Revenue Change

(2020 - 2021)

Does not apply Increased

24% e 28%
Did not change \/ \___ Decreased

28% 19%
o

2% 290
i T

s o s s

$50,001 - $100,000

Revenue Change
(2021 - 2022)

Increased
51%

Does not apply
31%

Did not change Decreased
5% 13%

Business Annual Revenue
o 2022

5% 6% \ \
2% 3% 2% 3%
A . o

$100,001 - $250,000  $250,001 - $500,000 $500,001 or more

The number of entrepreneurs that had not generated revenue fell 15% from 2021 to 2022.
Approximately 2 out of every 5 business in Creative Industries and Retail report generating

less than $10,000 in revenue in 2022. Meanwhile, Manufacturers and Restaurants & Hotels
had the most businesses generating over $100,000 annually, at 22% and 16% respectively.

Main Business Expenses

19%
+« VP

10% 10%

Other

Taxes and permits
Program and technology licenses
Research & Development

The main business expenses reported
are raw materials, payroll and rent or
mortgage. Examining these expenses
by industry, Manufacturing (51%),

Utilities (electricity, water, gas, internet, etc) Retail (44%), and Creative Industries

(36%) reported raw materials as their
main expense. Payroll was the main
expense for Restaurant & Hotels
(27%) and Agribusiness (31%).



Job creation is another important factor to understand the impact of businesses. In 2022, 35% of entrepreneurs in
our sample expressed they were employers. In 2021, they employed a total of 1,298 people, which grew to 1,633
jobsin 2022, anincrease of 26% (335 new jobs). This total employment is composed primarily of full-time
employees, followed by contractors and lastly part-time employees. This composition was very similar when

comparing reported employment in 2021 to 2022.

Are you an Employer? Total Employment Employment Composition

2021

/_Yes
5% 1298
No -
65%
Number of Employees
Te6% M 2021 [ 2022
: 58% :
. 5% 9% sy 6%
v R e R — - e—
1to5 6to 10 111020 21t0 50

1% 1%

2022 2021 2022

1633 Contractors
36%

Part Ti
art Time 21%

Full Time 43%

A majority of businesses employ 1 to 5
employees. Businesses with this
workforce size decreased 8% from 2021
to 2022. However, businesses with
workforce sizes of 6to 10and 11 to 20
employees increased 3% and 4%

51 or more respectively (7% total).

N=148 employersin 2021 and 175 employers in 2022 who answered this question.

In the context of economic crisis and labor shortages,
strategies to retain talent are gaining more
importance. We asked employer businesses what types
of benefits they were currently offering.

Most employers offer full time employees additional
vacation and sick pay (21% for each) benefits above
minimum legal requirements. Both full time and part
time employees are most offered flexible work hours
(36%) and above minimum wage salary (30%).

The types of benefits not offered by most employers
are child daycare (89%), access to mental or emotional
health services (85%), and partial or total tuition
reimbursement (84%).

Employee Benefits Offered
Full Time Part Time D Both

! . 21%
Vacation Pay (above minimum 6%

legal requirement) 17%

21%

Sick Pay (above minimum 6%

legal requirement)
19%
Pay above Minimum Wage L1% 0%
16%
Flexible Work Hours 11%
Meal vouchers, 9%
snacks, or free lunch 8%

N=197 employer businesses who answered this question.



What is the impact
of these businesses?

Approximately 2 out of every 3 entrepreneurs surveyed
expect to hire new employees during 2023. A similar
trend is also observed across industries, business stages
and time generating sales.

Do you plan to hire new
employees in 20237

It is important to note that only in the Retail industry,
more than half of businesses do not expect to hire new
employees in 2023.

\ Yes
68%

Expectation to hire in 2023 by Top Industries Represented

. Yes . No
% 85%
.................. 82% 73% 73%
53% 52% : o2%
° 48% 48% °
38/0 27% 27%
[ . ' (N[
Creative Industries  Retail Sales Restaurant & Hotels Agribusiness Personal Services Manufacturing Other

Expectation to hire in 2023 by Business Stage

. Yes . No
89%
75% 9%
53A 47cy 62% 63%
38% 38%
25% 21%
11%
Idea Existence / Infancy  Early Growth Expansion Maturity Decline

Expectation to hire in 2023 by Length of Time Generating Sales
. Yes . No

85% :
68% 70% o%
0,
% sy

. . - - -
15%
R P R [

No Sales Yet Under 1 Year 1 to 3 Years 410 10 years Over 10 years

54



In 2022 the majority of entrepreneurs surveyed only serve the Puerto Rico market (67 %), which is similar to our 2021
data (66%). When asked about their interest in exporting, 54% of operating businesses expect to export to the US or
Internationally in 2023. Of those who currently only serve the Puerto Rico market, 31% hope to export to the US and

7% Internationally. Out of those currently exporting to the US, 47% hope to export internationally.

Actual Business Reach Reported Expected Business Reach Reported
2021 2022 Expectation for 2022 Expectation for 2023
9 . I 8%
Local, Community or Municipality 215 Local, Community or Municipality 0
20% 5%
9 - 17%
Regional, Municipality or Nearby Towns P e Regional, Municipality or Nearby Towns 13% ’
9 . . 25%
All of Puerto Rico exclusively 21(244’ All of Puerto Rico exclusively % 0
9 30%
Puerto Rico & United States exclusively — Puerto Rico & United States exclusively g
25% 32%
1% _ 1%
United States exclusively 1;: United States exclusively l°/:
0% 2%
Federal Government 0% Federal Government co
\ \ K International —
nternationa 7% nternationa 22%
Percentages exclude responses of businesses in the Idea stage and who had not yet generated sales.
“Actual Business Reach” refers to businesses actively exporting at the time of response. “Expected Business
Reach” refers to the expectation to be actively exporting during the year after the time of response.
Expectation to Export in 2023 by Top Industries Represented
US interest International interest Currently Exporting
61%
0,
46% o . 45% >0% 42% o
“0%:369% 36% 290 e :38% 35%
2% 28% 25% 24% 25%
0% 5% 7%
Creative Industries Retail Sales Restaurant & Hotels ~ Agrobusiness Persanal Services Manufacturing Other

N=417 responses of participants, excluding those in the Idea stage and who had not yet generated sales.

Taking a closer look at the businesses that serve Puerto Rico and are interested in reaching the US market by industry,
Creative Industries, Retail and Agribusiness have the highest percentages. When focusing on the businesses that
already have reach in the US and are interested in reaching International Markets, Creative Industries, Agribusiness

and Manufacturing have the highest percentages.
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THE TEAM

Co-Foudners:

Daniel Rivera Ramos
Roberto Rivera Ramos

Juan Rivera Ramos
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The Entrepreneurial Journey
MOLCAJETE FOODS, LLC

Molcajete Foods is a company founded by three engineer brothers:
Daniel, Roberto and Juan Rivera Ramos, with the goal of creating
something that reflects their Mexican heritage and honoring their
grandmother Dolores and her secret corn tortilla recipe, which has
been passed down from generation to generation for more than
100 years. Located in Caguas, Molcajete Foods began operations in
2017, 6 months before Hurricane Maria.

The mission of this company is to produce food with simple and
high quality ingredients, contribute to the economic development
of Puerto Rico and improve food sovereignty through local food
development and manufacturing. The company is dedicated to the
manufacture of corn tortillas and tortilla chips Dona Lola, using
natural and organic ingredients. Its products are free of gluten and
preservatives, and are characterized by their low sodium content.

Molcajete Foods seeks to continue innovating with new products
and using more local ingredients. Its expansion plans include
creating a new manufacturing facility for the local market and for
exporting.

COMPANY PROFILE

Industry - Manufacturing

Location - Caguas, Puerto Rico

Type of Business - Company based on innovation
Business Stage - Expansion

Time generating sales - Between 4 to 5 years

Classification - Minority-Owned


https://www.facebook.com/TortillasDonaLola/
https://www.instagram.com/tortillasdonalola/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
https://molcajetefoods.com/
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ADVICE FOR OTHER
ENTREPRENEURS

-

"We started with |-
Corps by Grupo
Guayacan we where
able to validate our
idea in a scientific way.
Our advice is to look for
opportunities and
different
entrepreneurial
support programs. If
there is an idea and
desire to develop it,
you just need to ask for
help and join the
ecosystem.”

CHALLENGES FACED

Access to capital - Capital needed to invest in expanding
operations and purchasing equipment. Manufacturing is a capital-
intensive industry.

Formalization (compliance with regulatory requirements) - Slow
regulatory processes and high costs limit the speed with which they
can expand operations.

Market Competition - Certain protectionist laws limit the
competitive capacity of emerging companies in Puerto Rico,
hindering their bargaining power.

ENTREPRENEURIAL JOURNEY & COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Having already vast experience in the manufacturing industry in the
United States, these three brothers return to Puerto Rico to
develop their company starting with a process of idea validation
and customer discovery with the I-Corps program of Grupo
Guayacan. Since then, they have been able to insert themselves in
other programs of the business community and support
themselves to survive through crises and grow their company
successfully. In their journey, they have accessed over $570K from
multiple sources of capital.

ACHIEVEMENTS

Develop a new segment of products manufactured in Puerto Rico
characterized by fresh products without preservatives and free of
allergens.

The impact of employing people who were out of work or lost jobs
due to the economic crisis and the pandemic.

Raising the standard of the food manufacturing industry in PR.

Having a 57% increase in sales during 2022 compared to 2021.
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The Entrepreneurial Journey
WHO HELPED THEM ALONG THEIR PATH

Stage 1
|dea | Concept

Grupo Guayacan INprende & FirstBank
I-Corps 1Exito - $3,000
Hispanic Federation - Oficina de Desarrollo
$5,000

Econdmico de Caguas
Colmena66

Stage 2
Proof of Concept | Prototype | Market Entry

Parallel18
Prel8-$20,000

Grupo Guayacan
EnterPRize - $15,000
Idea Seed Fund - $100,000

Stage 3

Launch

Kiva | Causa Local
COVID-19 grant $5,000
Loans $20,000

Stage 4

Growth | Expansion

Departamento de Desarrollo Econémico y
Comercio

Grupo Guayacan
Scale Up

Community Development Venture Capital
Alliance (CDVCA)

Unlock Capital
Parallel18
P18 Ventures - $25,000
Startup Popular - $40,000

Small Business Administration (SBA)
EIDL $198,000
PPP $15,000

Parallel18
P18 - $40,000

Banco de Desarrollo Econémico Centro
Oriental (BADECO)

Loan $4,000
Incentive $5,000

World Central Kitchen - $20,000

Departamento de Hacienda
Incentive $1,500
Incentive $5,000

Banco de Desarrollo Econémico

CDBG-DR Small Business Financing
(SBF) - $50,000



To identify areas of improvement and offer specific recommendations on where our
resources and energy can be allocated, we will go over the perceptions entrepreneurs have
of the entrepreneurial community, obstacles, and other important topic areas.

When asked about important business
development areas, entrepreneurs show a
lack of knowledge in topics relating to Supply
Chain Integration (37%), Sale and Export of
Goods and Services (33%), and Research &
Development (29%). Most entrepreneurs
have a basic understanding of each of these
topics, but an average of 25% reported
having advanced knowledge in Financial
Management, Budgeting and Accounting
(27%), Business Plan Development (24%),
and Marketing, Branding and Publicity (24%).

To further gauge possible knowledge gaps, we
asked respondents about their level of
familiarity with existent community resources.
Considering that 54% of operating businesses
expect to exportin 2023, it is important to
point out that 69% of the total sample are
unaware of Exporting Incentives. We also
observe that 55% of entrepreneurs in the
Creative Industries are unaware of incentives for
their industry. Of the entrepreneurs expecting
to hire new employees in 2023, 47% are
unaware of Workforce Development Incentives
and 49% are unaware of Recruiting Platforms.

Knowledge Gaps in the Community

Supply Chain Integration 37%
Sale and Exports of Goods and Services 33%
Research & Development 29%
Business Digitization 17%
Market Research 16%
Regulatory Compliance (Permits, Taxes, etc.) 14%
Recruitment and Human Resource Management 14%
Client Discovery Processes 13%
Financial Management, Budgeting and Accounting 9%
Marketing, Branding and Publicity 9%
Business Plan Development 7%

Unfamiliarity with Existent Community Resources

Exporting Incentives 69%
Renewable Energy Incentives 68%
Creative Industries Incentives 67%
Recruiting Platforms 55%
Workforce Development Incentives 50%
Youth Entrepreneurship Incentives 49%
Events or Markets to Promote and Sell Products 46%
Business Incubation or Acceleration Programs 41%
Ecommerce Platforms 39%
Digital and Email Marketing Platforms 36%



What personal factors have affected In 2022, the most common personal factors affecting business

your business development? development are insufficient personal income and an affected
electricity service. When personal factors are considered in relation
to gender, females report being more affected by insufficient
personal income, affected electricity service and insufficient financial
skills. Considering other less common personal factors that affect
Affected Electricity service 66% business development, females are 1.7x more likely to be affected by
impaired mental health and 1.4x by impaired physical health. Males,
on the other hand, are 1.3x more likely to be affected by lack of
access to transportation.

Insufficient personal income 68%

Insufficient financial skills 55%

Considering these personal factors by age range, insufficient

personal income affects 65+ year olds most (82%), this group is also

disproportionately affected by insufficient technological skills (73%).

Insufficient business skills 42% Insufficient financial skills are higher among 18 - 34 year olds, and
seem to gradually decrease with time for older groups.

Lack of time to develop the business 53%

Personal Factors affecting Business Development by Gender
. Males Females

: - 71% 69% :
: % P opy P 57% 55
: I Pl 52% o %
E . ] . | . ﬁ . b
Insufficient Affected Insufficient Lack of time to Insufficient
personal income Electricity service financial skills develop the business business skills

Personal Factors affecting Business Development by Age Range
18-24 M 25-34 [0 35-44 © 45-54 [0 55— [ 65+

9% 1% 68% 70% 71% 79 :
65% 0 67% : 9
53%  60% 63% : 59% 59% {su% 539 2% SS%
. 3 : . . .
Insufficient personal income Affected Electricity service Insufficient financial skills
65% 64%

54% 56%
45% 439 45%

52%
. I ) i - . .

Lack of time to develop the business Insufficient business skills



In addition to personal factors, it is important to
understand what forces outside of the entrepreneurs’
control are affecting their business. The most common
external factors affecting business development are
inflation and natural disasters (Hurricane Fiona hit in
September of 2022).

Considering the external factors affecting business
development by industry, all have been impacted greatly,
but we see Agribusiness and Restaurant & Hotels have
been harshly affected. Restaurant & Hotels have also
been affected by tax rates (75%) and inconsistencies in
electric service (67%). Agribusinesses also report being
disproportionately being affected by COVID-19
restrictions (79%). Manufacturers also report being
affected by tax rates (66%).

\What external factors have affected
your business development?

Increases in inflation
Atmospheric natural disasters
Inconsistencies in electric service
Increases in the price of gasoline
Inconsistencies in internet service
Tax rates

COVID-19 pandemic restrictions

85%

79%

75%

T4%

65%

59%

54%

Top 5 External factors affecting Business Development by Industry

Increases in inflation Atmospheric natural disasters

Increases in the price of gasoline B inconsistencies in internet service

o0% 81% 81%
nu g 75% 68%
62% 59%
51%
Creative Industries Retail Sales
87% g19 * 83%
B1% 73% 73%
52%

Personal Services Manufacturing

93% 91% 89%
83 82%

62%

Restaurant & Hotels

83% 83% 80%
63%

94% 96%

Other

Inconsistencies in electric service

90%

67%
52%

Agribusiness

76% 729% 71% 73%



The most common challenge entrepreneurs Main Obstacles to
reported in 2022 was seed capital availability. This Business Development
challenge can be observed in similar proportions
across industries, business stage, and time

' } i Seed capital availability 54%
generating sales. Changes in operational costs seem

to particularly affect businesses in the Expansion Changes in operational costs 22%
stage (66%) and those operating for over 10 years Access to other types of private financing 47%
64%). This is a very important topic, considerin

(64%) yimp pIc, g Government Regulations 46%

our economy has been facing high inflation, and this
could affect the long-term stability of older Access to lines of credit 4%
businesses while hindering the growth of new ones.

Top 3 Obstacles by Business Stage
Idea . Existence / Infancy |!| Early Growth Expansion |!| Maturity |!| Decline

£9% .66%..
0, N :
53% 4o 52% 07 509 ¢ il 56%
9 49% 50% 49% : : o
6% 40% 1k 4% 403 4%
° : : 38% ° 36% 38%
Seed capital availability Changes in ope-r-a-ii-(;;{al costs Access to other types of private financing

Top 3 Obstacles by Length of Time Generating Sales
NoSalesYet [0 Under1Year || 1to3 Years 4 to 10 years M over 10 years

61% S8 L 6%
o} 9% = .
51% % e >4% °5% : 51% 52%
439 48%  47% : :
| . l 39% l I E 41% . 39% -
Seed capital availability Changes in operational costs Access to other types of private financing

62



Creative Industries

Seed capital availability: 63%
Changes in operational costs: 54%

Access to other types of private
financing: 53%

% &

Agribusiness

Changes in operational costs: 52%
Seed capital availability: 50%
Access to lines of credit: 46%

Access to other types of private
financing: 46%

Retail Sales

Seed capital availability: 63%
Access to other types of private
financing: 55%

Changes in operational costs: 54%

Personal Services

Seed capital availability: 60%
Changes in operational costs: 58%
Recurring revenue: 54%

Restaurants & Hotels

Changes in operational costs: 62%
Access to other types of private
financing: 51%

Seed capital availability: 49%

Manufacturing

Changes in operational costs: 71%
Government Regulations: 61%
Seed capital availability: 54%

Acquisition of insurance, licenses and
special permits: 54%



A gap in the community

In 2022, 86% of entrepreneurs surveyed
expressed having used their personal savings to
fund their business, followed by personal credit
cards (39%) and friends & family (24%). It is also
important to note that 10% used government
grants and 5% private grants for their businesses
(we did not collect this data for 2021). In
comparison to our 2021 sample, more
entrepreneurs report using personal credit cards,
incubation programs, and business credit cards.

Traditional Bank Loans were used by 8% of the
sample. More advanced forms of access to
capital ,in this case investment, was used by only
3% (dropping from 7% in 2021) of
entrepreneurs. And alternative financing options,
specifically crowdfunding, was used by 3%.

This is a very important area to address because
the challenges reported by entrepreneurs are
insufficient personal income as the primary
personal factor, inflation as the primary external
factor, and seed capital availability as the main
obstacle affecting their business development.
This also has to be considered within the context
of Puerto Rico’s ongoing economic crisis and
future economic outlook.

Types of Financing used
to Fund the Businesses
2021 2022
0,
Personal Savings 83%
86%
20%
Personal Credit Cards °
39%
20%
Friends & Family
24%
9%
Personal Stimulus Checks °
11%
8%
PPP Loans
9%
8%
Federal Loans
9%
. 7%
Incubation Programs
14%
7%
Investors
3%
. 6%
Traditional Bank Loans
8%
6%
Business Credit Cards
11%
6%
Acceleration Programs
8%
. 5%
Business Credit Lines
6%
3%
Crowdfunding
3%
Government Grants
10%

Private Grants
5%



A gap in the community

Males and females use their personal savings, personal credit cards and traditional bank loans to finance their
business in very similar proportions. Females are 1.3x more likely than males to depend on Family and Friends to
finance their business. Meanwhile, males are 2.2x more likely to use Federal Loans, 2.1x Private and Government

Grants, and 2x more likely to access investors.

Types of Financing used by Gender

. Males Females
86% 86%

38% “40%

19% 26%
° 16% 139 15% 16% 14%
. B 1% .10% A= 7% P 7% 8% 8%
[ [ - -
Personal Personal Friendsand  Incubation Business  Government Federal loans Acceleration  Traditional Private grants
savings credit cards family programs  credit cards grants programs  bank loans

In 2022, Personal Savings were used by all entrepreneurs on the 65+ age range, differing from our data in
2021 where this group had the lowest use by a margin of 42% when compared year to year. This 65+ segment
also reports not having used financing alternatives from Incubation programs. In 2021 we observed Friends
and Family was used in higher numbers across younger segments, which is still the case for 2022.

Types of Financing used by Age Range
18-24 M 2536 T 3544 4554 M sses [ 65+

85% 88% guy 87%

78% :

B2% 40% 4% :

: 29% 3% 7% 27% 29% % 5.,

: :21% 21%

S SEEE

: : E N e
Personal savings Personal credit cards Friends & Family

18% ....... 18%
14% P 15%
: H 12% 13%
10% L11%:
9% ° : : 9% 9%
Incubation programs Business Credit Cards

65



Crises preparedness has become a must for any business in Puerto Rico, particularly over the last 5 years. We wanted

to learn more about how entrepreneurs were approaching this topic to identify potential gaps.

Does the business have contingency

funds for a future crisis?

Yes
16%

No
84%

Does the business have
alternative sources of energy?

Generator Solar panels
26% 10% Other
1%

No Yes
30% 70%

No

63%

LEVANTA Our findings with this survey sample were very similar to what we learned with Levanta

Does the business have
disaster insurance?
No (ineligible business) Yes
Jo; 17%
No (high costs)
10%

| don't know
5% -

No
62%

Is the business better prepared to
face a crisis than it was a year ago?

TUNEGOCIO Tu Negocio PR - Hurricane Fiona. Examining these elements across industries, business

stage, and time generating sales we observe that a majority of entrepreneurs are still very
vulnerable to crises and natural disasters. As they continue to struggle with lingering
effects of the pandemic and the current economic crisis, there is an opportunity to

collectively and systemically design proactive “precovery” strategies to prepare businesses

and respond to a crisis as a well coordinated community.
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Doris Candelaria Esteves

Luis Blanco Riveiro

CONNECT WITH THEM ONLINE:

& ©

INSU HEALTH DESIGN

A year after Hurricane Maria, a group of students from the University
of Puerto Rico and the University of Houston investigated the main
problems caused by the hurricane. After interviewing people in
multiple communities and entities, they identified that one of the
main problems was the lack of effective methods to store medicines
that require refrigeration. The prolonged lack of electricity and scarce
resources, such as ice, caused thousands of health mishaps,
hospitalizations, monetary losses, and even deaths. As a result of this
analysis a with the support of the UPR i+C program, Insu Health
Design is born, a Puerto Rican startup founded in 2019 with the aim
of designing innovative temperature control solutions in refrigerated
storage and transportation systems.

Funded through the Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Phase
| program with the National Science Foundation, their technology has
the potential to become the ideal storage solution that can protect
and cool temperature-sensitive biomaterials such as drugs, blood,
organs, vaccines, chemicals and hormones for extended periods, even
in areas that have an unstable power grid or lack one. In addition, this
type of product could help decrease the $35 billion annual loss in the
global biopharmaceutical industry due to failures in temperature-
controlled logistics.

Now located in Mayaglez, they want to enter the market with an
excellent first product, improve it and begin research and
development of new applications for the technology. Their goal is to
maintain the operation of the company 100% in Puerto Rico, create
jobs and invest in the development of the business community.

COMPANY PROFILE
Industry - Manufacturing

Location - Mayaguez, Puerto Rico

Type of Business - Company based on innovation
Business Stage - Early Growth | Launch

Time generating sales -They haven't generated sales yet

Classification Female-Owned, Youth-Owned


https://www.facebook.com/InsuPR
https://www.instagram.com/insuhealthdesign/?hl=en
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.insuhealthdesign.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/insu-health-pr/

ADVICE FOR OTHER
ENTREPRENEURS

s

"It is the ideal time to
start a business. Now
there are a lot of
opportunities and
resources that didn't
exist before for people
looking to create
solutions to real
problems."

CHALLENGES FACED

Access to capital - Capital necessary for the research and
development process, which by the nature of the product is long
and complex. They have to invest in the development of facilities
and the purchase of equipment necessary for the prototyping and
manufacture of the product.

Product Development - They have identified technical challenges,
manufacturing challenges and scalability challenges that they are
solving in order to be able to launch to the market.

Product Market Fit - Identifying the right clientele for their
product to ensure its commercial viability. For this, they are carrying
out additional market validation and customer discovery processes
fora B2B model.

ENTREPRENEURIAL JOURNEY & COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Starting at the Center for Innovation and Commercialization of the
University of Puerto Rico (UPR i+c), Insu Health Design has received
support from multiple organizations in the innovation ecosystem in
Puerto Rico and in the United States. Through their efforts, they
have raised $580K from non-dilutive financing sources to invest in
their company.

ACHIEVEMENTS

To date, their greatest achievement has been raising $500K+
through the awards and grants they have won.

They have also received important recognitions from Grupo
Guayacan, Bravo Family Foundation, and others.

Their most recent achievement was being awarded an SBIR Phase 1
grant from the National Science Foundation, and matching funds
from the Puerto Rico Science Technology and Research Trust, which
they will use to take their product to market.
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The Entrepreneurial Journey
WHO HELPED THEM ALONG THEIR PATH

Stage 1
|dea | Concept

Centro de Innovacion y Comercializacién de la Universidad de Puerto Rico

(UPRi+c)

Parallel18
Prel8-$20,000

Stage 2

Proof of Concept | Prototype | Market Entry

Grupo Guayacan
EnterPRize -$32,000
Colmenab6
Puerto Rico Science, Technology and
Research Trust
Acercate al Grant
Research Grants Program -
$100,000
Carbono3
(3 Impact Lab
Departamento de Desarrollo Econémico
y Comercio
Pymes Innovadoras - $40,000

National Science Foundation
SBIR - $256,000

RedLABS - $2,000
VentureWell - $25,000
Roddenberry Foundation - $15,000

Bravo Family Foundation

Rising Entrepreneurs Program -
$90,000

Community Development Venture
Capital Alliance (CDVCA)

Unlock Capital

69



Inflation is the topic that most worries
entrepreneurs in Puerto Rico (97%). It
is important to note that inflation was
reported as the primary factor that
affected business development (85%).
Additionally, entrepreneurs are worried
about changes in tax rates, public
safety, public infrastructure and the
political environment in Puerto Rico.

Perceptions of the entrepreneurial community

It's easy as an entrepreneur to adapt to changing economic circumstances
Municipal governments are sources of support for local entrepreneurs
Puerto Rico's infrastructure fosters business development

There are support networks for entrepreneurs starting their businesses
Government incentives encourage entrepreneurship

It's easy to identify entrepreneurial opportunities

Puerto Rican entrepreneurs are creative and original

Puerto Ricans support local small and medium businesses

Puerto Rico's regulatory framework encourages business formation
Financing entrepreneurship projects is easy

Learning about entrepreneurship is easy

Entrepreneurship is accessible to those who want to start

What are entrepreneurs most worried about?

Increases in inflation 97%
Changes in tax rates 95%
Public safety in Puerto Rico 91%
Public infrastructure in Puerto Rico 88%
Puerto Rico’s political environment 88%
Labor reforms 86%
United States’ political environment 86%
Emigration of Puerto Ricans 85%
Agree Disagree [ don't know
24% 68% 8%
29% 58% 13%
32% 59% 9%
74% 17% | 9%
36% 52% 11%
59% 36% 5%
88% 9% 3%
71% 26% 3%
26% 66% 8%
17% 77% 7%
53% 44% 3%
48% 49% 3%
46% 43% 11%

The local business ecosystem is strong

Most individuals in this sample agree that Puerto Rico has creative and original entrepreneurs (88%) and that there are
support networks for them to start their business {74%). Most individuals disagree that financing entrepreneurship
projects (77%) and that adapting to changing economic circumstances (68%) is easy. Opinions seem most divided around
entrepreneurship being accessible to anyone who wants to start and that Puerto Rico’s business ecosystem is strong.

What is your current business outlook?

My business is
stable, and |

0 o :
believe we wil L)% 16% I am worried it may fail
stay afloat

10% o
My business is 32% My business is

struggling, but | believe
we will stay afloat

N=417 responses of participants, excluding those in
the Idea stage and who had not yet generated sales.

My business is stable but

struggling and | am
waorried it may fail

The majority (74%) of businesses in our
survey expect to stay afloat in the near future
(a 9-point drop in comparison with 2021),
even if currently struggling. The remaining
26% show negative perspectives about the
future of their business. This shows that the
percentage of businesses with a negative
outlook increased from 2021 to 2022.



Before contacting Colmena66

Needed mentoring

Needed more
education and training

Needed assistance
developing a product

Wanted to achieve | wanted to start

operational efficiencies a business
The most important
CENIN)Y
Needed assistance entrepreneurs Needed access
handling permitting contacted Colmena66 to capital

processes

| needed to develop
a business plan

Required help with
financial planning

N=150 participants indicating
. having received support from
Needed assistance | wanted to grow an Colmena6é since 2016.

with marketing, sales existing business
or advertising

Entrepreneurs contacted Colmena66 mainly because they needed mentoring,
education or access to capital or because they wanted to start a business. Males
were 2.3x more likely than females to contact Colmena66 for assistance after a
natural disaster, 2.1x for assistance with government contracting, and 1.9x for
support developing a proposal.

Considering the reasons Colmenab6 was contacted by age ranges, individuals 25 -
34 years old contacted Colmenab6 because they needed mentoring (96%) and
education (87%) to start a business. Those 35 - 44 mainly needed to grow an
existing business (82%). Individuals 45 - 54 mainly needed mentoring (93%) and
access to capital (90%).



| changed my

business model

Established strategic
agreements with
ecosystem stakeholders

Hired
employees

Business sales
increased . '

I solved a problemin
my operations operations

Entrepreneurs recommend
Colmenab6 to anyone who
wants to start or grow a
business

| made the decision to
be an entrepreneur

| modified my
business plan

Diversified the
product offering
Results businesses
achieved after receiving
support from Expanded
Colmena66 operations

' | opened a business

N=150 participants indicating
having received support from

Improved business Colmenabb since 2016.

After receiving support from Colmena66, most individuals decided to
become an entrepreneur, they modified their business plan or they
diversified their product offering. Females who contacted Colmena66 were
2.6x more likely than males to establish strategic collaborations with other
entrepreneurship support organizations, 2.3x to hire employees, and 1.8x
more likely to open a business. Males were 1.6x more likely to resolve an
issue in their operations and 1.3X more likely to expand their operations.

Individuals in the 25 - 34 and the 45 - 54 decided to start a business (48%
and 42 % respectively). Additionally, 32% of individuals 45 - 54 years old
reported they diversified their product offering.



“Colmenabb has provided me with
exposure to different opportunities for
each stage of my business. From
programs and competitions to mentoring
and informative content, they have
helped me start a business.”

- Kiara Rodriguez, Beyond Technology

\

"Thanks to Colmenat6, | was able to
develop the business model canvas, as
well as connect with numerous
organizations that | discovered through
their website. This has been a great
tool for my business.

~ Monica Narvaez, Pure Path







Colmena66

To build a thriving entrepreneurial community we also have to understand the
perspectives of Entrepreneurship Support Organizations (ESOs), their impact,
their challenges and how our efforts collectively impact all facets of the
community. With this understanding we can communicate how our resources
and programs are effective, where there are opportunities to address and, in
the same manner we expect to support entrepreneurs, accurately allocate
resources to allow these ESOs to continue doing what they do best:
advancing entrepreneurship as a tool for economic development.

This survey had the purpose of gauging the experience of ESOs in our
network to learn about the sectors being served, types of services provided,
organizational challenges, best practices and their outlook on the future of
the community. We increased our survey sample to 70 responses (a 27%
increase from 2021: 55 responses), which represent 26% of our Resource
Network (274 total organizations and programs). These responses are from
for-profit, non-profit, academic, private and government institutions who
support entrepreneurs.




Asociacion Agro-Mujer de PR,
Inc

Asociacion de Pequenas y
Medianas Empresas
ASOPYMES

Banco de Desarrollo Centro
Oriental (BADECO)

Banco de Desarrollo
Economico para Puerto Rico

Boys and Girls Club of Puerto
Rico

Bravo Family Foundation

Casa sin Fronteras, Inc.

Centro de Apoyo ala
Innovacion y Comercializacion
(UPRi+c)

Centro de Desarrollo de
Emprendimiento (CDE)
InterEmprende Ponce

Centro de Innovacion
Colaborativa Neeuko

Centro de Negocios y
Desarrollo Economico

Centro de Recursos de
Patentes y Marcas USPTO

Centro para Emprendedores

Centro para Puerto Rico,
Fundacion Sila Maria Calderén

Centro para Renovacion
Economica Crecimiento y
Excelencia (CRECE)

Centro Unido de Detallistas

N

of)

Community Development
Venture Capital Alliance
(CDVCA)

Consultores Comunitarios
(CONSULTCOM)

Cucina 135

Departamento de Desarrollo
Econdmico y Comercio (DDEC)

Departamento de Educacion

El Nodo
Elemento 360
Enactus Puerto Rico

Endeavor Puerto Rico

Fasel

Fondo de Inversiony
Desarrollo Cooperativo
(FIDECOOP)

Foundation for Puerto Rico

Fundacion Borincana -
PRECAP

Fundacion Comunitaria de
Puerto Rico

Fundacion Monte Azul

Grupo Guayacan

Incubadora Génesis
Agroempresarial, UPR Utuado

Incubadora Inova- INTECO

INprende

Instituto de Permacultura de
Puerto Rico, Inc.

Kingbird Innovation Center
(UAGM)

Kiva Puerto Rico, Causa Local

Latino Economic
Development Center

Lendreams (Cofecc)
Link Puerto Rico

Mentes Puertarriquenas en
Accion

Molecular Science Research
Center (MSRC)

Morro Ventures

Mujer Emprende Latina
Muijeres de Islas

Mumas Renaciendo

Operation HOPE, Inc. Trujillo
Alto-Fajardo

P11 Departamento de
Desarrollo Economico,
Municipio Auténomo de
Ponce

Parallel18
PathStone Enterprise Center
PR MBDA Business Center

OO

Colmena66

Prel8 - Parallel18

Puerto Rico Manufacturing
Extension (PRIMEX)

Proyecto PE.C.E.S.
PR-SBTDC Arecibo
PR-SBTDC, Barranquitas
PR-SBTDC Caguas

PR-SBTDC, Comercio
Internacional

PR-SBTDC Ponce

Puerto Rico Minority Supplier
Development Council
(PRMSDC)

Puerto Rico Small Business
Development Center

Puerto Rico Techno Economic
Corridor, Inc. (PRTEC) - Vitec2

StartUp Popular - Banco
Popular de Puerto Rico

USDA, Food and Nutrition
Service

U.S. Export Assistance Center
of San Juan

Universidad Interamericana de
PR, Centro de Emprendedores
InterEmprende Metro

Universidad de Puerto Rico en
Ponce (Epicentro Empresarial)

Universidad de Puerto Rico
Recinto Cayey Titulo V

UPRA-Emprende840

To all the collaborators who completed the survey.
Your contributions help us better understand the status of our
community and what needs to be done so we can work more

effectively together.



Type of Organization Entrepreneurship Support Organizations, or Resource
Partners as we often call them, are organizations that

Academia Government Agency . . .
@ Foivate bus N i o NGO provide entrepreneurs with services and resources such
rivate pusiness Oon-profrit organization or . . - .
P & as mentoring, capacity building, networking events,
17% acceleration programs, loans, investment, technical

assistance, grants, co-working spaces, and many more
types of support. These stakeholders represent
9% multiple sectors such as non-profit, academia and
government. We share the goal of advancing equitable
and inclusive entrepreneur-led economic development
64% 10% and help create the support system so entrepreneurs
can thrive and reinvest in their communities.

Role in the community

Some of these entities can play various
roles within the ecosystem. Survey
respondents reported that 33% were
educational institutions, 21% are capital Business Incubator
providers, and 17% are professional
service providers. These professional
service providers help address technical
challenges relating to business formation

Non-profit business support organization

Educational institution

Business Accelerator

Provider of capital
(investments, grants, loans, etc.)

Professional service provider

or development, such as accounting, |ega| accounting, legal advice, agency, consulting)
advisory, permits, and many others. Research institution
Other

Which sectors does your organization serve?

Socially or Economically University

Females disadvantaged people students

Adults 50+ Veterans

50%
33%
31%
24%
21%
17%
9%
17%

S
R

Afro-Caribbeans LGBTQ+ Students Cognitive or physical Other

(K-12) disabilities



The reach of our Resource Network

Regions served by ESOs

L

e

11% North

14% Metro 1

3% Islands

P

Most ESOs in our sample ‘ serve any and all regions in Puerto Rico

.Analyzing the reach other organizations have, the Metro region is served by
14% of organizations, 11% in the North, 10% in the Central Region, 9% in the
East, 7% for both West and South, and only 3% in Vieques and Culebra.




Most ESOs in the Resource Network are
industry agnostic. Considering the top
represented industries in the 2022
Annual Entrepreneurship Survey, 17% of
ESOs have focused support for Creative
Industries, 20% for Retail, 19% for
Restaurant & Hotels, 24% for
Agribusiness, 10% for Personal Services

Top Industries Served by ESOs

and 17% for Manufacturing.

Business Stages Served

Idea
Existence / Infancy 44%
Early Growth
Expansion
Maturity 19%

Decline 0%

Deriving best practices from the
experiences of ESOs working
with entrepreneurs, we asked
what were their most effective
strategies to deploy resources
and address the issues their
audiences face.

The most commonly used
strategies reported were
mentoring, in-person and online
seminars or workshops, and
technical assistance.

63%

64%

53%

All industries 59%
Agribusiness 24%
Retail sales 20%
Education 19%
Restaurant & Hotels 19%
Creative Industries 17%
Manufacturing 17%
Non-profits 17%
Tourism 17%

When asked about the business stages these ESOs serve, the
Resource Network seems to have strong support for the Idea,
Early Growth and Expansion stages. However, there is an
opportunity to support entrepreneurs in their Existence /
Infancy stage, as this is typically that difficult period before
reaching the 3-year survival mark. Additionally, there is an
opportunity to develop support resources for established
businesses that have had sustained growth or have existed for
longer periods of time. In this sample, we observe that there
are no support services for declining businesses, which again
points to an opportunity to develop resources that can help
declining or failing businesses.

Most effective strategies and tools ESOs

Mentoring

In-person seminars or workshops
Online seminars or workshops
Technical assistance

Hybrid seminars or workshops
Alliances or collaborative agreements
Referrals to other organizations
Education Events

Networking events

Business visits

Providing capital

Business Evaluations

Other

use to deploy resources

70%
54%
53%
51%
50%
44%
43%
37%
36%
33%
21%
17%
3%



Potential and
established
businesses served
collectively by the
Resource Network

People served
collectively by
the Resource
Network

People Served by ESOs in 2022

1to 10 6% 1to 10 11%
11to 25 7% 11t0 25
26t050 6% 26to 50 9%
51to 100 10% 51to 100 9%
101 to 250 15% 101 to 250
251 to 500 16% 25110500 10%
501 to 1000 21% 501 to 1000 7%
1001 to 2500 7% 1001 to 2500 4%
2501 to 5000 3% 2501 to 5000 3%
5001 or more 7% 5001 or more 3%

Businesses Served by ESOs in 2022

N=63 ESOs that reported having served businesses.

This collective impact only takes into account the 70 organizations in our survey sample, which
means that this impact could be much higher. Data points such as these are important because,
as a community, we should soon be able to establish a series of impact metrics and benchmarks

that can help us understand the reach and effectiveness of our efforts, something the Global
Entrepreneurship Monitor (GEM) Report has already started to do in Puerto Rico.

Most common obstacles faced by served population

39%
35% 2021 2022
30%
25% . .
22% 23% 23% 22%  21% 21%
11%
5%
Business Plan Accounting / Startup Loans Commercialization / Marketing /
Assistance Budgeting Assistance Product Distribution Sales

21%
18% 20%
Investment

In 2022, the most common obstacles entrepreneurs face, as reported by the organizations serving them, were
Business Plan Assistance, Accounting/Budgeting, and Startup Assistance. In comparison with what organizations
reported in 2021, we see large increases in obstacle related to Loans (18%) and Marketing/Sales (10%).


https://gem.uprrp.edu/229-2/
https://gem.uprrp.edu/229-2/
https://gem.uprrp.edu/229-2/
https://gem.uprrp.edu/229-2/

The Story and Impact of
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Co-Founders:

Dr. Manuel Lobato,
Dr. Javier Rodriguez
Dr. Carmen Correa
Dr. Jordi Maura

Dr. Camille Villafane

CONNECT WITH THEM ONLINE:

@

UPRi+c

The Center for Innovation and Commercialization Support (UPR i+c) was
founded in 2017 by a group of professors from different disciplines of
the Faculty of Business Administration of the UPR Rio Piedras. Its
objective is to provide support to students, researchers, and
entrepreneurs in the process of commercializing their ideas, technologies
and inventions.

UPR i+c was established as a space open to people from all disciplines to
experiment and learn. The center has collaborated with the School of
Architecture and its FabLab, the School of Law and its Intellectual
Property Clinic, both of the Rio Piedras Campus, and the Puerto Rico
Technology Assistance Program (PRATP) to integrate services and
promote projects.

Since 2019, the organization has also provided services to entrepreneurs
from the external community, and in 2021 an incubator was inaugurated
on its premises. This incubator offers specialized mentoring and
accompaniment to complete the initial phases of business development
successfully. In addition, they lead the [+CARE project, with the support
of the Economic Development Administration (EDA), which was launched
in 2021 to support initiatives focused on people with functional diversity
and older adults.

UPR i+c has also developed educational resources to strengthen skills
related to entrepreneurship and innovation. They offer several certificates
including: Innovation, Commercialization of Innovations and Development
of "Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Commercialization Plan".
They also created a Minor Concentration in Design and Innovation
alongside the School of Architecture. The purpose of the course is to train
students in design, innovation and entrepreneurship for the development
of a service or a specific innovation project that can be commercialized in
global markets. Through these support services they bring together
members of the academic community and partners of the local innovation
ecosystem to develop solutions to social problems and bring to market
new technologies that improve the well-being of their users.

PROFILE

Sector - Academia

Location - San Juan, Puerto Rico

Regions Supported- Metro Region

Business Stages Supported - Idea, Existence/Infancy, Early Growth
Industries Supported - All Types of Industry

Do you provide access to capital? - No

Year Started - 2017


https://www.facebook.com/centroupric/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/
https://upric.uprrp.edu/

upr I+

CHALLENGES FACED

Lack of entrepreneurial culture in academia - There is not a strong
culture of business development within the academic community,
therefore, innovations that are the product of research at the
university are not brought to market.

VISION OF THE ENTREPRENEURIAL COMMUNITY

"The business community will continue to grow and consolidate
itself as the axis of Puerto Rico’s economic development. | expect
transformations that should be the result of the maturity of now
incipient processes, such as a focus on greater efficiency and
impact by incubators, the emergence of true "business

angels" (who will probably be the entrepreneurs who are now
beginning to succeed with their startups) and greater attention
from venture capital firms in the United States. The role of
Colmena66 and the Trust have been and will be crucial in this
development, especially if they continue to prioritize impact and
create new programs to contribute to the balanced development of
the ecosystem."

IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY

Between 2018 and 2023 they have supported 67 innovation
projects, including 18 spinoffs or startups.

They have supported 31 additional ventures through their
incubator program.

Projects supported by UPR i+c have successfully participated in
numerous competitions and programs of the innovation ecosystem
in Puerto Rico and United States, including NASA MITTIC,
ImpactalLatam, NSF I-Corps and SBIR.



A Provider’s Perspective

Does your organization provide
access to capital?

Yes (22) No (48)
31% 69%

Loans

Grants

Seed Capital

SBA Loans
Venture Capital
Private Equity
Angel Investment

Other

Types of capital provided

Approximately one third (31%) of respondents in our survey are access to capital providers.
The capital alternatives most offered by these organizations are Loans, Grants and Seed Capital.

When asked about why requests for capital they
received from entrepreneurs were not
completed, most of our Resource Partners who
provide access to capital mentioned that
companies who request capital often lack
adequate projections (50%) and are too early in
their business development (41%). This may also
be related to the main obstacles the broader
Resource Network reported entrepreneurs face
around Accounting/Budgeting (30%), Loans
(23%) and Investment (21%).

Capital Deployed in 2022

Excluding $72M deployed by
government agencies

Lack of adequate projections

Too early in business lifecycle

Business accounting is not up to date

Lack of time on the client's side

Capital Available in 2023

Excluding $174M available from
government agencies

50%
50%
32%
27%
23%
18%
N=22 ESOs that provide capita
Main obstacles faced by companies
when accessing capital
50%
41%
Affected credit 36%
27%
23%

The comparison of these figures
could be indicating a significant gap
between available capital and actual
deployment. This presents an
opportunity to enhance support for
businesses in accessing capital and
reaching a larger number of
enterprises. Furthermore, evaluating
existing funding mechanisms and
exploring alternative financing
options can help bridge this gap and
deploy capital more effectively.
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Dr. Ernesto Villarini,
Managing Director

Lic. Alejandra Jiménez,
Program Manager

Lic. Emmanuel Loubriel,
Program Manager

CONNECT WITH THEM ONLINE:

@

UNLOCK CAPITAL

The Community Development Venture Capital Alliance (CDVCA) is an
organization dedicated to providing venture capital for community
economic development in underserved markets in the United States.
Founded in 1994 in New York, CDVCA has a presence in Puerto Rico
since 2016 with the Puerto Rico Fund for Growth (PRFG) program,
which has invested over S46M. It was created in the wake of the
Riegle Community Development and Regulatory Improvement Act of
1994 which created the Community Development Financial
Institutions and the CDFI Fund to support and partially capitalize
these financial institutions.

CDVCA's mission is to represent the network of the U.S. community
development venture capital investment field. Its focus is on
community economic development in underserved markets, including
job creation and wealth. To manage investor’s risk avertion, CDVCA
provides technical support and professional education to venture
capital fund managers, enabling them to identify opportunities and
invest capital in underserved industry or geographic sectors.

CDVCA offers an investment readiness program called Unlock Capital.
This program is aimed at founders and executives of companies
seeking capital for growth, offering them education, mentoring,
technical assistance and other services to help companies attract
investors and raise capital. The program has been hugely successful,
with its first cohort in 2022 raising more than $1.8 million in capital
during its time in the program and a second cohort beginning in
March 2023.

The Unlock Capital program helps participants understand the
mindset of investors, understand the different types of financing
available, and prepare them for capital raising. Unlock Capital is a
valuable tool for founders and executives of companies seeking
capital for the growth of their businesses and helps meet the need for
capital in underserved markets, such as Puerto Rico.

PROFILE

Sector - Non-governmental or non-profit organization

Location - San Juan, Puerto Rico

Regions Supported- All Regions in Puerto Rico

Business Stages Supported - Early Growth, Expansion, Maturity
Industries Supported - All Types of Industry

Do you provide access to capital? - Yes | Private Equity, Venture
Capital

Year Started - CDVCA began in the USA in 1994. They establish
programs in Puerto Ricoin 2016.


https://www.facebook.com/UnlockCapital.org
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
https://www.unlockcapital.org/
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CHALLENGES FACED

Risk aversion in Puerto Rico as a market - Perception of risk that
investors have considering investment opportunities in localities or
regions that do not stand out for being highly developed
ecosystems of emerging companies (startups).

VISION OF THE ENTREPRENEURIAL COMMUNITY

"We've seen a lot of growth in the ecosystem and that the gaps are
being bridged better each time. Fairly robust and better educated
companies are also developing. There is a large gap when it comes
to access to capital, but it is slowly being addressed by various
organizations and sectors. More resources need to be leveraged in
the United States to facilitate capital investment and business
growth through the export of goods and services to the United
States, the Caribbean, and globally. We see a lot of potential and
opportunities to expand our impact. We hope that this ecosystem
will continue to grow and become one of the most important hubs
in the hemisphere."

IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY

The PRFG invested over $46M in 171 companies, either through a
funds managed in Puerto Rico or direct investment in companies.
Of these, 142 companies (83%) are based on the island.

With its first cohort, Unlock Capital has managed to help 15
companies obtain $1.85 million in investments or financing to
support growth and has already begun its work in 2023 with 16
additional companies.



Challenges faced by Entrepreneurship Support Organizations

The three main challenges reported by
the Resource Network are: identifying
funds, lack of ecosystem metrics, and
lack of service visibility. These needs
express that organizations want to find
ways to address program sustainability,
accurate data to improve effectiveness
or to allocate resources, and to promote
their services and programs so more
entrepreneurs can receive their services.

Identifying Funds

Ecosystem Metrics

Service Visibility

Event Visibility

Grant Writing

Improving service efficiency and effectiveness

Recruiting, retaining and managing talent

What are you expecting to benefit the most
from by being part of the Resource Network?

Colmenab6's network of resource partners not
only facilitates entrepreneur's access to
resources, but also generates cross-pollination
among the network’s organizations. They
share learned lessons, best practices and assist
each other. Therefore, when asked what
organizations need from others, the top
responses were: collaboration (32%), client
referrals (15%), knowledge sharing (14%) and
identifying access to capital opportunities for
the businesses they serve (11%).

Alliances / Collaboration
Referrals

Knowledge Sharing

Capital Access for Businesses
Educational Resources

Event or Resource Promotion

Funds for the organization

49%
47%
34%
31%
29%
27%
26%
32%
15%
14%
11%
11%
9%

8%

N=65 ESOs that answered this question.



With what we have learned about how entrepreneurs are underprepared to face crises, we wanted learn what
resources and support the Resource Network could provide. This is one of our first steps into understanding what the
community can do and how we can design a coordinated effort to proactively address this issue.

In a crisis event, how is your organization
ready to support affected entrepreneurs?

Direct support to entrepreneurs

Physical space to convene and receive support brigades and resources

Support with the dissemination of the Levanta tu Negocio survey

Deployment of funds to organizations that are helping affected businesses

Provide resources to the business support brigades

We cannot provide support

Other

9%

6%

11%

In a crisis event, 66% of organizations can provide direct support to
entrepreneurs. Other organizations can indirectly benefit affected entrepreneurs
by supporting community efforts. Only 6% cannot provide support.

What direct support can your organization provide?

The direct support these ESQOs
can provide is mainly advisory
related. In terms of physical
space, 48% can provide access to
coworking spaces and 4% can
provide basic services or
infrastructure such as generators,
drinking water, fuel, etc. In terms
of funding, 22% can provide
grants and loans.

Advisory on incentives and/or financing

General business support or advice

Access to coworking space

Development of business continuity plans

Providing grants

Providing of loans

Insurance Management

Psychological services

Basic services or infrastructure

Other

66%
37%
37%
16%
76%
67%
48%
37%
22%
22%
4%
4%
4%
4%

N=46 ESOs that can provide direct support

What does your organization need to deploy these resources?

Data on the companies affected and their needs
Cash donations

Volunteers

Donations of materials, food and/or equipment
We have the necessary resources to deploy the aid

Other

13%
11%

34%
33%

47%

56%

In turn, to provide these resources
ESOs need mainly data of the
affected entrepreneurs to allocate
resources, cash donations,
volunteers, and the necessary
materials such as food or equipment.



Perceptions of the entrepreneurial community Agree Disagree | don't know

It's easy as an entrepreneur to adapt to changing economic circumstances 21% 73% 6%
Municipal governments are sources of support for local entrepreneurs 30% 60% 10%
Puerto Rico's infrastructure fosters business development 17% 80% 3%
There are support networks for entrepreneurs starting their businesses 89% 10% 1%
Government incentives encourage entrepreneurship 34% 60% 6%
It's easy to identify entrepreneurial opportunities 53% 44% 3%
Puerto Rican entrepreneurs are creative and original 94% 6%
Puerto Ricans support local small and medium businesses 63% 36% 1%
Puerto Rico's regulatory framework encourages business formation 19% 74% 7%
Financing entrepreneurship projects is easy 7% 90% 3%
Learning about entrepreneurship is easy 57% 41% 1%
Entrepreneurship is accessible to those who want to start 49% 49% 3%
The local business ecosystem is strong 69% 29% 3%

Comparing the perceptions of Resource Partners with that of entrepreneurs, most individuals in this sample agree
that Puerto Rico has creative and original entrepreneurs (94% vs 88%) and that there are support networks for them
to start their business (89% vs 74%). Most individuals disagree that financing entrepreneurship projects (90% vs
77%) and that adapting to changing economic circumstances (73% vs 68%) is easy. Resource Partner’s opinions
seem most divided around entrepreneurship being accessible to anyone who wants to start, and that identifying

entrepreneurial opportunities is easy.

Resource Partner’s Experience in the Network

Resource Partners
recommend other
ESOs join our

Resource Network

Resource Partners

recommend Colmena66
to anyone who wants to
start or grow a business

Resource Partners see Colmena66 as an Entrepreneurship
Support Organization that helps identify needs, foster
connections, and allocate resources. Our platforms help them
bring visibility to their initiatives, services and programs. We
convene them in various events to share knowledge, network
and design solutions to gaps in the community. Our partners
are very thankful of our work helping them, and we are very
thankful of their work helping entrepreneurs succeed.
Through sustained collaboration and a shared vision, Puerto
Rico is slowly but surely building the foundations of a very
impactful entrepreneurial community where anyone can start
or grow a successful business.



The Story and Impact of

ECHAR
PRLANTE

LEADING THE WAY

PUERTO RICO enrintnicine ~
SLANI
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Dr. Gloria M. Viscasillas
Lead Integrator at Echar Pa’Lante

Vice-President of Economic Development
Programs at Popular

VISIT THEM ONLINE

@

ECHAR PA’ LANTE

Echar Pa'lLante is a multisector alliance that aims to accelerate the
development of a global culture of entrepreneurship and innovation
to transform Puerto Rico into the Enterprising Island. Since 2012,
the organization has brought together hundreds of organizations
and thousands of volunteer allies, as well as national and
international experts, to collaborate on the design and
implementation of systems to stimulate entrepreneurship and
innovation (E&I) at the school, university, and community levels.

Understanding that Puerto Rico faces a significant and socio-
economic challenge, Echar Pa'Lante focuses on developing the
culture of entrepreneurship by (1) building multisector alliances that
are geared towards action and a collective vision, (2] building
entrepreneurship capacity by educating the educators and other
multisector leaders, and (3) building the systems to transform
schools, universities and municipalities into enterprising
communities that will foster accelerated business development.
Echar Pa’Lante is certifying K-16 educators, entrepreneur support
practitioners and other multisector leaders in entrepreneurship and
innovation, which will then foster the necessary systemic changes
to build resilient enterprising communities that drive sustained
socio-economic development.

Investing in the development of an entrepreneurial mindset from an
early age until retirement (lifelong learning), human capital
resources, training, infrastructure, and support for programs that
stimulate entrepreneurship in schools and post-secondary
communities represents the most significant investment in capital
of the 21st century. Echar Pa'Lante's proposal is based on social
projects that promote a new paradigm of the education system,
combining 2 1st-century skills development, which are required for
the future of work, and the retention of students in schools and
post-secondary institutions. This is done through the
implementation of systems that stimulate entrepreneurship and
innovation, developing citizens who are globally competitive
through curricular, co-curricular, and extracurricular activities in
economics, finance, entrepreneurship, and creativity.

The organization also focuses on entrepreneurship to address the
critical issues of unemployment and underemployment in Puerto
Rico. The World Economic Forum anticipates that by 2023, 52% of
the tasks currently performed by humans will be managed by
artificial intelligence, and by 2025, 50% of the global workforce will
depend on self-management. The island is facing global
competition for investment, and many companies are moving their
operations to other countries where production costs are lower.
Encouraging entrepreneurship and lifelong learning can be an
alternative to generate jobs and create local capital.


http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
http://echarpalante.com/
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http://echarpalante.com/
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ECHAR
PRLANTE

CHALLENGES FACED

Significant educational transformation - updating the curriculum
and educational methodologies to develop the skills and knowledge
students need for the future of work.

Achieving sustained economic development and socio-economic
recovery - focusing on entrepreneurship to address issues of
unemployment and underemployment while ensuring academic and
socio-economic recovery by developing entrepreneurial
communities.

VISION OF THE ENTREPRENEURIAL COMMUNITY

“Echar Pa’Lante will migrate to a new digital learning and
collaboration community. We also plan to provide college
professors and entrepreneur mentors with advanced certifications
in topics such as innovation, scientific entrepreneurship, exporting
and law. We expect that E&I education will be fully integrated in
100% of high schools. Additionally, we plan to implement a PR
Lifelong Learning Strategy. Through these efforts and the work the
entrepreneurship support network is doing we expect that new
ways of collaborating will be adopted and there will be more
cooperation among sectors. We can expand our impact and
position Puerto Rico as a highly skilled and competitive workforce
in the Americas and the world.”

IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY

Established strong & cohesive multisector coalition behind a
common purpose: empower Puerto Ricans with essential skills to
accelerate the development of an entrepreneurship and innovation
(E&I) culture to help restore growth and bring prosperity to all.

Developed a critical mass of K-16 educators and a network of
support practitioners. As of May 2022:

1,106 college professors trained
10,061 K-12 educators trained
496 entrepreneur support practitioners trained

Integrated E&I'in K-16 curriculum and enabled the implementation
of systems to transform educational institutions and municipalities
into enterprising communities.






of survey respondents
0 identify as females
12% /

The US Census Bureau estimates 53% of Puerto Rico’s population is female.

Examining the top industries
represented in our sample,
Females have a higher
participation in Creative
Industries, Retail, Restaurant &
Hotels, and Personal Services.
Males have higher participation
in Agribusiness and
Manufacturing.

As to their types of
businesses, Females reported
having a Microenterprise 14%
more than Males. On the other
hand, Males report having
more Innovation-led and
Second-Stage businesses than
Females, 8% and 5%
respectively.

In terms of financing alternatives
used to fund their business, Females
use Personal Savings on a similar level
to their Male counterparts. Friends
and Family comes up as the second
alternative more often used by
Females, using it 6% more than
Males. Interestingly, Males show a
larger percentage of use for Business
Credit Cards, Federal Loans,
Acceleration and Incubator programs.

Creative Industries
Retail

Restaurants & Hotels
Agribusiness
Personal Services

Manufacturing

62%

Industry Distribution
. Females Males

48%

7%
17%
6%

Type of Business

. Females

19%  21%

Microenterprise

15%
10%

Business
Credit Cards

14%
7%
[

Federal
Loans

Main Street

Males

18%
10%

11%
11%

9%
[

Innovation-led Secon

Financing Alternatives

. Females

0,
7% 11%

Acceleration
Programs

Males

13% 16%

Incubator
Programs

26%

' 20%

Friends
& Family

13%

d-Stage

86% 86%

Personal
Savings

92



The buzz of our female bees

Entrepreneurial Motivations
I Females © Males

44% 43% 44%
38%
30%
. .
Generate a higher Desire to create Desire to provide
personal income something of my own for my family

Personal Situations
. Females . Males

71%
l 60% D
Insufficient personal Insufficient financial Lack of time to develop
income skills the business
Main Business Obstacles
. Females . Males
56% c0% 53% 529

48%

Seed capital Changes in Access to other
availability operational costs private financing




of survey respondents identify as Black,
2 5 0/0 African American or Afro-Caribbean

The US Census Bureau estimates 10% of Puerto Rico’s population
identifies as Black or African American.

Industry Distribution

This population seems to be I Afro Other

represented in similar

proportions to other groups Creative Industries NS ZS 15%
across industries. In 2021, we Retail NN 14%
saw a higher percentage in Restaurants & Hotels NGO 10%

Agribusiness (14%), Agribusiness [ N0 10%
Restaurants & Hotels (12%). Personal Services | NRESANINN 11%

Manufacturing 7% 8%

Type of Business
-Cari 58%  58%
Afro Canbbean gntreprenegrs W a0 Other
report having Microenterprises
at the same proportion as
other groups. Interestingly, 0%
this group reports having 5% 16% 12% 13% 15% 0o
more Second-Stage businesses . - -
than the rest of the sample. Microenterprise Main Street Innovation-led Second-Stage
On par with other groups, Financing Alternatives 1ys, B6%
- %
Afrg—entreprenegrs ﬂngnce I afro Other
their business using mainly
Personal Savings. The second
most likely business financing
source are Friends and Family .
(9% difference). When . 0%
1 1 0 o 14% 14%
observing other alternatives, 12% 11% — 6o 10% 4
these groups have a very . ;| a; .
proportional spread. Business Federal Acceleration  Incubator Friends Personal
Credit Cards Loans Programs Programs & Family Savings

94



The Afro-bees of our hive

Entrepreneurial Motivations
. Afro . Other

7% 45%
39% 39%
26%
. .
Desire to create Cenerate a hlgher DeS|re to provide
something of my own personal income for my family

Personal Situations
. Afro . Other

69% 68%

l l l56% 54%

Insufficient personal Insufficient financial Lack of time to develop
income skills the business

Main Business Obstacles
. Afro . Other

52% 0% 53%

59%
53% 53%

Seed capital Acquisition of Changes in Access to other
vailability insurance, licenses operational costs types of private

and special permits financing



of survey respondents

14%

Individuals 50+ years old in
our sample have a higher
participation in Agribusiness
(9% difference) than other
groups. We can also spot a
difference in Restaurant &
Hotels, where other 18 - 49
years olds have a higher
participation (4% difference).

Entrepreneurs 50+ have 3% more
Second-Stage businesses than
younger groups. While the 18 -
49 year olds have 3% more
Innovation-led businesses. Both
groups have similar proportions in
terms of Microenterprise and
Main Street businesses.

On par with other groups, Afro-
entrepreneurs finance their
business using mainly Personal
Savings. The second most likely
business financing source are
Friends and Family (10 point
difference), as well as Acceleration
programs that provide seed
funding. However, they seem less
likely to use traditional financing,
or receive private investment.

are 50+ years old

The US Census Bureau estimates 43% of Puerto Rico’s population is 50+ years old.

Industry Distribution

M 18-49 50+
Manufacturing  [EEZSANN 9%
Personal Services o 10% 7%
Agribusiness o I% 16%
Restaurants & Hotels 7%

Retail
Creative Industries

Type of Business

57%  59% I 18-49 50+
21%  19%
Microenterprise Main Street Innovation-led

Financing Alternatives

11%
15%

9o, 12%
[

Second-Stage

87%
82%
M 18-49 50+
27%
16%
12% 12% © 5% 15%
9 9% 9%
k > i
L] - [ |
Business Federal Acceleration Incubator Friends Personal
Credit Cards Loans Programs Programs & Family Savings

96



The wisest bees in the hive

Entrepreneurial Motivations
0 18-49 | 50+

43%  45% 43%  4h%
27%
. 5
Desire to create Generate a higher Desire to provide
something of my own personal income for my family

Personal Situations

M 18-49 [ 50+
67%  63%
56% 549 56%
I l l - i l i
Insufficient Insufficient Insufficient Lack of time to
personal income financial skills business skills develop a business
Main Business Obstacles
1849 [ 50+
. 57% o
53% 52% 4% 50% 489,

Seed capital Changes in Access to other Government
availability operational costs private financing Regulations




of survey respondents
0 identify as LGBTQ+
1% yasttsld

Currently, there is no accurate data regarding Puerto Rico’s population that identifies as
LGBTQ+. A study by Gallup estimates 7.2% of the US population identifies as LGBTQ+.

Industry Distribution

Entrepreneurs that identify I LoBTQ+ Other
as LGBTQ+ have a higher
participation in the Manufacturing | EEEEIIGENN 7%
Restaurants & Hotels Personal Services G 9%
industry (13% difference) Agribusiness IS8l 10%
and a lower participation in Restaurants & Hotels [ NG 9%
Agribusiness (2%). Retail [N 13%
Creative Industries RN 15%
: _ Type of Business
ntrepreneurs in this group cou,
report having more Main Street, B LeTo. Other
Innovation-led and Second-Stage 4%
businesses than other groups.
They also have a much lower 22% 19y 17% 17%
percentage of Microenterprises . 12% 10%
(15% difference) . .
Microenterprise Main Street Innovation-led Second-Stage
Financing Alternatives 87%
Similar to other groups, I LoBTO+ Other 78%
individuals in the LGBTQ+
community have mostly used
Personal Savings to fund their
business. In our sample, they 32%
have used Friends & Family, 79, 24% 23%
Incubators, and Business 1%  10% g% 2% go 13%
Credit Cards much more. . [ ] .

Business Federal Acceleration Incubator Friends Personal
Credit Cards Loans Programs Programs & Family Savings


https://news.gallup.com/poll/332522/percentage-americans-lgbt.aspx

The LGBTQ+ community

Entrepreneurial Motivations
I LGBTQ+ | Other

46%

43% G4%  43%
2% 26%
19%
. 12%
Cenerate a Desire to create Interest in being Desire to provide
higher personal something of my own boss for my family
income my own
Personal Situations
W LcBTQ+ [ Other
73% 67% 71%
. . . : i :
Insufficient personal Insufficient financial Lack of time to develop
income skills the business

Main Business Obstacles
I LGBTQ+ | Other

54% 54% 51%  52% 49% 54%
I i I : l l . l
Access to other Acquisition of Changes in Seed capital

types of private insurance, licenses operational costs availability

financing and special permits




The future of Puerto Rico's entrepreneurial ecosystem holds significant potential for
growth and development. However, several key challenges need to be addressed to

unlock this potential fully. To achieve this, in our 2021 Status Report of the

Entrepreneurial Community in Puerto Rico, we shared a set of recommendations and
highlighted some of the work being done in the ecosystem to address the issues.

~ Understand the
entrepreneurial ecosystem
through data
- Understand the
entrepreneurial
ecosystem’s baseline
~ Catalogue and convene a
full network of
entrepreneurship support
organizations
~ Define shared goals and
metrics to facilitate
tracking and decision-
making
~ Reduce barriers to
entrepreneurship

Increase access to
: entrepreneurial education
~Increase access to capital
~ Streamline regulatory and

permit processes to start
a business

Our recommendations were to:

~ Leverage community
resources and partners to
drive and promote
economic development
strategies

~ Promote a strong

entrepreneurial culture

- Promote the truth about
entrepreneurship

- Promote a strong growth
mindset

~ Promote high standards
and accountability

~ Promote
entrepreneurship as a
tool for equitable and
inclusive social and
economic development

~ Promote a collaborative
community spirit

In our conversations with community stakeholders, and
the entrepreneurs and resource partners interviewed
for this report, we were able to see how our data
reflects the everyday work of our community and
reiterates the importance of these recommendations to
advance equitable and inclusive economic
development.

In terms of what is being done to understand the
ecosystem, at Colmena66 we are updating our
resource network mapping and continuously increasing
the number of partners. With our surveys we are
gaining insight into the struggles entrepreneurs and
organizations alike face and our annual report aims to
complement existing data sources in the ecosystem
and aid decision-making. There is still a need to define
ecosystem-wide metrics and the methodologies in
order to effectively track them.

When it comes to reducing barriers, entrepreneurial
education is crucial. We observed in our data that 70%
of ESOs are incorporating mentoring and capacity
building in their programs. Particularly, Echar Pa’Lante
has undertaken the important task of addressing the
issue of transforming Puerto Rico’s education system
to foster entrepreneurship and build the necessary
skills so that our workforce is highly competent in
business and innovation, and able to compete globally.
They've reached critical mass educating K-16 educators
and will now be moving to implement additional
strategies to further the vision of Puerto Rico
becoming the Enterprising Island.



Likewise, access to capital is the top issue businesses
face, evidenced by the financing alternatives used, the
impact of inflation and socio-economic effects at an
individual level. CDVCA began its work in Puerto Rico
addressing issues of access to capital with the Puerto
Rico Fund for Growth investment fund that to date has
deployed $46M on the island. They are also not just
preparing businesses to access capital, but they are
educating potential investors. We saw in our sample
that, collectively, the community deployed over $19M
to entrepreneurs (and an additional $72M by
government agencies) in 2022. Yet, there is still a
significantly large gap regarding this topic, concerning
both the availability of funds and the preparedness of
entrepreneurs.

To further reduce barriers there is still a lot of
opportunity to consolidate and streamline regulatory
and bureaucratic processes for businesses. This is an
issue the community perceives needs improvement, as
66% of entrepreneurs and 74% of resource partners
disagree that Puerto Rico’s regulatory framework
encourages business formation. We also observe that
government and community stakeholders can leverage
ecosystem platforms even more to reach the people
that need their support and to achieve their
programmatic impact goals. This is evidenced by the
fact that over 30% of organizations reported lacking
service and event visibility. We believe most people in
Puerto Rico don't yet know about the work being done
to support entrepreneurship.

Regarding entrepreneurial culture, every person
impacted is helping create the shift. Using UPR i+c’s
work as an example, they saw an opportunity to take
innovations in academia and turn them into successful
businesses, as in the case of Insu Health Design. They

have developed an incubator, certifications, and have
gone on to create courses that are now part of the
university’s academic offering. Efforts like what Echar
Pa’Lante is doing aim to deeply transform the culture in
the long term, educating the educators that will foster
future generations of entrepreneurs and transform
schools, universities, and municipalities into
enterprising communities. Across these efforts and
many more, entrepreneurship is regarded as a valuable
tool to address socio-economic disparities and improve
our society’s well-being. There are opportunities to
foster the export capacity of Puerto Rican businesses
so we can tap into global opportunities, generate
wealth, and contribute to the island's economic
prosperity. This represents a shared vision of outward
growth and inward reconstruction.

Addressing these challenges and seizing opportunities
for growth will shape the future of Puerto Rico's
entrepreneurial ecosystem. By fostering an enabling
environment, nurturing collaboration, promoting
diversity, and embracing innovation, Puerto Rico has
the potential to become a thriving hub of
entrepreneurship and economic resilience. This
collective approach not only enhances the support
available to entrepreneurs but also fosters a sense of
unity and shared responsibility within the ecosystem.

VA




k Colmenat66

Tu Camino Empresarial

Your contribution will support the
hive to continue having an inclusive,
equitable, and accessible business
ecosystem in Puerto Rico where
everyone, regardless of their
demographics and socioeconomic
status, can make their idea an
economic reality for themselves and
their families.

Bee part

Thanks to you, Puerto Rico can
continue to position itself as a
globally recognized hub of
innovation and entrepreneurship.

Scan or click. Your donation
will enhance our programs
and services


https://www.paypal.com/donate/?cmd=_s-xclick&hosted_button_id=TP5PE8BU22XJL
https://www.colmena66.com/




k Colmena66

Tu Camino Empresarial

CONTACT US AT:

787.525-4111 / info@colmenab6.com
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https://www.colmena66.com/
https://www.facebook.com/colmena66/
https://www.instagram.com/colmena66/?hl=en
https://www.youtube.com/@colmena66
https://www.tiktok.com/@colmena66
https://mobile.twitter.com/colmena_66
https://www.linkedin.com/company/colmena66
https://prsciencetrust.org/
https://www.joinsourcelink.com/
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